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1.0 PHA Information
Chattanooga Housing Authority HAPCode: TNOO4
PHA Type: [] Small [ High Performing [X] standard X HCV (Section 8)
PHA Fiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY)01/2010

20 | Inventory (based on ACC units at time of FY beginning in dbdve)
Number of PH units: 2951 Number of HCV units: 2800

30 | Submission Type
X] 5-Year and Annual Plan ] Annual Plan Only []5-Year Plan Only

40| PHA Consortia ] PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a joint Rland complete table below.)

No. of Units in Each Program
— PHA Program(s) Included in the | Programs Not in the
Participating PHAs Code Consortia Consortia
PH HCV

PHA 1:
PHA 2:
PHA 3:

5.0 5-Year Plan. Complete items 5.1 and 5.2 only at 5-Year Plaratad

51 | Mission.
The mission of the Chattanooga Housing Authoritthessame as that of the Department of Housinglabhdn Development:
To promote adequate and affordable housing, ecanopportunity and a suitable living environmengffeom discrimination.




52

Goalsand Objectives.
Increase the availability of decent, safe and affor dable housing

Expand the supply of assisted housing through pipéication for additional rental vouchers, reduntin public housing
vacancies, leveraging of private or other publindisito create additional housing opportunities @asglisition or development @
new units and projects.

Improve the quality of assisted housing by improgatrof public housing management score, improvemgwnbucher
management, increase in customer satisfactiowertration on efforts to improve specific managetfienctions such as
public housing finance, voucher unit inspectioesavation and modernization of public housing yritsmolition or disposition
of obsolete public housing, provision of replacetrmmblic housing and replacement vouchers and fipeofect based vouchers
to support tax credit financial rehabilitation atlikevelopment activities and housing opportunities.

Increase assisted housing choices through voucbbility counseling, outreach to landlords, provisimt homeownership
programming for both public housing residents ai@\VR participants continue to offer public housiitg-$ased waiting lists,
and conversion of public housing to vouchers.

I mprove community quality of life and economic vitality.

Provide an improved living environment by impleniegtmeasures to promote income mixing in publicdiog by assuring
access for lower income families into higher incategelopments when identified, by implementing puhbusing security
improvements, and by designating development fiberéf residents.

Promote self-sufficiency and asset development of families and individuals

Promote self-sufficiency and asset developmenssiSted households through increased numbers acenpages of employed
persons in assisted families, provide or partn#én siipportive services to improve assistance regipi employability and
increased independence for the elderly or familiits disabilities, and apply for grant funding tapport these initiatives.

Ensure equal opportunity in housing for all Americans

Ensure equal opportunity and affirmatively furtfer housing by undertaking affirmative measuresrsure access to assiste
housing regardless of race, color, religion, natiamigin, sex, sexual preference, familial statrg] disability. The CHA will
undertake affirmative measures to provide a swetibing environment for families living in assidgt@ousing, regardless of rac
color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual prefece, familial status and disability and to ensageessible housing to persons
with all varieties of disabilities regardless ofittsize required. The CHA will also take affirmatiaction to diversify the public
housing resident and HCVP participant populations.

Work to reestablish financial foundation of CHA

The CHA hereby incorporates by reference the tarits Financial Recovery Plan and HUD Tier One ieevas approved by
HUD Nashville into this Plan.




6.0

PHA Plan Update
(a) Identify all PHA Plan elements that have bemiised by the PHA since its last Annual Plan siskion:

The following plan elements have been updated gimedast Agency Plan submission.
Utility Allowances
Dwelling Lease
Maintenance Plan
ACOP (minor changes)
HCVP Admin Plan (minor changes)
Violence against Women Act (VAWA)

(b) Identify the specific location(s) where thebpa may obtain copies of the 5-Year and Annual PPiAn. For a complete list|

of PHA Plan elements, see Section 6.0 of the inSoms.

CHA 2010 Plan may be examined by the public in Gimatoga TN at:

1. Mayor’s Office

2. Community Development Office

3. Bicentennial Library

4. Villages at Alton Park office

5. Oaks at Camden office

6. Harriet Tubman office

7. Cromwell office

8. Greenwood Terrace, LLC office

9. East Lake Courts office

10. College Hill Courts office

11. Boynton Terrace office

12. Gateway Towers office

13. Mary Walker Towers office

14. Glenwood Heights — Judson Lane ,Scattered Sitéseoff
15. Greater Housing Resource Center, CHA main Office
16. www.chahousing.org

In addition to the above thResident Advisory Board and the followingResident Councils receive copies

Boynton Terrace
College Hill
Cromwell

East Lake
Emma Wheeler
Gateway
Greenwood
Harriet Tubman
Mary Walker




HOPE VI, Mixed Finance Moder nization or Development, Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing, Homeowner ship Programs,
and Project-Based Vouchers
(a) HOPE VI, Mixed Finance M oder nization or Development

Description of Potential Project AMP No. No. Units Timeframe Application Submit
College Hill TNO04000001 497 2010
(potential HOPE VI and/or mixed-finance)

East Lake Courts TNO004000002 417 2010
(potential HOPE VI and/or mixed-finance)
Harriet Tubman TNO04000003 440 2010
(potential HOPE VI and/or mixed-finance)
Emma Wheeler Homes TNO004000008 340 2011
(potential HOPE VI and/or mixed-finance)
Boynton Terrace TN004000010 250 2011
(potential HOPE VI and/or mixed-finance)
Steiner Apartments (potential mixed- part of 50 2011
finance) TN004000012
Fairmount Ave. Apartments (potential part of 28 2010
mixed-finance) TN004000012
Cromwell Hills (potential mixed-finance) TN00400a02 200 2014
(b) Demoalition and/or Disposition
Description of Potential Demo/Dispo, AMP No. Potential Timeframe, Demolition Start or
Approval Status Units Affected, Sizes, Disposition Closing
Accessibility Features
Fairmount Ave. Apartments part of 28 units total 2010
Unit Nos. 120525-120552 TN004000012 20 2-BR
(approved demolition) 8 3-BR
0 for physically
disabled
College Hill part of 497 units total 2009-2010 for James A. Henry School; 2011 for other
Unit Nos. 010001-010497 TN004000001; 214 1-BR portions
(disposition of James A. Henry School TN004000001 249 2-BR
property; potential disposition of other 34 3-BR
portions of site) 0 for physically
disabled
East Lake Courts TN004000002 417 units total 2011
Unit Nos. 020001-020437 150 1-BR
(potential disposition) 220 2-BR
47 3-BR
0 for physically
disabled
Harriet Tubman TN004000003 440 units total 2011
Unit Nos. 030001-030599 00-BR
(potential demolition or disposition) 76 1-BR
204 2-BR
120 3-BR
20 4-BR
7 for physically disabled
(not to current UFAS)
Emma Wheeler Homes TN004000008 340 units total 2012
Unit Nos. 130 1-BR
(potential disposition) 80 2-BR
80 3-BR
43 4-BR
7 5-BR
29 for physically
disabled
(not to current UFAS)
Boynton Terrace TNO004000010 250 units total 2012
Unit Nos. 150 0-BR
(potential disposition) 97 1-BR
22-BR
0 for physically
disabled
Glenwoo«-Devel Lan: part ol 14 units tote 201C




Homeownership Program

Missionary Heights Apartments part of 44 units total 2014
Unit Nos. 120101-120144 TN004000012 30 2-BR
(potential disposition) 14 3-BR
0 for physically
disabled
Glenwood-Devel Lane part of 14 units total 2010
Unit Nos. 120230-120243 TN004000012 8 2-BR
(potential disposition) 4 3-BR
24-BR
0 for physically
disabled
Steiner Apartments part of 50 units total 2011
Unit Nos. 120301-120350 TN004000012 37 2-BR
(potential disposition) 13 3-BR
0 for physically
disabled
Cromwell Hills TN004000021 200 units total 2014
Unit Nos. 120601-120800 42 1-BR
(potential demolition or disposition) 108 2-BR
40 3-BR
10 4-BR
5 for physically disabled
(c) Conversion of Public Housing
Description of Conversion, Mandatory or AMP No. Potential Timeframe for Demolition Start or
Voluntary Affected Units Affected, Sizes, Disposition Closing
Accessibility Features
None identified at this time.
(d) Homeowner ship
Description of Homeowner ship Project Project No. No. of Units Potential Timeframe for Application for Approval
Market rate lots and for-sale homes at formeFN4-32 43 remaining: Approval complete (activity approved under previolis
McCallie Homes HOPE VI site. Homes to 1 home, HOPE VI grant). Development of new homes and
be developed by HOPE VI Developer 42 lots sales ongoing, market- and appraisal-dependant. 1
Pennrose Properties, Inc. HOPE VI assisted home remaining for sale. No
HOPE VI funding will be utilized in the remaining
market-rate lots’/homes homes.
Housing Choice Voucher Program N/A TBD CHA's Section 8 Homeownership Coordinater i

working with ~32 clients toward attaining

homeownership. Clients are working to improve
credit, develop savings for down payment, learruéh
the mortgage and home buying process, and locate
suitable homes on the market.

o




(€) Project-Based Vouchers

The CHA currently has project based vouchers atvi@ogl Manor [116 vouchers] and may create one oernompetitive
proposals for project based vouchers for use atldpments servicing families, as well as elderlgt disabled individuals ir|
Hamilton County. If made available, the CHA'’s hffied entity Greenwood Terrace, LLC and other C$1AL Cs related to
mixed finance developments may choose to submibomeore responses to CHA-generated Requests dmoBals for
Project Based Vouchers.

8.1

8.2

Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report. As part of the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan, annuedignplete and submit
the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1, for each current and open CRihgand CFFP financing

See Attachment (H)
Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan. As part of the submission of the Annual Plan, PAsst complete and submit t@apital Fund Program
Five-Year Action Plan, form HUD-50075.2and subsequent annual updates (on a rolling begis,drop current year, and add latest year fiveayear period).

Large capital items must be included in the FivexYction Plan.

See Attachment (1)

8.3

Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP).
[ Check if the PHA proposes to use any portionsoCiapital Fund Program (CFP)/Replacement HousietpFéRHF) to repay debt incurred to finance cdpi
improvements.

3]

9.0

Housing Needs. The CHA has reviewed the City of Chattanoogaissdlidated Plan, information provided by HUD and
other generally identifiable data. Tables of thEH. wait list and current occupancy data for bolaH. and HCVP are
shown below with analysis and information regardimg housing needs of low, very low and extremely income families
in the jurisdiction including elderly families, falies with disabilities, and households of varisases and ethnic groups.
The housing needs address issues of affordatslifyply, quality, accessibility, size of units anddtion.

LIPH Wait List Data (1628 Applicants)

<30% Area 30% to 50% Area >50% Area
Median Median Median

Income 1439 (88%) 173 (11%) 15 (1%)

20 to 39 yrs. 40 to 59 yrs

Disabled Non-disabled
Accessibility 337 i21% i 1291 i79% i
Caucasian African American Other
Race 132 (8%) 1370 (84%) 4(1%)

Five or morg
56 (3%)

One Two Three Four
643 (39%) 596 (37%) 223 (14%) 110 (7%)

Household Size




LIPH Occupied Household Data (2429 Households)
<30% Area 30% to 50% Area >50% Area

Median Median Median
Income 2078 (86% 296 (12% 51 (2%
Disabled Non-disabled Not Reported

Accessibility

One Two Four Five or morg
Household Size | 1263 (52 % 497 (20% 349 (14% 195 (8%

HCVP Occupied Household Data ( 2771 Households)

<30% Area 30% to 50% Area >50% Area
Median Median Median

Income

Disabled Non-disabled

Accessibility

Two Three Four Five or morg

Household Size | 941 (34%) 552 (20%) 574 (21%) 410 (15%) 294 (11%)

HCVP Wait List

The HCVP wait list has been closed for more thgdar and containd267 applicants. It contains only name, address,
contact info, and SS#. Since no demographic mfovailable it is not shown in the charts above.

Affordability

Currently unit occupancy lists indicate that 96%he&f HCVP units and 98% of the LIPH units are odedby residents
with an income level below 50% of the AMI and witte majority of these in the extremely low categoryhe LIPH wait
list indicates almost identical characteristicsw@8% of the applicants indicating an income obleb0% AMI.

An increase in the stock of safe, affordable,akunnbits by 450 units, particularly in low and véngome areas appears
warranted.

This should be backed up by providing a systeniasipection of rental housing and enforcement ddllcodes to ensure
that rental units are safe and decent.

Supply

HCVP- After remaining closed for more than a ydweer waiting list for HCVP still exceeds the suppfieaisting vouchers
by 154%. With a turnover rate of approximately 250 uniés pear the current closed list would last for mitvat 10 years
These factors indicate that the supply of affordadthoice housing in the private market is excepllgrntight and has
resulted in housing shortages and increased casiebed conditions for extremely low income, verylemcome, and
special needs households.




Without additional voucher availability or redugati@f rents in the open private market, this sitwatwill be difficult or
impossible to address.

=

LIPH- The wait list of public housing is equal t@% of the current occupied number of units. Althlodhis is less than ha
of the level for HCVP, it is still a critical sittian which appears to be growing. Due to insigfit funding in the past fey
years, several public housing complexes are inreaweed of either complete modernization or demaliand replacement.

<

Additional or replacement units should be createdumding can be arranged, including the leveragihgrivate and/or
public funds.

In addition to the tight supply for affordable howg Chattanooga is facing an increasing problémomneless individuals
that are living either on the street or in tempyrstielters. The Homeless Coalition estimatesttimnhumber of homelegs
individuals in Chattanooga at any given time israggnately 800-1,000. CHA currently is participaf with Southeast
Tennessee Human Resource Agency (SETHRA) and védimg 6 units for use by homeless individuals.

Quality

Units are available for rental for low income aretywlow income families and homeownership posgiediexist. However,
these may be substandard or, if of good qualign thut of the range of affordable to most low-tode@te income citizens.
This degradation of quality usually occurs morejérently during real estate downturns and recessigithough the quality,
issue may improve with a changing economy, thisdwe address the issue of insufficient qualityilabdity in the short
term.

Accessibility

There is a need for both rental housing and homegstiip opportunities for people with physical disibs who require
special modifications to housing. The same is foughe mentally ill. The disabled needs indicalby both wait and
occupancy lists demonstrate that this issue neels iddressed and that current supply for thid reeprobably inadequate.

Elderly

CHA has 535 units designated for Elderly Housinghw wait list of 98. There are additional norbfic housing
complexes in the area that provide affordable hmufr the elderly. The supply of affordable kimg for the elderly for
the area appears to be adequate for current demand.

Special Needs

CHA also recognizes that there is a demand in @hatiga for Special Needs Housing.
This includes but is not limited to housing forthe Chronically Homeless, Homeless with Disabditiéctims of
Drug/Alcohol Abuse , Victims of Domestic Violenamnd Veterans.

Size of Units

According to the City of Chattanooga’s Consolida®tan, there is an increasing need for an expasdpgly of one, two
and three bedroom, non-elderly affordable unité lofpublic and private housing. This is suppotigdiata from LIPH
wait list which indicates that on326 of the applicant pool has a household size of Bb@s or more and that ord96 of
the applicants are age 60 and over.

L ocation

According to the City of Chattanooga’s Consolidadan, there is a need for deconcentration of oepieent housing for
planned demolition activities.




9.1

Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs

CHA applied for four (4) competitive stimulus gtamnder the American Recovery & Reinvestment ASRRA"] to
enable the creation of 190 new rental units fomppeof low income in both low and moderate incomeaa, and to
rehabilitate 35 units at Boynton Terrace, 25 ofakhivould have been fully handicapped accessibig 18 of which would
have been be modified to be fully accessible ferahdio/visually impaired. However only one (Lamjrwas awarded. Thi
reduced the short term development plan fi@®units to only36 new units of affordable housing (includiBdor
disabled). However, since we have the unfundemgjepts already planned and ready to go, CHA wilkronsider applying
for low-income tax credits as a means to accestasl@leverage funding to create additional hogdgor low-income, very
low income and special needs households.

CHA currently has 100 elderly units under renaativhich will be completed over the next year.ishill increase our
mobility disabled unit count by five (5) units amdual/auditory units by two (2).

The CHA plans to identify additional developmenpogunities in areas around the City where theeenat high
concentrations of poverty and utilize whatever fagccan be made available including ReplacementsihguFunds. Two
possible locations are currently under considematiith preliminary discussions by staff.

The CHA applied for and received two HUD ideat Opportunity and Self Sufficiency Grants toyide 2 staff members
dedicated to family self-sufficiency and remwnership counseling for participants in the Hogsthoice Voucher
Program.

The CHA is working closely with the interedstgarticipants to ensure that the chosen homesfay@od quality and within
the range of affordability for the familfthe CHA is working with the City of Chattanoogaaward HOME funds to
eligible families to support the purchasehafmes of good quality. Additionally the CHA hasreased the number of bott
public housing residents’ and HCVP partcifs’ access to homeownership counseling by walyeoétaff noted above, as
well as through partnerships with local naofjis made possible by a ROSS Public Housing Hommeoship Grant that
recently ended. We also plan to expand hemeopeducation programs to reach 1,000 peopletbeenext five years
[2010-2015].

CHA will continue to support special needsising by partnering with social agencies to preindusing while they
provide support and case management. ifitlisdes but is not limited to:

Providing 6 units for use by homeless uriderSETHRA program

Providing up to 15 units for homeless viiof domestic abuse under the Housing First Program

Providing 12 units and office space for rering victims of drug and/or alcohol abuse undier €ouncil of Alcohol and
Drug Abuse Services (CADAS) program.

Provide administration for 44 Collaboratix@ichers under the Shelter Plus Care for chropitemeless with disabilities.
Provide administration for 5 Individual vdwars under Shelter Plus Care for homeless wittbiies.

Provide administration for 9 Family vouchargler Shelter Plus Care for homeless with didadsli

Provide administration for 35 vouchers fat&tans under VASH program.

Long range plans include improving the hogsimix and building configuration of public housidgvelopments by
reconfiguring selected developments thrathghdemolition of non-viable units and replacenwith scattered site
developments.




10. Additional Information
(a)Progressin Meeting Missions and Goals of 5 Year Plan

Expand the supply of Assisted Housing.

Applied for and received 35 VASH vouchers.

Applied for competitive ARRA Grant to demolish amggplace obsolete housing.

Reduced vacant units in past two years by 50%.

Started a long term vacant unit reduction progrétizimg both contract and Force Account labor
with ARRA funding.

Improve the quality of assisted housing.
= Disposed thru property sale of 24 units of obsdhetgsing at Gurley St.
= Completed the renovation of 98 units at Greenwoedakce.
= Started the renovation of 100 units at Mary Walkewer 2.
= Completed the construction of 57 Mixed Income U(@sks).

Increase Assisted Housing Choices.
= Added Homeownership Counselor to staff.
= Added HCVP Family Self Sufficiency Counselor tofsta
= Established monthly meetings with landlords

I mprove Community Quality of Lifeand Economic Vitality.
= Newly renovated Greenwood Terrace established pityrfar working families and families in job
training programs.
= Applied for elderly and disabled housing statussieveral sites.
= The Oaks was developed and opened as a mixed inceigleborhood.

10.0

Promote Self-sufficiency and Asset Development of Families.
= Newly renovated Greenwood Terrace established pitirfar working families and families in job
training programs.
= Applied for and received a Neighborhood Networkar@to establish computer center to serve
Greenwood and Scattered Sites.

Ensure Equal Opportunity and affirmatively further Fair Housing.

Applied for ARRA competitive grant to convert 35B1on units for accessibility.
Created three (3) accessible units and three (B)ertible units at the Oaks.
Created seven (7) accessible units at Greenwoaddeer

Conversion of five (5) accessible units at Mary Keéalin progress.

Financial Recovery of CHA
= Current financial recovery plan is slowly makinggress.
= Projected to be in a positive cash position by2010.

(b) Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/M odification

The CHA defines “significant amendment” and “subsitd deviation” to include changes to rent admission
policies or organization of the waiting list, chasgn the use of replacement reserve funds undeC#épital Fund, an
any change to demolition, disposition, designationonversion activities.

The CHA recognizes that the CHA'’s Plan is subjecthte same requirements as the original CHA Pladlding
timeframes]; i.e. the CHA must consult with the ideat Advisory Board, the CHA must ensure consisfanith the
Consolidated Plan of Chattanooga, the CHA mustigeofor a review of the amendments/modificationsthogy public
during a 45-day public review period [as defined?#h CFR 903.17] and the CHA may not adopt the ammemd or
modification until the CHA has duly called a megtif its Board of Commissioners that is open toghblic.

10
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PHA Certifications of Comp]iance U.S. Departmeilt of'-HFl;sing and.Urban ngelopm?nt

ith PHA Pl d Related Office of Public and Indian Housing
with ans and krelate Expires 4/30/2011
Regulations

PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations:
Board Resolution to Accompany the PHA 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the + _5-Year and/orZet@nnual PHA
Plan for the PHA fiscal year beginning osfatf 2019, hereinafter referred to as” the Plan”, of which this document is a part and make
the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with the
submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

1.

2.

10.

11.

The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such

strategy) for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located.

The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate State or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable

Consolidated Plan, which includes a certification that requires the preparation of an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing

Choice, for the PHA's jurisdiction and a description of the manner in which the PHA Plan is consistent with the applicable

Consolidated Plan.

The PHA certifies that there has been no change, significant or otherwise, to the Capital Fund Program (and Capital Fund

Program/Replacement Housing Factor) Annual Statement(s), since submission of its last approved Annual Plan. The Capital

Fund Program Annual Statement/Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report must be submitted annually even if

there is no change.

The PHA has established a Resident Advisory Board or Boards, the membership of which represents the residents assisted by

the PHA, consulted with this Board or Boards in developing the Plan, and considered the recommendations of the Board or

Boards (24 CFR 903.13). The PHA has included in the Plan submission a copy of the recommendations made by the

Resident Advisory Board or Boards and a description of the manner in which the Plan addresses these recommendations.

The PHA made the proposed Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing available for public inspection at least 45

days before the hearing, published a notice that a hearing would be held and conducted a hearing to discuss the Plan and

invited public comment.

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing

Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by examining their programs or proposed programs, identify any

impediments to fair housing choice within those programs, address those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the

resources available and work with local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction's initiatives to affirmatively further
fair housing that require the PHA's involvement and maintain records reflecting these analyses and actions.

For PHA Plan that includes a policy for site based waiting lists:

e  The PHA regularly submits required data to HUD's 50058 PIC/IMS Module in an accurate, complete and timely manner
(as specified in PIH Notice 2006-24);

o The system of site-based waiting lists provides for full disclosure to each applicant in the selection of the development in
which to reside, including basic information about available sites; and an estimate of the period of time the applicant
would likely have to wait to be admitted to units of different sizes and types at each site;

e Adoption of site-based waiting list would not violate any court order or settlement agreement or be inconsistent with a
pending complaint brought by HUD;

e  The PHA shall take reasonable measures to assure that such waiting list is consistent with affirmatively furthering fair
housing;

e The PHA provides for review of its site-based waiting list policy to determine if it is consistent with civil rights laws and
certifications, as specified in 24 CFR part 903.7(c)(1).

The PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act

of 1975.

The PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the

Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped.

The PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment

Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 135.

Previous version is obsolete Page 1 of 2 form HUD-50077 (4/2008)



12. The PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable.

13. The PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24
CFR 5.105(a).

14. The PHA will provide the responsible entity or HUD any documentation that the responsible entity or HUD needs to carry
out its review under the National Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58
or Part 50, respectively.

15. With respect to public housing the PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or HUD determined wage rate requirements under
Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

16. The PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with
program requirements.

17. The PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, and 24 CFR Part 35.

18. The PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular No. A-87 (Cost Principles for State,
Local and Indian Tribal Governments), 2 CFR Part 225, and 24 CFR Part 85 (Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and Federally Recognized Indian Tribal Governments).

19. The PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and will utilize
covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the regulations and included in its Plan.

20. All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the PHA Plan is
available for public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with
the Plan and additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified
by the PHA in its PHA Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the PHA.

21. The PHA provides assurance as part of this certification that:

(i) The Resident Advisory Board had an opportunity to review and comment on the changes to the policies and programs
before implementation by the PHA;

(ii) The changes were duly approved by the PHA Board of Directors (or similar governing body); and

(iii) The revised policies and programs are available for review and inspection, at the principal office of the PHA during
normal business hours.

22. The PHA certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable Federal statutory and regulatory requirements.

Clarntanoe st trwewe KurhoeiTy TH 00+
PHA Name / PHA Number/HA Code

v 5-Year PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20 jo - 20 1#-

/_ Annual PHA Plan for Fiscal Years 20/ - 20

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning: HUD will
rosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Title

Eddie F Holmes Boret Chrir

Signature Date

iawi/ﬁ W/\/ ﬂ?/as/a,oo‘i

Previous version is obsolete Page 2 of 2 form HUD-50077 (4/2008)



Civil Rjghts Clertification U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/2011

Civil Rights Certification
Annual Certification and Board Resolution

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairman or other
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioner, I approve the submission of the Plan for the PHA of which this
document is a part and make the following certification and agreement with the Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) in connection with the submission of the Plan and implementation thereof:

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and will affirmatively further fair housing.

Chattanooga Housing Authority TNOO4

PHA Name PHA Number/HA Code

T hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Waming: HUD will
prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official Eddie F. Holmes | Tite Board Chair

I YO

form HUD-50077-CR (1/2009)
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226




Certification by State or Local U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Official of PHA Plans Consistency Office of Public and Indian Housing
with the Consolidated Plan Expires 4/30/2011

Certification by State or Local Official of PHA Plans Consistency with the
Consolidated Plan

I, Ron Littlefield the Mayor of Chattanooga certify that the Five Year and
Annual PHA Plan of the Chattanooga Housing Authorily js consistent with the Consolidated Plan of
Chattancoga, Tennessee prepared pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91.

i [y ~r

’
N 227 o4
SigneMaMpmpr te State or Docal Official

form HUD-50077-SL (1/2009)
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226



Certification for
a Drug-Free Workplace

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Applicant Name
Chattanooga Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

Five Year and 2010 Agency Plan - Capital Fund TN37P00450110

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

¢. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will ---

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f.

2. Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Check here D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminai and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.8.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Elizabeth F. McCright

Title
Executive Director

Signature
o M Cieght

Date 10{5/0(?

form HUD-50070 (3/98)
ref. Handbooks 7417.1, 7475.13,7485.1 & .3



Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (Exp. 3/31/2010)

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name

Chattanooga Housing Authorty

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

Five Year and 2010 Agency Plan - Capital Fur TN37P00450110

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, US. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.8.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name of Authorized Official

Elizabeth F. McCright

Title

Executive Director

Signature

=t MC(‘,u.a/J

Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

10/06/0‘1’

Previous edition is obsolete

form HUD 50071 (3/98)
ref. Handboooks 7417.1, 7475.13, 7485.1, & 7485.3



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352

Approved by OMB
0348-0046

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Type of Federal Action:
E] a. contract
b. grant
c. cooperative agreement
d. loan
e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

2. Status of Federal Action:

Ea. bid/offer/application
b. initial award

c. post-award

3. Report Type:
E a. initial filing

b. material change
For Material Change Only:
year quarter
date of last report

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
(=] prime ] subawardee

Tier , ifknown:
CHHIT A 00 G /Ff Honsi1ve /{urkoﬂ.ory

P.o. Box 1426
ChamAanvoee Ak TW ST4el

Congressional District, if known: 4c

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

7. Federal Program Name/Description:
[Funding for Capital Fund Program 2010]

CFDA Number, if applicable:

8. Federal Action Number, if known:
TN37P0450110

9. Award Amount, if known:

$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
(if individual, last name, first name, MI):

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(/ast name, first name, MI).

N/A N/A
e n A
T Q ')
11 Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section SI nature' tF M (M,W
°1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact g )

upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made
or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This
information  will be available for public inspection. Any person who fai's to file the
required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and
not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Print Name: Elizabeth F. McCright

Title: Executive Director

Telephone No.: 423-668-2374

Date: jﬁé@;sm

Federal Use Only:

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)
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RESOLUTION 09 - 042

APPROVING A FIVE-YEAR AGENCY PLAN FOR THE PERIOD ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND CONTAINING THEREIN A REVISED ADMISSIONS AND
CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY (ACOP); A REVISED HOUSING CHOICE
VOUCHER ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN; ANNUAL OBJECTIVES FOR THE PERIOD
ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2010; A REVISED HOUSING LEASE; CAPITAL FUND
PLANS AND REPORTS; AND INCORPORATING EXPANDED GOALS AND
OBJECTIVES BY REFERENCE AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TO EFFECT THE INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Quality Housing and Work Responsibilities Act of 1998 (QHWRA) requires
that public housing agencies prepare and submit updated Agency Plans annually, setting forth
five-year goals and annual objectives, and

WHEREAS, in accordance with HUD guidelines for Public Housing Agency Plans, 24CRF Part
903.13, a revised Agency Plan was prepared and made available for public review and comment
as of August 11, 2009, and posted at all CHA sites, the Office of the Mayor, the City’s
Community Development Office, the Bicentennial Library, on the CHA website, and delivered to
the President of each Resident Council, the Resident Advisory Board (RAB), Board Chairperson
Eddie Holmes and to Resident Commissioner Betty Robinson, and

WHEREAS, the CHA has considered all comments from the RAB, the customers, community
and the local government, and

WHEREAS, the revised Agency Plan is due to HUD by October 16, 2009, and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Chattanooga
Housing Authority hereby approves the revised Agency Plan, including all attachments thereto,
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the revised Agency Plan, including the revised ACOP and
HCVP Administrative Plan and Housing Lease, will be effective upon approval by HUD or
January 1, 2010, whichever is later, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to effect the
intent of this resolution, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be effective immediately.

Adopted September 28, 2009

CERTIFICATE

I, Elizabeth F. McCright, Secretary of the Chattanooga Housing Authority, and as such the keeper
of the records of said authority, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and
compared copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Chattanooga
Housing Authority at its meeting on the ___28th , day of _ September , 2009, the original of
which is of record and on file in my office.

WITNESS my hand and the official SEAL of the Chattanooga Housing Authority this _28th day

of September , 2009.
EFY CCang Rp
\

Elizabeth F. McCright, Secretary
Chattanooga Housing Authority

(SEAL)



FIVE-YEAR & 2010 ANNUAL AGENCY PLAN

Minor Revisions to
Agency Plan

Goals and objectives are the same as the 2009 Plan; namely to improve the quality
and expand the supply of affordable housing, promote self-sufficiency, ensure
equal opportunity in housing for all, promote homeownership, and work to
reestablish a sound financial foundation for CHA

The Agency Plan must include any proposed disposition, demolition or
renovation to be undertaken by the CHA in 2010 through 2014. Since we cannot
go forward with any of these activities unless the provision is in the Agency Plan,
we have included such possible activity for all CHA sites.

The Plan elements include the Public Housing Admissions & Continued
Occupancy Policy (4COP), the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Administrative
Plan, the Capital Fund budget, statement of financial resources for FY2010,
designated housing, domestic violence program, and asset management.

Summary of Minor Revisions

ACOP

Removed the Permissive Deduction provision

Added language to incorporate the surcharge for utilities for the High Rise
Buildings and Harriet Tubman units 400-499

Added a provision to accept a maximum of $5.00 cash at any site office

Revised language regarding repayment agreements approved in the last ACOP
revision.

Clarified the adoption of the phase-in of Asset Management fees to cover Central
Office Cost Center operations

Updated ACOP relative to rent payment method, administrative transfers, and pet
deposit

Revised housing lease

HCVP Administrative Plan

Incorporated into the document minor changes already approved by the Board during
the past year:

Clarified program requirements relative to tenant’s reporting of income
Expanded definition of “special admissions” to include rehabilitation of a public
housing development



Attachment C
RAB Comments

2010




CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

801 N. HOLTZCLAW AVENUE
CHATTANOOGA, TN 37404-1236
TEL (423) 668-2374
FAX (423) 752-4462
TDD (423) 752-4830
www.chahousing.org

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

EDDIE F. HOLMES, CHAIRPERSON
JAMES F. SATTLER, VICE CHAIRPERSON
MOLLY H. COOPER

CONSUELO O’NEAL

WILBERT R. ROBERTS, JR.

BETTY RODISON | ALING ADDRESS
ELIZABETH F. MCCRIGHT P.0. BOX 1486
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHATTANOOGA, TN 37401-1486
October 5, 2009

SUBJECT: ATTACHMENT C - 2010 AGENCY PLAN

Please note that no comments were received from the Resident Advisory Board during the review
process of the 2010 Agency Plan.

gMC Cught

Elizabeth F. McCright
Executive Director
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 801 N. HOLTZCLAW AVENUE

CHATTANOOGA, TN 37404-1236
TEL (423) 668-2374
FAX (423) 752-4462
TDD (423) 752-4830

EDDIE F. HOLMES, CHAIRPERSON
JAMES F. SATTLER, VICE CHAIRPERSON
MOLLY H. COOPER

CONSUELO O'NEAL www.chahousing.org
WILBERT R. ROBERTS, JR.
?1]}3-[1- ;?EI}Z:%I‘:BSIN SON MAILING ADDRESS
ELIZABETH F. MCCRIGHT P.0. BOX 1486
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHATTANOOGA, TN 37401-1486
October 5, 2009

SUBJECT: ATTACHMENT D - 2010 AGENCY PLAN

Please note that there were no challenged elements during the review process of the 2010 Agency
Plan.

8}; M * C/\A/?(u
Elizabeth F. McCriglsrtJ
Executive Director
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008
with
Report of Independent Auditors
and
Management's Discussion and Analysis
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’0 & COMPANY wu-r
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Commissioners of
Chattanooga Housing Authority:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of net assets of Chattanooga Housing
Authority as of December 31, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of revenues, expenses, and
change in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Housing Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Chattanooga Housing Authority as of December 31, 2008,
and its consolidated changes in net assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26, 2009,
on our consideration of Chattanooga Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of
our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis shown on pages 3 to 13 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures that consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

2325 LAKEVIEW PARKWAY, SUITE 450 ALPHARETTA, GEORGIA 30004 TELEPHONE (678) 867-2333 ~ FACSIMILE (678) 867-2366  http:/ /www.novoco.com



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of Chattanooga Housing Authority taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information,
including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the
Financial Data Schedule required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

/\/o?«»&f% HP
June 26, 2009



CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 801 N. HOLTZCLAW AVENUE

CHATTANOOGA, TN 37404
TEL (423) 668-2374
FAX (423) 752-4462
TDD (423) 752-4830

www.openingdoors.org

EDDIE F. HOLMES, CHAIRPERSON
JAMES F. SATTLER, VICE CHAIRPERSON
MOLLY H. COOPER

CONSUELO O'NEAL

WILBERT R. ROBERTS, JR.

BETTY ROBINSON MAILING ADDRESS

JIM STEFFES ELIZABETH F. MCCRIGHT P.0. BOX 1486
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHATTANOOGA, TN 37401

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Our Mission:
The Chattanooga Housing Authority will provide safe, decent, affordable housing;
while promoting those community service programs that encourage the education, personal development and
wealth building capabilities of the residents and participants we serve, in the most customer friendly, cost-
effective manner.

This section of the Housing Authority’s annual financial report presents Management’s analysis of the
Housing Authority’s financial performance during the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2008.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND CONCLUSIONS:

The Chattanooga Housing Authority has made the transition to the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34) in prior periods which require this executive narrative. The
financial statements for 2008 have been reviewed by key management staff to assess the financial health of the
Housing Authority. The reader of this report should also understand that the interfund accounts, which
balance between all funds, have been eliminated from the consolidated report and from this analysis. It is
apparent in the future that the Housing Authority must rely less on uncertain grant funding and develop
alternative resources to maintain current service levels. The Housing Authority has made the necessary
financial and organizational changes to comply with the requirements of project based accounting in this next
year. Financial highlights of this past year are as follows:

» During FY 2008, the Housing Authority’s grant funding decreased by $4.9 million from FY 2007.

» The assets of the Housing Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $63.1 million (net assets) as opposed to $70.4 million for the prior fiscal year. The Housing
Authority experienced a decrease in assets of $7.30 million for FY 2008, which was a direct result of
the capital fund expenditures used for the planned additions to the federal and state modernization
programs.

» CHA continues to address the financial indicators scores that have dropped markedly during the last
two years as established by the Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC). While the Agency has been
designated a non-standard performer by HUD, the Housing Authority continues to make the necessary
operational changes and budgetary responses to return the agency to a Standard Performer.



REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements of the Housing Authority are designed to be corporate-like in that all
business-type activities are consolidated for the entire Housing Authority. The Housing Authority consists
exclusively of enterprise funds. Enterprise funds utilize the full accrual basis of accounting, making them
more similar to the accounting methods utilized by the private sector. Many of the funds maintained by the
Housing Authority are required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Other
funds are segregated to enhance accountability and control.

The basic financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, which is similar to a balance sheet. The
Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources for the Housing Authority. The statement is
presented in the format where assets minus liabilities equal “Net Assets”, formerly known as equity. Assets
and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “current” (convertible into cash within
one year), and “non-current”. Net Assets are reported in three broad categories:

Net Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This component of Net Assets consists of
all Capital Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets: This component of Net Assets consists of restricted assets, whereby constraints
are placed on the assets by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, and
regulations.

Unrestricted Net Assets: This component of Net Assets consists of Net Assets that do not meet the
definition of the other two categories. Unrestricted Net Assets represent the net available liquid (non-
capital) assets, net of liabilities for the entire Housing Authority.

The basic financial statements also include a Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets,
similar to an income statement. This statement includes operating revenues such as rental income, operating
expenses such as administrative, utilities, maintenance and depreciation, and non-operating revenues and
expenses such as grant revenue, investment income and interest expense.

The focus of the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets is the “Change in Net Assets”,
which is similar to net income or loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which disclosed net cash provided by, or used in, operating
activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities.

Major Programs

The focus of the Housing Authority’s financial statements should be on the major programs of the Housing
Authority. The following are considered major programs of the Housing Authority:

Conventional Public Housing — Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Housing
Authority rents units that it owns to eligible low-income families, the elderly, and persons with
disabilities. The Housing Authority uses income limits developed by HUD which set the limits at 50




to 80 percent of median income for the area. This program is operated under an Annual Contributions
Contract (ACC) with HUD, whereby HUD provides the Housing Authority operating subsidy funding
to assist in funding the operating and maintenance expenses and offer rent based upon 30 percent of
household income. The Conventional Public Housing Program also includes the Capital Fund
Program, which is the primary funding source for modernization of, and physical and management
improvements to, the Housing Authority’s properties.

Housing Choice Voucher Program — Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Housing
Authority administers contracts with independent landlords to allow low-income families to reside in
privately-owned rental housing. The Housing Authority subsidizes the family’s rent through a
Housing Assistance Payment paid to the landlord. This program is administered under an ACC with
HUD, whereby HUD provides funding to enable the Housing Authority to structure a lease that sets
the participant’s rent at 30 percent of household income.

Non-Major Programs

In addition to the major programs above, the Housing Authority also administers a number of non-major
programs. These funds include:

YouthBuild Program - This program is funded through HUD’s Community Planning and
Development Division to provide opportunities for unemployed and undereducated youths to become
employable and achieve a level of self sufficiency through education, construction training, and job
training.

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program — This program provides public housing
residents with supportive services, resident empowerment activities, and assistance in becoming
economically self-sufficient. In addition the Housing Authority is provided funding to establish,
expand and/or update community technology centers.

Weed & Seed Program — This program is a comprehensive, multi-disciplinary approach to combating
violent crime, drug use, and gang activity in high crime neighborhoods.

Shelter Plus Care — Through this program the Housing Authority provides rental assistance to hard-to-
serve homeless persons with disabilities in connection with supportive services funded from sources
outside the program.

Business Activities — These represent programs supported by non-HUD resources developed from a
variety of Housing Authority-initiated activities.




FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY

One question frequently asked about a Housing Authority’s finances is “Did the Housing Authority’s
operations and financial position improve or deteriorate over the previous fiscal year?” The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Net Assets report information about the Housing
Authority’s activities and are summarized in the following sections.

To begin our analysis, a summary of the Housing Authority’s Statement of Net Assets is presented in Table I.

Chattanooga Housing Authority
Consolidated Statement of Net Assets

TABLE |

Account Descriptions 2008 2007 Total Change % Change
Current Assets $ 4,959,728 $ 12,274,271 $ (7,314,543) -60%
Capital Assets 61,858,966 63,074,812 (1,215,846) -2%
Other Noncurrent Assets 22,914,138 21,471,496 1,442,642 7%
Total Assets $ 89,732,832 $ 96,820,579 $ (7,087,747) -1%
Current Liabilities $ 8,293,762 $ 4,166,038 $ 4,127,724 99%
Noncurrent Liabilities 14,831,828 20,397,743 (5,565,915) -27%
Total Liabilities 23,125,590 24,563,781 (1,438,191) -6%
Minority Interest 3,555,173 1,903,606 1,651,567 87%
Invested in Capital Assets

Net of Related Debt 44,882,649 44,865,398 17,251 0%
Restricted Net Assets 7,720,624 9,813,941 (2,093,317) -21%
Unrestricted Net Assets 10,448,796 15,673,853 (5,225,057) -33%
Total Net Assets 63,052,069 70,353,192 (7,301,123) -10%
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 89,732,832 $ 96,820,579 $ (7,087,747) -1%

As illustrated in the Consolidated Statement of Net Assets, Total Assets decreased by 7%. Liabilities
decreased by 6%, and the overall Net Assets decreased by 10%. The decrease in current assets is mainly
due to a decrease in Restricted Cash of $8,650,343 which was offset by an increase in unrestricted cash of
$1,761,138 and Restricted Investments of $962,611. Accounts receivable decreased by $63,442 mainly due
to a decrease in PHA projects of $788,638. Capital Assets decreased by $1,215,846 as illustrated further in
this document. Current liabilities increased by $4,127,724, which was due to an increase in current portion
of long-term debt related to the Fannie Mae loan. Total noncurrent liabilities decreased by $5,565,915,
which was mainly due to the default of the Fannie Mae loan accelerated to payment on demand.



While the Statement of Net Assets shows the change in financial position, the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Net Assets breaks down our revenues and expenses further. Table I, which follows, provides a
combined statement of these changes.

Chattanooga Housing Authority
Consolidated Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets

TABLE Il
Account Descriptions 2008 2007 Total Change %Change
Tenant Revenue $ 4,930,100 $ 4,932,589 $ (2,489) 0%
Grant Funding 28,716,214 33,657,227 (4,941,013) -15%
Interest Income 218,891 433,446 (214,555) -49%
Other Income 3,109,763 1,194,227 1,915,536 160%
Total Revenue 36,974,968 40,217,489 (3,242,521) -8%
Housing Assistance Payments 16,851,139 14,909,895 1,941,244 13%
Administrative 10,670,339 11,520,226 (849,887) -1%
Tenant Services 342,019 513,020 (171,001) -33%
Utilities 4,055,378 3,476,369 579,009 17%
Maintenance and operations 3,550,279 4,952,913 (1,402,634) -28%
Protective Services 571,623 776,445 (204,822) -26%
Insurance 610,022 616,135 (6,113) -1%
General 523,471 855,235 (331,764) -39%
Provision for allowance on investments - restricted 1,136,500 - 1,136,500 100%
Interest 1,173,622 818,407 355,215 43%
Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Interest Rate Swap (6,233) 302,285 (308,518) -102%
Depreciation 4,876,157 4,369,720 506,437 12%
Total Expenses 44,354,316 43,110,650 1,243,666 3%
Prior Period Adjustments - (8,806,252) 8,806,252 -100%
Loss Allocable to Minority Interest 78,225 4,240 73,985 100%
Change in Net Assets (7,301,123) (11,695,173) 4,394,050 -38%
Beginning Net Assets 70,353,192 82,048,365 (11,695,173) -14%
Ending Net Assets $ 63,052,069 $ 70,353,192 $ (7,301,123) -10%




REVENUES

In reviewing the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Assets, you will find that 78% of the Housing
Authority’s revenues are derived from grants from the Department of Housing and Urban Development. The
Housing Authority receives revenue from tenants for dwelling rental charges, excess utilities, and
miscellaneous charges of 13% of total revenue. Interest Revenue and Other Revenue comprises the remaining
9%. Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2007, revenues had an overall decrease of $3,342,521
or 8%.

2008 Revenue

OTenant Revenue

1% 8%  13% B Grant Funding

OInterest Income

OOther Income

Tenant Revenue — Although Tenant Revenue decreased from $4,932,589 to $4,930,100 or around .05%.
CHA was able to increase unit months leased for Public Housing Program by 225 unit months from FY 2007
to FY 2008. The decrease in rental income can be directly attributable due to lower income-based rents paid
by residents due to the increased unemployment rate in the Chattanooga area.



2008 Grant Funding OBusiness Activities

B State/Local

OOther Federal Program 2
OLow Rent

B Shelter Plus Care
OOpportunities for Youth

B Revitalization of Severly

Distressed Public Housing

OResident Opportunity and
Supportive Services

B Housing Choice Vouchers

B Executive Office for Weed and
Seed

ODisaster Voucher Program

Program Grants/Subsidies — The Housing Authority had a $4,941,013 decrease (15%) in Federal Financial
Assistance from 2007 levels. This decrease was directly attributed to lower utilization of Capital Fund
Program ($3,760,322) grants, and lower Housing Choice Voucher Program advances from HUD ($1,005,813)
to encourage CHA to utilize prior period unexpended HAP equity amounts.

Interest and Other Income — There was a decrease in interest income during the year of $355,215 due
primarily to the lower amounts earned on Housing Assistance Payment Equity balances. Other income
increased by $1,915,536.



EXPENSES

OAdministration

2008 Expenses

mTenant Services
OUtilities
OMaintenance
mProtective Services
O lInsurance Expense
B General Expense

Olnterest Expense

mLoss on Disposition of Assets
B Unrealized (Gain) Loss on
Interest Rate Swap

OHousing Assistance Payments

O Depreciation

The Chattanooga Housing Authority experienced an increase in total expenses for the current year from
$43,110,650 to $44,354,316 or 3%. The highlights of the expenses for the current year are as follows:

Housing Assistance Payments Program — HAP payments consists of rental payments to owners of private
property for which the Housing Authority has a HAP agreement with the tenant and the owner for the
difference between the tenants rent and the applicable payment standard. The Housing Authority has
increased the funding and expenditures of this program. During the year, HAP expense increased by
$1,941,244.

Administrative — Administrative costs include all non-maintenance and non-resident service personnel costs
(including benefits and accrued leave), legal costs, auditing costs, travel and training costs, and other
administrative costs such as supplies, telephone expense, etc. Compared to 2007, administrative costs
decreased by $849,887 (7%).

Tenant Services — Tenant Services costs include all costs incurred by the Housing Authority to provide social
services to the residents. The Resident Advisory Board (RAB) receives funding for board meetings, training
costs, and other items to assist the RAB in staying informed on its role in the Housing Authority’s operations.
The individual tenant councils receive assistance on costs of meetings and other social activities provided.
Tenant Services costs decreased from $513,020 to $342,019 or (33%).
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Utilities - The total utilities expense for the Housing Authority increased by $579,009 or 17%.

Maintenance and Operations — Maintenance costs are all costs incurred by the Housing Authority to
maintain the Public Housing units available for occupancy, which are owned by the Housing Authority in a
safe and sanitary manner. Costs include personnel costs, materials used to maintain the units, contracts for
waste management, vehicles, etc. The maintenance expense for the Housing Authority decreased by
$1,402,634 or 28% below the fiscal year 2007. This decrease was a result of a decrease in contract costs.

Protective Services - Protective services expense changed from $776,445 to $571,623 or a decrease of
$204,822 or 26%. Despite the reduction of funds allocated to protective services, the Housing Authority was
able to continue to provide additional police services at all developments throughout the year.

General — General expenses include insurance costs (property, auto, liability, workers’ compensation, public
officials’ liability, lead based paint insurance, etc.), collection losses, and payment in lieu of taxes to the City
of Chattanooga. General expenses changed from $1,471,370 to $1,133,493 or a decrease of $337,877.

Depreciation — Because the costs of all capitalized additions are spread over the estimated useful life of an
asset, the estimated current year costs of capitalized items is recorded as depreciation. Depreciation expense
for 2008 increased by $506,437 (12%) over the previous year levels.

CAPITAL ASSETS
At the end of fiscal year 2008, the Housing Authority had invested in Capital Assets of $61,858,966,
net of depreciation. As of December 31, 2008, the Housing Authority had decreased its net capital assets by

$1,215,846 (1.93%).

Chattanooga Housing Authority
Consolidated Statement of Capital Assets

TABLE |11
Account Descriptions 2008 2007 Total Change %Change
Land $ 9,844,187 $ 9,899,139 $ (54,952) -0.56%
Buildings and Improvements 132,117,083 129,020,330 3,096,753 2.40%
Personal Property 3,293,629 3,116,075 177,554 5.70%
Construction in Process 7,486,256 7,279,054 207,202 2.85%
Accumulated Depreciation (90,882,189) (86,239,786) (4,642,403) 5.38%
Total Capital Assets $ 61,858,966 $ 63,074,812 $  (1,215,846) -1.93%
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A summary of the changes in capital assets were as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 63,074,812
Current period additions 3,991,964
Sale of Grove Street development (331,653)
Depreciation expense (4,876,157)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 61,858,966

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of December 31, 2008, the Chattanooga Housing Authority has $14,831,828 of debt outstanding
related to the operation of various state and local programs. The following is a summary in the changes of
total debt obligations for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 20,397,743
Debt issued 204,715
Debt payments (991,784)
Current portion (4,778,846)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 14,931,828

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND EVENTS AFFECTING OPERATIONS:

Several factors may affect the financial position of the Housing Authority in the subsequent fiscal year.
These factors include:

(1) The level of low rent Public Housing funding provided by Congress to HUD has been decreasing over
the past few years;

(2) Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates; Volkswagen recently
announced that it would be opening an assembly plant bringing additional job opportunities to the
Chattanooga SMSA

(3) Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and
therefore the amount of rental revenue paid; Unemployment continues to remain close to 10%

(4) Inflationary pressure is expected to increase supplies and other costs.

Conclusion

During 2008, the Housing Authority slashed expenses in an effort to respond to its financial condition. In
addition to cutting over 30% of its staff, the Housing Authority terminated many contracts and modified others
in an effort to realize immediate cost savings. The Housing Authority’s overarching goal during the year was
to deliver uninterrupted “core services” to public housing residents and participants in the Housing Choice
Voucher Program. The Housing Authority assigned additional and/or different duties to remaining staff in
order to address the residents’ needs.
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Despite these financial challenges, the Housing Authority made strides in its efforts to improve the quality of
its portfolio and to enhance available services for residents and participants as noted below,

The redevelopment of Greenwood Terrace, a 98 unit public housing development, was completed.
The units are fully updated with new roofs, heating and air systems, cabinetry, washer/dryer hookups,
new appliances and attractive open floor plans.

HUD awarded CHA three new ROSS grants: Neighborhood Networks servicing public housing
residents, and funding for a Homeownership Coordinator and Family Self-Sufficiency Coordinator to
assist participants in the HCVP to attain economic self-sufficiency.

The Housing Authority partnered with the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy by leasing the
James A. Henry School to this new charter school. The school, located at College Hill Courts, will
provide academic opportunities to students, but also plans to provide programming for adults in the
community.

The Housing Authority, in collaboration with the Partnership for Families, Children and Adults,
instituted a Housing First Program at Emma Wheeler Homes to address the needs of formerly
homeless victims of domestic violence.

This financial report is designed to provide our residents and participants, the citizens of Chattanooga,
Tennessee, all federal and state regulatory bodies and any creditors with a general overview of the
Housing Authority’s finances. If you have any questions regarding these financial statements or
supplemental information, you may contact Elizabeth McCright, Executive Director at 423.668.2374 or
via mail at P.O. Box 1486, Chattanooga, TN 37401.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable - HUD

Accounts receivable - tenants, net of doubtful collections
of $10,548

Accounts receivable - other, net of doubtful collections
of $9,709

Notes receivable - current, net of doubtful collections
of $358,663

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted cash
Investments - restricted

Land

CAPITAL ASSETS

Buildings and improvements
Personal property

Construction in progress

Less: accumulated depreciation

OTHER ASSETS

Tax credit fees
Title and recording insurance costs
Less: accumulated amortization

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Notes receivable, net of doubtful collections
of $3,176,456

Total assets

See accompanying notes
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2,057,603
66,880
234,852

235,100

645,675

124,441

3,364,551

543,956
1,051,221

1,595,177

9,844,187
132,117,083

3,293,629

7,486,256
(90,882,189)

61,858,966

64,941
19,503
(1,801)

82,643

22,831,495

89,732,832




CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2008

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 1,461,126
Accounts payable - HUD 81,910
Accrued interest payable 7,762
Current portion of long-term debt 4,778,846
Accrued wages and payroll taxes 228,105
Tenant security deposits 226,104
Accrued compensated absences 594,356
Accrued liabilities - other 654,047
Deferred revenues 211,676
Other current liabilities 49,830
Total current liabilities 8,293,762

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued compensated absences 97,435
Fair value of interest rate swap obligation 296,052
Long-term debt, net of current capital projects 14,233,626
Other noncurrent liabilities 204,715
Total noncurrent liabilities 14,831,828
Total liabilities 23,125,590
MINORITY INTEREST 3,555,173
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 44,882,649
Restricted net assets 7,720,624
Unrestricted net assets 10,448,796
63,052,069
Total liabilities and net assets $ 89,732,832

See accompanying notes
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

REVENUE
HUD operating grants $ 26,847,201
Other governmental grants 191,250
Rental revenue 4,930,100
Other revenue 3,027,688
Total revenue 34,996,239
OPERATING EXPENSES
Housing assistance payments 16,851,139
Administrative 10,670,339
Tenant services 342,019
Utilities 4,055,378
Maintenance and operations 3,550,279
Protective services 571,623
General 1,133,493
Provision for valuation allowance on investments - restricted 1,136,500
Total operating expenses 38,310,770
Net operating loss (3,314,531)
OTHER INCOME AND (EXPENSES)
Investment income 218,891
Management fees 61,849
Gain on sale of capital assets 20,226
Interest expense (1,173,622)
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap 6,233
Depreciation (4,876,157)
Total other income and (expenses) (5,742,580)
Net loss before capital grants (9,057,111)
HUD capital grants 1,677,763
Change in net assets before loss allocable to minority interest (7,379,348)
Loss allocable to minority interest 78,225
Change in net assets (7,301,123)
Net assets, beginning 70,353,192
Net assets - ending $ 63,052,069

See accompanying notes
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Rental revenue $ 4,864,857
HUD operating grants 26,847,201
Other governmental grants 191,250
Other revenue 3,239,364
Total receipts 35,142,672
Payments to vendors 12,985,922
Payments to employees 6,768,236
Housing assistance payments 16,851,139
Total disbursements 36,605,297
Net cash used in operating activities (1,462,625)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in investments - restricted (2,099,111)
Decrease in restricted cash 8,630,117
Decrease in investments 170,096
Increase in capital assets (3,991,964)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 351,879
Increase in other assets (84,444)
Investment proceeds from minority interest 1,729,792

Net cash used in investing activities 4,706,365

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in notes payable (1,482,602)

Net cash used in financing activities (1,482,602)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,761,138
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 296,465
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 2,057,603

Reconciliation of operating loss to net
cash used in operating activities:

Change in net assets $ (7,301,123)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,876,157
Provision for valuation allowance on investments - restricted 1,136,500
Gain on sale of capital assets (20,226)
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap (6,233)
Loss allocable to to minority interest (78,225)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Accounts receivables (63,442)
Prepaid expenses (56,677)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (175,905)
Tenant security deposits 14,873
Deferred revenues 211,676
Total adjustments 5,838,499
Net cash used in operating activities $ (1,462,625)

See accompanying notes
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NOTE A -

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY:

The accounting policies of the Chattanooga Housing Authority (Housing Authority) conform to
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to proprietary funds of governments.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In June 1999, GASB
approved Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for
State and Local Governments. This and consecutive statements are reflected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements (including notes to consolidated financial statements).

The Housing Authority has an interest in an entity that is a variable interest entity under FIN 46(R),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. The Housing Authority holds a .01% ownership interest in
Greenwood Terrace, LLC, and the Housing Authority has provided certain guarantees, which include,
but may not be limited to, a construction completion guaranty, an operating deficit guaranty and a tax
credit guaranty. The maximum exposure to loss is the Housing Authority's current investment and the
sum of any guaranty payments required. The Housing Authority consolidates the entity since it has
control and bears the majority of the expected losses or expected residual returns. The equity interest
of the limited partner in the entity is reflected in minority interest on the consolidated statement of net
assets.

The following is a summary of the most significant policies:
1. Reporting Entity:

The Housing Authority is a public body corporate and politic with a seven member Board of
Commissioners. The Mayor of Chattanooga appoints the Board of Commissioners (Board).
However, the Housing Authority has complete administrative authority and it recruits and employs
personnel. The Housing Authority adopts a budget that is approved by the Board of Commissioners.
Subsidies for operations are received primarily from U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). The Housing Authority has substantial legal authority to control its affairs
without local government approval; therefore, all operations of the Housing Authority are a separate
reporting entity as reflected in this report. The Housing Authority has three component units that are
reported as blended component units: Holtzclaw Development, LLC, Grove Street Center, LLC and
Greenwood Terrace LLC. In addition, the Housing Authority has .01% ownership interests in three
tax credit developments which are not considered component units because the Housing Authority
does not have either control or financial responsibility for them: McCallie Homes Housing
Partnership — Phase I, LLC, Alton Park Housing Partnership, LLC, and The Villages Housing
Partnership, LLC. These investments are accounted for using the cost method. The Housing
Authority is responsible for its debts and is entitled to surpluses. No separate agency receives a
financial benefit nor imposes a financial burden on the Housing Authority.

2. Basis of Presentation and Accounting:

The accounting records of the Housing Authority are maintained and reported in accordance with
methods prescribed by HUD. The Housing Authority must report using GAAP; however, it has
the option to use either the single enterprise proprietary fund or special purpose governmental
fund model. The Housing Authority is a Special Purpose Government engaged only in business-
type activities and therefore, presents only the financial statements required for the enterprise
fund. In accordance with the Enterprise Fund Method, activity is recorded using the accrual basis
of accounting and the measurement of focus is on the flow of economic resources. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred. This requires the Housing Authority to account for operations in a
manner similar to private business or where the Board has decided that the determination of
revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.
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NOTE A -

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Continued)

The Housing Authority has elected to report as a single-enterprise proprietary fund and uses the
accrual basis of accounting. The measurement focus is on the flow of economic resources. The
proprietary fund is composed of a number of programs. These programs (Housing Choice
Voucher, Disaster Voucher, Shelter Plus Care, Low Rent Public Housing, Capital Fund,
Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing, Resident Opportunity and Supportive
Services, Youthbuild, Community Development Block Grant, and Weed & Seed Programs) are
designed to provide quality affordable housing opportunities and increase the self-sufficiency of
those housed. The major programs are described as follows:

The Housing Authority has multiple programs which are accounted for in one enterprise fund, which
is presented in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Low Income Public Housing — The Housing Authority owns, operates and maintains 12
projects consisting of 2,740 units of public housing. The program offers income based rental
assistance (subsidy) for elderly, disabled and single families who qualify under the low-
income guidelines. Revenues for the projects consist of rents and other fees collected from
tenants and an operating subsidy received from HUD. Typically residents pay 30% of their
adjusted gross income in rents. The Housing Authority’s subsidy is received under an
Annual Contributions Contract to offset the cost of operating the units. HUD also provides
funds to maintain and improve the public housing projects under the Capital Fund Program.
Substantially all additions and improvements to land, structures and equipment of public
housing are accomplished through these capital grant funds.

Housing Choice Vouchers — The Housing Authority provides rental assistance payments to
approximately 2,700 households who live in private rental housing. Funded by HUD
pursuant to Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act, this program allows participating families and
individuals to choose their own housing with the use of a housing voucher. Generally the
participant pays between 30% and 40% of their monthly income towards rent and the
Housing Authority pays the remainder. The Housing Authority targets this program to the
elderly, disabled households and families that are homeless or at the risk of homelessness.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that are operated in a manner similar to private
enterprise business. Under this method revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized when incurred.

Capital asset purchases are capitalized and long term liabilities are accounted for in the fund.

The Housing Authority has applied all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements as well as pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board on
or before November 30, 1989, and those issued after November 30, 1989, except for those that
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of demand deposits and U. S. Treasury Instruments
with original maturities of 90 days or less. These are stated at cost which approximates fair value.

Accounts Receivable:
Tenant accounts receivable are carried at the amount considered by management to be collectible.
Tenant accounts receivable are immaterial for further disclosures. Other accounts receivable consist

of amounts due from U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and State and Local
governments for Grant Income.
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NOTE A -

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Continued)

5.

Prepaid Expenses:

Payments made to vendors for goods or services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2008
are recorded as prepaid items.

Inter-program Receivables and Payables:

Inter-program receivables and payables are all current and are the result of the use of the Public
Housing Program as the common paymaster for shared costs of the Housing Authority. Cash
settlements are made periodically and all inter-program balances net to zero. These inter-program
receivables and payables have been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. The detail by program can be found in the Financial Data Schedule of this report.

The Housing Authority has implemented policies and practices for assessing other-than-temporary
declines in value of its investments. The carrying values of its investments are reviewed annually. If
an other-than-temporary decline in carrying value exists, a provision to reduce the asset to fair value
will be recorded on the Housing Authority’s consolidated financial statements. During 2008, a
provision for valuation allowance on investments was recognized in the amount of $1,136,500.

Investments:

Investments are recorded at cost which approximates fair value. Investment instruments consist only
of items specifically approved for public housing agencies by HUD. Investments are either insured
or collateralized using the dedicated method. Under the dedicated method of collateralization, all
deposits and investments over the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with
securities held by the Housing Authority’s agent in the Housing Authority’s name. It is the Housing
Authority’s policy that all funds on deposit are collateralized in accordance with both HUD
requirements and requirements of the State of Tennessee.

Inventories:

The Housing Authority maintains no inventory of expendable items. All supplies are expensed when
purchased. Supplies on hand are minimal. The Housing Authority’s administration believes that the
benefits of maintaining an inventory would be less in value than the cost of maintaining such a
system.

Capital Assets:

All purchased capital assets are valued at cost when historical records are available. When no
historical records are available, capital assets are valued at estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their fair value at the time they are received. Donor imposed restrictions are
deemed to expire as the asset depreciates. Land values were derived from development closeout
documentation.

All normal expenditures of preparing an asset for use are capitalized when they meet or exceed the
capitalization threshold.

The cost of buildings, improvements and personal property is depreciated over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets on a composite basis using the straight-line method. Depreciation
commences on modernization and development additions in the year following completion. Small
dollar value and minor equipment items are expensed. Depreciation on assets has been expensed in
the consolidated statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. The useful lives of
buildings, improvements and personal property for purposes of computing depreciation are as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 15-20 years
Personal property 3-7 years
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NOTE A -

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Continued)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Housing Authority has been, and is currently, involved in various demolition activities in
conjunction with its modernization and development programs. In accordance with GASB No. 42,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries,
the Housing Authority has at December 31, 2008, recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements the impact of the demolition activities. Under the provisions of the statement,
long-lived assets are to be reviewed for impairment. If the sum of the expected future cash flows is
less than the carrying value amount of the asset, an impairment loss should be recognized. No such
impairment loss was incurred during the year.

Other Assets:

Other assets consist of title and recording insurance costs and tax credit fees. Title and recording
insurance costs are amortized using the straight-line method over 40 years. Tax credit fees are
amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years. Amortization expense for the year ended
December 31, 2008 was $1,210.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities:

The Housing Authority recognizes all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives
that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value through income. If the derivative is a hedge,
depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives are either offset
against the earnings of the hedged item or recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) in
partners’ capital until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a
derivative’s change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings.

The Housing Authority holds derivative financial instruments for the purpose of limiting its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations through the use of interest rate caps. Net amounts paid or
received under interest rate swap arrangements are reflected as adjustments to interest expense.

Derivatives are held only for the purpose of hedging or limiting such risks, not for speculation.
As of December 31, 2008, none of the Housing Authority’s derivative financial instruments
qualify as hedges.

Compensated Absences:

The Housing Authority’s employees accrue personal leave or compensated absences. The Housing
Authority accrues the liability for those absences that the employee has earned the rights to the
benefits. Accrued amounts are based on a prescribed formula based on length of service. Full-time,
permanent employees are granted vacation and sick leave benefits in varying amounts to specified
maximums depending on tenure with the Housing Authority. Vacation pay is recorded as an expense
and related liability in the period earned by employees. Leave accrued but not yet paid as of
December 31, 2008, is shown as a liability allocated between current and noncurrent.

Litigation Losses:

The Housing Authority recognizes estimated losses related to litigation in the period in which the
occasion giving rise to the loss occurs but not before the loss is probable and reasonably estimable.

Restricted Assets:

Certain assets may be classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet, because their use is
restricted by contracts or agreements with outside third parties and lending institutions.

Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either: externally
imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTEB -

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Continued)

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues and expenses consist of revenues earned and expenses incurred as a result of the
principal operations of the Housing Authority. Operating revenue results from exchange transactions
associated with providing housing and related services, and federal operating subsidies and housing
assistance payments that are directly related to the Housing Authority’s mission. Nonoperating
revenue includes capital and noncapital federal grants, interest revenue, and other revenues not
meeting the definition of operating. Operating expenses consist of all expenses incurred to provide
housing services.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying amount of the Housing Authority’s financial instruments at December 31, 2008,
including cash, investments, accounts receivable, and accounts payable, closely approximate fair
value.

Annual Contribution Contracts:

Annual Contribution Contracts provide that HUD shall have the authority to audit and examine the
records of public housing authorities. Accordingly, final determination of the Housing Authority’s
financing and contribution status for the Annual Contribution Contracts is the responsibility of HUD
based upon financial reports submitted by the Housing Authority.

Application of Restricted Resources:

The Housing Authority will first apply restricted resources when an expense incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

HUD requires public housing authorities to invest excess HUD program funds in obligations of the
United States, certificates of deposit or any other federally insured instruments.

The Housing Authority’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held in both interest and non-interest
bearing checking accounts totaling $2,056,714. The restricted cash of $543,956 is held in five interest
bearing checking accounts. Investments consist of a U.S. Treasury Bill totaling $66,880, an FSS bank
account totaling $52,110, and $1,000,000 in equity funding relating to Mayfair on Market.
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DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS: (Continued)

Deposits with financial institutions are secured as follows:

Insured by FDIC $ 250,000
Investments held in US Treasury Obligations 66,880

Collateralized with specific securities in the Housing
Authority name which are held by the financial

institution 174,241
Uncollateralized 2,226,339
Petty cash held at project sites 2,200
Investment in operating partnership 1,000,000

$ 3,719,660

All investments are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market. The Housing
Authority had no realized gains or losses on the sale of investments. The calculation of realized gains or
losses is independent of a calculation of the net change in the fair value of investments.

Interest rate risk — the Housing Authority’s policy does not address interest rate risk.

Credit risk — the Housing Authority’s investments consist of certificates of deposits and a federal home
loan discount note, which do not have credit ratings, and U.S. Treasury obligations, which are not
considered to have any credit rate risk; however, the Housing Authority’s policy does not address credit
rate risk.

Custodial credit risk —the Housing Authority’s deposits and investments may not be returned in the event
of a bank failure. As of December 31, 2008, $2,719,660 of the Housing Authority’s deposits and
investments were exposed to this risk because the amounts were in excess of FDIC insurance limits;
however, $241,121 was collateralized with investments and securities held by the pledging financial
institution in the Housing Authority’s name.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2008 consisted of the following:

Accounts receivable — Tenants (net of allowance of

$10,548) $ 235,100
Accounts receivable - HUD 234,852
Accounts receivable — Other (net of allowance of

$9,709) 645,675

$ 1,115,627

Note: The above receivable balance excludes $3,697,431 of interfund balances that have been
eliminated as a result of financial statement consolidation.
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NOTES RECEIVABLE:
The notes and mortgages receivable consist of:

McCallie Homes Housing Partnership, LLC (net of

allowance of $146,641) $ 4,933,447

Alton Park Housing Partnership, LLC (net of allowance
of $189,022) 8,185,370

The Villages at Alton Park, Inc. (net of allowance
$3,176,456) -

The Villages Housing Partnership, LLC (net of
allowance of $23,000) 6,336,100
Johnson Terrace LLC (The Oaks at Camden) 3,376,578
Subtotal — Notes receivable $ 22,831,495

On August 26, 2003, the Housing Authority entered into various loan agreements with McCallie Homes
Housing Partnership, LLC totaling $5,540,088, as evidenced by notes receivable, for the construction of
low income dwellings in association with the HOPE VI Program and secured by deeds of trust. The
terms of the notes are generally between forty (40) and forty five (45) years from the date of the note. The
notes bear 0% interest; however, one loan for $2,973,447 bears interest at the long-term Applicable
Federal Rate in effect at the date of the note. No payments of principal or interest are due until the
payment date. The total outstanding balance on the notes, net of allowance, as of December 31, 2008 was
$4,933,447.

On December 16, 2003, the Housing Authority entered into various loan agreements with Alton Park
Housing Partnership, LLC totaling $8,418,385, as evidenced by notes receivable, for the construction of
low income dwellings in association with the HOPE VI Program and secured by deeds of trust. The
terms of the notes are generally between forty-nine (49) and fifty (50) years from the date of the note.
The notes bear 0% interest; however, one loan for $3,954,363 bears interest at the long-term Applicable
Federal Rate in effect at the date of the note. No payments of principal or interest are due until the
payment date. The total outstanding balance on the notes, net of allowance, as of December 31, 2008 was
$8,185,370.

On October 26, 2004, the Housing Authority entered into a loan agreement with The Villages at Alton
Park, Inc., totaling $3,176,456, as evidenced by notes receivable, for the construction of low income
homeownership dwellings in association with the HOPE VI Program and secured by deeds of trust. The
term of the notes is the termination/expiration date of the ground lease (December 31, 2010). The notes
bear 0% interest. No payment of principal is due until the payment date. The total outstanding balance on
the notes, net of allowance, as of December 31, 2008 was $0.

On May 12, 2005, the Housing Authority entered into various loan agreements with The Villages
Housing Partnership, LLC totaling $6,884,100, as evidenced by notes receivable, for the construction of
low income dwellings in association with the HOPE VI Program and secured by deeds of trust. The
terms of the notes are generally between forty-five (45) and fifty (50) years from the date of the note. The
notes bear 0% interest; however, one loan for $3,111,100 bears interest at the long-term Applicable
Federal Rate, compounded annually, in effect at the date of the note. No payments of principal or interest
are due until the payment date. The total outstanding balance on the notes, net of allowance, as of
December 31, 2008 was $6,336,100.
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NOTES RECEIVABLE: (Continued)

On June 6, 2007, the Housing Authority entered into two loan agreements with Johnson Terrace LLC
(The Oaks at Camden) totaling $3,376,578, as evidenced by notes receivable, for the construction of low
income dwellings and secured by deeds of trust. The terms of the notes are between forty (40) and forty-
three (43) years from the date of the note. One note bears 0% interest; however, the other loan for
$943,144 bears interest at the long-term Applicable Federal Rate in effect at the date of the note. No
payments of principal or interest are due until the payment date. The total outstanding balance on the
notes as of December 31, 2008 was $3,376,578.

Management believes the notes are generally collectible with the exception of The Villages at Alton Park,
Inc. A provision for an allowance of $3,176,456 has been made for the principal balance of The Villages
at Alton Park, Inc., as well as other accounts of $358,663 management deems uncollectible. Management
has not reserved such balances where the insured values of the properties exceed the face value of the
Notes Receivable. An evaluation is made annually by management to verify collectibility.

The Housing Authority entered into land lease agreements with the Promisors of the Notes Receivable.
The term of the leases shall be for forty (40) to fifty (50) years and rent is $1 per year. The cost of the
leased land is $9,813,303, which is included in Land on the Statement of Net Assets.

CAPITAL ASSETS:

A summary of the changes in capital assets was as follows:

Balance Dispositions/ Balance
12/31/07 Additions Adjustments 12/31/08

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable:
Land $ 9,899,139 $ - $  (54,952) $ 9,844,187
Construction in

progress 7,279,054 207,202 - 7,486,256
Total non-

depreciable

assets 17,178,193 207,202 (54,952) 17,330,443
Depreciable:
Buildings and

improvements 129,020,330 3,398,324 (301,571) 132,117,083
Personal property 3,116,075 386,438 (208,884) 3,293,629
Total depreciable

assets 132,136,405 3,784,762 (510,455) 135,410,712

149,314,598 3,991,964 (565,407) 152,741,155

Accumulated

depreciation (86,239,786) (4,876,157) 233,754 (90,882,189)

$ 63,074,812 $  (331,653) $ 61,858,966
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CAPITAL ASSETS: (Continued)

A summary of the changes in capital assets were as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 63,074,812
Current period additions — Capital grants 591,159
Current period — Operations 2,480
Current period additions — Honeywell 411,729
Current period additions — Greenwood Terrace LLC 2,980,485
Current period additions — Holtzclaw LLC 6,111
Current period retirements — Grove Street LLC (331,653)
Current period depreciation expense (4,876,157)
Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 61,858,966
Balance Balance
Depreciation By Asset Class 12/31/07 Net Change 12/31/08
Building and improvements $ (83,818,134) $ (4,583,886) $(88,402,020)
Personal property (2,421,652) (58,517) (2,480,169)
$ (86,239,786) $ (4,642,403) $(90,882,189)
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
Accounts payable consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:
Vendors and contractors payable $ 1,355,784
Accounts payable — HUD 81,910
Payment in lieu of taxes 105,342
$ 1,543,036

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND UNEARNED REVENUE:

Accrued liabilities and unearned revenue consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:

Accrued wages and payroll taxes

Tenant security deposits

Accrued compensated absences — current portion
Accrued interest payable

Accrued liabilities - other

Deferred revenues

Other current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
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NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Noncurrent liabilities consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:

Balance Balance
12/31/07 Increases Decreases 12/31/07
Accrued compensated
absences — noncurrent $ 754,846 $ - $ (657,411) $ 97,435
Fair value of interest rate
swap obligation 302,285 - (6,233) 296,052
Other non-current
liabilities - 204,715 - 204,715
Long-term debt, net 19,340,612 - (5,106,986) 14,233,626
$ 20,397,743 $ 204,715 $(5,770,630) $ 14,831,828
NOTES PAYABLE:

As of December 31, 2008, the Chattanooga Housing Authority has $14,233,626 of debt outstanding
related to various projects and programs. These debts are the obligations associated with the following
programs:

Citicapital Bank $ 8,565,440
First Tennessee Bank 2,969,800
Honeywell Global 3,796,962
Mayfair on Market - Fannie Mae 3,650,000
Operations - Leases Payable 30,270
Subtotal — Notes payable 19,012,472

Less: Current portion (4,778,846)

$ 14,233,626

On April 27, 2005, the Housing Authority entered into a capitalized lease purchase agreement with
Citicapital Bank. The two original notes were for $5,101,719 and $5,276,526. Both notes have an
interest rate of 4.88% with monthly payments and are secured by deeds of trust. Interest expense during
the year was $474,780. The combined outstanding balance at December 31, 2008 was $8,565,440.

Future payments consist of;

Total
Principal Interest Payments
2009 $ 742,841 $ 401,525 $ 1,144,366
2010 779,914 364,452 1,144,366
2011 818,837 325,529 1,144,366
2012 859,701 284,665 1,144,366
2013 902,606 241,760 1,144,366
2014-2018 4,461,541 497,379 4,958,920

$ 8,565,440 $ 2,115,310 $ 10,680,750

27



NOTE I -

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Continued)

NOTES PAYABLE: (Continued)

On April 28, 2007, Holtzclaw Development, LLC entered into a promissory note agreement with First
Tennessee Bank National Association. The original note was for an amount not to exceed $3,100,000.
The note bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.25% with monthly payments, which began January 1, 2007 and
is secured by a deed of trust. Interest expense during the year was $136,296. The outstanding balance
as of December 31, 2008 was $2,969,800.

Holtzclaw Development, LLC has entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an original
notional amount of $3,027,400 that limits the variable interest cash flow exposure on the loan for a
period of eleven years from the date issued. Under the interest rate swap agreement, Holtzclaw
Development, LLC pays or receives on a monthly basis an amount based on the notional amount
multiplied by the positive or negative difference. As of December 31, 2008, the fair value of the
interest rate swap obligation was $296,052. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Housing
Authority’s net cash payments under the swap agreement were $74,596.

Future payments consist of:

Total
Principal Interest Payments
2009 $ 90,600 $ 131,042 $ 221,642
2010 96,700 122,056 218,756
2011 103,800 114,069 217,869
2012 111,200 105,674 216,874
2013 120,000 95,884 215,884
2014-2018 531,700 260,834 792,534
2019-2023 911,600 297,521 1,209,121
2024-2026 1,004,200 145,621 1,149,821

$ 2,969,800 $ 1,272,701 $ 4,242,501

On July 17, 2007, the Housing Authority entered into a capitalized lease purchase agreement with
Honeywell Global Finance LLC. The original note was for $4,266,570. The note bears interest at an
effective rate of 4.238% with monthly payments, which began on June 30, 2007, and is secured by a
deed of trust. Interest expense during the year was $184,681. The outstanding balance at
December 31, 2008 was $3,796,962.

Future payments consist of:

Total
Principal Interest Payments
2009 $ 272,968 $ 182,788 $ 455,756
2010 310,292 145,464 455,756
2011 323,901 131,855 455,756
2012 339,852 115,904 455,756
2013 352,935 102,821 455,756
2014-2018 2,009,276 269,501 2,278,777
2019 187,738 2,023 189,761

$ 3,796,962 $ 950,356 $ 4,747,318
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NOTES PAYABLE: (Continued)

In May 2007, the Housing Authority and Trafalgar Development Corporation (Trafalgar) entered into
negotiations to form 700 Block Development Partners, LLC (BDP), a mixed-use development to be
called Mayfair on Market (Development). Effective August 23, 2007, the Housing Authority and
Trafalgar executed an operating agreement for the purpose of pursuing the development. Pursuant to the
operating agreement, the Housing Authority agreed to make a loan to the Development for $3,385,000
contemporaneously following the date of the operating agreement. On December 21, 2007, the
Housing Authority entered into a loan and security agreement with Fannie Mae. The original note
was for $3,650,000. The note bears a variable interest rate based on three month LIBOR plus 205
basis points and is secured by the Housing Authority’s general fund. Payments of interest only are
due monthly until maturity when the entire principal and interest outstanding is due. In January 2008,
the Housing Authority funded $2,450,000 of the required loan amount to the Development.
Subsequently, the remaining proceeds from Fannie Mae of $1,200,000 were diverted to fund general
operations at the Housing Authority. Interest expense during the year was $375,312. The outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2008 was $3,650,000. Since the Housing Authority breached the terms
of the loan and security agreement, Fannie Mae issued a notice of default. The maturity date of the
note has been accelerated as a result of this default, so the entire portion of the balance is current.

The Housing Authority has various leases for vehicles, which have been capitalized for accounting
purposes. The term of the note is for 35 months. The leases bear interest at 6.7% and are collateralized
by the vehicles. The Housing Authority makes monthly payments of principal and interest of $1,975.
Interest expense during the year was $2,552. The outstanding balance on these leases as of December
31, 2008 was $30,270.

Future payments consist of:

Total
Principal Interest Payments
2009 $ 22437 $ 1,258 $ 23,695
2010 7,833 355 8,188

$ 30,270 $ 1,613 $ 31,883

INTER-PROGRAM BALANCES:

The following amounts have been eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements:

Due from and due to accounts $ 6,180,588
Accounts receivable and payable — HUD PHA programs 1,228,530
Accounts receivable and payable — HCV program 788,639
Accounts receivable and payable — Greenwood Terrace

LLC operating subsidy 148,398
Accounts receivable and non-current liabilities — other 236,619
Accounts receivable and long-term debt 1,199,580
Accounts receivable and payable — Greenwood Terrace

LLC advances 95,665
Buildings — Greenwood Terrace LLC 97,293
Notes receivable non-current and long-term debt 2,254,892
Notes receivable non-current and accrued interest

payable 111,037
Total $ 12,341,241
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INTER-PROGRAM BALANCES: (Continued)

The entity is subject to possible examinations made by federal regulators who determine compliance
with terms, conditions, laws and regulations governing grants given to the entity in the current and
prior years. These examinations may result in required refunds by the entity to federal grantors and/or
program beneficiaries. During 2007, the Housing Authority improperly utilized $788,639 of funds
from the Housing Choice Voucher Program to pay operational expenditures. Such amounts are
expected to be repaid to the program. The Housing Authority is working closely with the local HUD
field office to define the repayment terms. The Housing Authority has internally recorded a payable
from its operations to the Housing Choice Voucher Program.

PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS:

The Chattanooga Housing Authority sponsors a defined contribution plan for all employees having at
least six months of service. Participants do not contribute to the plan and become fully vested in
employer contributions and investments earnings after five years of participation in the plan. Total
employer contributions to the plan during the year were $358,521. Total payroll during the year was
$6,283,267. Forfeited amounts can be used for administrative fees or disbursed by percentage to
remaining employees.

The Chattanooga Housing Authority sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits all employees to defer a portion ($15,500 in
2008) of their salary until future years. Such amounts are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

Assets in the plan are recorded at market value but are administered by a private corporation under
contract with the Housing Authority. The Housing Authority has no liability for losses under the plan
but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. Additional
details on the plan can be obtained from USI Consulting Group, Carissa Dunaway, 900 South Gay
Street, Suite 1796, Knoxville, TN 37902, 865-523-8353.

CONTINGENCIES:

The Housing Authority has been named as a third-part defendant in a complaint, The RiverCity
Company, Plaintiff, v. Rose & Crown LLC and 700 Block Development Partners LLC, Defendant and
700 Block Development Partners, LLC, Third Party Plaintiff v. Chattanooga Housing Authority, Third
Party Defendant. A third party action was filed against the Housing Authority by one of the initial
defendants, BDP. In general BDP asserts that the Housing Authority failed to complete certain alledged
funding obligations pursuant to the Operating Agreement of BDP relating to the Development. BDP
seeks, among other things, to hold the Housing Authority liable for any damages that BDP may sustain
as a result of the initial lawsuit filed by the RiverCity Company. The Housing Authority is evaluating
the merits of the claims and is currently unable to determine the likely outcome of these claims.
However, the Housing Authority does not believe that the outcome of these claims will have a
material adverse effect to its financial position. No amounts have been accrued or recorded in the
Housing Authority’s 2008 consolidated financial statements related to this event.

There are currently lawsuits ongoing that have arisen in the normal course of the Housing Authority’s
operations; however, there are no amounts which are deemed as contingent liabilities which should be
disclosed or accrued in the consolidated financial statements. The Housing Authority believes that an
unfavorable outcome of these matters would not have a material adverse effect to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTE M - LEASING ACTIVITIES (AS LESSOR):

NOTE N -

NOTE O -

NOTEP -

The Housing Authority is the lessor of dwelling units mainly to low-income residents. The rents
under the leases are determined generally by the resident’s income as adjusted for eligible deductions
regulated by HUD, although the resident may opt for a flat rent. Leases may be cancelled by the
lessee at any time. The Housing Authority may cancel the lease only for cause.

Revenues associated with these leases are recorded in the consolidated financial statements and
schedules as “Rental Revenue.” Rental Revenue per dwelling unit generally remains consistent from
year to year, but is affected by general economic conditions which impact personal income and local
availability.

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS:

The Housing Authority had Outstanding Contractual Commitments as of December 31, 2008 as follows:

Commitment Type Amount
Renovations $ 2,288,275
Administration 2,013,414
Program costs 1,955,208
$ 6,256,897

ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS BY FEDERAL AGENCIES:

Pursuant to the Annual Contributions Contract, HUD contributes an operating subsidy approved in
the operating budget under the Annual Contributions Contract. HUD operating subsidy contributions
for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $9,717,134.

Section 8 programs provide for housing assistance payments to private owners of residential units on
behalf of eligible low or very low-income families. The program provides for such payments with
respect to existing and moderately rehabilitated housing covering the difference between the
maximum rental on a dwelling unit, the amount of rent contribution by a participating family and
related administrative expense. The Housing Authority is also eligible to receive reimbursement of
preliminary expenses prior to lease up.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY::

Both the PHA-Owned Housing Program and the Section 8 Program are economically dependent on
annual contributions and grants from HUD. Both programs operate at a loss prior to receiving the
contributions and grants.

The Housing Authority receives approximately 78% of its revenues from HUD. If the amount of

revenues received from HUD falls below critical levels, the Housing Authority’s operating reserves
could be adversely affected.
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RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Housing Authority is exposed to all common perils associated with the ownership and rental of real
estate properties. A risk management program has been established to minimize loss occurrence and to
transfer risk through various levels of insurance. Property, casualty, employee dishonesty and public
official’s liability forms are used to cover the respective perils.

The Housing Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Housing
Authority carries commercial insurance, including workers’ compensation and employee health and
accident insurance, general liability, fire and extended coverage, fidelity bond, automobile, and Director
and Officers liability. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Additionally, there have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from the prior year.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
The supplemental information has been included in order to show the consolidated financial statements
of the Housing Authority on the GAAP basis of accounting but in the format of the HUD Handbook

7476.3, Audit Guide. This is due to the fact that some supplemental information is reviewed by the field
office and provides greater detail concerning the operations of the Housing Authority.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Commissioners of
Chattanooga Housing Authority:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chattanooga Housing Authority (the “Housing
Authority”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated
June 26, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal control over

financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Housing Authority’s ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Housing Authority’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Housing Authority’s
internal control. We consider the deficiencies 2008-1 and 2008-2 described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be

prevented or detected by the Housing Authority’s internal control. We considered items 2008-1 and
2008-2 to be material weaknesses.
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Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal
control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Chattanooga Housing Authority in a
separate letter dated June 26, 2009.

Chattanooga Housing Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Chattanooga Housing
Authority’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Commissioners, management, and

federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

A “b“’%'// % LLr

June 26, 2009
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Commissioners of
Chattanooga Housing Authority:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Chattanooga Housing Authority with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2008. The Housing Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the Housing Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
occurred with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Housing Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Housing
Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of Chattanooga Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Housing
Authority’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control over compliance.
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A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is
more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management

and federal awarding agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

e Cpy 47

June 26, 2009
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the year ended December 31, 2008

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of audit report issued on financial statements of auditee:  Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
o Material weaknesses identified? X yes

o Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? X yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? X yes
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? _yes

o Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CFDA 14.850 Low Rent Public Housing Program
CFDA 14.871 Housing Choice VVoucher Program
CFDA 14.872 Capital Fund Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $855,749

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Section Il = Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2008-1

Statement of condition

In several instances, we identified control lapses resulting from management’s override of key internal
controls. Certain key management/accounting personnel authorized payments or adjustments that lacked
adequate support or documentation. These same personnel also had the authority to sell investments and
execute wire transfers without approval or notification to the Board of Commissioners. Presentations of
budgets and financial statements to the Board of Commissioners were deemed to be misleading and
masked the Housing Authority’s true financial position and operating results.

Criteria

Under the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission report titled, Internal
Control—Integrated Framework (COSO Report), the components of internal control are (1) control
environment, (2) risk assessment, (3) control activities, (4) information and communication, and
(5) monitoring. Under the COSO Report, control environment states that “The core of any business is its
people—their individual attributes, including integrity, ethical values and competence—and the
environment in which they operate. They are the engine that drives the entity and the foundation on which
everything rests.”

Effect
The lapses of ethical conduct by certain management/accounting personnel resulted in an ineffective
control environment at the Housing Authority.

Cause
Lack of ethical conduct by certain management personnel resulted in the override of internal control.

Recommendation

The Housing Authority should provide regular training on the Standards of Conduct. At least annually,
the employees should review the Standards of Conduct and sign a confirmation that is maintained by
Human Resources.

Response
The Housing Authority will review its Standards of Conduct and require an annual confirmation from all

employees.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Finding 2008-2

Statement of condition
The Housing Authority transferred $1,200,000 of Fannie Mae funds designated for use on the Mayfair on
Market project for its operating expenditures.

Criteria

In December 2007, the Housing Authority entered into a loan and security agreement with Fannie Mae to
fund a mixed-use development to be called Mayfair on Market (Development). The loan agreement
restricted the use of the funds to the Development only.

Effect
The Housing Authority breached the terms of the loan and security agreement.

Cause
The Housing Authority had deficiencies in internal controls over cash management that lead to improper
cash transactions.

Recommendation

Management should implement procedures surrounding review of contracts and agreements. Key
provisions should be identified and summarized. Periodically, the Housing Authority should determine
its level of compliance with these contracts, agreements and requirements.

Response
The Housing Authority is currently negotiating with Fannie Mae regarding how to cure the default.

Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no federal award findings for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of audit report issued on financial statements of auditee:  Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
o Material weaknesses identified? X yes

o Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? X yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? X yes
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? __X_yes

o Significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material
weaknesses? X __yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? X yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CFDA 14.850 Low Rent Public Housing Program
CFDA 14.871 Housing Choice VVoucher Program
CFDA 14.872 Capital Fund Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $991,817

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Section 11 — Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2007-1

Statement of condition

No physical fixed asset inventory or reconciliation has been completed since the Housing Authority’s
headquarters relocated to its current location. Subsequent to year end, a fixed asset inventory was
performed resulting in an adjustment of $3,900,072. A prior period adjustment was recorded to remove
remediation costs, HOPE VI demolition costs, soft costs and capital assets owned by the City of
Chattanooga that were incorrectly capitalized in prior years.

Criteria

Generally accepted accounting principles requires that fixed asset be recorded at cost or fair market value,
if donated, and adjusted for additions, dispositions and impairment. Accounts should be reconciled at
least annually.

Effect
The Housing Authority’s records are not being maintained properly to ensure the accounting for certain
fixed assets are correct.

Cause
Controls are not in place to ensure reconciliations are performed and ensure that the accounting for fixed
assets balances is correct.

Recommendation

The Housing Authority should reconcile its fixed assets accounts regularly and perform a complete
physical fixed asset inventory at least annually to ensure that the accounting for the fixed assets balances
is correct.

Response
The Housing Authority has reconciled the fixed assets balances and adjustments have been recorded to

correct balances.

Current status
The Housing Authority has completed a fixed asset reconciliation and has implemented steps to
reconciling fixed assets periodically.

Finding 2007-2

Statement of condition

In several instances, we identified control lapses resulting from management’s override of key internal
controls. Certain key management/accounting personnel authorized payments or adjustments that lacked
adequate support or documentation. These same personnel also had the authority to sell investments and
execute wire transfers without approval or notification to the Board of Commissioners. Presentations of
budgets and financial statements to the Board of Commissioners were deemed to be misleading and
masked the Housing Authority’s true financial position and operating results.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Criteria

Under the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission report titled, Internal
Control—Integrated Framework (COSO Report), the components of internal control are (1) control
environment, (2) risk assessment, (3) control activities, (4) information and communication, and
(5) monitoring. Under the COSO Report, control environment states that “The core of any business is its
people—their individual attributes, including integrity, ethical values and competence—and the
environment in which they operate. They are the engine that drives the entity and the foundation on which
everything rests.”

Effect
The lapses of ethical conduct by certain management/accounting personnel resulted in an ineffective
control environment at the Housing Authority.

Cause
Lack of ethical conduct and resulted by certain management personnel resulted in the override of internal
control.

Recommendation

The Housing Authority should provide regular training on the Standards of Conduct. At least annually,
the employees should review the Standards of Conduct and sign a confirmation that is maintained by
Human Resources.

Response
The Housing Authority will review its Standards of Conduct and require an annual confirmation from all

employees.

Current status
See Finding 2008-1.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Section 111 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2007-3

Statement of condition
The Housing Authority transferred $788,639 of HCV program funds for its operating expenditures.

Criteria

The Housing Authority must use program receipts to provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing for
eligible families in compliance with the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 and all HUD requirements. Program
receipts may only be used to pay program expenditures. Administrative fees may only be used to cover
costs incurred to perform administrative responsibilities for the program in accordance with HUD
regulations and requirements (24 CFR sections 982.151 and 982.152). According to the Financial
Recovery Plan, dated July 3, 2008, from the Real Estate Assessment Center, the Housing Authority has
not fully implemented its asset management process and, therefore, was not eligible to charge the HCV
program “management” and “bookkeeping” fees of $732,040.

Effect

The Housing Authority has violated the program rules and requirements designated by CFR section
982.152(B)(3) — Administrative fee. However, while these fees may not be eligible for payment as an
administrative fee, such fees may be reimbursable as actual HCV program.

Cause
The Housing Authority had deficiencies in internal controls over cash management that lead to improper
cash transactions.

Recommendation

Management should implement procedures surrounding review of contracts, agreements and Program
requirements. Key provisions should be identified and summarized. Periodically, the Housing Authority
should determine its level of compliance with these contracts, agreements and requirements. Specific to
the HCV program, additional procedures should be established to determine the propriety of recognizing
management and bookkeeping fees. In addition, management should perform an assessment of the costs
of the HCV program during the period and reconstruct the Housing Authority’s actual operating costs in
order to determine if most, if not all of the $732,040 in fees highlighted in the Real Estate Assessment
Center’s report, are reimbursable.

Response
During 2008, the Housing Authority repaid approximately $72,000 to the HCV program. The Housing

Authority's cash flow budget for 2009 reflects a repayment of $180,000 to the HCV program, which is to
continue annually until the amount that was transferred is paid in full.

Current status
The Housing Authority is currently working to repay a portion of the amount during 2008.

43



CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Finding 2007-4

Statement of condition
Between December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2007, the Housing Authority depleted its operating
reserve.

Criteria

Under the Public Housing Assessment System, the Housing Authority is scored on financial management
based on its amount of cash reserves available for operations (24 CFR section 901.35). The Housing
Authority has determined that a reserve balance of $2,500,000 is recommended for scoring a Grade A.

Effect
The Housing Authority would score a Grade F based on current cash reserves available for operations.

Cause
Operating costs were maintained at excessive levels that resulted in draws of the Housing Authority’s
cash available for operations.

Recommendation
The Housing Authority should establish a plan to increase cash reserves available for operations to an
adequate level maintain reserve accounts at the required amount.

Response
Management is aware the Housing Authority reserve is not adequately funded and is developing a

strategy to increase the cash reserves available for operations over time.

Current status
The Housing Authority is aware that reserves are not adequately funded and beginning in 2009 will begin
to rebuild the reserve levels.

Finding 2007-5

Statement of condition
The Housing Authority recorded expenditures of $179,952 and sought reimbursement without adequate
documentation to support the expenditure under the Capital Fund Program.

Criteria
The Housing Authority must comply with all HUD regulations for its Capital Fund program. Such
regulations are found in 24 CFR part 905.

Condition

In a sample of 25 draw requests submitted by the Housing Authority, one draw request lacked sufficient
support for the expenditures prior to its submission. The support included a hand-written calculation
prepared by the Housing Authority and a note stating that an officer of the Housing Authority was to
provide support. HUD reimbursed the amount in full from a Payment Voucher Request (No. 092-
383914), dated December 21, 2007. Subsequently, unit surveys were completed from the various project
sites identifying expenditures that totaled $171,602; however, expenses at one location included in the
total were identified as estimates or qualified by a note that the project did not track all expenses for the
respective units.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Effect
The Housing Authority did not have sufficient support for the expenditures paid from the Capital Fund
Program at the date the funds request occurred.

Causes

The identified deficiency was the result of an override or disregard of internal control procedures for
payment and Program requirements. The policy for reimbursing expenditures should be followed by all
employees of the Housing Authority and should be reinforced through a strong “tone at the top” approach
of internal control.

Recommendation

The Housing Authority should adhere to policy and require that no reimbursement of expenditures occurs
until the submitted documentation is complete and adequate. Management should request the applicable
supporting invoices and maintain the support with the reimbursement request.

Response
The Housing Authority will obtain invoices and other required documentation to support the

reimbursement request.
Current status

This finding should be closed based on review of documentation by Tyrone Collins of the HUD Nashville
Field Office.
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF NET ASSET ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2008

Line . Project Program Central o
ltem Description Totals Totals Office Cost Subtotal Elimination Total
Balance Sheet
111 Cash-unrestricted $ -1$ 1,881,645 | $ 175,958 | $ 2,057,603 $ 2,057,603
112  |Cash-restricted-modernization and development $ -1$ 31,890 | $ -1$ 31,890 $ 31,890
113  |Cash-other restricted $ -1$ 288,846 | $ -1$ 288,846 $ 288,846
114  |Cash-tenant security deposits $ 214,062 [ $ 9,158 | $ -1$ 223,220 $ 223,220
115 [Cash - Restricted for payment of current liability $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ - $ -
100 Total Cash $ 214,062 | $ 2,211,539 | $ 175,958 | $ 2,601,559 | $ -1 $ 2,601,559
121 [Accounts receivable - PHA projects $ -1$ 788,639 | $ 1,228,530 | $ 2,017,169 | $  (2,017,169)| $ -
122-010 |Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Operating Subsidy $ 148,398 | $ -1 $ -1$ 148,398 $ 148,398
122-030 |Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Other $ -1 $ -1$ 54710 | $ 54,710 $ 54,710
122 |Accounts receivable - HUD other projects $ 148,398 | $ 31,744 | $ 54,710 | $ 234,852 30| $ 234,852
124 | Account receivable - other government $ -1$ 9,709 | $ -1$ 9,709 $ 9,709
125-050 |Account receivable - miscellaneous - Other $ 68,062 | $ 1,757,619 | $ -1$ 1,825,681 $ 1,825,681
125  |Account receivable - miscellaneous $ 68,062 | $ 1,780,157 | $ 466,102 | $ 2,314,321 -$1,680,262| $ 634,059
126  |Accounts receivable - tenants $ 245023 [ $ 625 | $ -1$ 245,648 $ 245,648
126.1  [Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants $ -18 - (10,548)| $ (10,548) $ (10,548)
126.2  |Allowance for doubtful accounts - other $ -8 (9,709) (358,663)| $ (368,372) $ (368,372)
127  |Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current $ -1 $ -1$ 358,663 [ $ 358,663 $ 358,663
128  |Fraud recovery $ 11616 | $ -1 $ -1$ 11,616 $ 11,616
120  |Total receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts $ 473,099 | $ 2,601,165 | $ 1,738,794 | $ 4813058 | $ (3,69743D) $ 1,115,627
131  |Investments - unrestricted $ -1$ 66,880 | $ -1$ 66,880 $ 66,880
132 |Investments - restricted $ 51,221 | $ 1,000,000 | $ -1$ 1,051,221 $ 1,051,221
142  |Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 71,744 | $ 24924 | $ 27773 | $ 124,441 $ 124,441
144 |Inter program - due from $ 6,055,839 | $ 124,280 | $ 469 [ $ 6,180,588 -$6,180,588| $ 0
150 Total Current Assets $ 6,865,964 | $ 6,028,789 | $ 1,942,994 | $ 14,837,748 | $ (9,878,019)| $ 4,959,728
161 Land $ 1,494,069 | $ 7,946,997 | $ 403,121 | $ 9,844,187 $ 9,844,187
162 Buildings $ 123,083,807 | $ 9,130,063 | $ 914 | $ 132,214,784 -$97,701| $ 132,117,083
164  |Furniture, equipment and machinery - administration $ 1,682,744 | $ 632,970 [ $ 977,915 [ $ 3,293,629 $ 3,293,629
166  [Accumulated depreciation $ (89,617,678)| $ (663,149) (601,770)] $ (90,882,597) $408| $ (90,882,189)
167 |Construction in progress $ 7,213,484 | $ 2,480 | $ 270,292 [ $ 7,486,256 $ 7,486,256
160  |Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 43,856,427 | $ 17,049,361 | $ 1,050,472 | $ 61,956,260 | $ (97,293)[ $ 61,858,966
171-010 [Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Not For Profit $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ - $ -
171-030 |Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Joint Venture $ -|$  18,094917 | $ -1 $ 18,094,917 $ 18,094,917
171-040 |Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Tax Credit $ 5,423,868 | $ -1 $ -1$ 5,423,868 $ 5,423,868
171 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable — Non-current $ 5423868 | $ 18,094,917 | $ 1,678,639 | $ 25,197,424 -$2,365,929| $ 22,831,495
174-050 |Other assets - Other $ -1$ 82,643 | $ -1$ 82,643 $ 82,643
174 |Other assets $ -1$ 82,643 | $ -1$ 82,643 $ 82,643
180 Total Non-current Assets $ 49,280,296 | $ 35,226,920 | $ 2,729,110 | $ 87,236,326 | $ (2,463,222)| $ 84,773,105
[ 190 [Total Assets [$ 56146260 | $ 41255710 | $ 4,672,104 [ $ 102,074,073 [ $§ (12,341,241)] $ 89,732,832 |
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF NET ASSET ACCOUNTS

December 31, 2008

Line . Project Program Central o
ltem Description Totals Totals Office Cost Subtotal Elimination Total
312 |Accounts payable <= 90 days $ 739,112 [ $ 571,248 [ $ 929727 [ $ 2,240,088 -$884,304| $ 1,355,784
321  |Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable $ 221,843 | $ -1$ 6,262 | $ 228,105 $ 228,105
322 |Accrued compensated absences - current portion $ 212584 [ $ 85,996 | $ 295776 | $ 594,356 $ 594,356
325  |Accrued interest payable $ -1$ 118,799 | $ -1$ 118,799 -$111,037[ $ 7,762
331-010 |Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Operating Subsidy $ 1,310,406 | $ -1 $ -1$ 1,310,406 $ 1,310,406
331 [Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs $ 1,310,406 | $ 341 $ -1 $ 1,310,440 -$1,228,530| $ 81,910
333  |Accounts payable - other government $ 105,342 | $ -1 $ -1$ 105,342 $ 105,342
341  |Tenant security deposits $ 216,444 | $ 9,660 | $ -1$ 226,104 $ 226,104
342-030 |Deferred revenue - Other $ 124,445 | $ -1 $ -1$ 124,445 $ 124,445
342 Deferred revenue $ 124,445 | $ 87,232 | $ -1 $ 211,676 $ 211,676
343-020 |Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue $ 1,015,809 | $ -1 $ -1$ 1,015,809 $ 1,015,809
343 [Current portion of long-term debt - capital projects/mortgage revenue $ 1,015,809 | $ 113,037 | $ -1 $ 1,128,846 $ 1,128,846
344 |Current portion of long-term debt - operating borrowings $ 695,757 | $ 3,650,000 | $ 503,824 [ $ 4,849,580 -$1,199,580| $ 3,650,000
345  |Other current liabilities $ 49,830 | $ -1 $ -1$ 49,830 $ 49,830
346 Accrued liabilities - other $ 112,539 | $ 290,647 | $ 250,862 | $ 654,047 $ 654,047
347  |Inter program - due to $ -1$ 616,395 [ $ 5,564,194 | $ 6,180,588 -$6,180,588| $ 0
310 Total Current Liabilities $ 4,804,112 | $ 5,543,048 | $ 7,550,645 | $ 17,897,804 | $ (9,604,039)| $ 8,293,762
351-020 |Long-term - Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue $ 11346593 | $ -1$ 30,269 | $ 11,376,862 $ 11,376,862
351 Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue Bonds $ 11,346,593 | $ 5,111,655 | $ 30,269 | $ 16,488,517 -$2,254,892]1 $ 14,233,626
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ - $ -
353  |Non-current liabilities - other $ -1$ 414,625 | $ 322,763 [ $ 737,387 -$236,619( $ 500,767
354 |Accrued compensated absences- Non-current $ 57,075 | $ 4619 | $ 35741 | $ 97,435 $ 97,435
356 FASB 5 Liabilities $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ - $ -
350 Total Non-current liabilities $ 11,403,668 | $ 5,530,899 | $ 388,773 | $ 17,323,340 | $ (2,491511)| $ 14,831,828
[ 300 [Total Liabilities $ 16,207,780 | $ 11,073,946 | $ 7,939,418 [$ 35221145 [ $ (12,095550)[ $ 23,125,590 |
508.1 |Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 30,798,268 | $ 13,568,002 | $ 516,379 [ $ 44,882,649 $ 44,882,649
511.1 [Restricted Net Assets $ 5,423,868 | $ 2,296,756 | $ -1$ 7,720,624 $ 7,720,624
512.1 [Unrestricted Net Assets $ 3,716,346 | $ 14,317,006 | $ (3,783,693)| $ 14,249,659 -$245,691| $ 14,003,969
513 Total Equity/Net Assets $ 39,938,481 | $ 30,181,764 | $ (3,267,314)| $ 66,852,931 | $ (245,691)| $ 66,607,242
| 600 |Total Liabilities and Equity/Net assets |$ 56,146,261 | $ 41255710 | $ 4,672,104 [$ 102,074,075 | $ (12,341,241)| $ 89,732,832 |
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSET ACCOUNTS- PROJECT BASED
December 31, 2008

I tel;1l1n|5|0 Description PI-‘I;)(j);iItS TNO004000001| TN004000002| TN004000003| TN004000007| TN004000008| TN004000010| TN004000012| TN004000021| TN004000022| TN004000029| TN004000032| TN004000033
114 Cash-tenant security deposits $ 214,062 $44,762 $36,365 $26,981 $14,193 $25,372 $23,176 $14,485 $17,598 $11,131
100 Total Cash $ 214,062 | $ 44762 | $ 36,365 | $ 26,981 | $ 14,193 | $ 25372 | $ 23,176 | $ 14485 | $ 17598 | $ 11,131 [ $ -1$ -1$ -
122-010 [ Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Operating Subsidy $ 148,398 $148,398
122 Accounts receivable - HUD other projects $ 148,398 | $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1$ -1 3 -1$ -1 $ -1 $ 148,398
125-050 [ Account receivable - miscellaneous - Other $ 68,062 $72 $244 $189 $410 $45,307 $140 $25 $18,471 $3,204
125 Account receivable - miscellaneous 3$ 68,062 | $ 721 % -13 244 | $ 189 | $ 410 | $ -13 45307 | $ 140 | $ 25($ 18471 [ $ 32041 $ -
126 Accounts receivable - tenants $ 245,023 $19,721 $55,306 $18,437 $5,059 $40,836 $72,319 $20,188 $11,660 $1,496
128 Fraud recovery $ 11,616 $1,535 $4,539 $1,636 $3,906
120 Total receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts $ 473,099 | $ 19,793 [ $ 56,841 | $ 18,681 | $ 5248 | $ 45785 | $ 72319 | $ 67,131 | $ 15,706 | $ 15211 % 18471 $ 3,204 | $ 148,398
132 Investments - restricted $ 51,221 $3,639 $7,684 $12,222 $1 $11,153 $16,521
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 71,744 $13,779 $10,589 $11,494 $3,871 $9,217 $6,237 $6,641 $6,219 $3,697
144 Inter program - due from $ 6,055,839 $1,014,011 $850,386 $890,997 $312,201 $692,638 $508,644 $434,288 $408,007 $289,755 $408,106 $75,500 $171,305
150 Total Current Assets $ 6,865,964 [ $ 1,095,984 [ $ 961,865 | $ 960,376 | $ 335,513 | $ 773,014 | $ 610,376 | $ 522,546 | $ 458,682 | $ 306,103 | $ 443,008 | $ 78,704 | $ 319,703
161 Land $ 1,494,069 $415,382 $23,641 $127,694 $75,735 $114,533 $26,000 $267,695 $409,524 $33,867
162 Buildings $ 123,083,807 $19,909,879 $26,006,526 $14,024,888 $7,218,922 $12,880,576 $7,462,063 $13,430,726 $9,029,800 $13,120,426
164 Furniture, equipment and machinery - administration $ 1,682,744 $27,063 $224,521 $36,578 $28,500 $31,504 $54,337 $40,175 $71,469 $1,168,598
166 Accumulated depreciation $ (89,617,678) -$19,051,356 -$15,384,385 -$12,146,295 -$4,350,808 -$8,640,791 -$5,363,214 -$9,561,794 -$8,297,590 -$6,821,444
167 Construction in progress $ 7,213,484 $704,640 $233,471 $675,504 $70,273 $615,754 $840,876 $3,360,389 $537,563 $168,067 $6,947
160 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 43856427 [ $ 2,005,607 | $ 11,103,775 [ $ 2,718,369 | $ 3,042,622 | $ 5,001,575 | $ 3,020,062 | $ 7,537,190 | $ 1,750,765 | $ 7,669,514 | $ -1 $ -3 6,947
171-040 [ Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Tax Credit $ 5,423,868 $3,376,578 $2,047,290
171 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable — Non-current $ 5,423,868 | $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 $ -1 3 -1$ -1 3 -1 $ -1 $ 3,376,578 [ $ 2,047,290
180 Total Non-current Assets $ 49,280,296 | $ 2,005,607 | $ 11,103,775 | $ 2,718,369 | $ 3,042,622 | $ 5,001,575 | $ 3,020,062 | $ 7,537,190 | $ 1,750,765 | $ 7,669,514 | $ -1 $ 3,376,578 | $ 2,054,237
190 | Total Assets [$ 56,146,260 [ $ 3,101,592 [ $ 12,065,640 | $ 3678745 [ $ 3,378,135 | $ 5774589 [ $ 3,630,438 [ $ 8,059,736 | $ 2,200,448 | $ 7975617 [ $ 443,098 | $ 3,455,282 | $ 2,373,940 |
312 Accounts payable <= 90 days $ 739,112 $14,713 $118,755 $99,752 $54,840 $119,144 $97,035 $63,529 $72,724 $53,869 $44,751
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable $ 221,843 $36,009 $33,359 $32,998 $15,169 $25,409 $20,326 $18,917 $26,246 $13,411
322 Accrued compensated absences - current portion $212,584 $32,170 $40,267 $27,896 $16,061 $20,217 $27,053 $15,777 $23,000 $10,144
331-010 | Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs - Operating Subsidy $ 1,310,406 $223,666 $181,978 $181,407 $71,132 $158,112 $116,219 $74,945 $93,000 $61,549 $148,398
331 Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs $ 1,310,406 | $ 223,666 | $ 181,978 | $ 181,407 | $ 71132 | $ 158,112 | $ 116,219 | $ 74,945 | $ 93,000 | $ 61549 | $ -1 $ -1 $ 148,398
333 Accounts payable - other government $ 105,342 $12,018 $14,658 $15,017 $10,258 $11,824 $41,566
341 Tenant security deposits $ 216,444 $46,512 $36,609 $27,190 $13,758 $25,702 $23,509 $14,342 $17,619 $11,203
342-030 | Deferred revenue - Other $ 124,445 $62,274 $6,075 $3,828 $5,962 $8,206 $26,449 $4,784 $1,982 $4,886
342 Deferred revenue $ 124,445 | $ 62,274 | $ 6075 [ $ 3828 | $ 5062 [ $ 8,206 | $ 26,449 | $ 4,784 | $ 1982 1% 4,886 [ $ -1 $ -1$ -
343-020 | Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue $ 1,015,809 $48,062 $418,368 $39,371 $48,210 $132,902 $103,106 $202,242 $17,457 $6,091
343 Current portion of long-term debt - capital projects/mortgage revenue bonds $ 1,015,809 | $ 48,062 | $ 418,368 | $ 39371 | $ 48,210 | $ 132,902 | $ 103,106 | $ 202,242 | $ 17,457 | $ 6,091 [ $ -1 $ -1$ -
344 Current portion of long-term debt - operating borrowings $ 695,757 $130,872 $109,790 $115,843 $40,284 $89,544 $65,819 $56,078 $52,669 $34,857 $0
345 Other current liabilities $ 49,830 $3,639 $6,294 $12,222 $1 $0 $11,153 $16,521
346 Accrued liabilities - other $ 112,539 $12,794 $10,120 $14,120 $14,190 $10,195 $20,624 $8,114 $8,632 $11,919 $1,831
310 Total Current Liabilities $ 4,804,112 | $ 610,711 | $ 961,615 | $ 554,627 | $ 291,624 | $ 604,090 | $ 515,156 | $ 458,729 | $ 334,739 | $ 219,754 | $ 102,839 [ $ -3 150,229
351-020 | Long-term - Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue $ 11,346,593 $506,365 $4,405,873 $414,551 $507,481 $1,626,205 $1,085,973 $2,552,613 $183,488 $64,044 $0
351 Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue Bonds $ 11346593 [ $ 506,365 | $ 4,405,873 [ $ 414551 | $ 507,481 | $ 1,626,205 | $ 1,085,973 | $ 2,552,613 [ $ 183,488 [ $ 64,044 | $ -1 3 -1 $ -
354 Accrued compensated absences- Non-current $ 57,075 $5,603 $2,941 $11,136 $8,368 $6,267 $2,825 $4,724 $6,239 $8,972
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities $ 11,403,668 | $ 511,968 | $ 4,408,814 | $ 425,687 | $ 515,849 | $ 1632472 [ $ 1,088,798 | $ 2,557,337 | $ 189,727 [ $ 73,016 | $ -1 3 -1 $ -
300 [ Total Liabilities [$ 16207780 [$ 1122679 [$ 5370429 [$ 980,313 | $ 807,474 [$ 2236562 [$ 1,603,955 [ $ 3,016,066 | $ 524,466 | $ 292,770 [ $ 102,839 | $ -3 150,229 |
508.1 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 30,798,268 $1,320,308 $6,169,743 $2,148,604 $2,446,646 $3,152,925 $1,765,164 $4,726,257 $1,497,152 $7,564,521 $0 $0 $6,947
511.1 Restricted Net Assets $ 5,423,868 $3,376,578 $2,047,290
512.1 Unrestricted Net Assets $ 3,716,346 $658,605 $525,468 $549,828 $124,016 $385,102 $261,320 $317,414 $187,830 $118,326 $340,259 $78,704 $169,474
513 Total Equity/Net Assets $ 39,938,481 | $ 1,978,913 | $ 6,695,211 | $ 2,698,432 | $ 2,570,661 | $ 3,638,027 $2,026,484| $ 5,043,670 | $ 1,684,982 | $ 7,682,847 | $ 340,259 | $ 3,455,282 | $ 2,223,711
600 | Total Liabilities and Equity/Net assets [$ 56,146,261 [ $ 3,101,592 [ $ 12,065,640 | $ 3678745 [ $ 3,378,135 | $ 5774589 [ $ 3,630,438 [ $ 8,059,736 | $ 2,200,448 | $ 7975617 [ $ 443,098 | $ 3,455,282 | $ 2,373,940 |

See report of independent auditors
49



CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSET ACCOUNTS- PROGRAM BASED
December 31, 2008

1 8 9 14.218 14.238 14.243 14.866 14.870 14.871 16.595 14.DVP
. Community L. Revitalization of Resident . .
Line . Development Opportunities for . . . Executive Office | ..
S Business Other Federal Other Federal . Severely Opportunity and | Housing Choice Disaster Voucher
Item Descr|pt|on Total Programs L State/Local Block Grants/ [Shelter Plus Care|Youth_Youthbuil| .. . : for Weed and
Activities Program 1 Program 2 . Distressed Public Supportive Vouchers Program
No. Entitlement d Program . . Seed
Housing Services
Grants
111 Cash-unrestricted 3$ 1,881,645 $289,000 $0 $1,587,229 $5,416
112 |Cash-restricted-modernization and development $ 31,890 $31,890
113 |Cash-other restricted $ 288,846 $233,203 $55,644
114 |Cash-tenant security deposits 3$ 9,158 $9,158
100 Total Cash $ 2211539 | $ 563,251 | $ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1 -1$ -1$ 1,642,872 1% 5416 | $ -
121 |Accounts receivable - PHA projects $ 788,639 $788,639
122 |Accounts receivable - HUD other projects $ 31,744 $0 $180 $11,227 $1,317 $18,318 $702
124 |Account receivable - other government $ 9,709 $9,709
125-050 |Account receivable - miscellaneous - Other $ 1,757,619 $1,757,619
125  |Account receivable - miscellaneous $ 1,780,157 | $ 1,757,619 $8,614 $13,923 $ - $2
126 | Accounts receivable - tenants $ 625 $625
126.2  [Allowance for doubtful accounts - other $ (9,709) -$9,709 $0
120 | Total receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,601,165 | $ 1,758,244 [ $ 8614 | $ -1$ 180 | $ -1$ 13923 [ $ 11227 $ 1317 ($ 18,318 | $ 788,641 [ $ 702 $ -
131 |Investments - unrestricted $ 66,880 $3,951 $62,929
132 |Investments - restricted $ 1,000,000 $1,000,000
142 |Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 24,924 $24,924
144 Inter program - due from $ 124,280 $0 $64,584 $0 $59,696
150 Total Current Assets $ 6,028,789 | $ 3,350,370 | $ 8614 ] $ -1$ 180 | $ 62,929 | $ 78,507 | $ 11227 | $ 1317 ($ 18318 | $ 2431513 | $ 6,119 $ 59,696
161 Land 3$ 7,946,997 $0 $7,946,997
162 Buildings 3$ 9,130,063 $9,130,063
164 Furniture, equipment and machinery - administration 3$ 632,970 $423,906 $0 $4,508 $59,840 $7,736 $136,980
166 Accumulated depreciation 3$ (663,149) -$458,906 -$644 -$59,840 -$6,780 -$136,980
167 _ |Construction in progress $ 2,480 $2,480 $0 $0
160 [Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 17,049,361 | $ 9,097,543 [ $ -1 -1s 38641 $ -1 -3 -1 7,946,997 [ $ %713 -1 $ -1s -
171-010 |Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Not For Profit $ - $0
171-030 |Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable - Non-current - Joint Venture $ 18,094,917 $18,094,917
171 |Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable — Non-current $ 18,094,917 ( $ - $ 18,094,917
174-050 |Other assets - Other $ 82,643 $82,643
174 |Other assets $ 82643 $ 82,643 $ -
180 |Total Non-current Assets $ 35,226,920 [ $ 9,180,186 | $ -1$ -1$ 3,864 | $ -1$ -1 % -1$ 26,041,914 [ $ 9571 $ -1$ -1$ -
190 [Total Assets [$ 41255710 [ $ 12,530,556 | $ 8614 $ -3 404413 62,929 [ $ 78,507 [ $ 11227 $ 26,043,231 $ 19274 [ $ 2431513 [ $ 6,119 [ $ 59,696 |
312 Accounts payable <= 90 days 3$ 571,248 $547,020 $0 $60 $3,825 $258 $6,796 $7,872 $5,416
322 |Accrued compensated absences - current portion $ 85,996 $85,996
325 |Accrued interest payable $ 118,799 $118,799
331 |Accounts payable - HUD PHA Programs $ 34 $34
341  |Tenant security deposits 3$ 9,660 $9,660
342 Deferred revenue $ 87,232 $7,938 $21,491 $57,803
343 |Current portion of long-term debt - capital projects/mortgage revenue $ 113,037 $113,037
344 |Current portion of long-term debt - operating borrowings $ 3,650,000 $3,650,000
345 [Other current liabilities $ -
346 |Accrued liabilities - other $ 290,647 $251,207 $39,440
347 Inter program - due to 3$ 616,395 $40,699 $676 $120 $7,402 $1,059 $10,064 $555,673 $702
310 Total Current Liabilities $ 5,543,048 | $ 4,730,422 | $ 8614 | $ -1$ 180 | $ -1$ -1$ 11227 | $ 1351 ($ 16,860 | $ 710,472 { $ 6,119 | $ 57,803
351  [Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue Bonds $ 5,111,655 $5,111,655
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings $ - $0
353 [Non-current liabilities - other $ 414,625 $296,052 $62,929 $55,644
354 [Accrued compensated absences- Non-current $ 4,619 $4,619
350 Total Non-current liabilities $ 5,530,899 | $ 5,407,707 | $ -1$ -1$ -1$ 62929 | $ -1$ -1 -1$ -1$ 60,263 [ $ -1$ -
300 [Total Liabilities [$ 11,073,946 [ $ 10,138,129 [ $ 8614 $ -3 180 [ $ 62,929 [ $ -3 11227 $ 1351 $ 16,860 | $ 770735 [ $ 6,119 [ $ 57,803 |
508.1 |Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 13,568,002 $5,616,184 $3,864 $0 $7,946,997 $957
511.1 [Restricted Net Assets 3$ 2,296,756 $0 $78,507 $1,458 $2,214,898 $1,893
512.1 |Unrestricted Net Assets 3$ 14,317,006 -$3,223,757 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,094,883 $0 -$554,120 $0
513 Total Equity/Net Assets $ 30,181,764 | $ 2,392,427 | $ -1$ -1$ 3,864 | $ -1$ 78507 | $ -1$ 26,041,880 | $ 2415 $ 1,660,778 | $ -18 1,893
600 [Total Liabilities and Equity/Net assets [$ 41255710 | $ 12,530,556 [ $ 8614 ] $ -8 404413 62,929 [ $ 78,507 [ $ 11227 $ 26,043,231 [ $ 19274 $ 2431513 [ $ 6119 $ 59,696 |
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSET ACCOUNTS- COCC BASED
December 31, 2008

Line Item Central
Description Office Cost
No.
Center
Balance Sheet
111 Cash-unrestricted $175,958
100 Total Cash $ 175,958
121 Accounts receivable - PHA projects $1,228,530
122-030 |Accounts receivable - HUD other projects - Other $54,710
122 Accounts receivable - HUD other projects $ 54,710
125 Account receivable - miscellaneous $466,102
126.1 Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants -$10,548
126.2 Allowance for doubtful accounts - other -$358,663
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current $358,663
120 Total receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,738,794
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets $27,773
144 Inter program - due from $469
150 Total Current Assets $ 1,942,994
161 Land $403,121
162 Buildings $914
164 Furniture, equipment and machinery - administration $977,915
166 Accumulated depreciation -$601,770
167 Construction in progress $270,292
160 Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 1,050,472
171 Notes, Loans, & mortgages receivable — Non-current $1,678,639
180 Total Non-current Assets $ 2,729,110
190 |Total Assets [$ 4,672,104 |
312 Accounts payable <= 90 days $929,727
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payable $6,262
322 Accrued compensated absences - current portion $295,776
344 Current portion of long-term debt - operating borrowings $503,824
346 Accrued liabilities - other $250,862
347 Inter program - due to $5,564,194
310 Total Current Liabilities $ 7,550,645
351-020 |Long-term - Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue $30,269

351 Capital Projects/ Mortgage Revenue Bonds $ 30,269
353 Non-current liabilities - other $322,763
354 Accrued compensated absences- Non-current $35,741
350 Total Non-current liabilities $ 388,773
300 [Total Liabilities |$ 7,939,418 |

508.1 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $516,379

511.1 Restricted Net Assets

512.1 Unrestricted Net Assets -$3,783,693
513 Total Equity/Net Assets 3 (3,267,314)
600  [Total Liabilities and Equity/Net assets [$ 4,672,104 |
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

Chattanooga, Tennessee

FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSET ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Line . Project Program Central o
ltem Description Totals Totals Office Cost Subtotal Elimination Total
70300 [Net tenant rental revenue $ 4522489 | $ 183,733 | $ -1$ 4,706,222 $ 4,706,222
70400 |Tenant revenue - other $ 183,550 | $ 373212 | $ 15,500 | $ 572,262 -$348,384| $ 223,878
70500 |Total Tenant Revenue $ 4,706,039 | $ 556,945 | $ 15,500 | $ 5278484 | $ (348,384)| $ 4,930,100
70600-010|Housing assistance payments $ -|$ 13064934 | $ -1 $ 13,064,934 $ 13,064,934
70600 |HUD PHA operating grants 3 11,194,865 | $ 15,783,055 | $ 17678 | $ 26,995,599 -$148,398| $ 26,847,201
70610 [Capital grants ['$ 1,472,822 | $ 129,949 | $ 74,991 | $ 1,677,763 | ['$ 1,677,763 |
70710 |Management Fee $ -1$ -1$ 2572341 | $ 2,572,341 -$2,510,493| $ 61,849
70720 |Asset Management Fee $ -1$ -1$ 318,240 | $ 318,240 -$318,240( $ -
70730 |Book-Keeping Fee $ -1$ -1$ 463,322 | $ 463,322 -$463,322| $ -
70740 |Front Line Service Fee $ -1$ -1$ 1,626,975 | $ 1,626,975 -$1,626,975( $ -
70750 |Other Fees $ -1$ -1$ 1,228,530 | $ 1,228,530 $ 1,228,530
70700 |Total Fee Revenue $ -1$ -1 $ 6,209,408 | $ 6,209,408 | $ (4,919,030) $ 1,290,379
70800 [Other government grants $ -1$ 191,250 | $ -1$ 191,250 $ 191,250
71100-010|Housing Assistance Payment $ -1$ 64,920 | $ -1$ 64,920 $ 64,920
71100 |Investment income - unrestricted $ 143,793 | $ 68,442 | $ 6,656 | $ 218,891 $ 218,891
71400-010|Housing Assistance Payment $ -1$ 38,748 | $ -1$ 38,748 $ 38,748
71400 [Fraud recovery $ 43472 | $ 38,748 | $ -1$ 82,220 $ 82,220
71500 |Other revenue $ 1,050,125 | $ 470,991 | $ 195,891 | $ 1,717,008 $ 1,717,008
71600 [Gain or loss on sale of capital assets $ -1$ 20,028 | $ 198 | $ 20,226 $ 20,226
70000 |Total Revenue 3 18,611,116 | $ 17,259,341 | $ 6,520,323 | $ 42,390,781 | $ (5,415,812)| $ 36,974,969
91100 |Administrative salaries $ 1,437,915 | $ 858,700 | $ 2,361,987 | $ 4,658,602 -$410,082| $ 4,248,520
91200 |Auditing fees $ 22614 | $ 45727 |1 $ 50,453 | $ 118,795 $ 118,795
91300 |Management Fee $ 2,146,009 | $ 426,891 | $ -1$ 2,572,900 -$2,100,411| $ 472,489
91310 |Book-Keeping Fee $ 209,192 | $ 254,130 | $ -1$ 463,322 -$463,322| $ -
91500 [Employee benefit contributions - administrative $ 1,107,670 | $ 233510 [ $ 890,577 | $ 2,231,757 $ 2,231,757
91600 |Office Expenses $ 1,103,585 | $ 709,933 | $ 659,918 | $ 2,473,436 -$448,385| $ 2,025,051
91700 |Legal Expense $ 59,622 | $ 42,462 | $ 207,763 | $ 309,847 $ 309,847
91800 |Travel $ 12,026 | $ 4257 | $ 12470 | $ 28,753 $ 28,753
91900 |Other $ 2,533,880 | $ 228,034 | $ 188 [ $ 2,762,102 -$1,526,975| $ 1,235,127
91000 |Total Operating-Administrative 3 8,632,513 | $ 2,803,644 | $ 4,183,357 | $ 15,619,514 | $ (4,949,175)| $ 10,670,339
92000 [Asset Management Fee [ $ 318,240 [ $ -1$ -1$ 318,240 | -$318,240] $ - |
92200 [Relocation Costs $ 1409 | $ 1500 | $ -1$ 2,909 $ 2,909
92400 [Tenant services - other $ 337,610 | $ 1500 | $ -1$ 339,110 $ 339,110
92500 [Total Tenant Services $ 339,019 | $ 3,000 | $ -1$ 342,019 [ $ -1$ 342,019
93100 |Water $ 285,780 | $ 16,706 | $ 3348 | $ 305,834 $ 305,834
93200 |Electricity $ 2,801,275 | $ 64,566 | $ 40,560 | $ 2,906,401 $ 2,906,401
93300 |Gas $ 293,127 | $ -1$ 3493 | $ 296,619 $ 296,619
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSET ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31, 2008

Line .. Project Program Central T
Description : Subtotal Elimination Total
Item P Totals Totals Office Cost
93600 |Sewer $ 466,571 | $ 22,035 | $ 1987 [ $ 490,593 3 490,593
93800 |Other utilities expense $ 50,665 | $ -1 8 5,266 | $ 55,931 $ 55,931
93000 |Total Utilities $ 3,897,418 | $ 103,308 | $ 54,653 | $ 4,055378 | $ -19$ 4,055,378
94100 |Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor $ 1,778,718 | $ -1 $ 30,143 | $ 1,808,862 $ 1,808,862
94200 [Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials and other $ 702,826 | $ 10,322 | $ 50,734 | $ 763,882 $ 763,882
94300-010 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Garbage and Trash Removal 125,327 1,528 131,298 131,298
Contracts $ 4,443
94300-020 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Heating & Cooling Contracts | $ 42,385 $ 3984 $ 2,850 | $ 48,519 $ 48,519
94300-040 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Elevator Maintenance $ 61,405 $ s 61,405 $ 61,405
Contracts $ -
94300-050 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Landscape & Grounds $ 251,952 $ 13.410 | $ 277,081 $ 277,081
Contracts $ 11,719
94300-060 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Unit Turnaround Contracts $ 54,638 | $ 1,115 $ 62| % 55,815 $ 55,815
94300-070 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Electrical Contracts $ 4,763 | $ 131 % -1 8 4,776 $ 4,776
94300-080 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Plumbing Contracts $ -1$ -1 $ -1 $ - $ -
94300-090 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Extermination Contracts $ 86,695 | $ 1589 [ $ 356 | $ 88,640 $ 88,640
94300-100 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Janitorial Contracts $ 16,714 [ $ 5237 | $ 26,368 | $ 48,319 $ 48,319
94300-120|Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Misc Contracts $ 230,336 | $ 2,897 | $ 12,219 | $ 245,452 $ 245,452
94300 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts 3 874,216 | $ 30,296 | $ 56,793 | $ 961,305 $ 961,305
94000 |Total Maintenance $ 3,355,760 | $ 40,618 | $ 137,669 | $ 3,534,048 | $ -1$ 3,534,048
95100 [Protective services - labor $ -1$ -1$ 376,509 | $ 376,509 $ 376,509
95200 |Protective services - other contract costs $ 194,430 | $ -1 $ -1 $ 194,430 3 194,430
95300 [Protective services - other $ -1$ -1$ 684 | $ 684 $ 684
95000 [Total Protective Services $ 194,430 | $ -1$ 377,193 [ $ 571,624 | $ -1$ 571,623
96130 |Workmen's Compensation $ 134,823 | $ 12,680 | $ 69,283 | $ 216,785 3 216,785
96140 |All other Insurance 3 296,751 | $ 23,710 | $ 72,776 | $ 393,237 3 393,237
96100 [Total Insurance Premiums $ 431,574 [ $ 36,390 | $ 142,058 | $ 610,022 | $ -1$ 610,022
96200 |Other general expenses $ -1 $ 33141 $ -1 8 3,314 $ 3,314
96210 |Compensated absences $ 42744 | $ (1,435)| $ 4315 | $ 45,624 $ 45,624
96300 |Payments in lieu of taxes $ 38,840 | $ 21,011 | $ -1 $ 59,851 $ 59,851
96400 |Bad debt - tenant rents $ 98,611 | $ -1 3 (582)] $ 98,028 $ 98,028
96500 |Bad debt - mortgages $ -1 $ 1,136,500 | $ -1 $ 1,136,500 $ 1,136,500
96800 |Severance expense $ 80,682 | $ 36,812 | $ 199,159 | $ 316,653 3 316,653
96000 |Total Other General Expenses $ 260,877 | $ 1,196,202 | $ 202,892 | $ 1,659,971 | $ -1$ 1,659,971
96720 [Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) $ 741,346 | $ 427,751 | $ 4526 | $ 1,173,622 $ 1,173,622
96700 |Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost 3 741,346 | $ 427751 | $ 4,526 | $ 1,173,622 | $ -1 $ 1,173,622
96900 |Total Operating Expenses [$ 18171177 [$ 4610912 | $ 5102349 [$  27,884/438 [ $  (5267,415)[ $ 22,617,024 |
97000 _[Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses | $ 439,939 | $ 12648429 [$ 1,417,974 | $ 14,506,342 | $ (148,397)[ $ 14,357,945 |
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Line . Project Program Central o
ltem Description Totals Totals Office Cost Subtotal Elimination Total
97100 |Extraordinary maintenance $ -1$ 6,033 | $ -1$ 6,033 $ 6,033
97200 |Casualty losses- Non-capitalized $ 12,615 | $ -8 (2,418)| $ 10,197 $ 10,197
97300-050 [All Other $ -1 $ 16,381,535 | $ -1$ 16,381,535 $ 16,381,535
97300 |Housing assistance payments $ -[$ 16,851,139 [ $ -[$ 16,851,139 $ 16,851,139
97400 [Depreciation expense $ 4,200,487 | $ 439,766 | $ 235904 [ $ 4,876,157 $ 4,876,157
90000 |Total Expenses 3 22,384,279 | $ 21,907,850 | $ 5,335,835 | $ 49,627,964 | $ (5,267,415)| $ 44,360,550
10030-040| Tax Credit $ -1$ 1,729,793 | $ -1$ 1,729,793 | $ (1,729,793)| $ -
10030 [Operating transfers from / to primary government $ -1 $ 1,729,793 | $ -1 $ 1,729,793 $ 1,729,793
10080 |Special items, net gain/loss $ -1$ 6,233 | $ -1$ 6,233 $ 6,233
10100 |Total other financing sources (uses) $ -1 $ 1,736,026 | $ -1 $ 1,736,026 | $  (1,729,793)| $ 6,233
10000 _|Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses | $  (3773,163)|$  (2,912483)[$ 1184488 | $  (5501,158)| $  (1,878,190)[ $  (7,379,348)|
11020 [Required Annual Debt Principal Payments [ $ 992,296 | $ -3 -1$ 992,296 | [ $ 992,296 |
11030 [Beginning equity [$ 43711644 [$ 33004246 [ $  (4,451,802)[ $ 72,354,088 | [$ 72,354,088 |
11170-001 | Administrative Fee Equity- Beginning Balance $ -1$ (273,321)] $ -1 $ (273,321) $ (273,321)
11170-010 | Administrative Fee Revenue $ -1$ 1,619,380 | $ -1$ 1,619,380 $ 1,619,380
11170-060 | Total Admin Fee Revenues $ -1$ 1,619,380 | $ -1$ 1,619,380 $ 1,619,380
11170-080 | Total Operating Expenses $ -1$ 1,900,179 | $ -1$ 1,900,179 $ 1,900,179
11170-110|Total Expenses $ -1$ 1,900,179 | $ -1$ 1,900,179 $ 1,900,179
11170-002 |Net Administrative Fee $ -19 (280,799)| $ -3 (280,799) $ (280,799)
11170-003 | Administrative Fee Equity- Ending Balance $ -1$ (554,120)| $ -1 $ (554,120) $ (554,120)
11170 |Administrative Fee Equity $ BE (554,120)| $ -[$ (554,120) $ (554,120)
11180-001 |Housing Assistance Payments Equity - Begining Balance $ -1$ 5427830 | $ -1$ 5,427,830 $ 5,427,830
11180-010 |Housing Assistance Payment Revenues $ -|$  13,064934 | $ -1 $ 13,064,934 $ 13,064,934
11180-015 |Fraud Recovery Revenue $ -1$ 38,748 | $ -1$ 38,748 $ 38,748
11180-025 | Investment Income $ -1$ 64,920 | $ -1$ 64,920 $ 64,920
11180-030| Total HAP Revenues $ -|$ 13,168,602 | $ -1$ 13,168,602 $ 13,168,602
11180-080 |Housing Assistance Payments $ -|$ 16,381535 | $ -|$ 16,381,535 $ 16,381,535
11180-100 | Total Housing Assistance Payments Expenses $ -|$ 16,381535 | $ -|$ 16,381,535 $ 16,381,535
11180-002| Net Housing Assistance Payments $ -1$ (3,212,933)| $ -1 $  (3,212,933) $  (3,212,933)
11180-003 | Housing Assistance Payments Equity-Ending Balance $ -1$ 2,214897 | $ -1$ 2,214,897 $ 2,214,897
11180 |Housing Assistance Payments Equity $ -1 $ 2,214897 | $ -1 $ 2,214,897 $ 2,214,897
11190 |Unit Months Available 35844 0 0 35844 35844
11210 |Unit Months Leased 31589 0 0 31589 31589
11610 [Land Purchases $ -1$ -1$ 62,378 | $ 62,378 $ 62,378
11620 |Building Purchases $ 531,237 | $ -1 $ -1$ 531,237 $ 531,237
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. Operating . . . Operating . Operating . Operating .
Line Item _ . Capital Fund Operating Fund | Capital Fund Capital Fund Capital Fund Capital Fund
Description Total Projects | TN004000001|  Fund P TN004000002 perating P TN004000003|  Fund P TN004000007|  Fund P TN004000008|  Fund P
No. Program Program Program Program Program Program
Program Program Program Program
70300 | Net tenant rental revenue 4,522,489 716,926 $716,926 617,729 $617,729 546,068 $546,068 $ 347,210 $347,210 648,378 $648,378
70400 | Tenant revenue - other 183,550 42,658 $42,658 54,709 $54,709 14,811 $14,811 $ 265 $265 52,963 $52,963
70500 | Total Tenant Revenue 4,706,039 759,584 | $ 759,584 | $ - 672,437 [ $ 672,437 $ - 560,880 | $ 560,880 | $ -1s 347,475 $ 347,475 $ - 701,341 $ 7013411 $ -
70600 [HUD PHA operating grants [s 11,194,865 [ $ 1,834,695 | $1,556,870] $277,825] $ 2,129,468 | $1,896,392] $233,076] $ 1,554,674 | $1,308,747] $245,927] $ 472,508 | $386,988] $85,520] $ 1,461,214 | $1,271,127] $190,087|
[ 70610 [ Capital grants [s 1,472,822 [ $ 4,353 | [ $4,353] $ 6,244 | [ $6,244] $ 49,476 | [ $49,476] $ 58,494 | [ $58,494] $ 31,706 | [ $31,706]
71100 Investment income - unrestricted $ 143,793 6,221 $6,221 $ 5,212 $5,212 5,379 $5,379 $ 1,901 $1,901 5,980 $5,980
71400 | Fraud recovery 43,472 2,765 $2,765 9,629 $9,629 1,537 $1,537 407 $407 4,545 $4,545
71500 | Other revenue 1,050,125 156,732 $156,732 133,270 $133,270 140,189 $140,189 49,047 $49,047 107,457 $107,457
70000 | Total Revenue 18,611,116 2,764,349 | $ 2482171 [ $ 282,178 2,956,261 | $ 2,716,941 [ $ 239,320 2,312,134 [ $ 2,016,731 [ $ 295,403 929,832 [ $ 785819 [ § 144,013 2312243 $ 2,090,450 | $ 221,793
91100 | Administrative salaries $ 1,437,915 [ $ 250,398 $196,227 $54,171] $ 194,158 $148,713 $45,445] $ 207,988 $160,037 $47,950] $ 90,099 $73,425 $16,675] $ 199,198 $162,133 $37,064
91200 | Auditing fees $ 22,614 [ $ 4,542 $4,065 $478] $ 3,958 $3,557 $401] $ 3,792 $3,369 $423] $ 1,218 $1,071 $147] $ 3,352 $3,026 $327
91300 | Management Fee $ 2,146,009 339,240 $339,240 $ 283,560 $283,560 217,980 $217,980 106,860 $106,860 219,420 $219,420
91310 | Book-Keeping Fee 209,192 42,405 $42,405 35,445 $35,445 27,248 $27,248 13,358 13,358 27,428 $27,428
91500 | Employee benefit contributions - administrative 1,107,670 161,390 $138,424 $22,965 172,242 $152,976 $19,266 164,313 $143,984 $20,328 41,966 34,807 $7,069 149,943 $134,230 $15,713
91600 | Office Expenses 1,103,585 199,154 40,196 $158,958 173,643 40,291 $133,352 170,164 $29,460 $140,704 69,245 20,315 $48,930 141,748 32,988 $108,761
91700 | Legal Expense 59,622 16,238 16,238 18,400 18,400 6,129 $6,129 $ 215 $215 11,106 11,106
91800 | Travel 12,026 | $ 103 $103 $ 32 $32 $ 563 $563 - 2,285 $2,285
91900 | Other $ 2,533,880 | $ 475,718 $475,718 $ 399,116 $399,116 $ 421,125 $421,125 146,437 $146,437 325,464 $325,464
91000 | Total Operating-Administrative $ 8,632,513 | $ 1,489,187 [ $ 1,252,615 | $ 236,572 | $ 1,280,554 | $ 1,082,090 | $ 198,464 | $ 1,219,302 [ $ 1,009,89 | $ 209,406 469,399 | $ 396,578 | $ 72,820 [ $ 1,079,945 | $ 918,080 | $ 161,865
92000 | Asset Management Fee [s 318240 [ $ 59,640 [ $50,640] [s 50,040 | $50,040] s 52,800 | $52,800] s 18,360 | $18,360] s 40,800 | $40,800] |
92200 | Relocation Costs 1,409 1,200 $1,200 $ - $ - $ - $ -
92400 | Tenant services - other 337,610 23,395 $18,579 $4,815] $ 20,106 $16,067 $4,040] $ 18,170 $13,908 $4,262] $ 60,054 $58,572 $1,482] $ 16,545 $13,250 $3,295
92500 | Total Tenant Services 339,019 24,59 | $ 19779 [ $ 4815] $ 20,106 | $ 16,067 | $ 4040 $ 18170 [ $ 13,908 [ $ 42621 $ 60,054 | $ 58,572 | $ 1482 $ 16,545 | $ 13,250 [ $ 3,295
93100 | Water 285,780 58,310 $58,310 $ 41,135 $41,135 $ 38,800 $38,800 13,369 $13,369 39,148 39,148
93200 | Electricity 2,801,275 603,860 $603,860 517,005 $517,005 $ 452,015 $452,015 172,398 $172,398 99,123 99,123
93300 | Gas 293,127 8,159 $8,159 3,032 $3,032 $ 26 $26 21,346 21,346 253,164 $253,164
93600 | Sewer 466,571 108,764 $108,764 78,752 $78,752 $ 74,663 $74,663 11,403 11,403 72,367 72,367
93800 | Other utilities expense 50,665 4,890 $4,890 4,859 $4,859 $ 6,712 $6,712 $ 439 $439 11,600 11,600
93000 | Total Utilities $ 3,897,418 [ $ 783,983 [ $ 783,983 [ $ -1s 644,783 [ $ 644,783 [ $ -1s 572,216 [ $ 572,216 | $ -1s 218,955 [ $ 218,955 [ $ -1s 475401 [ $ 475401 [ $ -
94100 | Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor $ 1,778,718 [ $ 235,511 $235,511 $ 285,014 $285,014 $ 277,826 $277,826 $ 93,908 $93,908 $ 230,231 $230,231
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials and other $ 702,826 | $ 79,840 $79,840 $ 40,945 $40,945 $ 183,606 $183,606 $ 39,074 $39,074 $ 106,769 $106,769
94300-010 8)’:{'&% Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Garbage and Trash Removal $ 125327 | $ 22,601 $22,601 $ 5,566 $5,566 $ 23,571 $23571 $ 14,821 $14,821 $ 9,053 $9,053
94300-020 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Heating & Cooling Contracts $ 42,385 | $ 15,327 $15,327 $ 4,900 $4,900 $ 7,497 $7,497 $ 700 $700 $ 8,470 $8,470
94300-030 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Snow Removal Contracts $ -1 % - - $ - $ - $ -
94300-040 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Elevator Maintenance Contracts 61,405 6,492 6,492 - $ - 28,669 $28,669 $ -
94300-050 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Landscape & Grounds Contracts 251,952 39,456 $39,456 26,440 $26,440 $ 35,187 $35,187 2,603 $2,603 58,186 $58,186
94300-060 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Unit Turnaround Contracts 54,638 7,716 7,716 5,193 5,193 $ 90 $90 10,700 $10,700 11,554 $11,554
94300-070 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Electrical Contracts 4,763 201 $201 2,182 2,182 $ - 1,687 $1,687 -
94300-080 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Plumbing Contracts $ -1$ - $ - $ - $ - -
94300-090 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Extermination Contracts 86,695 14,074 $14,074 $ 12,342 $12,342 $ 17,435 $17,435 $ 4,512 $4,512 $ 8,099 $8,099
94300-100 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Janitorial Contracts 16,714 16,714 $16,714 $ - $ - $ - $ -
94300-110 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Routine Maintenance Contracts -1 % - $ - $ - $ - $ -
94300-120 | Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Misc Contracts 230,336 | $ 10,401 $10,401 30,714 $30,714 $ 11,891 $11,891 $ 16,749 $16,749 $ 50,039 $50,039
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contract: 874,216 | $ 133,072 | $ 133,072 | $ - 87,336 | $ 87,336 | $ -1$ 95,670 | $ 95,670 | $ -1 $ 80,442 [ $ 80,442 | $ -1 $ 145401 | $ 145401 | $ -
94000 | Total Maintenance 3,355,760 [ $ 448423 [ $ 448423 [ $ - 413295 [ $ 413,295 [ $ -1s 557,102 [ $ 557,102 [ $ -1s 213423 [ $ 213423 [ $ -1s 482,401 [ $ 482,401 [ $ -
[95200 [ Protective services - other contract costs s 194,430 [ $ 36,437 | | $36,437] $ 30,572 | | $30,572] $ 32,258 | | $32,258] $ 11,217 | | $11217] $ 24,927 | | $24,927]
95000 [ Total Protective Services [s 194,430 [ $ 36437 | $ -1s 36437 $ 30572 $ -Is 30572 [ $ 32,258 | § -1s 32,258 [ $ 11217[ $ -Is 11217 [ $ 24,927 $ -Is 24,927 |
96130 | Workmen's Compensation 134,823 21,738 $21,738 20,532 $20,532 22,579 $22,579 7,077 $7,077 16,650 $16,650
96140 | Al other Insurance 296,751 54,711 $54,711 45,849 $45,849 50,473 $50,473 16,961 $16,961 37,904 $37,904
96100 | Total Insurance Premiums 431,574 76,449 | $ 76,449 | $ - 66,381 | $ 66,381 | $ - 73,052 [ $ 73,052 | $ - 24,038 [ $ 24,038 | $ - 54,554 | $ 54,554 | $ -
96210 | Compensated absences 42,7441 $ (3,827) -$3,827 $ (3,998) -$3,998 $ (1,850) -$1,850 $ 6,595 $6,595 11,814 $11,814
96300 | Payments in lieu of taxes 38,840 1,831 1,831 $ (99) -$99 $ (1,729) -$1,729 $ 4,947 $4,947 7,300 $7,300
96400 | Bad debt - tenant rents 98,611 35,460 $35,460 24,971 $24,971 14,853 $14,853 $ (419) -$419 13,235 $13,235
96800 | Severance expense 80,682 11,081 $11,081 7,112 $7,112 9,503 $9,503 $ - 19,517 $19,517
96000 | Total Other General Expenses 260,877 44544 $ 445441 $ - 27987 $ 27,987 § - 20,777 $ 20,777 $ -1s 11,123 [ $ 11,123 [ § - 51,865 | $ 51,865 | $ -
96720 nterest on Notes Pavable (Short and | ona Term) [s 741346 [ $ 35,037 | $35,037] 3 304,992 | $304,992] [s 28,701 | $28,701] [s 35,146 | $35,146] [s 97,171 | $97,171] ]
96700 | Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cosl s 741,346 [ $ 35037 [ $ 35037 ] § -s 304,992 [ § 304,992 | $ -1s 28,701 [ $ 28,701 | $ -1s 35,146 | $ 35146 | $ -1s 97,171 [ $ 97,171 [ § -]
[ 96900 | Total Operating Expenses [s 18171177 [ $ 2,998,295 [ $ 2,720,471 [ $ 277,825 [ § 2838711 [ $ 2,605,635 [ $ 233,076 [ $ 2574379 [ $ 2328452 [ $ 245927 [ $ 1,061,714 [ $ 976,195 [ $ 85520 [ $ 2,323,609 [ $ 2133522 [ $ 190,087 |
[ 97000 [Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses [s 439,939 [ § (233,946) $ (238,300)] $ 4353] § 117,550 [ $ 111,306 [ $ 62441 % (262,245) $ (31L,721)[ $ 49476 [ $ (131,882)[ $ (190,376)] $ 58,494 [ $ (11,366)] $ (43,072)] $ 31,706 |
97200 Casualty losses- Non-capitalized $ 12,615 | $ - - $ (12,931) -$12,931 - $ 24,800 $24,800
97400 | Depreciation expense $ 4,200,487 | $ 94,386 $90,739 $3,648 1,573,975 $1,572,797 $1,178] $ 298,299 $298,299 316,745 $314,810 $1,935] § 497,519 $496,341 $1,178
90000 | Total Expenses $ 22,384,279 | $ 3,092,682 | $ 2,811,209 [ $ 281,472 4,412,686 | $ 4178432 ] $ 234,253 [ $ 2,859,748 | $ 2,613,821 [ $ 245,927 1,378,459 | $ 1,291,005 | $ 87,454 | $ 2,845,928 | $ 2,654,664 | $ 191,264
10000 | Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses [s (3,773,163)[ $ (328,333)[ $ (329,038)] $ 706 [ $ (1,456,425)] $ (1,461,492)[ $ 5067 [ $ (547,613)[ $ (597,090)] $ 49476 [ $ (448,627)[ $ (505,186)] $ 56,559 | $ (533,685)] $ (564,213)] $ 30,528 |
[ 11020 [Required Annual Debt Principal Payments [s 992,29 [ $ 45,777 | $45,777] [s 398,481 | $398,481] s 37,499 | $37,499] s 45,919 | $45,919] s 135,228 | $135,228] |
[ 11030 [ Beginning equity [s 43,711,644 [ $ 2,307,246 | $1,596,537] $710,709] $ 8,151,636 | $7,921,045] $230,591] $ 3,246,045 | $2,620,018] $626,028] $ 3,019,289 $3,001,982] $17,307] $ 4,071,712 | $3,484,300] $587,412]
[ 11190 ] Unit Months Available 35844 5964] 5964] | 5004] 5004] | 5280] 5280] [ 1836] 1836] [ 4080] 4080] |
[__11210 [ unit Months Leased 31589 5654] 5654] [ 4726] 4726] [ 3633 3633 [ 1781] 1781] [ 3657 3657 |
[ 11270 [Excess Cash $ -1s -1s -1 [s -Is -1 [$ -1s -1 [$ -1s -1 [$ -1s -1 |
[ 11620 [Building Purchases s 531,237 [ $ 4,353 | [ $4,353] $ 6,244 | [ $6,244] $ 49,476 | [ $49,476] $ 58,494 | [ $58,494] $ 31,706 | [ $31,706]
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Operating . Operating . Operating . Operating . Operating . Operating . Operating . Operating .
Capital Fund Capital Fund Capital Fund Capital Fund Capital Fund Capital Fund . Capital Fund Capital Fund
TNO004000010|  Fund P TNO004000012|  Fund P TNO004000021|  Fund P TNO04000022|  Fund P TNO004000029|  Fund p TNO004000032|  Fund P Other Project|  Fund P TNO004000033|  Fund p
Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program
Proiram Proiram Proiram Proiram Proiram Proiram Proiram Proiram
$ 576,527 $576,527 $ 318,610 $318,610 $ 433,298 $433,298 $ 323,959 $323,959 $ (6,216) -$6,216| - - -
$ 1,105 $1,105 $ 8,339 $8,339 $ 8,615 $8,615 $ 85 $85) $ - B B B
$ 577,632 | $ 577,632 | $ -Is 326,949 | $ 326,949 | $ -Is 441,913 $ 441,913 § -Is 324,044 [ $ 324,044 [ -1s (6,216)[ $ (6,216)] $ - s s - s -1s - -Is -Is -
[s 873,718 | $733,990] $139,728] $ 1,357,821 | $1,238,772] $119,049] $ 627,668 | $515,860] $111,808] $ 355,694 [ $280,981] $74,713[ $ 340,216 | $340,216] [s 38,793 | $38,793] $0] $ -] | [s 148,398 | $148,398] $0]
[s 202,858 | | $202,858] $ 134,444 | | $134,444] $ 43,662 | | $43,662] $ -1 | [s -1 | [s -1 | [s -1 | [s 941,585 | | $941,585]
3,147 $3,147 $ 6,296 $6,296 2,504 $2,504 $ 1,672 $1,672 $ - - - $ 105,479 $105,479
6,497 $6,497 4,222 $4,222 13,870 $13,870 - - B . _
84,035 $84,035 128,104 $128,104 63,086 $63,086 47,920 $47,920 129,462 $129,462 - - 10,823 $10,823
1,747,886 | $ 1,405,301 | $ 342,586 1,957,837 | $ 1,704,344 [ $ 253,493 1,192,703 [ § 1,037,233 [ $ 155,470 729,330 | $ 654,617 | $ 74,713 463,462 | $ 463,462 | $ s 38,793 $ 38,793 $ - -Is -Is - 1,206,285 | $ 159,221 [ $ 1,047,064
$ 132,814 $105,570 $27,244] $ 150,969 $127,757 $23,212] $ 126,477 $104,677 $21,801] $ 85,815 $71,386 $14,428] $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 1,680 $1,440 $240[ $ 770 $566 $205] $ 2,040 $1,848 $192[ $ 1,261 $1,124 $137] $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 170,880 $170,880 $ 113,280 $113,280 $ 130,620 $130,620 $ 91,680 91,680 $ 289,187 $289,187 $34,904 $34,904 $ - $ 148,398 $148,398
21,361 21,361 14,160 $14,160 16,328 16,328 11,459 11,459 - - - $ -
97,460 85,910 $11,550 141,175 $131,334 $9,841 108,106 08,864 $9,242 71,075 64,958 $6,117 - B B $ B
108,047 8,103 $79,944] 100,424 $32,311 $68,113 84,719 20,747 $63,972 56,426 14,088 $42,338 - - - $0 $ 15 $15
1,142 1,142 4,247 4,247 1,719 $1,719 427 $427 B B B B
4,834 4,834 3,745 3,745 156 $156 307 $307 - - - -
$ 239,270 $239,270 $ 203,861 $203,861 $ 191,442 $191,442 $ 131,440 $131,440 $ 7 $7) B - -
$ 777,488 | $ 658,510 | $ 118978 [ $ 732,630 | $ 631,260 | $ 101,370 [ $ 661,608 | $ 566,401 | $ 95,207 | $ 449,889 | $ 386,870 | $ 63,020 | $ 289,194 [ $ 289,194 [ $ s 34,904 | $ 34,904 § - -Is -1s -1s 148413 [ $ 148,413 [ $ -
[s 30,000 | $30,000[ [$ 25,560 [ $25,560[ [$ 24,000 | $24,000] [$ 17,040 | $17,040[ [s -] | [s -] | [s -] | [s -] |
$ - $ - 209 $209 $ - $ - - - $ -
$ 96,198 $93,776 $2,422[ $ 14,765 $12,701 $2,063 11,042 $9,104 $1,938[ $ 59,244 $57,962 $1,283] § 15,781 $15,781 - - $ 2,310 $2,310
$ 96,198 | $ 93,776 | $ 24221 14,765 [ $ 12701 [ $ 2,063 11,251 [ $ 93133 1,938 $ 59,244 | $ 57,962 | $ 1,283 % 15781 [ § 15781 [ § - -Is -1s - -1s -1s -1s 2310] % 2310 $ -
$ 16,113 $16,113 $ 39,063 $39,063 $ 28,018 $28,018 $ 11,824 $11,824 - - - -
278,754 $278,754 255,260 $255,260 $ 231,720 $231,720 $ 191,140 $191,140 - - - -
4,217 $4,217 3,162 $3,162 $ 12 $12) $ 8 $8 - - - -
22,358 $22,358 50,032 $50,032 $ 35,123 $35,123 $ 13,109 $13,109 - B B B
2,670 $2,670 7,758 $7,758 $ 8,552 $8,552 $ - 3,185 $3,185 - - -
$ 324,112 [ $ 324,112 [ -1s 355276 | $ 355276 | $ -1s 303,425 [ $ 303,425 [ $ -1s 216,081 [ $ 216,081 [ $ - 3185[ % 3185[ § -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -
$ 159,895 $159,895 $ 201,475 $201,475 $ 189,435 $189,435 $ 105,424 $105,424 $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 88,748 $88,748 $ 42,515 $42,515 $ 68,784 $68,784 $ 52,546 $52,546 $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 18,316 $18,316 $ 10,992 $10,992 $ 7,524 $7,524 $ 12,793 $12,793 $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 1,635 $1,635 $ 7,522 $7,522 $ (3,862) -$3,862 $ 198 $198 B B . .
$ - - $ - $ - - - - -
17,995 $17,995 B B 8,250 8,250 B B B B
6,795 6,795 48,234 $48,234 27,073 $27,073 7,978 7,978 - - - -
4,810 4,810 788 $788 11,865 $11,865 1,922 1,922 B B B B
385 $385 308 $308 - - - - - -
$ - $ - - - - - - -
$ 6,841 $6,841 $ 7,658 $7,658 $ 12,362 $12,362 $ 3,372 $3,372 - - - -
$ - $ - $ - $ - - - - -
$ - $ - $ - $ - - - - -
35,302 $35,302 16,932 $16,932 33,676 $33,676 23,906 $23,906 B - - $ 727 $727
92,078 | $ 92,078 | $ - 92,433 $ 92,433 § - 88,639 | $ 88,639 | $ - 58,418 [ § 58,418 | $ - -1 s -1 s - -1 s -1 s - -1 s -1 s HE 7278 7271 8 -
340,720 [ $ 340,720 [ $ - 336,423 [ $ 336,423 [ $ - 346,858 | $ 346,858 | $ - 216,389 | $ 216,389 | $ -Is -Is -Is -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s 727]s 727 s -
[s 18,329 | I $18,329] $ 15,616 | I $15,616] S 14,663 | I $14,663] S 10,411 | I $10,411] $ -] I [s -] [ [s -] [ s N | |
[s 18329 $ -1s 18329 [ 8 15,616 | $ -1s 15616 [ $ 14,663 [ $ -1s 14,663 [ $ 10411] 8 -1s 10411] 8 -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1
11,563 $11,563 18,080 $18,080 9,563 $9,563 7,041 $7,041 - - - -
26,973 $26,973 25,179 $25,179 23,005 $23,005 15,697 $15,697 B - - -
38,536 | $ 38,536 | $ - 43,258 | $ 43,258 | $ - 32,568 | $ 32,568 | $ - 22,738 $ 22,738 $ - -Is -Is - -Is -1s - -1s -1s - -1s -1s -
323 $323 1,546 1,546 24,710 $24,710 $ 7,431 7,431 $ - - - -
6,667 $6,667 (2,405) -$2,405] 4,795 $4,795 $ 4,796 4,796 $ 12,738 $12,738 B B B
8,373 $8,373 (2,321) -$2,321] 10,413 $10,413 $ (5,954) -$5,954/ - - - $0 -
$ B $ 13,523 $13,523 8,186 $8,186 $ 11,760 $11,760 B - - -
$ 15362 [ $ 15362 | $ s 10343 [ $ 10343 [ $ - 48,104 | $ 48,104 | $ s 18,033 [ § 18,033 [ $ s 12738 [ $ 12738 $ - -Is -Is - -1s -1s - -1s -1s -
[s 75,165 | $75,165] [$ 147,967 | $147,967] [s 12,726 | $12,726] [s 4,441 ] $4.441] [s - I [s - I [s - I [s - I ]
[s 75,165 $ 75,165 $ -1s 147,967 | $ 147,967 [ $ -1s 12,726 $ 12,726 $ -1s 444118 444118 -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1s -1
[s 1,715,909 [ $ 1576181 [ $ 139,728 [ $ 1,681,838 [ $ 1,562,789 [ $ 119049 [ $ 1455203 [ $ 1343395 [ $ 111,808 [ $ 1,014,266 [ $ 939,553 [ $ 74713 $ 320,898 [ $ 320,898 [ $ -Is 34,904 [ $ 34904 HIE HIE HIE -Is 151450 [ $ 151,450 [ $ -]
[s 31977 [$ (170,88D)[ $ 202,858 [ $ 275999 [ $ 141555 [ $ 134,444 [ (262,500)[ $ (306,162)[ $ 43662 [ $ (284,936)[ $ (284,936)[ $ -1s 142564 [ $ 142564 [ § -1s 33889 [ $ 3889 [ -1s -1s -1s -1s 1,054,835 [ $ 7771 [ $ 1,047,064 |
$ - $ 746 $746 $ - $ - $ - $ - - $ -
$ 246,130 $245,374 $757| $ 471,545 $469,979 $1,565] $ 92,455 $91,277 $1,178[ $ 609,433 $608,536 $897] $ - $ - - $ -
$ 1,962,040 | $ 1,821,555 | $ 140485 $ 2154120 |$  2,033514 [ $ 120615 $ 1,547,658 | $ 1,434,672 [ $ 112,986 | $ 162369 | $ 1,548,088 | $ 75610 [ $ 320,898 | $ 320,898 | $ s 34,904 | $ 34,904 § - -Is -1s -1s 151,450 [ $ 151,450 | $ -
[s (214,153)[ $ (416,254)[ $ 202,101 [ $ (196,292)[ $ (329,170)[ $ 132879 $ (354,955)[ $ (397,439) $ 424841 % (894,369)[ $ (893,471)[ $ 897)[ $ 142564 [ $ 142564 [ § -1s 3889 [ $ 3889 [ -1s -1s -1s -1s 1,054,835 [ $ 7771 $ 1,047,064 |
[s 98,205 | $98,205] [s 208,758 | $208,758] [$ 16,627 | $16,627] [$ 5,802 | $5,802] [s -] | [s -] | [s -] | [s -] | |
[s 2,240,637 | $1,600,456] $640,181] $ 5,239,962 | $2,006,191] $3,233,771] $ 2,039,937 | $1,542,671] $497,266] $ 8,577,216 | $8,406,585] $170,631] $197,696] $197,696] [s 3,440,570 | $60,787[ $3,379,783[ $ -] | [s 1,179,699 | $172,526] $1,007,173]
[ 3000] 3000] | 2556] 2556] | 2400] 2400] | 1704] 1704] | 2400] 2400] | 444] 444] | 0] 0] | 1176] 1176] |
[ 2848 2848 [ 1888] 1888] [ 2177] 2177 [ 1528] 1528] [ 2376 2376 [ 444 444 [ of of [ 877 877 |
[s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 [s -Is -1 ]
[s 202,858 | I $202,858] $ 134,444 | I $134,444] § 43,662 | [ $43,662[ $ -1 I [s -1 I [s -1 I [s -1 I [s -1 I ]
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSET ACCOUNTS- PROGRAM BASED

CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE

For the year ended December 31, 2008

1 2 8 9 14.218 14.238 14.243 14.866 14.870 14.871 16.595 14.DVP
. il - Revitalization of Resident . .
Line . Development Opportunities for : . . Executive Office | .
A Business Other Federal Other Federal . Severely Opportunity and | Housing Choice Disaster Voucher
Item Descrlptlon Total Programs L State/Local Block Grants/ |Shelter Plus Care|Youth_Youthbuil| _. . - for Weed and
Activities Program 1 Program 2 . Distressed Public Supportive Vouchers Program
No. Entitlement d Program . . Seed
Housing Services
Grants
70300 |Net tenant rental revenue b 183,733 $183,733
70400 |Tenant revenue - other b 373,212 $373,212
70500 | Total Tenant Revenue ] 556,945 | $ 556,945 | $ - -1$ -1$ $ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -
70600-010|Housing assistance payments b 13,064,934 $13,064,934
70600-020{Ongoing administrative fees earned b 1,619,380 $1,619,380
70600 |HUD PHA operating grants $ 15,783,055 $148,398 $0 $62,600 $316,876 $372,268 $25,500 $95,559( $ 14,684,314 $24,270 $53,271
[70610 [capital grants $ 129,949 | 30 $74] $34 $1,458] $128,383]
70800 |Other government grants y 191,250 $24,476 $166,774
71100-010|Housing Assistance Payment b 64,920 $64,920
71100 |Investment income - unrestricted $ 68,442 $3,522 $ 64,920
71400-010|{Housing Assistance Payment $ 38,748 $38,748
71400 |Fraud recovery b 38,748 $ 38,748
71500 _[Other revenue b 470,991 $470,991
71600 |Gain or loss on sale of capital assets b 20,028 $20,028
70000 |Total Revenue $ 17,259,341 | $ 1,199,885 [ $ 24,476 -13 62,674 | $ $ 316,876 | $ 372,268 | $ 25,465 [ $ 97,016 [ $ 14,787,982 | $ 191,044 [ $ 181,654
91100 |Administrative salaries b 858,700 $0 $204,438 $22,889 $23,007 $584,968 $23,399
91200 | Auditing fees b 45,727 $6,000 $39,727
91300 |Management Fee b 426,891 $20,283 406,608
91310 |Book-Keeping Fee b 254,130 254,130
91500 |Employee benefit contributions - administrative b 233,510 $171 $0 $49,029 $1,751 $9,022 168,044 $5,494
91600 | Office Expenses b 709,933 $138,898 $24,476 $62,674 $118,801 $860 $63,530 138,543 $162,151
91700 |Legal Expense b 42,462 $39,748 $2,714
91800 |Travel b 4,257 $4,044 $213
91900 |Other P 228,034 36,402 $221,632
91000 |Total Operating-Administrative $ 2,803,644 | $ 215,545 | $ 24,476 -1$ 62,674 | $ $ -1$ 372,268 | $ 25,500 | $ 95,559 | $ 1,816,578 | $ 191,044 | $ -
92200 |Relocation Costs P 1,500 31,500
92400 | Tenant services - other P 1,500 $1,500
92500 |Total Tenant Services $ 3,000 $ 3,000 | $ - -1$ -1 8 $ -1 8 -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -
93100 |Water P 16,706 $16,009 $698
93200 |Electricity b 64,566 $54,870 $9,696
93600 |Sewer b 22,035 321,566 $470
93000 |Total Utilities $ 103,308 | $ 92,444 | $ - -1 $ -1$ $ -1 8 -1$ -1$ -1$ 10,863 [ $ -1$ -
94200 _|Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials and other $ 10,322 $4,681 $5,641
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Garbage and Trash Removal
94300-010| 2" Y. $ 4,443 $4,230 $13
94300-020|Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Heating & Cooling Contracts | $ 3,284 $3,284
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Landscape & Grounds
94300-050 Contracts $ 11,719 $11,278 $441
94300-060|Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Unit Turnaround Contracts $ 1,115 $1,115
94300-070(Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Electrical Contracts $ 13 $13
94300-090(Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Extermination Contracts $ 1,589 $1,516 $73
94300-100(Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Janitorial Contracts $ 5,237 $5,237
94300-120|Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Misc Contracts $ 2,897 $1,073 $1,824
94300 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $ 30,296 [ $ 22,496 | $ - -1 $ -1 $ $ -1$ -1$ -1 $ -1 $ 7,800 | $ -1$ -
94500 |Employee benefit contribution - ordinary maintenance $ -
94000 | Total Maintenance $ 40,618 | $ 27,177 | $ - -1$ -1$ $ -1$ -1$ -1 $ -1 $ 13,442 | $ -1$ -
96130 |Workmen's Compensation $ 12,680 $2,156 $10,524
96140 | All Other Insurance $ 23,710 $13,445 $10,266
96100 |Total Insurance Premiums $ 36,390 | $ 15,601 | $ - -1$ -1$ $ -1$ -1$ -1 $ -13 20,789 [ $ -1$ -
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee

FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSET ACCOUNTS- PROGRAM BASED (CONTINUED)
For the year ended December 31, 2008

1 2 8 9 14.218 14.238 14.243 14.866 14.870 14.871 16.595 14.DVP
. Sl - Revitalization of Resident . .
Line . Development Opportunities for : . . Executive Office | _.
A Business Other Federal Other Federal . Severely Opportunity and | Housing Choice Disaster Voucher
Item Descrlptlon Total Programs L State/Local Block Grants/ |Shelter Plus Care|Youth_Youthbuil| _. . - for Weed and
Activities Program 1 Program 2 . Distressed Public Supportive Vouchers Program
No. Entitlement d Program . . Seed
Housing Services
Grants
96200 |Other general expenses $ 3,314 3,314
96210 |Compensated absences $ (1,435) $184 -$1,619
96300 _|Payments in lieu of taxes b 21,011 $21,011
96500 |Bad debt - mortgages b 1,136,500 $1,136,500
96800 |Severance expense b 36,812 $36,812
96000 | Total Other General Expenses $ 1,196,202 | $ 1,157,695 [ $ -1$ -1$ -1 3 -1 8 -1 3 -1$ -1$ -1$ 38,507 | $ -1$ -
96720 |Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) $ 427,751 $427,751
96700 |Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $ 427,751 1 $ 427751 | $ -1$ -1$ -1 3 -1 3 -1 3 -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -
|| 96900 [Total Operating Expenses $ 4610912 [ $ 1,939,213 [ $ 24476 [ $ -3 62,674 [ $ -1$ -3 372,268 [ $ 25500 [ $ 95,559 | $ 1,900,179 [ $ 191,044 [ $ -
| 97000 [Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses $ 12,648,429 [ $ (739,328)] $ -3 -3 HIE HE 316,876 | $ HE (34)] $ 1458 [ $ 12,887,803 | $ HE 181,654 |
97100 |Extraordinary maintenance b 6,033 $6,033
97300-050|All Other b 16,381,535 $16,381,535
97300 |Housing assistance payments $ 16,851,139 $285,065 $ 16,381,535 $184,539
97400 |Depreciation expense $ 439,766 $439,122 $644
90000 | Total Expenses $ 21,907,850 | $ 2,384,368 | $ 24476 | $ -13 63,318 | $ -13 285,065 | $ 372,268 | $ 25,500 | $ 95,559 | $ 18,281,713 | $ 191,044 [ $ 184,539
10030-040|Tax Credit $ 1,729,793 $1,729,793
10030 |Operating transfers from / to primary government $ 1,729,793 | $ 1,729,793 $ -
10080 |Special items, net gain/loss $ 6,233 $6,233
10100 |Total other financing sources (uses) $ 1,736,026 [ $ 1,736,026 | $ -1$ -1$ -1 $ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -1$ -13 -
[ 10000 [Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses $ (2,912,483)] $ 551,543 | $ -13 -1$ (649)] $ -1s 31811 ] $ -1$ (34)] 3 1458 [ $ (3,493,731) $ -1s (2,885)]
|__11030_|Beginning equity $ 33,094,246 | $1,840,884] $0] $0] $4,508] $0] $46,696] $0] $26,041,914] $957| $5,154,510] $0] $4,778|
11170-001|Administrative Fee Equity- Beginning Balance $ (273,321) -$273,321
11170-010|Administrative Fee Revenue $ 1,619,380 $1,619,380
11170-050|Other Revenue $ - $0
11170-060|Total Admin Fee Revenues P 1,619,380 b 1,619,380
11170-080|Total Operating Expenses b 1,900,179 b 1,900,179
11170-110|Total Expenses b 1,900,179 b 1,900,179
11170-002 [Net Administrative Fee P (280,799) b (280,799)
11170-003|Administrative Fee Equity- Ending Balance b (554,120) (554,120)
11170 |Administrative Fee Equity $ (554,120) b (554,120)
11180-001 |Housing Assistance Payments Equity - Begining Balance b 5,427,830 $5,427,830
11180-010|Housing Assistance Payment Revenues b 13,064,934 b 13,064,934
11180-015|Fraud Recovery Revenue b 38,748 b 38,748
11180-025[Investment Income b 64,920 b 64,920
11180-030|Total HAP Revenues b 13,168,602 ] 13,168,602
11180-080|Housing Assistance Payments b 16,381,535 b 16,381,535
11180-100] Total Housing Assistance Payments Expenses b 16,381,535 b 16,381,535
11180-002| Net Housing Assistance Payments $ (3,212,933) $ (3,212,933)
11180-003| Housing Assistance Payments Equity-Ending Balance $ 2,214,897 b 2,214,897
11180 |Housing Assistance Payments Equity $ 2,214,897 b 2,214,897
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY
Chattanooga, Tennessee
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSET ACCOUNTS- COCC BASED
For the year ended December 31, 2008

Income Statement
Llnslitem Description COCC Total Operations Capital Fund
70300 [Net tenant rental revenue $ -
70400 Tenant revenue - other $ 15,500 $15,500
70500  [Total Tenant Revenue $ 15,500 [ $ 15,500 | $ -
[ 70600 THUD PHA operating grants [s 17,678 | [ $17,678]
[ 70610 [Capital grants [s 74,991 | [ $74,991]
70710 |Management Fee 2,572,341 $2,572,341
70720 Asset Management Fee 318,240 $318,240
70730 Book-Keeping Fee 463,322 $463,322
70740 _[Front Line Service Fee 1,626,975 $1,626,975
70750 Other Fees 1,228,530 $1,228,530
70700 _ [Total Fee Revenue 6,209,408 | $ 6,209,408 | $ -
71100 Investment income - unrestricted $ 6,656 $6,656
71500 Other revenue $ 195,891 $195,891
71600 Gain or loss on sale of capital assets $ 198 $198
70000 [Total Revenue $ 6,520,323 [ $ 6,427,654 | $ 92,670
91100 Administrative salaries $ 2,361,987 $2,361,987
91200 Auditing fees 50,453 $50,453
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative 890,577 890,577
91600 [Office Expenses 659,918 610,664 $49,255
91700 Legal Expense 207,763 207,763
91800 Travel 12,470 $12,470
91900 Other $ 188 $188
91000 Total Operating-Administrative $ 4,183,357 [ $ 4,134,102 | $ 49,255
93100 Water 3,348 $3,348
93200 [Electricity 40,560 $40,560
93300 Gas 3,493 3,493
93600 Sewer 1,987 1,987
93800 Other utilities expense 5,266 5,266
93000 Total Utilities 54,653 | $ 54,653 | $ -
94100 Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor 30,143 $30,143
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials and other 50,734 $50,734
94300-010 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Garbage and Trash Removal Contracts 1,528 $1,528
94300-020 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Heating & Cooling Contracts 2,850 $2,850
94300-050 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Landscape & Grounds Contracts 13,410 $13,410
94300-060 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Unit Turnaround Contracts $ 62 $62
94300-090 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Extermination Contracts $ 356 $356
94300-100 _|Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Janitorial Contracts 26,368 $26,368
94300-120 |Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - Misc Contracts 12,219 $12,219
94300 [Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts 56,793 | $ 56,793 | $ -
94000 _ [Total Maintenance 137,669 [ $ 137,669 | $ -
95100 [Protective services - labor $ 376,509 $376,509
95300 Protective services - other $ 684 $684
95000  [Total Protective Services $ 377,193 | $ 377,193 | $ -
96130 Workmen's Compensation 69,283 $69,283
96140 All Other Insurance 72,776 $72,776
96100 [Total Insurance Premiums 142,058 | $ 142,058 | $ -
96200 [Other general expenses $ -1$ -
96210 Compensated absences $ 4,315 $4,315
96400 Bad debt - tenant rents $ (582) -$582
96800 Severance expense $ 199,159 $199,159
96000 Total Other General Expenses $ 202,892 [ $ 202,892 [ $ -
[_96720 Tinterest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) [ 4,526 | $4,526] |
96700 |Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost [s 452 [ $ 4,526 [ $ -
[96900 [Total Operating Expenses [$ 5102349]% 5,053,094 [ $ 49,255 |
[ 97000 [Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses [$ 1417974[$  1374559[ $ 43,415 |
97200 Casualty losses- Non-capitalized $ (2,418) -$2,418
97400 Depreciation expense $ 235,904 $87,155 $148,749
90000 [Total Expenses $ 5,335,835 | $ 5,137,832 | $ 198,003
[ 10000 TExcess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) Expenses [$ 1184488]%$ 1,289,822 [ $ (105,334)]
[ 11030 [Beginning equity [$ (4451802)] -$5,196,791] $744,989]
[ 11610 [Land Purchases [s 62,378 | [ $62,378]
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CHATTANOOGA HOUSING AUTHORITY

Chattanooga, Tennessee

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

FEDERAL GRANTOR

US. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Public Housing:
Low Rent Public Housing Program
Capital Fund Program
Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services
Youthbuild Program
Section 8 Programs
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Disaster Housing Assistance Grant
Disaster Voucher Program
Shelter Plus Care

US. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Weed & Seed Program

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS

Threshold for Type A/ B

Federal
Type CFDA # Expenditures

A - Major 14.850 $ 9,717,134
A - Major 14.872 3,043,223
B - Nonmajor 14.866 25,534
B - Nonmajor 14.870 97,016
B - Nonmajor 14.243 372,268
A - Major 14.871 14,684,314
B - Nonmajor 14.182 62,674
B - Nonmajor 14.182 181,654
B - Nonmajor 14.238 316,876
B - Nonmajor 16.595 24,270
$ 28,524,963

$ 855,749
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CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION

1.1 Introduction & Mission Statement

The mission of the Chattanooga Housing Authority (CHA) is to provide decent, safe,
and sanitary housing, free from discrimination, and to promote economic opportunity for
all residents.

Among the CHA's goals in achieving this mission are the following:

a) To provide healthy, drug-free communities both in and surrounding units
supported and managed by the CHA,;

b) To serve as the city’s housing safety net to the maximum extent possible
without sacrificing the health of the community and neighborhood,;

c) To design, implement and support educational and vocational programs with
the goal of reducing the long-term reliance of residents on public assistance
programs;

d) To use established and innovative financial and human resources to ensure
that each CHA resident and housing community has the opportunity to
achieve his/her/its maximum potential;

e) To promote the integration of public housing within the larger community;

f) To comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations;
and

g) To ensure that all employees are provided with the necessary training and
supervision to accomplish their assigned responsibilities in promoting the
mission of the CHA.

h) All employees of the CHA are expected to work cooperatively with
management, residents, the public and co-workers toward achieving the
mission and goals of the Chattanooga Housing Authority as set forth by the
Board of Commissioners (Board).

This Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) describes the admission,
occupancy and transfer policies by which the CHA determines eligibility for admission,
selects prospective residents, assigns units, admits residents, and processes transfers,
in a fair and nondiscriminatory manner.
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1.2 Statement of Nondiscrimination
1.2.1 Compliance with Federal and State Laws

It is the policy of the CHA to comply fully with existing federal and state laws?
protecting the individual rights of applicants, residents, and/or staff and any laws
subsequently enacted.

1.2.2 Civil Rights and Fair Housing

The CHA shall not discriminate because of race, color, sex, religion, age,
handicap, disability, ancestry, national origin, ethnicity, familial status or marital
status, children or veteran status in the leasing, rental, sale or transfer of units,
buildings, and related facilities, including land that it owns or controls. The CHA
shall affirmatively further fair housing in the administration of its Public Housing
Program(s).

To this end, the CHA shall not:
a) Deny to any household the opportunity to apply for housing, or deny to
any qualified applicant the opportunity to lease housing suitable to his/her

needs;

b) Provide housing which is different from that provided to others except as
required or permitted by law and in accordance with this ACOP;

C) Subject any person to segregation or disparate treatment;

d) Restrict a person's access to any benefit enjoyed by others in connection
with the housing programs;

e) Treat a person differently in determining eligibility or other requirements
for admission;

f) Deny a person access to the same level of services available to other
similarly situated individuals and/or

g) Deny a person the opportunity to participate in a planning or advisory
group that is an integral part of the Programs.

1 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 1; Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 (as amended by the Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988); Executive Order 11063 on Equal
Opportunity in Housing and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 107; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 8; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the implementing
regulations at 24 CFR Part 146; and the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Parts 100,108,110, and 121, Title Il of
the Americans with Disabilities Act and the implementing regulations at 28 CFR Part 35, Tennessee Landlord and
Tenant Act. 224 CFR 960.103, 24 CFR 5.105(a).
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To further its commitment to full compliance with applicable civil rights laws, the
CHA will provide federal/state/local information to applicants/residents of the
public housing programs regarding discrimination and any recourse available to
them if they believe they may be victims of discrimination. Such information will
be available at the Chattanooga Housing Authority's Central Office and all CHA’s
Site Based Management Offices throughout the City of Chattanooga. In addition,
all CHA’s written information and advertisements will contain the appropriate
Equal Opportunity language and logo.

The CHA will assist any family that believes it has suffered illegal discrimination
by providing copies of the appropriate housing discrimination forms. The CHA
will also assist in completing the forms, if requested, and will provide the address
of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Region IV
Field Office, 235 Cumberland Bend, Suite 200, Nashville, TN 37228-1803, and
the City of Chattanooga, Office of Multi-Cultural Affairs, City Hall, Chattanooga,
Tennessee 37401.

1.2.3 Right To Privacy

All adult members of both applicant and resident households are required to sign
(HUD) Form 9886, Authorization for Release of Information and Privacy Act
Notice. The Authorization for Release of Information and Privacy Act Notice
states how family information will be released and includes the Federal Privacy
Act Statement.

The CHA will not release applicant or resident information unless there is a: (i)
signed release of information request from the applicant or resident; (ii) lawful
court order or through lawful civil or criminal discovery processes; (iii) a request
for cooperation or for information from other governmental agencies or regulatory
bodies; (iv) as authorized by HUD regulations; and/or (v) as otherwise authorized
by law.

1.2.4 Reasonable Accommodations

The CHA shall make reasonable accommodations as required by law for
handicapped/disabled persons to promote equal access to and participation in
the public housing programs. Except as otherwise provided in 24 CFR 8.21(c)
(1), 8.24(a), 8.25 and 8.31, no individual with disabilities shall be denied the
benefits of, be excluded from participation in, or otherwise be subjected to
discrimination because the CHA's facilities are inaccessible to or unusable by
persons with disabilities.

Furthermore, no individual with disabilities shall be denied the benefits of, be
excluded from participation in, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination
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because the CHA's policies and/or procedures, lease or other provisions of law
SO provide.

. The CHA cannot refuse to make a reasonable accommodation in rules, policies,
practices or services when such accommodation may be necessary to afford a
person with a physical or mental impairment equal opportunity to use and enjoy a
CHA apartment, including public and common use areas.

The CHA must make a modification to existing premises, when requested by a
disabled person, if the modification is reasonable and necessary to afford equal
opportunity to use and enjoy CHA premises.

An accommodation or structural modification is not reasonable if it would impose
an undue administrative and financial burden on the CHA, or fundamentally alter
the nature of the Programs. The burden of demonstrating that a requested
accommodation is unreasonable and imposes an undue administrative and
financial burden, or fundamentally alters the nature of the Programs is on the
CHA. If granting the requested accommodation would create an undue
administrative and financial burden, the CHA shall approve the request to the
extent that it can do so without undergoing the undue burden or fundamental
program alteration as described above.

The following procedures set out the means by which applicants and residents
may request accommodations and the guidelines that the CHA will follow in
determining whether it is reasonable to provide a requested accommodation.
Because disabilities are not always apparent, the CHA will ensure that all
applicants/residents are aware of the opportunity to request reasonable
accommodations.

a) Communication

The CHA will advise in writing the method to follow in order to request
an accommodation at the time of orientation and will post the method
in the Site Based Management Offices. The Development
Departments, Project Manager is the Chattanooga Housing Authority’s
ADA/504 Coordinator and is responsible for reviewing all requests for
accommodations and for responding in writing to the requestors.

b) Questions to ask in granting the accommodation
The appointed staff members will conduct the following analysis:
e Is the requestor a person with disabilities?

For the purpose of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) the
definition of a person with disabilities is:
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A person with a physical or mental impairment that substantially
limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such
impairment, or is regarded as having such impairment. “Major life
activities” include functions such as caring for one’s self, performing
manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, bathing, learning
and working.

If the disability, for which the accommodation is being requested, is
apparent or has already been documented, the answer to this
guestion is “yes.” If the disability is not apparent or documented,
the CHA will obtain verification from a physician that the person is a
person with a disability within the meaning of the ADA.

e Is the requested accommodation related to the disability?

If it is apparent that the request is related to the apparent or
documented disability, the answer to this question is “yes.” If it is
not apparent, the requestor must provide documentation that the
requested accommodation is needed due to the disability. The
CHA will not inquire as to the nature of the disability. However, the
CHA may inquire about the disability only to the extent that it is
needed to make a determination regarding the applicant’s eligibility
for a program, a preference, or a reasonable accommaodation.

e Is the requested accommodation reasonable? In order to be
determined reasonable, the accommodation must meet two criteria:

First, would the accommodation constitute a fundamental
alteration?

The CHA's business is housing. If the request would alter the
fundamental business that the CHA conducts, it would not be
considered reasonable. For instance, the CHA would deny a
request to have the CHA do grocery shopping for a person with
disabilities.

Second, would the requested accommodation create an undue
financial hardship or administrative burden?

Frequently, the requested accommodation costs little or nothing. If
the cost would be an undue burden, the CHA may request a
meeting with the individual to investigate and consider equally
effective alternatives.
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1.3

If more than one accommodation is equally effective in providing
access to the CHA’s housing programs and services, the CHA
retains the right to select the most efficient or economic choice.

The cost necessary to carry out approved requests, including
requests for physical modifications, will be borne by the CHA if
there is no one else willing to pay for the modifications. If another
party pays for the modifications, the CHA will seek to have the
same entity pay for any restoration costs.

The CHA will consider a resident's request to make physical
modifications to a unit at his/her own expense. In making its
decision, the CHA will consider whether the proposed modifications
comply with local code and/or affect the structural integrity of the
building.

Any request for an accommodation that will enable a resident to
materially violate essential lease terms will not be approved, (i.e.
allowing nonpayment of rent, destruction of property, disturbing the
peaceful enjoyment of others, etc.).

The CHA shall promptly provide the applicant for a reasonable accommodation
with written notice of the decision. The notice shall contain the reason for the
decision and inform the applicant that he/she may appeal the decision in
accordance with this Policy.

Accessibility and Plain Language
1.3.1 Accessible Facilities and Programs

Facilities and programs used by applicants and residents shall be made
accessible. CHA offices, hearing rooms, community rooms, laundry facilities, and
other CHA spaces will be available for use by residents with disabilities. If these
facilities are not already accessible (and located on accessible routes), they will
be made accessible so long as this does not impose an undue financial and
administrative burden on the CHA.

1.3.2 Plain Language Paperwork
Documents intended for use by applicants and residents will be presented in
accessible formats for those with vision or hearing impairments and will be

written simply and clearly to enable applicants and residents with learning or
cognitive disabilities to understand as much as possible.
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1.3.3 English Language Ability

Some applicants and residents will not be able to read (or to read English), so
staff must be prepared to read and explain documents orally. Applicants who
read or understand little English may need to be provided with an interpreter who
can explain what is occurring. CHA will not pay the costs associated with having
a foreign language interpreter but will make available information on free
translation services. The CHA will make an effort to have its written materials
translated into those languages frequently spoken by applicants and residents.

The CHA is committed to providing meaningful access to the CHA’s programs
and activities by persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). No LEP
applicant or resident will be denied access to CHA’'s Programs and activities
because the individual does not speak English, or communicates in English on a
limited basis.

When given at least 24 hours notice of a need for an interpreter, the CHA will
endeavor to have bilingual staff available or access to people who can translate
and interpret languages other than English at no cost.

Any notice to an applicant or resident, who is known not to speak English, shall
bear a notice in commonly spoken foreign languages of the importance that the
notice be translated.

1.3.4 Other Services To Promote Accessibility To Programs

When provided with adequate notice, the CHA will endeavor to have sign
language interpreters available for the hearing impaired.
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CHAPTER 2: MARKETING AND OUTREACH

2.1  Marketing Policy

It is the policy of the CHA to conduct marketing and outreach efforts to provide
the local community with awareness of the CHA’s Programs. The CHA will
conduct outreach to the community to create an awareness of the availability of
its Programs and to maintain an adequate application pool, taking into
consideration the vacancy level and the availability of units through turnover.

It is the policy of the CHA to comply fully with existing federal and state laws
protecting the individual rights of applicants, residents, and/or staff, and any laws
subsequently enacted.

The CHA shall undertake a marketing effort in its programs whenever its waiting
list for units is fewer than the number of applicants anticipated to be placed in the
next twelve (12) months. Additionally, the CHA shall undertake appropriate
affirmative fair marketing efforts whenever the number of its minority resident
households and minority households on the waiting list for either family housing
or elderly/handicapped housing is fewer than the number of households meeting
its affirmative action goal for the respective Program.

The CHA will provide informational materials and/or presentations to individuals,
groups, social service agencies and others upon request.

2.1 Marketing Purpose
Marketing has two primary purposes:

a) to make all potential applicants aware of the housing opportunities and
related services that CHA offers its residents; and

b) to attract specific groups of applicants, such as:
e _those with low- and very low-income levels, or
¢ disabled persons who require units with accessible features.
2.2  Marketing Requirements

The following requirements apply to CHA marketing efforts:

2.2.1 Fair Housing
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2.3

Materials must comply with the Fair Housing Act requirements with respect to
wording, logo, size of type, etc.

2.2.2 Plain Language

Marketing materials shall be in “plain language”. The CHA shall make an effort to
use print media, videos and multi-media in a variety of languages as
necessitated by applicant/resident language needs.

2.2.3 Eligibility

Marketing materials shall make clear who is eligible for housing including people
with physical and/or mental disabilities.

Marketing and Outreach Strategies
2.3.1 When CHA Will Market Apartments

The CHA will undertake marketing efforts whenever there is a need to do so in
order to address: changes required as a result of legislative or regulatory
requirements; fair housing needs; unit vacancy or turnover considerations; de-
concentration and income mixing needs; an insufficient pool of applicants on the
waiting list; or any other factor which may require marketing efforts to further
program goals.

The CHA shall assess these factors at least annually as part of its Agency Plan
in order to determine the need and scope of the marketing effort.

2.3.2 Affirmative Marketing

The CHA shall undertake appropriate affirmative fair marketing efforts whenever
the CHA identifies a need to augment the number of applicants on any of its site—
based waiting lists.

2.3.3 Print Media

The CHA will establish a list of publications to use when it is necessary to print
marketing material. As necessary, the CHA will utilize any or all of these
publications to facilitate outreach.

The CHA will seek to reach potential applicants through advertising in
publications that serve all populations. Additionally, the CHA may use public
service announcements to reach people who cannot or do not read newspapers.
The Equal Housing Opportunity logo will be used in all advertisements.
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2.3.4 Required Postings

In the lobby of the CHA’s Central Office and in each of its site management
offices, the CHA will post, in a conspicuous place and at a height easily read by
all persons including persons with mobility disabilities, a statement that the
following information is available for review at the CHA'’s Central Office located at
801 North Holtzclaw Avenue, Chattanooga, TN, and at each site management
office. In those developments where there is no site management office, the
statement will be posted in the site management’'s community area.

a) Statement of policies and procedures governing Admissions and
Continued Occupancy;

b) Notice of the status of the waiting lists (opened or closed);

c) A listing of all the developments by name, address, number of units,
units designed with special accommodations, addresses of all site
management offices, office hours, telephone numbers, TTD numbers
and resident facilities and hours of operation;

d) Applications for admission to the CHA’s Programs;

e) Income limits for admission;

f) Utility Allowance Schedule;

g) Current schedule of routine maintenance charges;

h) A sample dwelling lease;

i) Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP);

]) Petrules, pet lease agreement, pet owner’s absence agreement;

k) Fair Housing Poster; and

[) Equal Opportunity in Employment Poster.

m) Procedure to request Reasonable Accommodation

2.4 Limited English Proficiency Plan
The CHA is committed to providing meaningful access to the CHA’s Programs and
activities by persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). No LEP applicant or

resident will be denied access to CHA’s Programs and activities because the
individual does not speak English, or communicates in English on a limited basis.
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When given at least 24 hours notice of a need for an interpreter, the CHA will
endeavor to have bilingual staff available or access to people who can translate and
interpret languages other than English at no cost.
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CHAPTER 3: APPLICATIONS AND PROCESSING

3.1  Application Forms

Applications are available during the hours of 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through
Friday at each site management office and on the CHA’'s website at
www.chahousing.org.

Applications will be mailed to individuals upon request. The CHA shall provide
reasonable assistance to applicants in completing the application form.

3.2  Waiting Lists

The following provisions set forth the procedures for managing the CHA'’s waiting list(s),
placement of applicants on the waiting list(s), and the assignment of vacant units to
persons on the waiting list(s) in a uniformly nondiscriminatory basis without respect to
race, color, sex, religion, age, handicap, disability, national origin, ancestry, ethnicity,
familial status, marital status, children or veteran status:

3.2.1 Management

The CHA maintains a waiting list for each of its sites by bedroom size, with the
exception of its scattered sites. The CHA maintains one waiting list for its four
scattered sites by bedroom size, and a separate waiting list for the Greenwood
Terrace tax credit site. The CHA also maintains a separate waiting list for the
Housing First Program for Emma Wheeler Homes, and may from time to time
establish additional waiting lists for other special housing Programs. The CHA
shall date and time stamp each application as received.

The CHA will use the date and time of application within the selection preference
categories and within the pool of standard applicants to determine the order of
selection from the waiting list.

The waiting lists are generally open for an indefinite period; however, in the event
of closure and reopening, the CHA shall follow the procedures delineated in this
section.

a) Opening the Waiting List(s)

The CHA'’s Executive Director or his/her designee has the discretion of
determining when to open a waiting list. The CHA will provide public
notice at the time of opening a waiting list to ensure that families are
aware that they may apply for public housing. The CHA will publish the
notice in The Chattanooga Times Free Press, in available minority media
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3.2.2

of general circulation, and to local organizations that service low and
moderate income families. The CHA will also provide written notice in the
lobbies of the Central Office, Housing Choice Voucher Program Office and
all site management offices.

The notice shall state clearly the method of selection (date and time or
lottery), where and when to apply, and will set forth any limitations on who

may apply.

As an alternative, the CHA may elect to use a lottery system at the time of
opening the wait lists.

The Executive Director or his designee is responsible for the
determination of whether and when a lottery system will be used. In the
event that the CHA elects to adopt and use a lottery system for the
selection of applicants, the date and time of application will not apply, as
said selection will be superseded by the lottery selection.

In the event that the CHA elects to use a lottery system, this intention will
be declared and publicized in the CHA'’s advertisement of the opening of
the waiting list(s). The CHA will draw applications from the lottery pool in
a public forum. The CHA may maintain the pool of applicants from the
lottery for a stated period of time and draw applications from the lottery
pool, in a public forum throughout that period of time as necessary.

b) Closing the Waiting List(s)

The CHA'’s Executive Director or his/her designee has the discretion of
when to close a waiting list.

If the CHA’s Executive Director or his/her designee determines that the
existing waiting list contains an adequate pool of applicants based on
available housing opportunities and projected turnover, the CHA may stop
accepting new applications or may accept only applications meeting
identifying criteria.

Additionally, if the CHA opens the waiting list for a particular property, the
CHA must ensure that all of the applicants on the waiting list prior to
closing who have met the eligibility requirements for the Program have
had an opportunity to be housed. This would include any applicant in any
preference category, including Standard Applicants.

Updating and Reclassification of the Waiting List(s)

The CHA will update and reclassify all applications on file on its waiting
lists on a bi-annual basis to ensure that the pool of applicants on the
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waiting lists reasonably represents families who are still interested in
applying for housing.

The CHA will contact applicants on the waiting list to confirm that they are
still interested in participating in the program for which application was
made. The CHA will also request that the applicant family update
information regarding address, family composition, income category and
claimed preferences to ensure that the applicant is still preliminarily
eligible and that the preference status remains the same. The CHA will
request that applicants respond within a timeframe set forth in the letter
and shall indicate that failure to respond may result in the removal of the
family from the waiting list. In the event that the applicant does not
respond within the timeframe and/or attend a scheduled appointment at
the CHA, the family shall be removed from the waiting list.

The CHA will grant a reasonable accommodation for an applicant with a
disability who is removed from the list for failure to respond to the CHA's
request for information or update due to the disability if the applicant
requests such accommodation in writing and the CHA determines that the
requested accommodation is reasonable. Under these circumstances, the
CHA shall reinstate the applicant to his/her former position.

An applicant may at any time withdraw his/her application.

3.3  Processing Applications for Admission

3.3.1

3.3.2

Processing

It is the CHA's policy to accept and process applications in accordance
with applicable CHA policies and federal regulations, and handbooks.

Applications will not be accepted unless they are complete, legible and
signed by the Head of Household and Co-Head of Household (if
applicable).

Applicant Placement On Waiting List

All applications shall be assigned and shall be date and time stamped
when they are completed and received at the CHA site management
office. Applicants may apply and be placed on up to three site based
waiting lists.

The CHA places applicants on the waiting lists based upon the date and
time of application and eligibility for a weighted selection preference as set
forth below:

a) Category 1: Witness Protection
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This selection preference is available when a local, state, and/or federal
law enforcement organization requests that the CHA house a witness or
other person involved in an investigation or pending criminal action, the
CHA may place the applicant above all others on the waiting list based
upon the date time the application was provided by the law enforcement
organization. Additionally, the law enforcement organization must provide
compelling written justification for the request. The request shall be
reviewed and approved by the Executive Director and the applicant will be
subject to standard screening procedures.

b) Category 2: Natural Disaster (PH Resident)

This selection preference is for a family, who was a public housing
resident in Chattanooga or another jurisdiction, affected by a federal
and/or state natural disaster.

c) Category 3: Natural Disaster (Non PH Resident)
This selection preference is for a family affected by a federal and/or state
declared natural disaster.

d) Cateqgory 4: Displaced

Individuals or families displaced by government action [i.e. required to
move by any level of government: federal, state or local], refugees as
defined by federal law, and individuals displaced due to the inaccessibility
of a unit including fire/flood or other casualty to the unit; and/or HUD
disposition of a HUD multi-family project, or individuals displaced by
domestic violence.

e) Category 5: Working Full-Time

The head-of-household, spouse or sole member of the family must work
for wages, commissions, or other consideration of value and demonstrate
full-time employment (32 hours or more per week) at the time of
application and at the time of unit offer. It must be apparent that the full
time employment is of a continuous, as opposed to a temporary nature
and the applicant must anticipate such continuous employment after the
date of placement. Seasonal full-time employment such as that of school
support personnel shall be eligible for this preference if the break in
continuous employment is a result of the academic school calendar.

Note: A head-of-household, spouse or sole member aged 62 or older, or
a person with disabilities is eligible for this preference.

f) Category 6: Working Part-Time

The head-of-household, spouse or sole member of the family must work
for wages, commissions, or other consideration of value and demonstrate
part-time employment (20 hours to 31 hours per week) at the time of
application and at the time of unit offer. It must be apparent that the part-
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time employment is of a continuous, as opposed to a temporary, nature
and the applicant must anticipate such continuous employment after the
date of placement. Seasonal part-time employment, such as that of school
support personnel, shall be eligible for this preference if the break in
continuous employment is a result of the academic school calendar.

g) Category 7: Chattanooga Housing Authority Job Training/Other
Certified Development Programs

The head-of-household, spouse or sole member of the family is
participating in an education or employment program funded by HUD,
Workforce Investment Board, or any other federal, state or local
organization, whose primary purpose is to prepare low and very low
income individuals for economic independence or family self-sufficiency.
Such participation must be for a minimum of twenty hours per week and
must be verified in writing by the provider of the programming.

Additionally, the CHA may, from time to time, certify other programming
that may qualify for this preference.

h) Cateqgory 8: Chronically Homeless
The HUD definition of a chronically homeless person is an
unaccompanied homeless individual with a disabling condition who has
either:
(i) been continuously homeless for a year or more, or
(i) has had at least four episodes of homelessness in the past three
years.

A disabling condition is defined as a diagnosable substance use disorder,
serious mental illness, developmental disability, or chronic physical iliness
or disability.

For chronic homelessness, the definition of a homeless person is an
unaccompanied individual sleeping in a place not meant for human
habitation or in an emergency homeless shelter.

i.) Category 9 Homeless

An individual who lacks a fixed, regular, nighttime residence; and/or an
individual who has a primary nighttime residence that is a supervised
publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living
accommodations (including welfare hotels, congregate shelters, and
transitional housing for the mentally ill); an institution that provides a
temporary residence for individuals intended to be institutionalized or a
public or private place not designed for, or ordinarily used for a regular
sleeping accommodation for human beings.

Standard Applicant
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An applicant who is not eligible for any other preference in this ACOP,
however, meets the preliminary eligibility requirements for admissions.

Therefore, placement on the waiting list will be in the following order:

Applicants with selection preference in category 1 (by date/time of
application)

Application with selection preference in category 2 (by date/time of
application)

Application with selection preference in category 3 (by date/time of
application)

Applications with selection preference in category 4 (by date/time of
application)

Applicants with selection preference in category 5 (by date/time of
application)

Application with selection preference in category 6 (by date/time of
application)

Application with selection preference in category 7 (by date/time of
application)

Applications with selection preference in category 8 (by date/time of
application)

Applications with selection preference in category 9 (by date/time of
application)

Standard Applicants

3.3.3 Selection From The Waiting List(s)

The CHA shall select applicants from the waiting list(s) in the order of placement
on the list as determined by the date and time of the application and eligibility for
the preference, subject to the following provisions.

a) Designated Developments

The CHA has designated Boynton Terrace, Gateway Towers and Mary
Walker Towers as elder-only in accordance with HUD regulations. The
CHA will offer available units first to elder families (62 years of age or
older). If there are no elder families on the site based waiting list, the CHA
will next offer available units to near elder families (50 through 61 years of

age).

All of these provisions are subject to the approval of the Designated Housing Plan
submitted July 2009.

b) Handicapped-Accessible Units [24 CFR 960.407(b)]
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A handicapped accessible unit will first be offered to families who will
benefit from the accessible features. If there are no applicants on the
waiting list who require accessible features, the CHA will offer the
accessible unit to an applicant who does not require accessible
features, provided that he/she agrees in writing to transfer to a different
unit at the family’s expense, if a family requiring an accessible unit
needs the unit. The CHA will provide a 30-day notice to any family
required to transfer.

c) De-concentration and Income Mixing Provisions

In accordance with the congressional mandate in the “Quality Housing
and Work Responsibility Act of 1998”, the CHA has adopted the
federally required policies to provide for de-concentration of poverty
and to encourage income mixing in all family developments. Although
the CHA will affirmatively market its housing Programs to all eligible
income groups, the CHA will take appropriate actions to de-
concentrate poverty and encourage income mixing in developments by
offering units in developments with higher average income levels to
families with lower incomes, and by offering units in developments with
lower average income levels to families with higher incomes.

To this end, the site based management office may skip over families
on the waiting list to reach other families with lower/higher incomes in
order to comply with de-concentration requirements.

In conjunction with the submission of the annual plan, the CHA will
analyze the income levels of families residing in each development and
the income levels of the families on the site based waiting list. Based
on this analysis, the CHA will determine necessary marketing
strategies to comply with de-concentration requirements.

The CHA may offer one or more incentives to encourage applicant
families whose income classification would help to meet the de-
concentration goals of a particular development. Various incentives
may be used at different times, or under different conditions, but will
always be provided in a consistent and nondiscriminatory manner.

d) Income Targeting to Extremely Low Income Families

At least 40% of the families admitted to the CHA’s Program during the
fiscal year shall be extremely low-income families. This is called the
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“basic targeting requirement”. Admission of extremely low income
families to the CHA'’s Housing Choice Voucher Program during the
same fiscal year may be credited against the basic targeting
requirement.

3.3.4 Unit Size

The guidelines set forth below generally establish the unit size based on the size
and composition of the family:

Number of Family Members
Number of Bedrooms Minimum Maximum
0 (Studio) 1 1
1 1 2
2 2 4
3 3 6
4 4 8
5 5 10

In addition to the above guidelines, the CHA shall determine an applicant
household’'s appropriate unit size based upon the following criteria:

a)
b)

c)

d)

f)

Single person families shall be allocated not more than one bedroom;
No more than two persons are required to occupy a bedroom;

A family that consists of a pregnant woman (with no other person)
must be treated as a two person family;

Adult household members of the opposite sex, excepting husband and
wife (or those in a similar living arrangement), do not have to share a
bedroom; however, other household members of the opposite sex may
elect to share a bedroom;

Persons of the same sex shall share a bedroom, provided that a
household member, age 21 or over, may elect not to share a bedroom
with his or her child, grandchild, or legal ward;

A household member does not have to share a bedroom if a
consequence of sharing is or would be a severe adverse impact on his
or her mental or physical health and if the CHA receives reliable
medical documentation as to the impact of sharing;
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g) Only bedrooms may be used for sleeping purposes by household
members;

h) The living room, kitchen, bathroom, and hallways shall not be used for
sleeping purposes by any household member;

i) A household member shall be considered to be living regularly with a
family if temporarily absent for reasons such as hospitalization, duty
assignment, employment, or school attendance in another location.
Upon receipt of notice from the Department of Social Services that one
or more children will be reunified with a household member, such child
or children, if eligible and qualified, shall be considered household
members for purposes of securing a unit of appropriate unit size for the
reunified family;

]) Space will not be provided for a family member who will be absent
most of the time, such as a member who is away in the military or a
child who is away at school but who lives with the family during school
recesses; or in situations involving custody of a child for less than 50%
of time;

k) A child who is temporarily away from the home because of placement
in foster care is considered a member of the family in determining the
family unit size;

[) A foster child will be considered in determining unit size only if he/she
will be in the unit for more than twelve (12) months;

m) Children of the opposite sex under the age of five must share a
bedroom (e.g. a five year old girl must share a bedroom with a three
year old); persons within the same generation of the same sex shall
share a bedroom;

n) Persons of different generations, persons of the opposite sex (other
than adults who have a spousal relationship) and unrelated adults
should be allocated a separate bedroom;

0) A full-time, live-in personal care attendant, whether or not a household
member for purposes of rent determination, if determined by the CHA
to be qualified, shall be deemed a household member for purposes of
determining the appropriate unit size in public housing; and

p) In the event that a household member, who has signed the lease,
applies for the addition of a person as an additional household
member, the CHA shall determine whether the person is qualified and
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whether the augmented family is eligible. If so, the CHA shall approve
addition of the household member to the family if the unit is of
appropriate unit size or, if the unit is too small, upon transfer of the
family to a unit of appropriate unit size.

3.3.5 Exceptions to Guidelines

The CHA may grant an exception to subsidy standards in determining the
appropriate unit size for a particular family, if the CHA determines that the
exception is justified by the age, sex, health, handicap, or relationship of family
members or other personal circumstances.

The CHA may provide a family with a unit that is larger than suggested by the
guidelines, with the condition that the family will move to a smaller unit when
another family needs the unit and a suitable smaller unit is available. If such a
move becomes necessary, the cost of the move shall be the responsibility of the
family. The CHA will require that the family sign a document reflecting its
understanding of this exception and of the family’s responsibilities. These
provisions are outlined in the CHA Dwelling Lease.

3.3.6 Unit Offer

When an applicant approaches the top of the waiting list, the CHA shall make a
final determination of the applicant’s eligibility and suitability. After a verified
determination of eligibility and suitability is made, and the applicant’'s name is at
the top of the waiting list(s), or is otherwise the next candidate for a unit offer, the
CHA shall make one (1) unit offer of a suitable unit to the applicant household.

The unit offer shall be for the unit(s) that has been vacant for the longest period
of time or is the unit that will next be available. In some instances, the CHA may
make a unit offer for a unit that is expected to become available and for some
reason the unit does not become available. Under those unusual circumstances,
there will be a second unit offer to the applicant.

A “suitable” unit is one that is appropriate in size and type for the applicant.

If the applicant provides reliable documentation establishing that the unit offered
is inappropriate and would cause severe and unreasonable hardship, the CHA
may offer different units to the family.

An applicant must accept a unit offer within five (5) days of the written offer. For
good cause the CHA may extend the time for a response. An applicant who fails
to accept a unit offer within five days or to provide documentation that the unit
would cause severe and unreasonable hardship within that period shall be
removed from the waiting list.
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3.4

Communications
3.4.1 CHA to Applicants

All communications with applicants will be by first class mail, except when an
applicant, who is a disabled person, requests some other form of communication
(for example, a telephone call, communication with a designated third party, etc.).
Failure to respond to CHA communications may result in withdrawal of an
applicant from all waiting lists.

3.4.2 Applicants to CHA

It is the responsibility of each applicant to inform the CHA in writing of any
change in address, telephone number, household composition, change in
preference, or other information, which may affect the status of the application
while on the waiting list(s). For an applicant with no fixed address, such as
homeless households, the address of a social service agency may be used for
CHA contacts; however, if the applicant finds permanent housing, the address
must be reported to the CHA in writing at once.
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4.1

CHAPTER 4: ELIGIBILITY AND SUITABILITY FOR ADMISSIO N

General Provisions
4.1.1 Overview

The CHA thoroughly screens each individual applicant in accordance with HUD
regulations and sound management practices to determine whether an applicant
is both eligible and suitable for public housing. To demonstrate eligibility, an
applicant must satisfy five separate eligibility requirements and demonstrate that
the head of household: (i) is eighteen years or older at the time of the initial
application and qualifies as a family, (ii)) has an income within the appropriate
income limits, (iii) meets citizenship/eligible immigrant criteria, (iv) provides
documentation of Social Security numbers, a certificate of live birth for each
household member, and (v) meets or exceeds the eligibility and suitability
selection criteria.

4.1.2 Duty to Cooperate

Applicants are required to respond to the CHA within the specified time frames to
any request to review their application and/or submit or update information and/or
execute any necessary documents. Failure of the applicant to do so will result in
removal of the applicant from the applicable waiting list(s). CHA reserves the
right to require applicant status checks, changes to applications regarding
income and Family circumstances, etc., to be done in person, by mail or
electronically.

4.1.3 Fraud or Misrepresentation

Any applicant who has committed fraud or any person who knowingly or
intentionally aids or abets any other person in obtaining or attempting to obtain or
in establishing or attempting to establish eligibility for, any public housing,
Section 8, or other subsidized program by the use of fraud, misrepresentation or
other fraudulent scheme or device is not eligible for public housing admission for
a period of one (1) year from the date of the final denial.

4.1.4 Applicant Interviews

The CHA shall conduct interviews with applicants for the Programs in
accordance with the following guidelines.

a) Private Interview

Insofar as possible, application interviews shall be conducted in a
private or semi-private atmosphere where CHA can reasonably
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maintain the confidentiality of the information that the applicant or
family provides.

b) Consistency of Information

During the applicant's formal interview, the eligibility interviewer will
compare new information received with past information stated on
application and, if necessary, inquire of the applicant family the
reason(s) for any discrepancies, and/or require additional
documentation.

c) Additional Documentation

Additional documentation or verifications specifically requested of
the applicant must be provided within one week, or such other
reasonable time as CHA may determine, from the interview date
unless an extension is granted.

4.2  Applicant Eligibility

In order to meet the eligibility criteria for public housing, an applicant must meet the
following standards:

4.2.1 Family Eligibility

At a minimum the applicant must be a family as defined by HUD regulation [24
CFR 5.403] and must be income eligible, i.e. a low income family.

4.2.2 Income Eligibility

To be eligible for admission, an applicant must be a low-income Family at the
time of admission (i.e. family income does not exceed 80% of HUD established
median income for Chattanooga). Annual income, not adjusted income, is used
to determine whether an applicant is eligible. Generally, the applicant is eligible
for admission into any unit in the CHA'’s developments subject to CHA initiatives
regarding de-concentration strategies.

The income eligibility criteria apply only at admission and are not applicable for a
tenant family’s continued occupancy. Income eligibility restrictions do not apply
to families transferring within the CHA’s Program. However, a family may not be
admitted to the CHA’s Program from the Section 8 Program or from a public
housing program operated by another housing authority without meeting the
income requirements.
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4.3  Citizen/Non-citizen Eligibility [24 CFR 5.506]

To be eligible for admission, each member of the family must be a United States citizen,
national or a non-citizen that has eligible immigration status in one of the following
categories:

4.3.1 Permanent Resident

Lawfully admitted for permanent residence as an immigrant, including special
agricultural workers;

4.3.2 Attorney General Designation

Entered the United States before January 1, 1972 and has maintained
continuous residence thereafter, and who is not ineligible for citizenship, but who
is deemed to be lawfully admitted for permanent residence as a result of an
exercise of discretion by the Attorney General of the United States;

a) Asylum/Refugee

Lawfully present in the United States pursuant to the granting of
asylum (refugee status);

b) Emergent/Public Interest

Lawfully present in the United States as a result of an exercise of
discretion by the Attorney General for emergent reasons or reasons
deemed strictly in the public interest (parole status);

c) Deportation Withholding

Lawfully present in the United States as a result of the Attorney
General of the United States withholding of deportation (threat of life or
freedom); and/or

d) Amnesty

Lawfully admitted for temporary or permanent residence (amnesty
granted under Immigration and Naturalization Action Section 245A).

A family shall not be eligible for assistance unless every member of the family
who will reside in the unit is determined to have eligible status, unless the family
is a mixed family under appropriate HUD regulations [24 CFR 5.506, 5.516,
5.518] or certain family members are eligible for temporary deferral of termination
of assistance or HUD determines that benefits should otherwise continue or be
granted.
31
Chattanooga Housing Authority

Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy
Revised October 2009




4.4  Social Security Eligibility

To be eligible, all family members must provide a Social Security number. Generally,
no family member may be added to the lease prior to the verification of his or her Social
Security number.

4.5  Execution of Consent Forms [24 CFR 5.230]

To be eligible, each member of the family who is at least 18 years of age shall sign one
or more consent forms. The consent form(s) must contain, at a minimum, the following:

451 SWICA Authorization

A provision authorizing the CHA to obtain from State Wage Information
Collection Agencies (SWICAs) any information or material necessary to complete
or verify the application for participation or for eligibility for continued occupancy.
For residents, a provision authorizing the CHA to obtain information or material
through the Upfront Income Verification (“UIV”) program to determine continued
eligibility:

4.5.2 Employer Authorization

A provision authorizing HUD or CHA to verify with previous or current employers
income and job related information pertinent to the family’s eligibility for or level
of assistance:

45.3 IRS and SSA Authorization

A provision authorizing HUD or CHA to request income information from the
Internal Revenue Service and the Social Security Administration for the sole
purpose of verifying income information pertinent to the family’s eligibility or level
of benefits;

4.5.4 Credit Report / Previous Landlord Authorization

A provision authorizing CHA to secure credit reports and a previous landlord
history report;

455 Substance Abuse Treatment Records Authorization

A provision which will authorize the release of certain medical and
treatment history for persons who have enrolled in an alcohol or
substance or drug abuse facility and are stating to the CHA that they have
been rehabilitated from the alcohol and substance or drug abuse;
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4.6

4.5.6 Criminal History Authorization

A provision that authorizes the CHA to conduct a criminal background
investigation of the applicant and each member of the applicant’s family who is at
least 16 years old.

4.5.7 Expiration Statement

A statement that the authorization(s) to release the information requested by the
consent form expires 15 months after the date the consent form is signed. This
provision will not apply to the Criminal History Authorization.

Applicant Suitability [24 CFR 960.203]
4.6.1 General

The CHA will evaluate each applicant to determine whether the applicant would
be reasonably suitable as a resident of a CHA community. The CHA will deny
admission to any applicant whose habit(s), action(s) and/or practice(s)
reasonably may be expected to have a detrimental effect on other residents, site
based management or maintenance staff, CHA's agents, contractors or
employees, or other members of the public in and around the community. These
suitability provisions shall also apply to any person who may be eligible to
become head of household by reason of a family separation, or who may
become a family member due to:

a) Addition to the lease;
b) Live-in aide;

c) Guardianship; or

d) A residual family.

The CHA may declare applicants who fall into one of the following categories (on
an individual basis) to be unsuitable for admission to the public housing program.
Before such a determination is made, the CHA shall give consideration to
favorable changes in the behavior pattern of the applicant, length of time since
the latest offense and other extenuating circumstances that indicate the applicant
would or could be a responsible resident.

4.6.2 One Strike Policy & Criminal Background

It is the policy of the CHA that each applicant for the Programs shall be screened
for criminal activity. The CHA has discretion to deny admission to an applicant:

a) Who was evicted from Public Housing, Indian Housing, Section 23, or
any Section 8 Program because of drug-related criminal activity for a
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three-year period beginning on the date of such eviction. (Drug-related
criminal activity is the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, use or
possession with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use a
controlled substance.) The CHA shall use information contained in its
own files, or information obtained from other housing agencies to make
a determination that the person is ineligible. Note: This requirement
may be waived if the person demonstrates successful completion of a
re-habilitation program approved by the CHA, or the circumstances
leading to the eviction no longer exist. For example, the individual
involved in drugs no longer is in the household because the person is
incarcerated;

b) Who the CHA has reasonable cause to believe illegally uses a
controlled substance in a way that may interfere with the health,
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other
residents;

c) Who is a fugitive felon or parole violator: (1) Fleeing to avoid
prosecution, or custody or confinement after conviction, for a crime,
or attempt to commit a crime that is a felony under the laws of the
place from which the individual flees, or that, in the case of the
State of New Jersey, is a high misdemeanor; or (2) violating a
condition of probation or parole imposed under federal or state law;

d) Who has a recent history of criminal activity involving crimes to
persons or property and/or other criminal acts that affect the health,
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other
residents;

e) Who has a drug possession charge listed within 5 years of the
application date;

f) Who has an aggravated assault charge listed within 5 years and of
the application date;

g) Who has simple assaults within 5 years of application date;

h) Who has any drug paraphernalia charge listed within 5 years of
application date;

i) Who has any charge related to the manufacture, sale or delivery of
any controlled/scheduled substance within ten years of application
date (Note: Manufacture of methamphetamine is a lifetime ban.);

]) Who has any history of homicide or attempted homicide in any
degree (Note: lifetime ban);
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k) Who has a history of sex offenses to include but not limited to rape,
sexual battery, unlawful sexual contact, and indecent exposure
(Note: Listing on the Sex Offender Registry is a lifetime ban.);

) Who has any charge relating to a violent felony within 5 years, to
include but not be limited to arson, robbery, and mayhem;

m) Who has any charge relating to a public order crime within 5 years
of application date, including but not limited to public intoxication,
disorderly conduct, vandalism, and prostitution;

n) Who has committed any other Criminal Act determined to be
detrimental to the safety and well being of the CHA public housing
community;

0) Who has engaged in acts of domestic violence within 5 years of the
application date, including but not limited to dating violence,
assault, sexual assault, and stalking; however, the CHA shall follow
the terms of the Violence Against Women Act of 2005 in
determining eligibility);

p) Who has been banned from CHA properties by being placed on the
CHA No-Trespass List.

Generally, an applicant will not be denied for an incident more than five (5) years old
unless that incident involved murder, rape, armed robbery, child abuse/molestation,
violence (e.g., aggravated assault), violent criminal activity, drug-related criminal
activity, drugs, and/or the incident contributes to or evidences a pattern of consistent
criminal activity.

4.6.3 Alcohol Abuse

Admission shall be denied to any person when the CHA determines that there is
reasonable cause to believe that the person's pattern of abuse of alcohol may
interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by
other residents. In making such determination, the CHA shall rely upon relevant
information obtained from local law enforcement agencies, social service
agencies, property owners, employers, alcohol abuse centers, acquaintances
(including current tenants) who may contact the CHA to volunteer information, or
any other appropriate source.

The CHA may waive policies prohibiting admissions if the person demonstrates
to the CHA’s satisfaction that the person no longer is engaging in abuse of
alcohol and has successfully completed a supervised alcohol rehabilitation
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program; has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully; and/or is currently
participating in a supervised alcohol rehabilitation program.

4.6.4 Pattern of threatened abusive or violent behavior toward CHA/Site Based
Management staff members, CHA agents and residents and/or others;

4.6.5 History of failure to meet financial obligations, especially chronic or
consistent delinquency in rent, utility payment(s) and/or maintenance
charges;

4.6.6 Record of serious disturbances of neighbors, destruction of property; or
other disruptive or dangerous behavior;

4.6.7 Unsanitary, unduly sloppy or hazardous housekeeping that could
adversely affect the health, safety or welfare of other tenants;

4.6.8 Eviction from Public Housing

Any applicant who has been evicted from any public housing community for any
reason cannot be placed on any site based waiting list for a period of twelve (12)
months from the date of the eviction. Furthermore if the eviction is due to drug-
related criminal activity or other serious criminal activity the applicant cannot be
placed on any site based waiting list for a minimum of five (5) years after the date
of the eviction. Any applicant who owes a verified or admitted move-out balance
to CHA (regardless of time) or any other HUD subsidized program will not be
considered for readmission until the account is paid in full.

4.6.9 Credit History
Record of eviction, judgment, significant debt which would reduce or reasonably
inhibit the ability to pay.

4.6.10 Landlord Contact
Contact with the current landlord and, if applicable, at least one prior landlord to
gather information about past performance in meeting rental obligations.

4.6.11 Utility Supplier
Contact with one prior utility supplier to gather information on the applicant's
payment history.

4.6.12 Other Contacts

Contact with such other person(s) or entity/entities as CHA may deem necessary
to demonstrate applicant’s previous and current ability and/or willingness to pay
the rent and other applicable charges in a timely fashion.

4.6.13 Debt to Federal Subsidized Housing Programs
An applicant may be denied admission to the CHA’s Programs if the applicant
has not paid back any debt owed to CHA from a previous tenancy and/or other
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federal subsidized housing program(s). This would include the violation of any
terms and agreements of the Housing Choice Voucher Program.

4.6.14 Other Behavior
Other behavior that would indicate an inability to comply with essential lease
terms.

The purpose of these screening criteria is to prohibit admission to the CHA's housing of
any person that it determines to be likely to interfere with the health, safety, or right to
peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents and/or to be unable to comply
with essential lease terms. In considering the elements leading to the determination, the
CHA shall not consider whether the applicant happens to have a disability; rather, the
focus shall be on whether the person's recent behavior indicates that he/she or she
likely would continue to engage in behavior that would be in non-compliance with the
dwelling lease.

4.7 Consideration of Mitigating Circumstances

The CHA shall have the right (but is not obligated to do so) to impose, as a condition of
admission to or continued assistance in the Program for other household members, a
requirement that any household member who engaged in or is culpable for drug use or
alcohol abuse may not reside with the family in the household on the premises.
Moreover, the CHA may require (but is not obligated to do so) that a household member
who has engaged in the illegal use of a drug, or in alcohol abuse that threatened the
health or safety of, or the right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by, other
residents, to submit evidence of current participation in, or successful completion of, a
supervised drug or alcohol rehabilitation program as a condition to being allowed to
reside with the household or on the premises.

4.8 Results of Screening For Eligibility And Suit  ability for Tenancy

When the CHA has made a determination that an applicant is eligible and suitable,
thereby satisfying all requirements for admission, the CHA shall notify the applicant of
the approximate time when a unit will be offered to the family. The CHA reserves the
right to verify an applicant’s eligibility and/or suitability at any time prior to the placement
of a family in a CHA community.

When the CHA has made a determination that an applicant is ineligible and/or
unsuitable for the public housing program, the CHA shall provide prompt written notice
of a decision denying assistance to an applicant. This notice shall contain a brief
statement of the reasons for the CHA’s decision. The notice will also state that the
applicant may request an informal hearing in writing within ten (10) days of the date of
the notice. The CHA shall provide the applicant with the opportunity within a reasonable
time period, to request an informal hearing on the determination. If the applicant fails to
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request a hearing within the prescribed time period, the CHA will remove the applicant’s
name from the site based waiting list(s).

4.9 Review of Denial of Eligibility, Suitability, and Preference Status

Upon request, the CHA will provide an informal hearing to applicants who are
determined to be ineligible and/or unsuitable in accordance with 24 CFR 960.208.

Requests for informal hearings must be delivered in person or by regular first class malil
to the CHA. Failure to request an informal hearing will result in removal from the site
based waiting list(s).

The Executive Director or his/her designee shall conduct the informal hearing. The
applicant will be afforded the opportunity to present written or oral objections to the
CHA's decision, present evidence, and question all withesses. The CHA shall respond
in writing with a decision, including the reasons for the final decision within fifteen (15)
working days after the hearing or within other such reasonable period of time.

With regard to informal hearings:

a) the participant must be given the opportunity before the CHA'’s
hearing to examine any CHA documents that are directly relevant
to the hearing and be allowed to photocopy any such documents at
the applicant’s expense;

b) the CHA must be given the opportunity to examine before the
hearing any applicant's documents that are directly relevant to the
hearing and be allowed to copy any such documents at CHA
expense.

c) the applicant may be represented by a lawyer at his/her own
expense or other representative;

d) the hearing officer must not have made or approved the decision
under review or be a subordinate of that person.
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CHAPTER 5: VERIFICATION
5.1 General [24 CFR 960.259]

The CHA Shall verify all factors affecting eligibility, suitability and the family’s portion of
the rent payment, and will maintain documentation relating to the third party verification
in the applicant/resident file. In those instances when third party verification is not
available, the CHA shall document the reasons for the failure to secure third party
verification.

At the time of determining final eligibility and suitability, the CHA shall require an
applicant to provide the CHA access to reliable and reasonably obtainable
documentation verifying the accuracy of information appearing on the application form
or otherwise necessary for the CHA’s determination. If the CHA has verified any
information when making a preliminary determination of eligibility for the applicant, the
CHA shall re-verify such information on its final determination of eligibility and suitability.
Non-receipt of requested documentation, without good cause established by applicant,
shall be cause for determining the applicant unsuitable.

Information regarding eligibility or suitability may be obtained by the CHA from
interviews with the applicant and with others, from telephone conversations, letters, or
other documents, and from other oral or written materials. All such information received
shall be recorded in the applicant's file including the date of its receipt, the identity of the
source, and the person receiving the information.

The verification methods described in this chapter shall apply to the application
verification process as well as to the annual reexamination process.

5.2  Income Eligibility

The applicant/resident shall provide and authorize reasonable verification of information
regarding income, exclusions from income and deductions (whether at initial
determination or at any re-determination) in order to ensure reliability of the information.

The CHA shall require UlV/written third-party verification (verification by a reliable
person or entity, other than the resident or household member, with knowledge of the
facts) of all items of income, exclusions, or deductions. Verification of income,
exclusions or deductions, if not complete by the rent re-determination date, may
continue until completion.

The applicant/resident shall assist the CHA in securing reasonable verification and shall
promptly provide all written authorizations for such verification upon request by the
CHA.
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5.3  Eligible Immigration Status [24 CFR 5.508]

The CHA shall determine the citizenship/eligible non-citizen status of each family
member regardless of age.

Prior to being admitted, or at the first reexamination, each citizen and national will be
required to sign a declaration of eligible immigration status under penalty of perjury and
show proof of his/her status by such means as a birth certificate, military ID, or military
DD 214 Form.

Prior to being admitted or at the first reexamination, all eligible non-citizens who are 62
years of age or older will be required to sign a declaration of eligibility immigration status
under penalty or perjury, and provide proof of age.

Prior to being admitted or at the first reexamination, all eligible non-citizens under 62
years of age must sign a declaration of eligibility immigration status and a verification
consent form and provide original Immigration and Naturalization Status (INS)
documentation. The CHA will copy the individual's INS documentation and place the
copy in the file. The CHA will also verify the individual's status through the INS SAVE
system. If the INS SAVE system cannot confirm eligibility, the CHA will mail information
to the INS in order that a manual check can be made of INS records.

Family members who do not claim to be citizens, nationals, or eligible non-citizens must
be listed on a statement of non-eligible members and the list must be signed by the
head of the household. Any family member who does not choose to declare their status
must be listed on the statement of non-eligible members.

Non-citizen students on student visas, though in the country legally, are not eligible to
be admitted to public housing.

If no family member is determined to be eligible under this section, the family’s eligibility
will be denied.

The family’s assistance will not be denied, delayed, reduced, or terminated because of
a delay in the process of determining eligible status under this section, except to the
extent that the delay is caused by the family.

If the CHA determines that a family member has knowingly permitted an ineligible non-
citizen (other than any ineligible non-citizens listed on the lease) to permanently reside
in their unit, the Family will be evicted. Such family will not be eligible to be readmitted
to public housing for a period of 24 months from the date of eviction or termination.

For each family member, citizenship/eligible non-citizen status will be verified only once.
This verification will be obtained prior to admission. If the status of any family member
was not determined prior to admission, verification of the individual's status will be
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obtained at the next regular reexamination. Prior to a new member joining the Family,
his/her citizenship/eligible non-citizen status will be verified.

5.4  Social Security Numbers [24 CFR 5.216]

Prior to admission, each family member must have a Social Security number and
provide verification of his/her Social Security number. A new family member must
provide this verification prior to being added to the lease.

The best verification of the Social Security number is the original Social Security card. If
the card is not available, the CHA will accept letters from the Social Security
Administration that establishes and states the number. Documentation from other
governmental agencies will also be accepted that establishes and states the number.
Driver’s licenses, military IDs, passports, or other official documents that establish and
state the number are also acceptable.

The CHA will require an individual who states that he/she does not have a Social
Security number to sign a statement to this effect.

If a member of a resident family indicates that he/she has a Social Security number, but
cannot readily verify it, the CHA shall request the individual to certify to this fact and
provide the applicant/resident up to thirty (30) days to produce the verification. If the
individual is at least 62 years of age, the CHA will provide up to sixty (60) days to
produce the verification.

For each family member verification of Social Security number will be obtained only
once. This verification will be accomplished prior to admission. .

5.5  Suitability
5.5.1 Landlord References

The CHA may require an applicant to provide the names and current addresses
of all landlords (or housing providers) for the applicant and household members
during the period two (2) years prior to application through the date of the final
determination.

If, after request the CHA has failed to receive a reference from a landlord (or
housing provider), it shall notify applicant of non-receipt; and the CHA shall
request that applicant use his or her best efforts to cause the landlord (or housing
provider) to submit the reference to the CHA. In the event the applicant uses his
or her best efforts but is unsuccessful, the applicant shall cooperate with the CHA
in securing information from other sources about the tenancy. Non-receipt of a
reference from a landlord (or housing provider) shall be cause for determining an
applicant unqualified unless the applicant can show that he or she has used best
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efforts to secure the reference and that he or she has complied with reasonable
requests for cooperation in securing other information.

5.5.2 Criminal Background Check

In determining an applicant’s qualification, the CHA’s Chief of Police shall check
local criminal databases and the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation’s Sex
Offender Registry. The Chief of Police may also check the FBI's National Crime
Information Center (“NCIC”) of all adult household members aged 16 years and
older. The CHA may also consider information relating to criminal history that is
in the application.

In its application the CHA shall notify all applicants that criminal background
checks will be performed on household members aged 16 and older. As part of
the application, the applicant shall sign an acknowledgement of his/her
understanding of the CHA’s Criminal Background Check Policy.

The Chief of Police shall request Criminal Background Information via secure
internet connections.

The dissemination of any information related to criminal histories by the Chief of
the Police to anyone other than persons authorized to review the information by
the Executive Director is expressly prohibited.

5.5.3 Other Information

The CHA shall conduct a credit check on the head of household.
The CHA may rely on other information in making a determination of an
applicant’s suitability.

5.6 ACCEPTABLE METHODS OF VERIFICATION

Age, relationship, U.S. citizenship, and Social Security numbers will generally be
verified with documentation provided by the family. For citizenship, the family’s
certification will be accepted. (or, for citizenship, documentation such as listed below
will be required.) Verification of these items will include photocopies of the Social
Security cards and other documents presented by the family, the INS SAVE approval
code, and forms signed by the family.

Other information will be verified by third party and online verification methods. This
type of verification includes written documentation with forms sent directly to and
received directly by a source, not passed through the hands of the Family. This
verification may also be direct contact with the source, in person or by telephone. It
may also be a report generated by a request from the CHA or automatically by another
government agency, i.e., the Social Security Administration. Verification forms and
reports received will be contained in the applicant/tenant file. Oral third party
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documentation will include the same information as if the documentation had been
written, i.e., name, date of contact, amount received, etc.

When third party verification cannot be obtained, the CHA may accept documentation
received from the applicant/tenant. Hand-carried documentation will be accepted only if
the CHA has been unable to obtain third party verification in a 21 day period of time.
The CHA will maintain photocopies of the documents in the file.

When neither third party verification nor hand-carried verification can be obtained, the
CHA will accept a notarized statement signed by the head, spouse or co-head. Such
notarized documents will be maintained in the file. In those instances when third party
verifications is not available, the CHA shall document the reason for failure to secure
third party verification.

5.6.1 Types of Verifications

The chart below outlines the factors that may be verified and gives common
examples of the verification that will be sought. To obtain written third party
verification, the CHA will send a request form to the source along with a release
form signed by the applicant/tenant via first class mail:
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Verification Requirements for Individual Items

Iltem To Be Verified

UIV/3™ Party Verification

Hand-carried Verification

General Eligibility Iltems

Social Security Number

Letter from Social Security
Electronic reports

Social Security card

Citizenship

N/A

Signed certification, voter’s
registration card, birth
certificate, etc.

Eligible immigration
status

INS SAVE confirmation #

INS card

Disability

Letter from physician
SSI, etc.

Proof of SSI or Social
Security
disability payments

Full time student status
(if >18)

Letter from school

For high school students,
any

document evidencing
enrollment

Need for a live-in aide

Letter from physician

N/A

Child care costs

Letter from care provider

Bills and receipts

Disability assistance
expenses

Letters from suppliers, care
givers,
etc.

Bills and records of
payment

Medical expenses

Letters from providers,
prescription

record from pharmacy, medical
professional’s letter stating
assistance or a companion
animal

is needed

Bills, receipts, records of
payments, dates of trips,
mileage log, receipts for
fares

and tolls

Value of and Income from
Assets

Checking (3) statements
Savings (1) statement

Savings, checking
accounts

Letter from institution

Passbook, most current
statements

CDS, bonds, etc.

Letter from institution

Tax return information
Brochure from institution,
the CD, the bond

Stocks

Letter from broker or holding
company

Stock or most current
statement,

price in newspaper or
through

Internet

Real property

Letter from tax office,
Assessment, etc.

Property tax statement (for
current value), assessment,

Chattanooga Housing Authority
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records or income and
expenses,
tax return

Personal property

Assessment, bluebook, etc.

Receipt for purchase, other
evidence of worth

Cash value of life
Insurance policies

Letter from insurance company

Current statement

Assets disposed of for less

than fair market value

N/A

Verification Requirements for Individual Items

Original receipt and receipt
at

disposition, other evidence of
worth

Iltem To Be Verified

3" Party Verification

Hand-carried Verification

Income

Earned income

Letter from employer

A minimum of 6 consecutive
recent pay stubs

Self-employed

N/A

Tax return from prior year,
books of accounts

Regular gifts and
contributions

Letter from source, letter from
organization receiving gift
(i.e., if grandmother pays day
care provider, the day care
provider could so state)

Bank deposits, other similar
evidence

Alimony/child support

Court order, letter from source,
Letter from Human Services

Record of deposits, divorce
Decree

Periodic payments (i.e.,
social security, welfare,
pension, workers
compensation,
unemployment)

Letter or electronic reports from
the source

Award letter, letter
announcing

change in amount of future
payments

Training program
participation

Letter from program provider

N/A

Participation

Indicating

Whether enrolled or
complete

Whether training is HUD-
funded

Whether federal, state, local
govt.,

or local program

Whether it is employment
training

Evidence of job start
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- Whether if has clearly
defined goals
and objectives
- Whether program has
supportive
Services
- Whether payments are for
out-of-
Pocket expenses incurred in
order
to participate in a program
- Date of first job after
program
completion

5.6.2 Timing of Verification

Verification information must be dated within 120 days of certification or
reexamination. If the verification is older than this, the CHA will contact the
source and request information regarding any changes.

When an interim reexamination is conducted, the CHA will verify and update any
information related to the basis for the interim reexamination.
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CHAPTER 6: INCOME, EXCLUSIONS AND DEDUCTIONS FROM I NCOME
6.1 Computation of Net Household Income

In order to determine net household income, the CHA shall first determine gross
household income. Gross household income includes the income of all family
members, excluding the types and sources of income that are specifically excluded.
The deductions set out below are deducted from gross household income so computed,
and the result is net household income. The Total Resident Payment is determined
from the net household income.

6.2  Annual Income [24 CFR 5.609]
6.2.1 General
Annual income means all amounts, monetary or not, that:

a) Go to (or on behalf of) the family head or spouse (even if
temporarily absent) or to any other family member; or

b) Are anticipated to be received from a source outside the family
during the 12-month period following admission or annual
reexamination effective date; and

c) Are not specifically excluded from annual income.

If it is not feasible to anticipate a level of income over a 12-month period (e.qg.
seasonal or cyclic income), or the CHA believes that past income is the best
available indicator of expected future income, the CHA may annualize the
income anticipated for a shorter period, subject to a re-determination at the end
of the shorter period.

6.2.2 Annual Income Determination
Annual income includes, but is not limited to:

a) The full amount, before any payroll deductions, of wages and
salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, tips, bonuses and other
compensation for personal services [24 CFR 5.609(b)(1)];

b) The net income from the operation of a business or profession.
Expenditures for business expansion or amortization of capital
indebtedness are not used as deductions in determining net
income. An allowance for depreciation of assets used in a
business or profession may be deducted, based on straight-line
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d)

f)

depreciation, as provided in Internal Revenue Service regulations.
Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the operation of a business
or profession is included in income, except to the extent the
withdrawal is a reimbursement of cash or assets invested in the
operation by the family [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)];

The interest, dividends and other net income of any kind from real
or personal property and/or expenditures for amortization of capital
indebtedness are not used as deductions in determining net
income. An allowance for depreciation of assets used in a
business or profession may be deducted, based on straight-line
depreciation, as provided in Internal Revenue Service regulations.
Any withdrawal of cash or assets from an investment is included in
income, except to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of
cash or assets invested by the family. Where the family has net
family assets in excess of $5,000, annual income includes the
greater of the actual income derived from all net family assets or a
percentage of the value of such assets based on the current
passbook savings rate, as determined by HUD [24 CFR
5.609(b)(4)];

The full amount of periodic amounts received from Social Security,
annuities, insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, disability
or death benefits, and other similar types of periodic receipts,
including a lump-sum amount or prospective monthly amounts for
the delayed start of a periodic amount (however, deferred periodic
amounts from Supplemental Security Income and Social Security
benefits that are received in a lump sum amount or in prospective
monthly amounts are excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(4)];

Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability
compensation, worker's compensation, and severance pay
(however, lump sum additions such as insurance payments from
worker’'s compensation are excluded [24 CFR 5.609(b)(5) & (6)];

Welfare assistance: If the welfare assistance payment includes an
amount specifically designed for shelter and utilities that is subject
to adjustment by the welfare assistance agency in accordance with
the actual cost of shelter and utilities, the amount of welfare
assistance income to be included as income shall consist of: the
amount of the allowance or grant exclusive of the amount
specifically designated for shelter utilities; plus the maximum
amounts that the welfare assistance agency could in fact allow the
family for shelter and utilities. If the family’s welfare assistance is
ratably reduced from the standard of need by applying a
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9)

h)

j)

percentage, the amount calculated under this requirement is the
amount resulting from one application of the percentage.

Imputed welfare income: this is income from welfare benefits that
have been reduced because of welfare fraud or because of non-
compliance with economic self-sufficiency requirements. Although
the family in fact has reduced income, the CHA will impute the
welfare income to the family in an amount equal to the reduction in
benefits.

A family’s annual income includes the amount of imputed welfare
income (because of a specified welfare benefits reduction, as
specified in notice to the CHA by the welfare agency) plus the total
amount of other annual income [24 CFR 5.615];

Periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child
support payments, and regular contributions or gifts received from
organizations or from persons not residing in the dwelling; and

All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the
Armed Forces, except for hostile fire pay.

6.3 Exclusions from Annual Income

Annual income does not include the following:

a)

b)

d)

f)

Income from employment of children (including foster children)
under the age of 18 years [24 CFR 5.609(c)(1)];

Payments received from the care of foster children or foster adults
(usually persons with disabilities, unrelated to the resident family,
who are unable to live alone)[24 CFR 5.609(c)(2)];

Lump-sum additions to family assets, such as inheritances,
insurance payments (including payments under health and accident
insurance and worker's compensation), capital gains, and
settlement for personal or property losses [24 CFR 5.609(c)(3)];

Amounts received by the families that are specifically for, or in
reimbursement of, the cost of medical expenses for any family
member [24 CFR 5.609(c)(4)];

Income of a live-in aide [24 CFR 5.609(c)(5)];

The full amount of student financial assistance paid directly to the
student or to the educational institution [24 CFR 5.609(c)(6)];
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g) The special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces
who is exposed to hostile fire [24 CFR 5.609(c)(7)];

h) The amounts received from the following programs [24 CFR
5.609(c)(8)]:

e Amounts received under training programs funded by
HUD;

e Amounts received by a person with a disability that is
disregarded for a limited time for purposes of
Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits
because they are set aside for use under a Plan to
Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS);

e Amounts received by a participant in other publicly
assisted programs that are specifically for or in
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred
(special equipment, clothing, transportation, child
care, etc.) and that are made solely to allow
participation in a specific program; [24 CFR
5.609(c)(8)(iii)]

e Amounts received under a resident service stipend. A
resident service stipend is a modest amount (not to
exceed $200 per month) received by a resident for
performing a service for the CHA on a part-time basis
that enhances the quality of life in the development as
determined by the CHA. Residents enrolled in job
training programs administered by the CHA are paid a
stipend for hours spent in training. The training
program and stipend cannot exceed 18 months. No
resident may receive more than one such stipend
during the same period of time.

Such services may include, but are not limited to, fire
patrol, hall monitoring, lawn maintenance, resident
initiatives coordination and serving as a member of
CHA's governing board [24 CFR 5.609(c)(8)(iv)];

e Incremental earnings and benefits resulting to any
family member from participation in qualifying state
and local employment training programs (including
training programs not affiiated with a local
government) and training of a family member as
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resident management staff. Amounts excluded by
this provision must be received under employment
training programs with clearly defined goals and
objectives and are excluded only for the period during
which the family member participates in the
employment training program [24 CFR 5.609(c)(8)(V)];

i) Temporary, nonrecurring or sporadic income (including gifts)
[24 CFR 5.609(c)(9)];

J) Reparation payment paid by a foreign government pursuant to
claims filed under the laws of that government by persons who
were persecuted during the Nazi era [24 CFR 5.609(c)(10)];

k) Earnings in excess of $480 for each full-time student 18 years old
or older (excluding the head of household and spouse) [24 CFR
5.609(c)(11)];

[) Adoption assistance payments in excess of $480 per adopted child
[24 CFR 5.609(c)(12)];

m) Deferred periodic amounts from Supplemental Security Income and
Social Security benefits that are received in a lump-sum amount or
in prospective monthly amounts [24 CFR 5.609(c)(14)];

n) Amounts received by the family in the form of refunds or rebates
under state and local law for property taxes paid on the dwelling
unit [24 CFR 5.609(c)15)];

0) Amounts paid by a state agency to a family with a developmentally
disabled family member living at home to offset the cost of services
and equipment needed to keep the developmentally disabled family
member at home [24 CFR 5.609(c)16];

p) Amounts specifically excluded by any other federal statues from
consideration as income for purposes of determining eligibility or
benefits under a category of assistance programs that includes
assistance under the United States Housing Act of 1937. (A notice
will be published by HUD in the Federal Register identifying the
benefits that qualify for this exclusion.)

e The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household
for coupons under the Food Stamp Act of 1977 [7 USC
201(h)];
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Payments to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer
Service Act of 1973 [42 USC 5044(g)]. Examples of
programs include but are not limited to: Retired Senior
Volunteer Program, Foster Grandparent Program, Senior
Companion Program, and the Older American Committee
Service Program;

National Volunteer Antipoverty Programs such as VISTA,
Peace Corps, Service Learning Program, and Special
Volunteer Programs;

Small Business Administration Programs such as the
National Volunteer Program to Assist Small Business and
Promote Volunteer Service to Persons with Business
Experience, Service Corps of Retired Executives, and Active
Corps of Executives;

Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims
Settlement Act [43 USC 1626(a)];

Income derived from certain sub marginal land of the United
States that is held in trust for certain Indian tribes [25 USC
459(e)];

Payments or allowances made under the Department of
Health and Human Services’ Low-Income Home Energy
Assistance Program [42 USC 8624(f)];

Payments received under programs funded in whole or in
part under the Job Training Partnership Act [ 29 USC
1552(b)];

Amounts of scholarships funded under Title IV of the Higher
Education Act of 1965 including awards under the federal
work-study program or under the Bureau of Indian Affairs
student assistance programs [20 USC 1087 uu]. Examples
of Title IV Programs include: Basic Educational Opportunity
Grants (Pell Grants), Supplemental Opportunity Grants,
State Student Incentive Grants, College Work Study, and
Byrd Scholarships;

Payments received from programs funded under Title V of
the Older Americans Act of 1965 [42 USC 3056(f)].
Examples include the Senior Community Services
Employment Program, National Caucus Center on the Black
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aged, National Urban League, National Council on Aging,
American Association of Retired Persons, National Council
on Senior Citizens, and Green Thumb:;

Payments received after January 1, 1989 from the Agent
Orange Settlement Fund or any other fund established in the
“In Re Agent Orange” product liability litigation;

Payments received under the Maine Indian Claims
Settlement Act of 1980;

The value of any child care provided or arranged (or any
amount received as payment for such care or
reimbursement for costs incurred for such care) under the
Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 1990;

Earned income tax credit refund payments received on or
after January 1, 1991,

Allowances, earnings and payments to AmeriCorps
participants under the National and Community Service Act
of 1990.

gq) For a qualified resident, increases in income due to earnings are
completely excluded in calculating rent for 12 months, after which,
half the increased earnings are excluded for the following 12
months. The exclusion period may be interrupted, but in no event
may the total number of months between the beginning of the
exclusion and the final month of exclusion exceed 48 months. This
earned income disallowance is available only to households under
lease and to the following three categories of individuals:

Chattanooga Housing Authority

A person whose annual income increases because of
employment after having been unemployed for at least 12
months;

A person whose annual income increases because of new or
increased earnings during participation in an economic self-
sufficiency program or other job training program; or

A person whose annual income increases because of new or
increased earnings, during or within six months after
receiving assistance, benefits or services from a program
funded by any state program for TANF. The assistance is
not limited to income maintenance, but also includes benefits

and services such as child care and transportation subsidies
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and one-time payments, wage subsidies and other amounts
and services as long as the value of such benefits or
services over a six month period is at least $500. [24 CFR
960.255]

6.4  Deductions from Annual Income [24 CFR 5.611]
The CHA shall deduct the following amounts from family income.

a) $480 for each household member who is under 18 years of age, or is over 18
and has a disability or is a full-time student in a college or vocational program,
but is not the family head or spouse;

b) $400 per family when the head or spouse is at least 62 years of age or
disabled. Note: Only $400 is an allowable deduction, even if both the head
and the spouse are elderly or disabled.

c) The sum of the following, to the extent the sum exceeds 3 percent of annual
income:

e Un-reimbursed medical expenses of any elderly family or disabled family;
and

e Un-reimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus
expenses for each member of the family who is a person with disabilities,
to the extent necessary to enable any member of the family (including the
member who is a person with disabilities) to be employed, but this
allowance may not exceed the earned income received by family
members who are 18 years of age or older who are able to work because
of such attendant care or auxiliary apparatus; and

d) Reasonable childcare expenses necessary to enable a member of the family
to be employed or to further his or her education.

6.5 Receipt of a Letter or Notice from HUD Concern ing Income

If a public housing resident receives a letter or notice from HUD concerning the amount
of verification of family income, the resident shall take the letter to the CHA staff
member responsible for income verification within ten (10) days of receipt by the
resident.

The CHA shall reconcile any difference between the amount reported by the resident
and the amount listed in the HUD communication. This shall be done as promptly as
possible.
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After the reconciliation is complete, the CHA shall adjust the resident’s rent beginning at
the start of the next month unless the reconciliation is completed during the final five (5)
days of the month and then the new rent shall take effect on the first day of the second
month following the end of the current month. In addition, if the resident had not
previously reported the proper income, the CHA shall do one of the following:

a) Immediately collect the back rent due to the CHA;
b) Establish a repayment plan for the resident to pay the sum due to the CHA;
c) Terminate the lease and evict for failure to report income; or

d) Terminate the lease, evict for failure to report income, and collect the back
rent due to the CHA.

6.6  Cooperating With Welfare Agencies

The CHA will make its best efforts to enter into cooperation agreements with local
welfare agencies under which the welfare agencies will agree:

a) To target assistance, benefits and services to families receiving assistance in
the public housing and Section 8 resident-based assistance program to
achieve self-sufficiency; and

b) To provide written verification to the CHA concerning welfare benefits for
families applying for or receiving assistance in our housing assistance
programs.
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CHAPTER 7: DETERMINATION OF TOTAL TENANT PAYMENT & RENT
7.1  Family Choice [24 CFR 960.253(a)]

At admission and each year in preparation for a family’s annual reexamination, the CHA
shall provide each family with the choice of having rent determined under the income
method or having rent set at the flat rent amount.

Seasonal employees, such as school support personnel, will have a choice of income
being calculated based upon the actual time worked within the calendar year or on an
annual basis.

Families have only one choice of rent selection per year except for financial hardship
cases. In order for families to make informed choices about rent options, the CHA will
provide the following information:

a) The CHA'’s policies on switching types of rent in case of a financial hardship;
and

b) The dollar amount of resident rent for the family under each option. If the
family chose a flat rent for the previous year, the CHA will provide the amount
of income-based rent for the subsequent year only if the family specifically
requests it and submits updated income information or if the CHA is
conducting an annual reexamination on the three-year cycle.

7.2  Flat Rent [24 CFR 960.253(b)]

The flat rent is based on the market rent charged for comparable units in the private
unassisted rental market in Chattanooga. It is equal to the estimated rent for which the
CHA could promptly lease a unit after preparation for occupancy. Flat rents are offered
to residents to promote mixed incomes in developments and encourage self-sufficiency.

The CHA has set a flat rent for each public housing unit. In doing so, the agency
considered the size and type of the unit, as well as its age, condition, amenities,
services, and neighborhood. The CHA determined the market value of the unit by
comparing it to comparable unassisted units in the census tract in which it is located.
The CHA used a minimum of three comparable unassisted units in its analysis.

The CHA also applied certain adjustment factors in determining the flat rents as set
forth below:

Range: $10.00 Half bath: $ 8.00

Refrigerator: $10.00 Full bath: $13.00

Parking: $10.00 Laundry: $10.00
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Families who opt for the flat rent will be required to undergo an income reexamination
process every three years, rather than an annual review. However, families who choose
flat rent will be required to sign required HUD forms and report any changes in family
composition on an annual basis.

Families who opt for the flat rent may request to have a reexamination/interim and
return to the income based method at any time for any of the following reasons: the
family’s income has decreased; the family’s financial circumstances have changed such
as increased expenses for child care or medical care, and other circumstances creating
a hardship on the family such that the income method would be more financially feasible
for the family.

The CHA will post the flat rents at each of the developments and at the CHA’s main
office. The Board incorporates flat rents in this policy upon approval.

There is no utility allowance for families paying a flat rent.
7.3  The Income Method

An income-based rent is a resident rent that is based on the family’s income. The total
resident payment is equal to the highest of:

e 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
e 30 percent of the family’s adjusted monthly income; or
e The minimum rent of $50.
The amount of the income-based rent will be reevaluated annually and adjustments applied.
Affected families will be given a 30-day notice of any rent change. Adjustments are applied
on the anniversary date of move in for each affected family.
7.4  Minimum
Rent [24 CFR 5.630]
The CHA has established a minimum rent of fifty dollars ($50.00).
The CHA shall grant an exemption from the payment of the minimum rent if the family is
unable to pay the minimum rent due to financial hardship. Financial hardship includes

the following situations:

a) The family or individual has lost eligibility or is waiting for an eligibility
determination for a Federal, State, or Local assistance program;
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b) The family or individual would be evicted as a result of the imposition of the
minimum rent requirement;

c) The income of the family or individual has decreased because of a changed
circumstance, including loss of employment; and/or

d) A death in the family has occurred.

If a family requests a hardship exemption, the CHA shall suspend the minimum rent
requirement beginning the month following the family’s request for a hardship
exemption, and continuing until the CHA determines whether there is a qualifying
financial hardship and whether it is temporary or long term.

The CHA shall promptly determine whether a qualifying hardship exists and whether it is
temporary or long term. The CHA may not evict the family for nonpayment of minimum
rent during the 90-day period beginning the month following the family’s request for a
hardship exemption.

If the CHA determines that a qualifying financial hardship is temporary, the CHA shall
reinstate the minimum rent from the beginning of the suspension of the minimum rent.
The CHA shall offer the family a reasonable repayment agreement, on terms and
conditions established by the CHA, for the amount of back minimum rent owed by the
family.

If the CHA determines that a qualifying financial hardship is long-term, the CHA shall
exempt the family from the minimum rent requirements so long as the hardship
continues. The exemption shall apply from the beginning of the month following the
family’s request for a hardship exemption until the end of the qualifying financial
hardship.

7.5 Rent for Families Under the Non-citizen Rule [ 24 CFR 5.518]
A mixed family may receive continued assistance if all of the following conditions are met:
a) The family was receiving assistance on June 19, 1995;
b) The family was granted continuation of assistance before November 29, 1996;
c) The family’s head or spouse has eligible immigration status; and
d) The family does not include any person who does not have eligible
immigration status other than the head of household, the spouse of the head

of household, any parent of the head or spouse, or any child of the head of
household or spouse.
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If a mixed family qualifies for prorated assistance (and does not qualify for continued
assistance), but decides not to accept prorated assistance, or if a family has no
members with eligible immigration status, the family may be eligible for temporary
deferral of termination of assistance if necessary to permit the family additional time for
the orderly transition of those family members with ineligible status, and any other family
member involved to other affordable housing.

The CHA shall prorate an eligible family’s assistance using the following calculation:

a) Determine the 95™ percentile of gross rents (resident rent plus utility
allowance) for the CHA. The 95™ percentile is called the maximum rent.

b) Subtract the family’s total resident payment from the maximum rent. The
resulting number is called the maximum subsidy.

c) Divide the maximum subsidy by the number of family members and multiply
the result times the number of eligible family members. This yields the
prorated subsidy.

d) Subtract the prorated subsidy from the maximum rent to find the prorated total
resident payment. From this amount subtract the full allowance to obtain the
prorated resident rent.

7.6 Utility Allowance

The CHA shall establish a utility allowance for all check-metered utilities for those
residents who elect the income method calculation and/or pay a minimum rent of
$50.00. The allowance will be based on a reasonable consumption of utilities by an
energy-conservative household of modest circumstances consistent with the
requirements of a safe, sanitary, and healthful environment. Allowances will be
evaluated at least annually as well as any time utility rate changes by 10 percent or
more since the last revision to the allowances. In addition to the utility allowances, the
CHA has established a surcharge of $20.00 per month for the months of May through
September for residents residing in a CHA High Rise building and residents residing at
Harriet Tubman Development Units 500-599.

Utility allowance revisions based on rate changes shall be effective retroactively to the
first day of the month following the month in which the last rate change took place.
Revisions based on changes in consumption or other reasons shall become effective at
each family’s next annual reexamination.

Families with high utility costs are encouraged to contact the CHA for an energy
analysis. The analysis may identify problems with the dwelling unit that, once corrected,
will reduce energy costs. The analysis can also assist the family in identifying ways that
they may reduce their costs.
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7.7 Rent Payment Methods

Rent and other charges are due and payable on the first day of the month. All rents
shall remain in effect until adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the lease. If a
reasonable accommodation on where to pay rent is needed, other arrangements can be
made. Payments may be made at the Asset Management Office by check, money
order, State of Tennessee Electronic Benefit Transfer Card (EBT) (where available), or
debit card in the amount due (where available). Payments in cash not to exceed $5.00
will also be accepted at the Asset Management Office

If the rent is not paid by the fifth calendar day of the month, rent shall be considered
delinquent and a 30-day Notice to Vacate will be issued on the first offense and a 14-
day Notice to Vacate will be issued on subsequent delinquencies to the tenant. If rentis
not paid by the 15™ day of the month, a late charge shall be assessed which will not
exceed ten percent (10%) of the amount of rent past due, or $5.00, whichever is less. If
money payable on a tenant’s account is paid by a personal check and the check is
returned for insufficient funds, this shall be considered a non-payment of rent and will
incur the late charge plus an additional charge of $25 for processing costs.

For residents who have a primary source of income that is provided by the Federal
Government, such as Social Security, SSI, VA or Widow's Pension, rental payment will
be due within five (5) business days after receipt of the benefit. Residents must provide
documentation to the Site Based Management Office of the anticipated day benefits will
be received. If rent and other charges are not paid within the specified five (5) days, the
resident will be accessed a late fee.
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CHAPTER 8: COMMUNITY SERVICE AND CONTINUED
OCCUPANCY

8.1 General

Community service is the performance of voluntary work or duties that are a public
benefit and that serve to improve the quality of life, enhance resident self-sufficiency, or
increase resident self-responsibility in the community. Community service is not
employment and may not include political activities. [24 CFR 960.601]

In order to be eligible for continued occupancy, each adult family member must either
(1) contribute eight hours per month of community service, or (2) participate in an
economic self-sufficiency program, or (3) perform eight hours per month of combined
activities as described unless exempt from this requirement.

An economic self-sufficiency program is one that is designed to encourage, assist, train
or facilitate the economic independence of participants and their families or to provide
work for participants such as: programs for job training, work placement, basic skills
training, education, English proficiency, financial or household management,
apprenticeships and any program necessary to ready a participant to work such as
substance abuse or mental health treatment.

Each family member required to perform community service must perform eight hours of
community service activities per month during the twelve month period. It is
unacceptable, for example, to perform 96 hours of community service in one month and
no community service in the remaining eleven months of the year.

8.2  Exemptions [24 CFR 960.601]
An exempt individual is an adult who:
a) Is 62 years or older; or

b) Is a blind or disabled individual as defined under 216(I)(1) or 1614 of the
Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 416(I)(1) and who certifies that because of this
disability he or she is unable to comply with the community service
requirement, or is a primary caretaker for such an individual;

c) Is engaged in work activities for at least 20 hours per week;

d) Meets the requirements from having to engage in a work activity under the
State program funded under part A of Title IV of the Social Security Act (42
U.S.C. 601) or under any other welfare program of the State in which the
CHA is located, including a State-administered welfare to work program; or

61
Chattanooga Housing Authority
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy
Revised October 2009




e) Is a member of a family receiving assistance, benefits or services under a State
program funded under part A of Title IV of the Social Security Act or under any
other welfare program of the State in which the CHA is located, including a State
administered welfare to work program, and has not been found by the State or
other administering entity to be in noncompliance with such a program.

8.3  Notification of the Requirement

The CHA shall provide written notification to each adult family member about the
community service requirement and related exemptions. The notification will provide
the opportunity for the family member to claim and explain an exempt status. The CHA
shall verify each claim for exemption.

The notification will also advise family members that the community service obligation
will begin upon the effective date of their first annual reexamination on or after October
1, 2003. For families paying a flat rent, the obligation begins on the date that the annual
reexamination would have been effective had an annual reexamination taken place.
The notification will also advise that failure to comply with the community service
requirement will result in ineligibility for continued occupancy at the time of any
subsequent annual reexamination.

8.4 Community Service Volunteer Opportunities

The CHA will coordinate with social service agencies, local schools, the CHA’s Resident
Services Department and others to compile a list of community service volunteer
opportunities. However, it is the resident’s responsibility to secure opportunities for
community service credit. The CHA is responsible for maintaining the record of
documented community service compliance for affected residents and for determining
the eligibility of the family for continued occupancy.

8.5 Assuring Resident Compliance [24 CFR 960.607]

If qualifying activities are administered by an organization other than the CHA, the
family member must provide signed certification to the CHA by the organization that the
family member has performed the community service activities.

If the CHA determines that there is a family member who is required to fulfill the
community service requirement, but who has violated this family obligation, the CHA
shall notify the resident of this determination.

The CHA'’s notice shall briefly describe the non-compliance and state that the CHA will
not renew the lease at the end of the twelve-month lease term unless the resident and
any other non-compliant family member enter into a written agreement with the CHA to
cure such non-compliance, and in fact cure the non-compliance in accordance with the
agreement, or the resident provides written assurance satisfactory to the CHA that the
resident or other non-compliant resident no longer resides in the unit. The notice shall
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also state that the resident may request a grievance hearing on the CHA determination
and that the resident may exercise any available judicial remedy to seek timely redress
for the CHA’s non-renewal of the lease because of the determination of non-
compliance.

8.6  Resident Agreement To Comply With Community Se  rvice Requirement

If the resident or family member has violated the community service requirement, the
CHA may not renew the lease upon expiration of the term unless:

a) The resident and any other non-compliant resident enter into a written
agreement with the CHA to cure such noncompliance by completing the
additional hours of community service or economic self-sufficiency activity
needed to make up the total number of hours required over the twelve-month
term of the new lease, and

b) All other members of the family who are subject to the service requirement
are currently complying with the service requirement or are no longer living in
the unit.

8.7  Prohibition Against Replacement Of CHA Employee s

In implementing the community service requirement, the CHA may not substitute
community service or self-sufficiency activities performed by residents for work
ordinarily performed by its employees, or replace a job at any location where residents
perform activities to satisfy the community service requirement. [24 CFR 960.609]
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CHAPTER 9: RECERTIFICATION

9.1 General

At least annually the CHA will conduct a reexamination of family income and
composition in accordance with a schedule for reexaminations developed by the CHA.
The results of the reexamination are used to determine the rent that the family will pay
and that the family is appropriately housed.

It is the responsibility of the resident to report changes in family composition between
annual reexaminations throughout the year. Additionally a household that claims zero
income must report any increase in income. The CHA may conduct an interim
examination based upon notification of these changes.

In the event that a household’s income decreases, the family should report this change
within 10 days. The CHA shall conduct an interim examination based upon the change
and shall adjust the resident’s rent accordingly.

In the event that a household income increases, the family must report this increase
within 10 days to the CHA. The CHA shall conduct an interim re-examination based
upon the change and shall adjust the residents rent accordingly.

9.2 Annual Reexamination

Approximately four months prior to the scheduled date for a resident’s reexamination,
the CHA will mail a notification letter to the family advising of the upcoming
reexamination interview, the necessary documentation that will be required from the
family and the options for rent payment by the family.

a) Annual Reexamination Interview

During the scheduled interview, the CHA will review all income documentation
and will determine if the family is appropriately housed. If the family is not
appropriately housed, the CHA may initiate a transfer.

If the family fails to attend or reschedule the interview, the CHA will mail a
second letter rescheduling the interview. The letter will also advise that if the
family fails to attend or reschedule the second interview, the CHA will take
eviction action against the family.

b) Flat Rent

Each year at the reexamination interview, the family has the option of electing
a flat rent.
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If the family elects to pay a flat rent, at the annual reexamination the CHA will
require only information about the family composition and the completion of
HUD required consent forms. The CHA will perform an income reexamination
every third year for families electing to pay flat rent.

The CHA will advise the family the approximate time when the CHA will
review the amount of the flat rent, the approximate rent increase that the
family can expect, and the approximate date that a future rent increase could
become effective.

At the reexamination interview, the CHA will require that the family sign a
certification accepting or declining the flat rent.

A family who opts for a flat rent may at any time request to have a
reexamination and return to the income-based rent in the event that the
family’s income has decreased, the family’s financial circumstances have
changed, and/or other circumstances that create a hardship for the family
such that the income method would be more financially feasible for the family.

c) Income Method Rent

Each year at the reexamination interview, the CHA will require all information
regarding income, assets, expenses and other information necessary to
determine the family’s share of rent. The family will complete all HUD
required consent forms that will be used by the CHA to secure third party
verification of the family’s circumstances.

Upon receipt of the third party verification, the CHA will determine the family’s
annual income and will calculate the rent based on the highest of 10% of
monthly income, 30% of adjusted gross monthly income or the minimum rent.

The new rent will generally become effective upon the resident’s anniversary
date, but in no event prior to 30 days written notice to the family of the rent
increase. If a determination of the new rent is delayed due to a reason
beyond the family’s control, then the rent increase will be payable on the first
of the month after expiration of the 30 day notice period.

Example: Resident’s anniversary date is June 1%. Notification of rent
increase is dated May 25. New rent becomes effective on June 1st, but does
not become payable until July 1

If the new rent is a reduction and the delay is beyond the control of the family,
the reduction will be effective as scheduled on the resident’'s anniversary
date.
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If the family caused the delay, any increase will be effective on the
anniversary date. Any reduction in rent will be effective on the first of the
month after the reported change, except in documented cases of hardship in
which the family was unable to report the decrease in income.

If a new member is added to the lease, the CHA will recalculate the family’s
income based on the new family member. This may result in an increase in
rent. The CHA will provide a 30-day notice to the family of this rent increase.

d) Treatment of Over-Income Families

The CHA shall not evict or terminate the tenancy of a family solely because
the family is over the income limit for public housing if the family has a valid
contract for participation in an Family Self-Sufficiency Program (“FSS
Program”) and/or if the family receives the earned income disallowance
provided by 24 CFR 960.255.

For a resident who is not a participant in an FSS Program and/or is not
receiving the earned income disallowance, the CHA shall not evict or
terminate the tenancy of a family solely because the family is over the income
limit for public housing until one year following the annual reexamination in
which the family’s income exceed the income limit for public housing.

9.3 Interim Reexamination

a) A family is required to report the following changes to the CHA between
regular reexaminations within (10) ten days:

e Any increase or decrease in family income;

e A household member has been added to the family through birth,
adoption, court ordered custody or marriage; and

¢ A household member is leaving or has left the household.
The head of household must provide adequate documentation of these
circumstances such as copies of court orders, birth certificates, adoption
certificates, etc.

b) The CHA shall conduct an interim reexamination for:

e A family whose income has increased or decreased and/or;

e Any family who had claimed zero income that has an increase in their
income and/or;
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e A family whose period of “earned income disregard” ends.

If total tenant payment decreases as a result of decreased income or other
situations, that decrease will become effective on the 1% day of the month after
the resident reports the decrease. In the event of an increase in total tenant
payment, that increase will become effective on the 1% day of the second
month after the resident reports an increase.

9.4  Additions to Lease If a resident desires that a new member be added to the
household, the resident must complete an application form providing information about
the new family member’s income, assets, verified citizenship/eligible immigrant status,
Social Security number if applicable, and all other information required of an applicant
for public housing.

Upon receipt of this information the CHA will screen the application. If the CHA
determines that the individual is eligible and suitable, the CHA will execute a new lease
with the family reflecting the changed family composition.

If the CHA determines that the individual is ineligible or unsuitable, the CHA will so
advise the family in writing of the determination and of the opportunity to request an
informal hearing.

Except for additions due to birth or court awarded custody, the CHA may disallow the
addition of a household member if a resident family is currently properly housed and the
addition of a new member to the household will create an over-housed situation.
Additionally, the CHA shall disallow the addition of a new member to the household
when the existing household is in an over-housed situation.

In the event that the CHA denies a resident’s application to add a person to his/her
lease, he/she may appeal the decision through the CHA’s Grievance Policy.

9.5 Residual Tenancy
a) Criteria

A remaining member of a resident household may apply to become the head
of household in the event of the death, departure or incapacity of the head of
household. The application to become head of household will be approved
provided that the applicant meets the following criteria:

e An adult who has been a resident of record on the current lease for
the unit for a minimum of nine months and whose income has been
reported and included in the rent computations during the period of
his/her occupancy unless he/she was without income or was a full-
time student; or
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In the event that the remaining member(s) of the household consists
only of minor children, the applicant must be an adult who has been
appointed either as a temporary or permanent guardian, is the natural
parent of one or more household members, is willing to assume
responsibility for the apartment and the household and is willing to
enter into a lease. Under these circumstances, the CHA shall screen
the applicant in accordance with the terms of this policy; or

e In the event that the remaining member of the household is an
incapacitated adult who is unable to fulfill the responsibilities set
forth in the lease, the applicant must be an adult who has been
appointed as either a temporary or permanent guardian of the
remaining household member, and is willing to assume
responsibility for the apartment, and willing to enter into a lease.
Under these circumstances, the CHA shall screen the applicant in
accordance with the terms of this policy.

b) Divorce, Separation or Protective Order

In the event of divorce, separation or a protective order issued by a court
under chapter 209A or other state or federal statute, any person(s)
designated by the court will be permitted to apply to become the head of
household provided that he or she would otherwise qualify under the terms of
this policy.

c) Income

An applicant to become the head of household will not be found ineligible
based on income exceeding the eligibility limits for applicants for admission to
public housing.

d) Limitations

A remaining member of a resident household will not be considered for
residual tenancy if the departing or incapacitated head of household is
relocating to another CHA apartment or to the CHA’s Housing Choice
Voucher Program, is relocating to another subsidized or non-subsidized
apartment, is purchasing a home, is under eviction for non-payment of rent or
for cause, or has vacated with an outstanding balance due to the CHA.

(A resident shall be regarded as being “under eviction” if the Community
Manager has determined to proceed with eviction and the resident’s appeal
rights have been exhausted.)
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9.6

If the CHA determines that the resident has intentionally misrepresented facts upon which rent
is based, the CHA shall retroactively charge the resident the appropriate amount of rent and
take other such actions as permitted by law up to and including eviction and criminal

A remaining member of a resident household will not be considered for
residual tenancy if the head of household has died and immediately prior to
death, the head of household was under eviction for non-payment of rent or
for cause, or died with an outstanding balance of more than two month’s rent
due to the CHA. (A resident shall be regarded, as being “under eviction” if the
Community Manager has determined to proceed with eviction and the
resident’s appeals rights have been exhausted.)

Approval of residual tenancy shall be conditional on the remaining members
of a resident household being properly housed. Where applicable, any
approved applicant for residual tenancy shall remain under a Use and
Occupancy Agreement and will not sign a CHA standard dwelling lease until
such time as the household transfers to an appropriately sized unit. Refusal
to transfer to an appropriately sized unit shall be considered a violation of this
policy and will cause the revocation of the conditional approval of residual
tenancy.

e) Appeals

An applicant to be added to the lease and/or applicant for residual tenancy
may appeal in accordance with the chapter IV (F) of this policy. A resident
who applies to add a person to the lease or who applies for residual tenancy
may appeal in accordance with the CHA'’s Grievance Policy.

Misrepresentation

prosecution.
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CHAPTER 10: RESIDENT TRANSFERS
10.1 Policy

It is the policy of the CHA that a resident who resides in another unit may be transferred
to another unit for administrative reasons or for good cause as set forth in this chapter.

10.2 Administrative Transfers

The Executive Director or his/her designee may request a resident to transfer from one
unit to another unit for a sound administrative reason such as:

a) Fire in or condemnation of an occupied unit;
b) Harassment or abuse of a resident or household member;

c) When the CHA determines that there is extreme overcrowding (“extreme
overcrowding” exists when the family size exceeds the maximum number
of persons and composition for the number of bedrooms in the unit);

d) When the CHA is undertaking modernization, and the type of work being
done requires that the resident temporarily or permanently relocates; and

e) When there are defects in the resident’s unit that pose an immediate and
serious threat to health and safety that cannot be immediately repaired.

f) When the CHA terminates its participation in a specialized housing
program that may have been approved by HUD. Such programs could
include the partnership with the Southeast Tennessee Human Resource
Agency (SETHRA).

A transfer for administrative reasons may be made between units in
elderly/handicapped housing and family housing in the event that the transfer cannot be
made to a unit of appropriate unit size in the same type of housing, provided that the
household is eligible for the housing to which the transfer is made.

The CHA may decide at any time to initiate a transfer for administrative reasons. Such a
transfer must be implemented in a manner consistent with the relevant provisions of the
resident's lease and/or applicable law. The Director of Asset Management will consider
and approve, if appropriate, Administrative Transfers before all other transfer requests.

10.3 Transfers For Good Cause

A resident who resides in a unit has the right to request a transfer by the CHA to a

different unit for good cause such as:
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a) When the resident is “under-housed” (in a unit that is too small, based on family
size) or “over-housed” (in a unit that is too large, based on family size); and

b) When there is a compelling and documented medical impairment that could be
substantially improved by transfer to another available unit.

A transfer for good cause may be made between units in elderly/handicapped housing
and family housing in the event that the transfer cannot be made to a unit of appropriate
unit size in the same type of housing.

10.4 Requirements For Approval Of Requests To Trans  fer For Good Cause
In order to be eligible for a transfer for good cause the resident must:

a) File a transfer application with all supporting documentation;

b) Be currentin rent, charges and fees owed to the CHA; and

c) Not have committed (and household members must not have committed)
any serious violations of the lease for at least two (2) years, and the
applicant is not subject to eviction proceedings or to the terms of an
agreement for judgment in a prior eviction proceeding.

Supporting documentation for medical transfers shall include a written statement from a
physician indicating: the specific nature of the medical impairment, contributing factors
in the resident’s current unit/development that aggravate the medical impairment and
why a different type of unit/development would substantially improve the resident’s
medical impairment.

10.5 Placement On The Waiting List
a) Administrative Transfers

A resident with an administrative transfer application to a unit shall be
assigned a place on the appropriate site waiting list above all other
applicants. Within the group of applications for administrative transfer, the
applications will be placed on the list in time and date sequence as
received by the site management office.

b) Transfers for Good Cause

A resident with an application to transfer for good cause to a federally
aided unit shall be assigned a place on the appropriate federal waiting list
in the Asset Management Office. The CHA will assign it a place below
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standard applicants within date and time sequence as received by the
Asset Management Office. Within the group of applications for transfer for
good cause, these applications are prioritized on the waiting list(s) based
on the time and date of receipt of the application by the Applications
Office.

10.6 Unit Offers

The CHA shall offer one unit that is appropriate in size and meets the circumstances of
the transfer, and where the transfer is for medical reasons, appropriate for the resident’s
medical need. A resident must accept the transfer offer within seven (7) working days
of its receipt or be removed from the waiting list. For good cause, the CHA may extend
the time for accepting the offer. If a resident refuses to move pursuant to an
Administrative Transfer, the CHA will begin eviction proceedings.

After being removed from the waiting list, the resident may not file an application to
transfer for one year from the date that the application was removed from the waiting
list.

10.7 Acceptance Of Unit

Upon offer and acceptance of a unit, the family will execute a new lease and pay any
rent and/or security deposit within two (2) days of being advised that the unit is ready to
rent. The family will be allowed five days to move after receipt of the key to the unit to
which the resident is transferring.  The resident may elect to retain possession of the
unit for up to an additional three days; however, the family must pay rent in an amount
that includes both the resident’s share and the share that is subsidized by HUD.

10.8 Cost of the Resident’s Transfer

The cost of a resident's transfer will be borne by the CHA when transfer is required by
CHA modernization or rehabilitation work. The CHA will also bear the expense of a
resident's transfer when action or inaction by the CHA has caused the unit to be unsafe
or uninhabitable.

The cost for a transfer will generally be borne by the family under the following
circumstances:

a) When the transfer is made at the request of the family or by others on
behalf of the family (i.e. by the police);

b) When the family was originally properly housed and the transfer is
needed to move the family to an appropriately sized unit, either larger
or smaller, due to a change in family composition;
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c) When a family that did not require an accessible unit accepted the unit
and must transfer because a handicapped family needs an accessible
unit. (Prior to acceptance of the unit, the family generally must sign a
statement acknowledging an understanding that a transfer may be
required if a handicapped family needs the unit.)

d) When the transfer is needed because action or inaction by the family
caused the unit to be unsafe or uninhabitable.

The responsibility for moving costs in other circumstances will be determined on a case-
by-case basis.

10.9 Appeal

If the resident does not agree to an administrative transfer, or the CHA denies a
resident's application to transfer for good cause, the CHA shall inform the resident of the
right to request a grievance hearing. The resident must request the grievance hearing
within 14 days of the denial of the transfer request.
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CHAPTER 11: PET POLICY
11.1 Introduction
It is the policy of the CHA that a resident who resides in a federally-aided unit may be
transferred to another unit for administrative reasons or for good cause as set forth in

this chapter.

The CHA allows for pet ownership in its elderly/handicapped and family developments
with the written pre-approval of the CHA in accordance with this policy.

General policy matters related to pets are set forth herein and are supplemented by the
CHA pet rules, the CHA pet agreement lease addendum and the CHA’s pet owner’'s
absence agreement. Each of the documents related to pets may be obtained at the
CHA's site management offices.

This policy does not apply to animals that are used to assist persons with disabilities.
These animals are allowed in all public housing facilities with no restrictions other than
those imposed on all residents to maintain the unit and associated facilities in a decent,
safe and sanitary condition and to refrain from disturbing neighbors.

11.2 Pet Definition

Common household pets are limited to the following animal categories and related
species:

11.2.1 Domestic Dogs

a) Maximum number per household: 1

b) Minimum age in elderly/handicapped developments: 6 months

c) Minimum age in family developments: 6-8 weeks old

d) Maximum adult weight: 25 pounds

e) Must be house broken

f) Must be spayed or neutered

g) Must have annual rabies and distemper inoculations as required by
licensed veterinarian, as well as infectious hepatitis, leptospirosis,

para influenza, and parvo inoculations at intervals recommended by
licensed veterinarian
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h) Animals deemed to be of a vicious breed are not permitted for safety
reasons.

11.2.2 Domestic Cats
a) Maximum number per household: 1
b) Minimum age in elderly/handicapped developments: 6 months
c) Minimum age in family developments: 6-8 weeks old
d) Maximum adult weight: no restrictions
e) Litter must be changed twice a week
f) Must be spayed or neutered

g) Must have annual rabies and distemper inoculations and feline leukemia
shots as required by licensed veterinarian

h) Must have scratching post
11.2.3 Birds
a) Maximum number per household: 2
b) Must be maintained inside cage at all times
c) Cage must be cleaned twice a week
11.2.4 Fish
a) Maximum number of aquariums: 1
b) Maximum aquarium size: 20 gallons
¢) Aquarium or fishbowl must be cleaned as needed
Exception: If the CHA approved a family’s application for a greater number
of pets prior to the implementation of this policy, the family shall be permitted
to keep those pets.

11.3 Pet Guidelines

The following guidelines apply to pets maintained by CHA residents. [Note: a
household may have either one dog or one cat in addition to birds and fish.]
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11.3.1 Approval

The Community Manager shall review the application and arrive at a decision by
considering the following:

a) Whether the animal is a pet as defined above;

b) If available, prior landlord references (including references from the CHA in
cases where tenant has had a pet in CHA property) relating to applicant’s pet
ownership, including problems with gnawing, chewing, scratching, or
otherwise defacing the unit, common areas, and outside property.

If the Community Manager approves the application, the tenant must complete a “Pet
Lease Addendum” and submit this form to the Community Manager. This document
shall become part of the tenant’s lease agreement.

The pet owner is responsible for providing the CHA with the following information and
documents at the time of application and at the time of recertification provide updated
inoculation records. These documents shall be kept in the pet owner’s file:

a) Color photo and identifying description of the pet;
b) Attending veterinarian's name, address and telephone number;

c) Veterinary certificates of spaying or neutering, rabies, distemper combination,
parvovirus, feline VRC, feline leukemia testing and other inoculations when
applicable;

d) Veterinary certification of actual weight of projected adult weight and pet; and
e) Dog licensing certificates in accordance with local and state laws.

If the Community Manager denies the application, the tenant may request a
hearing with the Director of Asset Management. This request must be submitted
to the Community Manager in writing within fourteen (14) days of the tenant's
receipt of the notice of denial. The Community Manager shall forward the
request to the Director of Asset Management.

The Director of Asset Management shall conduct a hearing at a time and place
convenient to both parties. The tenant may present any information relevant to
his/her Application.

If the Director of Asset Management approves the application, he/she shall
inform the tenant in writing within fourteen (14) days of the hearing and shall

76
Chattanooga Housing Authority
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy
Revised October 2009




direct the tenant to execute a Pet Lease Addendum with his/her Community
Manager.

If the Director of Asset Management denies the application, he/she shall inform
the tenant in writing within fourteen (14) days of the hearing.

11.4 Pet Owners Rights and Responsibilities

If the Application is approved, the pet owner shall assume the following obligations:

a)

b)

f)

The pet owner shall be responsible for proper pet care, good nutrition,
grooming, flea control, routine veterinary care and yearly inoculations.
Dogs and cats must wear identification collars and tags with the tenant’s
name and phone number and the dates of the most recent inoculations
and collars. A pet owner must keep a dog on a short leash, at all times, in
common areas;

The pet owner is responsible for cleaning up after the pet inside the unit
and anywhere on the CHA'’s property. A “pooper scooper” and disposable
plastic bags should be carried at all times in common areas. The pet
owner shall bag and dispose of waste in a receptacle designated by the
CHA. Toilets are not designed to handle pet litter; therefore no pet debris
shall be deposited in a toilet. Pet owners shall be responsible for the cost
of repairs or replacements of any damaged toilets or pipes;

For hygienic reasons, pet blankets and bedding shall not be cleaned or
washed in the laundry room;

The pet owner shall maintain the unit and its patio, porch and yard, if any,
in a sanitary, insect-free, and odor-free condition at all times;

The pet owner must provide litter boxes for cat waste, which must be kept
in the owner’'s unit. The pet owner shall bag and dispose of litter box
waste in a receptacle designated by the CHA. Litter boxes shall be kept
clean and odor free;

The pet owner shall prevent the pet from gnawing, chewing, scratching or
otherwise defacing doors, walls, windows and floor covering of the unit,
other units and common areas, as well as shrubs and landscaping of the
development. Pet owners shall be responsible for cost of repair or
replacement for any damages caused by the pet. Charges for damages
will include materials and labor. Payment plans may be negotiated
between the CHA and the pet owner. A dispute concerning the amount of
damages is subject to the CHA Tenant Grievance Procedure;
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9)

h)

)

)

K)

The pet owner shall be responsible for the cleaning, deodorizing and
sanitizing of carpeting and other floor coverings in the unit;

Pets are not to be tied outside or left unattended on a patio or porch;

The pet owner shall not alter the unit, patio, or other outside area to create
an enclosure for a pet;

The pet owner shall not allow the pet to disturb the health, safety, rights,
comfort or quiet enjoyment of other tenants. A pet will not create a
nuisance to neighbors, residents, staff and/or visitors with excessive
barking, whining, snapping, biting, chirping or other unruly behavior;

No pet is to remain unattended without proper care for more than twenty-
four (24) hours, except in the case of a dog, which shall be no more than
eight (8) hours. If the pet is left unattended and no arrangements have
been made for its care, the CHA shall have the right to enter the premises
to take the pet to be boarded at a local animal care facility at the expense
of the resident;

The pet owner shall allow the CHA to inspect a pet owner’s unit on a
guarterly basis to ensure that the unit is being cared for properly. The
CHA may increase the number of inspections at its discretion;

m) All female dogs over the age of six months and all female cats over the

0)

age of five months must be spayed. All male dogs over the age of eight
months and all male cats over the age of ten months must be neutered. If
health problems prevent such spaying or neutering, a veterinarian’s
certificate will be necessary to allow the pet to become a resident of the
development and the exception will be at the Executive Director's or
his/her designee’s discretion;

The pet owner is responsible for providing the CHA with the information
regarding the pet's inoculations, licensing, photograph and other
information as required. This information shall be kept in the pet owner’s
file; and

The pet owner is responsible for keeping the CHA informed of any change
of information.

11.5 CHA Rights and Responsibility

The CHA shall:

a)

Post a copy of this policy for pet ownership and enforce these rules in a
fair and just manner;
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b) Keep proper records of pet owner's and pet's pertinent information,
conduct unit inspections, investigate complaints and issue warnings and
bills for damages, and schedule repairs;

c) Enforce the Lease Addendum; and

d) Reserve the right to require dog owners to relocate to a comparable unit
on the ground floor of each building based upon written complaints
concerning the behavior of the dog in the elevator or hallways, or the
documented medical conditions of residents affected by the presence of
the dog.

11.6 Pet Fee

The CHA will assess a non-refundable, annual Pet Fee in the amount of $150.00 per
pet, per year to families who reside in family developments to cover the costs to the
CHA relating to this Policy. The tenant shall pay the annual fee at the time of
reexamination each year and provide proof of inoculations at such time.

Residents of elderly/disabled developments must pay a one-time non-refundable pet fee
of $150.00. No fee will be required for medically documented service animals; i.e.
seeing eye dogs in a development.

11.7 Pet Policy Violation Procedures [24 CFR 5.356]
a) Notice of Pet Rule Violation

If the CHA determines on the basis of objective facts, supported by written
statements that the pet owner has violated a rule set out in this Policy, the CHA
may serve a written notice of pet rule violation on the pet owner. The notice
should:

e Contain a brief statement of the factual basis for the determination that
the Pet Policy has been violated;

e State that the pet owner has ten days from the effective date of service
of notice to correct the violation, including, in appropriate
circumstances, removal of the pet or to make a written request for a
meeting to discuss the violation;

e State that the pet owner is entitled to be accompanied by another
person of his/her choice at the meeting; and

e State that the pet owner’s failure to correct the violation, to request a
meeting, or to appear at a requested meting may result in the initiation
of procedures to terminate the pet owner’s tenancy.
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b) Pet Rule Violation Meeting

If the pet owner makes a timely request for a meeting to discuss an alleged
pet rule violation, the CHA shall establish a mutually agreeable time and
place for the meeting, but no later than fifteen (15) days from the effective
date of service of the notice of pet rule violation (unless the CHA agrees to a
later date).

At the meeting the Community Manager and the pet owner shall discuss the
alleged pet rule violation and attempt to correct it. The CHA may, as a result
of the meeting, give the pet owner additional time to correct the violation.

c) Notice of Pet Removal

If the pet owner and the Community Manager are unable to resolve the
pet rule violation at the meeting, or if the Community Manager determines
that the pet owner has failed to correct the pet rule violation as agreed
within the prescribed additional time, the Community Manager may serve
a written notice on the pet owner.

The notice must:

e Contain a brief statement of the factual basis for the determination and
the pet rule(s) that have been violated;

e State that the pet owner must remove the pet within ten days of the
effective date of service of the notice of pet removal (or the meeting if
notice is served at the meeting); and

e State that failure to remove the pet may result in lease termination
procedures.

d) Termination of Lease Agreement or Removal of Pet
The CHA may not initiate procedures to terminate a pet owner’s lease unless:

e The pet owner has failed to remove the pet or correct a pet rule
violation within the applicable time period; and

e The pet rule violation is sufficient to begin procedures to terminate the
lease under the terms of the lease, applicable HUD regulations, and or
applicable state or local law.
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CHAPTER 12: INSPECTIONS
12.1 Move-In Inspections

The CHA and prospective head of household will inspect the premises prior to signing
the lease. The CHA will prepare a written statement of the condition of the premises
that will be signed by a CHA representative and the head of household. The CHA will
provide a copy of the signed inspection statement to the head of household and will
retain the original in the family's file.

12.2 Annual Inspections

The CHA will inspect each public housing unit annually to ensure that each unit meets Uniform
Physical Conditions Standards [24 CFR 5.701]. The CHA will initiate work orders to correct
deficiencies.

12.3 Preventative Maintenance Inspections

The CHA may conduct preventative maintenance inspections periodically. These
inspections are intended to keep items in good repair and to extend the life of the unit
and its equipment.

These inspections may encompass checks on leaks, the condition of the smoke
detectors, water heaters, furnaces, automatic thermostats and water temperatures.
These inspections may also provide an opportunity to conduct seasonal checks on
furnace filters, window screens and air conditioning units.

12.4 Special Inspections

The CHA may schedule special inspections to enable HUD or others to inspect a
sample of the federal housing stock maintained by the CHA.

12.5 Housekeeping Inspections

Generally, at the time of annual reexamination, and at other times as necessary, the
Community Manager will conduct a housekeeping inspection to ensure that the family is
maintaining the unit in a safe and sanitary condition.

12.6 Notice of Inspection

The CHA will provide the resident with at least two (2) days written notice of annual
inspections, preventative maintenance inspections, special inspections, and
housekeeping inspections.
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12.7 Emergency Inspections

The CHA may enter a unit without prior notice if there is reason to believe that an
emergency condition exists within the unit. The CHA representative who enters the unit
will leave a written notice in the unit advising the family of the date and time of entry and
purpose for the emergency inspection.

12.8 Pre-Move Out Inspections

The CHA will offer to schedule a pre-move out inspection upon receipt of a resident’s
notice to vacate.

The inspection allows the CHA to assist the family in identifying any problems, which, if
left uncorrected, could lead to vacate charges. This inspection is a courtesy to the
family and has been found to be helpful both in reducing costs to the family and in
enabling the CHA to prepare units more quickly for future occupants.

12.9 Move-Out Inspections

The CHA will conduct a move-out inspection at the time a resident vacates to assess
the condition of the unit and determine responsibility for any needed repairs. The CHA
will notify the resident about the inspection and encourage the head of household to be
present. This inspection becomes the basis for any claims assessed by the CHA
against the resident’s security deposit.
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CHAPTER 13: TERMINATION OF TENANCY

13.1 Termination By Resident

The resident may terminate the lease at any time upon submitting a 30-day
written notice. If the resident vacates prior to the end of the thirty (30) days,
he/she will be responsible for rent through the end of the notice period.

In the event of a resident’s death in a single person household, the CHA shall
terminate rent charges effective on the date that the family of the decedent
returns the keys to the unit to the CHA. In the event of the death of an adult with
income in a multi-person household, the CHA will recalculate the family’s rent
based on the change of income effective on first day of the month following the
date of death.

13.2 Termination By The CHA

The CHA will terminate the lease for serious or repeated violations of material lease
terms. Such violations include, but are not limited to, the following:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

j)

Nonpayment of rent or other charges;

A history of three (3) or more late/delinquent rental payments within the
current reexamination period;

Failure to provide timely and accurate information regarding family
composition, income circumstances, or other information related to eligibility
or rent;

Failure to allow inspection of the unit;

Failure to maintain the unit in a safe and sanitary manner;

Assignment or subletting of the premises;

Use of the premises for purposes other than as a dwelling unit; (other than for
site-based management approved resident businesses);

Destruction of property;

Acts of destruction, defacement, or removal of any part of the premises or
failure to cause guests to refrain from such acts;

Any criminal activity on the property or drug-related criminal activity on or off
the premises;
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k) Noncompliance with community service requirements effective one year after
the suspension is lifted;

[) Permitting persons not on the lease to reside in the unit for more than (14)
days each year without the prior written approval of the CHA; and

m) Other good cause.

The CHA will take immediate action to evict any household that includes an individual
who is subject to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex offender
registration program.

13.3 Extended Absences and Abandonment

The head of household must notify the CHA in writing if all members of the household
intend to be absent from the unit for more than thirty (30) consecutive days. A family
may not be absent from the unit for longer than sixty (60) consecutive days or 180 days
if the absence is due to medical reasons. Upon request by the head of household, the
CHA will install a keyed knob set lockout device for the duration of the extended
absence.

If the family is absent from the unit in excess of these limits, the CHA may take
appropriate legal action, up to and including eviction. A family may request that the
CHA approve an absence in excess of these limits. The CHA shall consider such a
request and may approve it only if extenuating circumstances exist.

If the CHA does not receive written notice from a family regarding an extended
absence, the CHA shall consider that the unit has been abandoned if:

e There is reason for the CHA to believe that the unit has been unoccupied for
thirty (30) days or more, and

e The rent is past due and the household has not acknowledged or responded
to demands for payment.

If the CHA determines that a unit has been abandoned, the CHA shall enter the unit to
conduct an emergency inspection and send a written notice of abandonment to the
family at the unit address and to any emergency contact person provided by the
resident by way of the U. S. Mail forwarding service requested.

If the family does not respond to the written notice of abandonment within ten (10) days
of the date of the notice, the CHA shall take appropriate legal action, up to and including
eviction.

Upon receipt of an eviction order, the CHA shall inventory any items remaining in the
unit and shall follow the court’s order in the disposition of the property.
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CHAPTER 14: TENANT GRIEVANCE
14.1 General

It is the policy of the CHA to provide tenants with a method for dispute resolution and
the opportunity for a grievance hearing. Tenants in CHA Programs have the right to
request a grievance hearing. "Tenant" means the head of household.

14.2 Policy Application

This grievance policy applies to a dispute a tenant may have with respect to the CHA's
action or failure to act in matters involving that tenant's lease with the CHA or CHA rules
that adversely affect the tenant’s rights, duties, welfare or status. This policy does not
apply to disputes between tenants, class grievances, and is not a forum for initiating or
negotiating policy changes between tenants and the CHA Board. This policy does not
apply to participants of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.

The CHA shall provide reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities to
participate in the hearing. Reasonable accommodation may include qualified sign
language interpreters, readers, accessible locations, or attendants.

There is no right to a grievance hearing in cases for nonpayment of rent.

Additionally, there is no right to a grievance hearing in cases for termination of lease
based on:

a) The amount of rent due to the CHA, unless the tenant pays the CHA
an amount equal to the amount of the rent due and payable as of the
first of the preceding month in which the act or failure to act took place.
The tenant shall thereafter deposit the same monthly amount until the
case is resolved by decision of the grievance panel; or

b) Any criminal activity that threatens the health, safety, or right to
peaceful enjoyment of the premises of other tenants or employees of
the CHA;

c) Any violent or drug-related criminal activity on or off the premises;
and/or

d) Any criminal activity that resulted in a felony conviction of a household
member.

86
Chattanooga Housing Authority
Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy
Revised October 2009




14.3 Filing a Grievance

A tenant shall submit a written request for a grievance in writing and deliver or
mail it to the CHA, within seven (7) days after the tenant's receipt of a notice of
lease termination. The request for a grievance hearing must specify the reasons
for the grievance and the action that the tenant wants the CHA to take or refrain
from taking. (Forms are available at the site management offices)

A request for a grievance hearing regarding some other matter shall be
submitted in the same manner as above, but within fourteen (14) days after the
date on which the grievant first became aware or should have become aware of
the subject matter of the grievance.

The CHA shall permit additional time up to 10 business days for initiation of a
grievance if the CHA shall find that there was a good reason for late initiation of
the grievance and that the late initiation would not cause prejudice to the CHA.

14.4 Informal Settlement Conference

After the filing of a request for a grievance hearing, the CHA shall provide the
grievant with the opportunity to discuss the grievance informally to attempt to
settle the grievance without the necessity of a grievance hearing. The CHA shall
give reasonable advance notice to the grievant and his or her representative (if
any) of a time and place for an informal settlement conference, unless the
conference occurred at or before the time of filing. The CHA shall prepare a
written summary of the settlement conference including the names of the
participants, the date of the conference, and the nature of the informal settlement
or proposed disposition. The tenant and the CHA shall preferably sign the
summary. The CHA shall maintain a copy of the informal settlement. If a matter
is not resolved at the informal conference, a grievance hearing shall be held.
Failure to attend an informal settlement conference shall not affect a grievant’s
right to a grievance hearing. [24 CFR 966.54]

14.5 Selection of a Hearing Officer

A grievance hearing shall be conducted by an impartial person appointed by the
CHA'’s Executive Director or designee, other than a person who made or
approved the action under a review or a subordinate of such person. The
Executive Director or designee shall provide a list of Hearing Officers approved
to hear a grievance. From this list, the Executive Director or designee shall
appoint a hearing officer for a specified period of time.
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14.6 The Hearing

14.6.1 Hearing Date and Notice

The CHA shall schedule a grievance hearing based on termination of a lease
case within fourteen (14) days or as soon as reasonably practical after the CHA'’s
receipt of the request. The CHA shall schedule a grievance hearing regarding
some other issue as soon as reasonably convenient after receipt of the request.

The CHA is responsible for scheduling and other administrative matters,
including delivering notices. The CHA shall give reasonable advance written
notice of the time and place of the hearing to the grievant and to his or her
representative (if any). The CHA or the panel may reschedule a hearing by
agreement, or upon showing by the grievant or the CHA, that rescheduling is
reasonably necessary.

If the grievant does not request that the hearing be rescheduled and does not
appear at the hearing, the grievant has waived the right to a hearing.

14.6.2 Pre-hearing Examination of Relevant Document s

Prior to a grievance hearing, the CHA shall provide the grievant and/or his or her
representative a reasonable opportunity to examine CHA documents that are
directly relevant to the grievance. Following a timely request, the CHA shall
provide copies of such documents to the grievant and may waive the charge for
the copies for good cause (including financial hardship).

14.6.3. Persons Entitled to be Present

The grievance hearing shall be private unless the grievant requests that it be
open to the public. If the grievant requests an open hearing, it shall be open to
the public unless the CHA otherwise orders. The CHA and the grievant shall be
entitled to have a reasonable number of persons present at a grievance hearing.
The Hearing Officer shall decide a challenge to the presence of any such person.

The CHA and the grievant may be represented by a lawyer or by a non-lawyer.
Each person present at the hearing shall conduct him or herself in an orderly
manner or shall be excluded. If the grievant is disruptive or belligerent at the
hearing, the Hearing Officer may take other appropriate measures to deal with
the behavior, including dismissing the grievance.

14.6.4. Procedure at the Hearing

The Hearing Officer shall conduct the grievance hearing in a fair manner without
undue delay. The hearing shall be tape-recorded. Procedure at the hearing
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shall be informal, and formal rules of evidence shall not apply. The Hearing
Officer shall initially define the issues. Thereafter, relevant information, including
testimony of witnesses and written material, shall be received regarding such
issues. The grievant and the CHA shall be entitled to question each other's
witnesses. The Hearing Officer may question witnesses and may take notice of
matters of common knowledge and applicable laws, regulations, and CHA
policies and procedures. The Hearing Officer may request the CHA or the
grievant to produce additional information which is relevant to the issues or which
is necessary for a decision to be made provided that the other party is provided
an opportunity to respond to such additional information.

14.6.5 The Decision

a) Written Decision

After the hearing, the Hearing Officer must determine the decision. This
decision must be based upon the evidence presented at the hearing,
additional information requested and upon applicable laws, regulations, and
CHA policies and procedures. The decision must be in writing, dated, and
state the findings of fact and the reasons for the decision. Within fourteen
(14) days following the hearing, or as soon as reasonably possible, the
Hearing Officer shall provide the CHA with the written decision and the CHA
shall then mail or deliver a copy of the decision to the grievant and his or her
representative. The CHA shall make a copy of the decision available for
public inspection with names and personal identifiers deleted.

b) Review of the Decision

For hearings related to termination of lease causes, the grievant or the CHA
may request a review by the Executive Director only to the extent that there is
a claimed violation of procedures related to the processing of the grievance.

14.6.6 Effect of a Decision on a Grievance

The decision on a grievance shall be binding between the CHA and the grievant
with respect to the particular circumstances involved in the grievance, provided
that if a court has jurisdiction to determine a matter that has been subject to
decision on a grievance, the court's determination on the matter shall supersede
the decision on the grievance. The fact that a person may have failed to grieve a
matter shall not affect any such jurisdiction by a court. As between the CHA and
any person who was not a grievant, the decision on a grievance shall have no
binding effect.
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CHAPTER 15: RE-PAYMENT AGREEMENTS
15.1 Policy

At the discretion of CHA, a family may enter into a written payment agreement to
pay for excessive maintenance or excess utility charges and/or other amounts
related to the family’s tenancy, such as rent. In the event the amount owed due
to fraud exceeds $1999.00, CHA may offer the resident an opportunity to enter a
repayment agreement to pay the full amount within 30 days of the fraud hearing.
The full amount due must be paid in full in one lump sum payment, absolutely no
partial payments will be accepted.

In the event the amount owed due to fraud is $1,999.00 or less, the CHA requires
a down payment of 25% of the balance owed as a good faith payment.

The payment agreement sets out the nature of the debt, the terms of payment,
the time period in which payment is to be made, any other provisions relating to
the payment arrangements and the remedies available to the CHA upon breach
of the arrangement. The CHA may requires a down payment of one-third (1/3) of
the balance owed as a good faith payment.

Full payment must be made within the following specified time periods:

Fire Damage or Casualty to Unit: Up to 24 months
Maintenance/Utility Charge Up to 12 months
Outstanding Rent Up to 12 months
Fraud Up to 12 months

A resident may request an extension of the time period in writing setting forth the
reasons for the request. The CHA may approve an extension when extenuating
circumstances exist and the resident has continued to make good faith efforts to
pay the balance due. However, the resident must sign a “Reservation of Rights”
form whereby the CHA will maintain its rights to file legal action if the resident
fails to keep the agreement.

If the current payment balance is not paid prior to the first of the following month,
then the terms of the Payment Agreement shall become null and void and the
entire balance owing to the CHA shall become due and payable.
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CHAPTER 16: FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION

16.1 Purpose

This section explains the consequences of misrepresentation and falsification of
any application, data relevant to any reexamination or transfer related information
by applicants or residents.

16.2 Federal Law Prohibitions

Any person who knowingly and willingly makes or uses a document or writing
containing any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or entry, in any matter
within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States, shall be
fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or both.
18 U.S.C. 81001.

16.3 Applicant and Resident Certification

Initial applications and applications for continued occupancy for the
Program shall contain a warning that falsification of information is
punishable under state and federal law.

CHA shall consider the misrepresentation of income and/or family status
to be a serious lease and policy violation as well as a crime and shall take
appropriate action if fraud is discovered. Specifically:

a) An applicant family who has misrepresented income or family
status shall be declared ineligible for housing assistance if subsidy
overpayments are determined to be $2,000 or greater if the amount
determined due is not repaid in full within 30 days of the fraud
hearing date or date of execution of the repayment agreement, or
at the discretion of the Executive Director. For overpaid subsidy
amounts under $2,000, a resident may be offered a repayment
agreement of up to 12 months and continued occupancy under the
terms of the repayment agreement. Eviction proceedings will begin
iffwhen a resident has more than 2 (two) subsidy overpayments
during any 60 month period, resulting from unreported or under
reported income.

b) If an examination of a resident's file discloses that the resident
made any misrepresentations (at the time of admission or during
any previous reexamination) which resulted in the
applicant/resident being classified as eligible when, in fact, the
applicant/resident was ineligible, the resident shall be required to
vacate the unit, even though the resident may be currently eligible.
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c) Resident family who has made misrepresentations of income, transfer
or family status shall be subject to both eviction and being declared
ineligible for future housing assistance.

d) If it is determined that the resident's misrepresentations resulted in
paying a lower rent than should have been paid, the resident shall be
required to pay the difference between rent owed and the amount that
should have been paid. CHA reserves the right to demand full payment
within thirty (30) days.

e) CHA may report apparent cases of applicant/resident fraud to the
appropriate governmental agency. It is the policy of CHA to cooperate
with federal, state, county or local authorities in prosecuting cases which,
in the CHA's judgment, appear to be willful or deliberate
misrepresentation.
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CHAPTER 17: OTHER CHA HOUSING PROGRAMS

17.1 Housing First Program

This specialized program is in partnership with the Partnership for Children, Families,
and Adults and provides housing for homeless families that have been victims of
domestic violence. Recognizing the extraordinary need for case management services
in this population and the ability of the Partnership to service more families through
creating a Housing First Model, the opportunity exist to place families in a permanent
stable housing setting for six to twelve months with case management services.

The CHA has agreed to earmark up to 15 housing units at Emma Wheeler Homes for
the program. Interested families will be referred to the Partnership for preliminary
screening. The Partnership will confirm that the family is homeless, has a member who
is a victim of domestic violence, is at low risk of further victimization, and is able and
willing to participate in programming for a 6-12 month period. If all four requirements
are met, the Partnership would refer the family to the CHA for additional screening in
accordance with this ACOP: income eligibility, past landlord history, credit worthiness,
and criminal history.

From there, the applicant family will be referred to a Multi-Disciplinary Assessment
Team for the family’s willingness to participate in the Program.

If admitted to the program, the family will sign a lease with the CHA and will be required
to comply with all terms and conditions. The Partnership’s case manager will provide
supportive services for each participating family. At the end of the program period, the
family will “graduate” and be allowed to remain in the apartment, however, the CHA will
make another apartment available to the program.

All families selected for this special program will be placed on a special site based
waiting list and given priority placement in an appropriate size unit, based upon
availability.

17.2 Premiere Housing Program

The CHA has designated certain units within its portfolio of public housing units as
Premiere Units which are made available to residents who are working full time and
engaged in programming that would lead to economic self-sufficiency.

17.3 Southeast Tennessee Housing Resource Agency Pr  ogram (SETHRA)

The CHA has agreed to participate in this program to provide assistance to chronically
homeless individuals who have formerly been alcohol/drug dependent.
17.4 Tax Credit Housing Program
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The CHA has developed units through the assistance of tax credits at Greenwood
Terrace, The Oaks at Camden, and The Villages of Alton Park. Admissions for these
units is governed by the terms of this ACOP and the laws, regulations, and guidelines
governing tax credit developments, and the Management Agreements between the
Managing Agent and the CHA, and incorporated by reference in this Admissions and
Continued Occupancy Policy.

17.5 Employee Housing Program

The CHA has deprogrammed units at some of its developments to enable CHA
maintenance staff to provide on-call emergency services to residents.

17.6 HOPE VI Program

CHA’s HOPE VI Program involves the comprehensive revitalization of the
McCallie Homes Community as a mixed income community (The Villages of
Alton Park). The eligibility and screening criteria for the on-site and off-site
replacement public housing units may include different and additional screening
criteria as outlined in the Management Agreement between the Pennrose
Management Company and the Chattanooga Housing Authority.

17.7 Police Officers in Public Housing

The CHA may permit police officers who would not otherwise be income eligible
for occupancy in CHA properties to reside in its developments to enhance
security for the residents of the developments in accordance with 24 CFR
960.505. The objective is to grant exemption to qualified police officers for long
term residency in CHA communities, where the officers’ physical presence is
expected to serve as a deterrent to criminal activity in and around the community.
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ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN FOR THE
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM (SECTION 8)

The purpose of the Administrative Plan is to essalbolicies for carrying out the
program in a manner consistent with HUD requiremamid CHA policy. The Plan
covers both admission and continued occupancyhe®CHA Housing Choice Voucher
Program.

Section |I. Program Overview

The Chattanooga Housing Authority (CHA) administdes Housing Choice Voucher Program
(Section 8). Effective October 1, 1999, the QyaHbusing and Work Responsibility Act
merged the Section 8 tenant-based programs intdakising Choice Voucher (Voucher)
Program. Administration of these programs is impbance with the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulationsefach Section 8 Program, as specified in
24 Code of Federal Register (CFR), HUD directiv&dA policy and this Plan. CHA complies
with all federal, state and local housing regulagio Definitions of terms used in this
Administrative Plan are included in Definition oéfins for Housing Assistance Programs
administered by CHA.

A. Objectives of Housing Choice Voucher Progranc({ea 8)

The objective of the Chattanooga Housing Authdstio provide decent, safe, affordable
and sanitary housing to low income Families otheewinable to obtain adequate
housing. The number of Families served is limaaty by the funding available through
local, state and federal programs, CHA’s budged, tae availability of adequate

housing.

The Voucher Program (Section 8) provides partiangaFamilies with a greater choice of
housing opportunities by subsidizing rent payménisrivate landlords. Through these
programs, CHA helps low-income Families obtain gyddousing within CHA'’s
geographical jurisdiction. CHA's jurisdiction regeto all cities located in whole or in
part in Hamilton County.

Through program administration, CHA will:

1. Ensure Housing Quality Standards are enforcedlfainits under contract
in the Voucher Program (Section 8);

2. Offer all current and future Section 8 VouchesgPam Families
counseling and referral assistance on the followingyity basis:

a. all Section 8 Voucher Families residing in & timat is located in
an area within which there is an uncorrected paamaspection
or a unit in which payment to the Landlord is abdtecause of a
failed inspection, and



b. all other Section 8 Voucher Families;

3. Make every good faith effort to relocate a sabgal percentage of its
Section 8 Voucher Families into low-poverty and {oinority
geographical areas in accordance with the CHA Deeotration Plan.

B. Statutory and Regulatory Compliance

The CHA will comply with all federal and state stis and regulations as applicable in
its administration of the Program addressed byRhas including, but not limited to, 24
CFR Part 5, 24 CFR 982, 24 CFR 983, the Qualitystauand Work Responsibility Act
of 1998 (“QHWRA”), the Privacy Act, the Rehabilitan Act of 1973, the Americans
with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), Title VI of the Civi Rights Act of 1964, and regulations
promulgated by HUD relating to fair housing and aqpportunity.

Section ILI. Non-Discrimination and Accessibility

The Plan is designed to ensure that all applicantscher holders and landlords involved in the
Program are treated fairly, equitably, and in caerge with applicable federal, state, and local
laws and regulations.

A. Fair Housing

The CHA shall affirmatively further fair housing the administration of the Program.
[24 CFR 5.105(a), 24 CFR 903.7(0), 24 CFR 982.53]

No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, saigion, national or ethnic origin,
familial status, handicap, or disability be exclddeom participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to, disaration under the Program.

To further its commitment to full compliance witp@icable civil rights laws, the CHA
will provide federal/state/local information to digants/participants of the Program
regarding discrimination and any recourse availabkbem if they believe they may be
victims of discrimination. Such information wilekavailable at the CHA Central Office
located at 801 N. Holtzclaw Ave., Chattanooga, TiNaddition, all CHA written
information and advertisements will contain therappiate Equal Opportunity language
and logo.

The CHA will assist any family that believes it ladfered illegal discrimination by
providing copies of the appropriate housing disaration forms. The CHA will also
assist in completing the forms, if requested, andprovide the address of the nearest
HUD Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunif)24 CFR 982.304]



B. Reasonable Accommodation

The CHA shall make reasonable accommodations asreeldoy law for
handicapped/disabled persons to promote the obgectiproviding equal access to and
participation in the Program. Except as othenpisided in 24 CFR 8.211(1), 8.24(a),
8.25 and 8.31, no individual with disabilities dlizé denied the benefits of, be excluded
from participation in, or otherwise be subjectedligcrimination because the CHA’s
facilities are inaccessible to or unusable by pegseith disabilities.

The CHA will provide Requests for Reasonable Accardation Forms at the Section 8
Voucher Program Office lobby for applicants and cfwer holders who desire to request
an accommodation based on a disability. The CHRAmake known the availability of
these forms in Pre-certification Meetings, Vouclssuance meetings, recertification
briefings, newsletters and other CHA communicatiaith those involved in the
Program.

If the participant requests (as a reasonable acmmation) that he or she be permitted to
make physical modifications to their dwelling ugat their own expense), the request
should be made to the property owner/manager. @S not have responsibility for
the owner's unit and does not have responsibditpake the unit accessible.

Any request for an accommodation that would enalgarticipant to materially violate
family obligations will not be approved.

The CHA will appoint a staff member who will be pessible for reviewing all requests
for accommodations and for responding in writinghe requestors.

C. Other Services to Promote Accessibility to Paogs

When given at least 24 hours notice of a needrangrpreter, the CHA will endeavor
to have bilingual staff available or access to peego can translate languages other
than English.

The CHA'’s offices are accessible to persons wisialilities. Accessibility for the
hearing impaired is provided by TDD of Bell Soutfhe TDD telephone number is
(423) 752-0830.

Persons with disabilities who require a reasonab®mmodation in completing an
application or other requirement of the Program wed/the CHA to make special
arrangements.

Section IlI. Marketing and Outreach

Marketing and outreach efforts are used to prothédocal community with awareness of the
CHA's various housing programs. The CHA will contlaatreach to the community to create an
awareness of the availability of the Program toili@sof extremely low income, very low
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income and low income. The CHA shall maintain aecate application pool, taking into
consideration the availability of vouchers throagimover and waiting list characteristics.

The CHA will provide informational materials andfamesentations to prospective participants,
prospective landlords, participants, landlordsghborhood associations, groups, social service
agencies and others upon request to provide infawmabout eligibility criteria and other
aspects of the Program.

The CHA will seek to reach potential applicants &rdllords through advertising in local
newspapers, including newspapers that serve mynojpulations as well as radio and television
media when feasible. The Equal Housing Opportuoiy will be used in all advertisements.

The CHA will comply with the income targeting recements of the QHWRA. Not fewer than
75% of new admissions will have income at or beB®#o of the area median income. All other
new admissions to the project-based program muat bebelow 80% of the area median
income. [24 CFR 982.201(b)(2), 24 CFR 983.251{¢)(6

A. Expanding Housing Opportunities

The CHA encourages owners of units outside arepswdrty or minority concentration
to participate in the Program. The CHA has ideadifiocations in its jurisdiction as areas
of poverty or minority concentration, based on infation obtained from the Federal
Register, the Chattanooga Area Chamber of Commgred/nited States Census Bureau
and regulations governing the Program found at 2R @82.

B. Areas of Poverty

The CHA has identified “areas of poverty” as thkof@ing locations where 40% or more
families have a gross income that is at or belowepty level as defined by the U.S.
Census Bureau. According to the 2005 American Conity&urvey from the U.S.
Census Bureau, 9.2 percent of Hamilton County, €ss@e families have income below
the poverty level.

Location % Below Poverty Level Census Tract Number
Erlanger-UTC 56.7 15
West Side 53.7 16
South Broad / Alton Park 61.2 19
South Side 82.8 20
Downtown 47.0 31




C. Areas of Minority Concentration

The CHA has identified “areas of minority concehtm’ as the following locations
where 50% or more families are minorities withie #tated zip code.

Location % Minority Zip Code
Erlanger-UTC 54.88 37403
Highland Park 66.82 37404

East Chattanooga 82.58 37406
South Broad 88.92 37408
Alton Park 90.81 37410

Brainerd 57.55 37411

The CHA will seek out and educate owners of uniiside these areas of poverty or
minority concentration by way of semi-annual lamdlmeetings and prospective
landlord workshops. CHA representatives will joommunity organizations such as the
Apartment Association, the Realtors Association emaduct other community outreach
programs to develop relationships to support tfigteto expand housing opportunities.

D. Required Postings
In the lobby of the CHA Central Office Lobby andtla¢ Section 8 Housing Choice
Voucher Program Office Lobby, the CHA will post,arconspicuous place and at a
height easily read by all persons including perseitis mobility disabilities, a statement
that the following information is available for iew:

1. The Plan

2. Notice of the status of the waiting list (s) éopd or closed)

3. Address of all CHA offices, office hours, teleple numbers, TDD
numbers and hours of operation

4, Income limits for admission to the Program
5. Informal review procedures

6. Utility allowance schedule

7. Fair Housing Poster

8. Equal Opportunity in Employment Poster

9. Any current CHA notice
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10.

UIV data gathering warning

Section IV. _CHA/Owner responsibility/obligatioh the family

This Section outlines the responsibilities andgdtions of CHA, the Section 8
Owners/Landlords, and the participating familie&lso, the responsibilities and
obligations of the Owners/Landlords and participgtiamilies are in the briefing packet.

A. CHA Responsibilities

CHA will comply with the consolidated ACC, the ajgaltion, HUD regulations
and other requirements, and the CHA Section 8 HhguShoice Voucher
Administrative Plan.

In administering the program, CHA will

1.

Publish and disseminate information about trealawility and nature of
housing assistance under the program;

Explain the program to owners and families;

Seek expanded opportunities for assisted fagritidocate housing
outside areas of low income and minority conceiumnat

Encourage owners to make units available faithggin the program,
including owners of suitable units located outaadeas low income and
minority concentration. CHA will provide a resoariist with owner
names that accept rental assistance in non-coatedtareas. CHA will
also distribute upon request a list of neighbohngsing agencies with
names, addresses, and phone numbers.

Affirmatively further fair housing goals and cpiy with equal
opportunity requirements;

Make efforts to help persons with disabilitisglfsatisfactory housing;
Receive applications from families, determingibility, maintain the
waiting list, select applicants, issue a vouchegaoh selected family, and

provide housing information to families selected,;

Determine who can live in the assisted unitdatiasion and during the
family’s participation in the program;

Obtain and verify evidence of citizenship andible immigration status
according to 24 CFR Part 5;
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10. Review the family’®equest for Tenancy Approval and the
owner/landlord lease, including the HUD prescribstancy addendum,;

11. Inspect the unit before the assisted occupbeagins and at least annually
during the assisted tenancy.

12. Determine the amount of the housing assistpagment for a family;

13. Determine the maximum rent to the owner andtdrehe rent is
reasonable;

14. Make timely housing assistance payments toaarepaccording to the
HAP contract;

15. Examine family income, size, and compositioadrhission and during
the family’s participation in the program. The pxaation includes
verification of income and other family information

16. Establish and adjust CHA utility allowance;

17. Administer and enforce the Housing Assistarepgients Contract with
an owner, including taking appropriate action asieined by CHA, if
the owner defaults (e.g., HQS violation);

18. Determine whether to terminate assistancep@rtcipant family for
violation of family obligations;

19. Conduct informal reviews of certain CHA decmsaoncerning applicants
for participation in the program,;

20. Conduct informal hearings on certain CHA dextisiconcerning
participant families;

21. Provide sound financial management of the pmogincluding engaging
an independent public accountant to conduct audits;

22. Administer the mandatory FSS program.

B. Owner Responsibilities

This Section states the obligations of an ownetigpating in the program.

The owner is responsible for performing all of dvener’s obligations under the HAP
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contract and the lease. The owner is responsible f

1.

Performing all management and rental functiengte assisted
unit, including selecting a voucher holder to letseunit, and
deciding if the family is suitable for tenancy betunit.

Maintaining the unit according to HQS, includipgrformance of
ordinary and extraordinary maintenance.

Complying with equal opportunity requirements.
Providing information regarding direct deposibank; warranty
deed or tax notice; Tax ldentification Number oci@bSecurity

Number.

Preparing and furnishing to CHA information reegd under the
HAP contract.

Collecting from the family:
a. Any security deposit required under the lease.

b. The tenant’s contribution (the part of rent wener not
covered by the housing assistance payment).

C. Any charges for unit damage by the family.
Enforcing tenant obligations under the lease.

Paying for utilities and services (unless paidhe family under
the lease.)

For provisions on modifications to a dwelling uo@cupied or to be occupied by a person
with disabilities see 24 CFR 100.203.

The owner is responsible for notifying CHA sixty0j@lays prior to any rent increase.
CHA reserves the right to deny rent increasesrtditads based on funding availability.

C. Obligations of the Family

This Section states the obligations of a partidigamily under the program.

1.

Supplying required information:
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The family must supply any information that CHARHUD
determines is necessary in the administration®f th
program, including submission of required evideote
citizenship or eligible immigration status. Infaation
includes any requested certification, release tlogro
documentation.

The family must supply any information requedtgdCHA
or HUD for use in a regularly scheduled reexamaratr
interim reexamination of family income and compiosit
according to HUD requirements.

The family must disclose and verify Social Sagur
numbers and must sign and submit consent forms for
obtaining information.

Any information supplied by the family must be tramrd
complete.

The family must report any changes in income, h&nefnd
family composition within 10 days of the occurrende
addition, once a dependant in the household tBnghe
family must report this and any income for that $shold
member within 10 days of the dependant turning 18.

HQS breach caused by the Family

a.

The family is responsible for any HQS breachsediby
the family or its guests.

Allowing CHA Inspection

a.

The family must allow CHA to inspect the urtit a
reasonable times and after at least two (2) dagseolf
the family misses the scheduled inspection and falil
reschedule the inspection, CHA will charge the fgmai
$25 missed appointment fee. CHA will also consttier
family to have violated a Family Obligation andithe
assistance may be terminated. If the family dalldispute
the termination, one more chance will be given ted
family will be obligated to sign a statement of
understanding stating if they ever miss anothepagpment
for inspection, they will be charged the $25 missed
appointment fee and may lose their assistance.
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4.

Violation of Lease

a.

The family may not commit any serious or repgate
violation of the lease. A family who causes $500 i
damages to a unit or commits serious or repeatadtvins
of the lease may be terminated from the CHA Se@ion
Housing Choice Voucher Program(s) and will be gible
for CHA assisted housing for three years from thee of
termination. After three years, the family must
demonstrate they have lived in the community withou
damaging property or eviction for serious or repdat
violations of a lease to establish eligibility IGHA
assisted housing.

The proof of the $500 in damages will be derifrech an
itemized list of damages that coincides with paickerpts,
pictures, and/or court documentation provided fey th
property owner. The damage documentation must be
provided within 60 days of move-out. During court
negotiations, the family’s assistance will not eertinated.
After the final outcome is determined and it isadletined
the family owes more than $500 in damages, thelyami
assistance will be terminated.

If the family receives an agreement throughcitnart
procedure to repay the owner for damages, the yamil
assistance will not be terminated. If the fandiéfaults on
the repay agreement through the courts and therowne
provides documentation of default, the assistaritdoe
terminated at that time.

If there are no court negotiations necessadgetermine
damages and the family and owner negotiate a repay
agreement, the family assistance will not be teated;
however, if the family defaults and the owner caovjule
documentation of default, the family assistancé wil
terminate at that time.

A family who is evicted more than once for n@yment
of rent or other serious or repeated violationtheflease
may be terminated from the program. However,éf th
family pays the owner for the back rent within ti¢30)
days of the eviction notice, the assistance witlb®
terminated. The family will be ineligible for CHassisted
housing for three years from the date of termimatiéfter
three years, to establish eligibility for CHA a$sds
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housing, the family must demonstrate they haveallinehe
community without eviction for non-payment of remt
other serious or repeated violations of the lease.

Family Notice of Move or Lease Termination

a. The family must notify CHA and the owner beftre
family moves out of the unit or terminates the é&hyg a
notice to the owner.

Owner Eviction Notice

a. The family must promptly give CHA a copy of anyner
eviction notice it receives.

Use and Occupancy of the Unit

a. The family must use the assisted unit for alezsie by the
family. The unit must be the family’s only residen

b. CHA must approve the composition of the assitedly
residing in the unit. The family must promptly anfn
CHA of the birth, adoption or court-awarded custofiya
child. The family must request approval from CHAaidd
any other family member (family is defined as auyrof
people related by blood, marriage, adoption, anéyfthat
live together in a stable family relationship) asoacupant
of the unit. No other person (i.e., no one but fers of
the assisted family) may reside in the unit (exéept
foster child/foster adult, or live-in aide as pred in
paragraph (4) of this Section).

C. The family must promptly notify CHA if any fangil
member no longer resides in the unit.

d. If CHA has given approval, a foster child/fosa€eult, or a
live-in aide may reside in the unit.

e. Members of the household may engage in legéit pro
making activities in the unit, but only if such iadies are
incidental to primary use of the unit for resideibge
members of the family. Any business uses of therast

have approval of the owner, comply with zoning
requirements, and the affected household memberr mus
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obtain all appropriate licenses.

f. The family must not sublease the unit.

g. The family must not assign the lease or trartsieunit.
8. Absence from the Unit

a. The family must supply any information or cécation

requested by CHA to verify that the family is ligin the
unit, or relating to family absence from the umtluding
any CHA requested information or certification b t
purposes of family absences. The family must caaipe
with CHA for this purpose. The family must promyptl
notify CHA of its absence from the unit for moreuth
seven (7) days.

b. Absence means that no member of the familysislireg in
the unit. The family may be absent from the uaitup to
30 days. The family must request permission fradHAC
for absences exceeding 30 days. CHA will make a
determination within five (5) business days of teguest.
An authorized absence may not exceed 180 days. Any
family absent for more than 30 days without auttedron
will be terminated from the program.

C. Authorized absences may include, but are natdahto:

Prolonged hospitalization
e Absences beyond the control of the family (i.e.,
death in the family, other family member illness)
e Other absences that are deemed necessary by CHA
e Military personnel being deployed

9. Interest in the Unit
a. The family may not own or have any interestheunit
(except for owners of manufactured housing rentreg
manufactured home space).
10. Fraud and Other Program Violation
a. The members of the family must not commit frearihery,

or any other corrupt or criminal act in connectwith the
program.

17



11. Crime by Family Members

a. The members of the family may not engage in-tdelajed
or violent criminal activity.

12. Other Housing Assistance

a. An assisted family, or members of the familyymat
receive Section 8 tenant-based assistance whigévieg
another housing subsidy, for the same unit or fdiffarent
unit, under any duplicative (as determined by HUINno
accordance with HUD requirements) federal, statéaal
housing assistance program.

Section V. Eligibility and Occupancy Policies

There are five eligibility requirements for adm@sito Section 8 -- qualifies as a family,
has an income within the income limits, meets eitghip/eligible immigrant criteria,
provides documentation of Social Security numbemnsl, signs consent authorization
documents. In addition to the eligibility criterfamilies must also meet CHA screening
criteria to be admitted to the Section 8 HousingiCé& Voucher Program.

A. Family type

1. A family with or without children . Such a family is defined as a group
of people related by blood, marriage, adoptiorafbinity that lives
together in a stable family relationship.

a. Children temporarily absent from the home duglasement in
foster care are considered family members.

b. Unborn children and children in the processeashl adopted are
considered family members for purposes of detemygibedroom
size but are not considered family members forrdeteng
income limit.

2. Anelderly family, which is

a. A family whose head, spouse, or sole membepe&rson who is at
least 62 years of age;

b. Two or more persons who are at least 62 yeaag®fiving
together; or

C. One or more persons who are at least 62 yeageoliving with
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one or more live-in aides
3. A near-elderly family (if applicable), which is

a. A family whose head, spouse, or sole membepe&rson who is at
least 50 years of age but below the age of 62;

b. Two or more persons who are at least 50 yeaag®but below
the age of 62 living together; or

C. One or more persons who are at least 50 yeageobut below the
age of 62 living with one or more live-in aides.

4, A disabled family, which is

a. A family whose head, spouse, or sole membepéerson with
disabilities;
b. Two or more persons with disabilities living éblger; or
C. One or more persons with disabilities livinglwene or more live-
in aides.
5. A displaced familyis a family in which each member, or whose sole

member, has been displaced by governmental acttomhose dwelling
has been extensively damaged or destroyed aslaaokawdisaster
declared or otherwise formally recognized purstaféderal disaster
relief laws.

6. A remaining member of a tenant familyis a family member who
remains in the unit when other members of the famol longer reside in
the unit and are removed from the lease.

7. A single personwho is not an elderly or displaced person, orraqe
with disabilities, or the remaining member of aaenhfamily.

Income Eligibility

1. A Family is eligible for assistance under the HagsChoice Voucher Program
(Section 8), according to 24 CFR, Part 5, if, attilme they initially received
assistance under the Section 8 Voucher Prograntaimly:

a. has been continuously assisted under the 1888ikty Act
with no breaks in assistance exceeding six consecuarionths; or

b. qualifies as a Very Low-Income Family (inclagiExtremely
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Low) under HUD's approved Income Limits; or

c. qualifies as a Lower Income Family (other tNamy Low-
Income) and is displaced by Rental RehabilitatioDevelopment
activities assisted under Section 17 of the 1937(#2 U.S.C.), or
as a result of activities under the Rental Rehaltiiin
Demonstration Program; or

d. qualifies as a Moderate-Income Family andisplaced
while living in housing covered by the Low-Incerklousing
Preservation and Resident Homeownership AcB601

Income limits apply only at admission and are rppili@able for continued
occupancy; however, as income rises the assistaitiaecrease.

The applicable income limit for issuance of a vaardls the highest income
limit for the family size for areas within CHA jwdliction. The applicable
income limit for admission to the program is theame limit for the area in
which the family is initially assisted in the pragn. The family may only use
the voucher to rent a unit in an area where thelyamincome eligible at
admission to the program.

Families who are moving into CHA's jurisdiction @ngbortability and have
not used their voucher to receive assistance atithigial housing agency must
meet the income limit for the area where they weiteally assisted under the
program.

Families who are moving into CHA jurisdiction ungeartability and are
already program participants at their initial hagsagency do not have to meet
the income eligibility requirement for CHA’s progna

Income limit restrictions do not apply to familigansferring units within
CHA'’s Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.

C. Citizenship/Eligible Immigrant status

To be eligible, each member of the family must lo&tiaen, national, or a non-citizen
who has eligible immigration status under one eft¢htegories set forth in Section 214
of the Housing and Community Development Act of A @8ee 42 U.S.C. 1436a(a)).

Family eligibility for assistance:

1.

A family shall not be eligible for assistancdass every member of the
family residing in the unit is determined to havigible status, with the
exception noted below.

Despite the ineligibility of one or more famityembers, a mixed family
may be eligible for one of three types of assigtan&ee Section 11.5(F)
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for calculating rents under the non-citizen rule).

3. A family without any eligible members and receg/assistance on June
19, 1995, may be eligible for temporary deferralesmination of
assistance.
D. Social Security Number Documentation

Prior to admission to the Section 8 Housing Chd&loacher Program , each family
member must provide verification of their Sociat&gty number. If a member of an
applicant family indicates they have a Social Skgmumber, but cannot readily verify
it, the member may submit other documentation efrthmber. CHA will allow ten (10)
working days from the date of application for tlpplecant to provide a Social Security
card or verification of the Social Security numbBrem Social Security Administration.
The application will retain its position on the wag list while the required
documentation is being obtained. If the documénrtas not provided within the allotted
time, the application will be denied.

New family members must provide verification priorbeing added to the lease.
Verification of the Social Security number will bbtained only once.

E. Consent Forms

1. To be eligible, each member of the family whatiseast 18 years of age,
and each family head and spouse, regardless ofhgk sign one or more
consent forms.

2. The consent form must contain, at a minimum fehewing:

a. A provision authorizing HUD and CHA to obtainrin State Wage
Information Collection Agencies (SWICASs) any infaation or
materials necessary to complete or verify the appbn for
participation or for eligibility for continued ocpancy;

b. A provision authorizing HUD or CHA to verify, Wi previous or
current employers, income information pertinenthi® family's
eligibility for, or level of, assistance;

C. A provision authorizing HUD to request incomé&immation from
the IRS and the SSA for the sole purpose of verifyncome
information pertinent to the family's eligibilityr ¢tevel of benefits;
and

d. A statement that the authorization to releasertformation
requested by the consent form expires 15 montbs thi¢ date the
consent form is signed.

F. Suitability for tenancy
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CHA determines eligibility for participation and lalso conduct criminal background
investigation on all adult household members, iditig live-in aides. CHA will deny
assistance to a family because of drug-relatedobervt criminal activity by family
members. This investigation will be made througttesor local law enforcement or
court records in those cases where the househattberehas lived in the local
jurisdiction for the last three years. If the midual has lived outside the local area,
CHA may contact law enforcement agencies wherénttigidual had lived or request an
investigation through the FBI's National Crime Imf@tion Center (NCIC).

CHA will ban for life any family member who has lbeeonvicted of manufacturing or
producing methamphetamine (speed) in a public ngudevelopment or in a Section 8
assisted property.

CHA will check with the federal sex offender regiton program and will ban for life
any individual who is registered as a lifetime sé&ender.

Additional screening is the responsibility of therer. Upon the request of an
owner/perspective owner, CHA will provide any faatinformation or third party
written information it has relevant to a voucheldar's history of, or ability to, comply
with material standard lease terms or any histbdrag trafficking.

If an applicant previously abandoned a unit, thexsthprove they have not abandoned
another unit in the last two (2) years.

Section VI. Application Intake

The CHA will provide public notice in advance ofespng a waiting list to ensure that families
are aware that they may apply for tenant-basedapddject-based assistance. The CHA will
publish the notice in the Chattanooga Times Fres®R1in available minority media of general
circulation, and on local radio stations. The CWill also provide written notice in the lobbies
of the CHA Central Office and the Housing Choicaudloer Program (Section 8) Office. The
notice shall state where and when to apply andseillforth any limitations on who may apply
for the available vouchers. [24 CFR 982.206]

The notice will state that applicants already ortiwg lists for other housing programs must
apply separately for this program, and that sughiegnts will not lose their place on other
waiting lists when they apply for the Section 8 Himg Choice Voucher Program. The notice
will include the Fair Housing logo and slogan amtldeowise be in compliance with Fair Housing
requirements.

The CHA will determine the method that will be ugedthe opening of a waiting list. The

CHA may elect to accept applications on a first epfirst served basis. In such case, the CHA
will date and time stamp an application upon redeypthe Housing Choice Voucher Program
(Section 8) Office.

As an alternative, the CHA may elect to use atptsgstem for the issuance of vouchers. The
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Executive Director or his designee is responsibldalie determination of whether and when a
lottery system will be used. In the event that@A elects to adopt and use a lottery system
for the selection of applicants, the date and tfnapplication will not apply, as said selection

will be superseded by the lottery selection.

In the event that the CHA elects to use a lottgsgesn, this intention will be declared and
publicized in the CHA'’s advertisement of the upcognopening of the waiting list(s). The CHA
will draw applications from the lottery pool in algic forum. The CHA may maintain the pool
of applicants from the lottery for a stated perddime and draw applications from the lottery
pool, in a public forum throughout that period iofi¢ as necessary.

A. Outreach to Lower Income Families

CHA will engage in outreach efforts directed towpadential Applicants, including
Families that do not generally apply for assistedding. CHA will conduct outreach on
a continuous basis using the following marketinghuds:

1. Use the Chattanooga Times Free Pnesgspaper, local minority papers
and local radio stations to advise the public cilable housing
opportunities;

2. Publish brochures, leaflets and/or handoutsriésg CHA'’s available
housing assistance and make these publicationkbheaio the public;

3. Contact community groups/organizations and neighbad papers to
promote available housing programs;

4. Hold outreach meetings and seminars in neidtdmats where Hispanic,
white and Asian populations predominate (Hispanit &outheast Asian
populations are less likely to apply for CHA hogsassistance); and

5. Designate a day for taking applications fromsBes who are Elderly,
Handicapped or Disabled. As a reasonable accomimadar Persons
with a Disability or Handicap, CHA may take apptioas at alternate
sites.

B. Opening and Closing of the Waiting List

If the CHA determines that the existing waiting kentains an adequate pool for use of
available program funding, the CHA may stop aceceptiew applications or may accept
only applications meeting criteria adopted by thAC [24 CFR 982.206I]

Opening of the waiting list for all applicants arlyp for applicants meeting specific
criteria can be at the discretion of and with apptdy the Executive Director.

C. Placement on the Waiting List

The application process requires the family tovjge information about all household
members including name, address, telephone nundoenposition, Social Security
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number, picture identification for all adult houshmembers, racial or ethnic
designation, income verification, citizenship/dbigi immigrant information, and
information establishing any preferences to whiehfamily may be entitled.

Upon receipt of the family’s application, CHA witiake a preliminary determination of
eligibility. If CHA determines the family to beeligible, CHA will notify the family
and state the reason(s). CHA will offer the fantilg opportunity for an informal review
of the determination.

An applicant may at any time report changes irrtheplicant status, including changes
in family composition, income, or preference fastoCHA will annotate the applicant’s
file and will update their place on the waiting lisapplicable.

CHA will ensure that verification of all preferers;esligibility, suitability selection
factors are current to determine the family’s fiakgjibility for admission into the
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.
D. Organization of the Waiting List
The waiting list will be maintained according tetfollowing guidelines:

1. The application will be a permanent file;

2. All applications will be maintained in one ceattpool in order of

preference, priority within the preference, anchtireorder of date and

time of application.

Note: The waiting list cannot be maintained bgroem size under current HUD
regulations.

E. Families Nearing the Top of the Waiting List

When CHA has vouchers available and is preparedféo the vouchers to eligible
applicants, the family whose application is morm@ntiwo months old must update
household composition, preferences, and incomeA @H re-verify the family’s
eligibility. If the family is no longer eligibledr the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program, CHA must notify the family in writing diis determination and give the family
the opportunity for an informal review.

F. Missed Appointments

All applicants who fail to keep a scheduled appuoigrnt according to the paragraph
below will be sent a notice of denial.

24



CHA will allow the family to reschedule appointmsffior good cause. Generally, no
more than one opportunity will be given to reschHedvuithout good cause, and no more
than two opportunities for good cause. When a gaase exists, CHA will work
closely with the family to find a more suitable 8mAny applicant whose name is being
removed from the waiting list will be notified byHa\, in writing, that they have ten (10)
working days from the date of the written correggence to request an informal review.
The letter will also indicate that their name vioé removed from the waiting list if they
fail to respond within the timeframe specified.

Applicants will be offered the right to an infornralview before being removed from the
waiting list.

G. Purging the Waiting List

CHA will update and purge its waiting list at leasinually to ensure that the pool of
applicants reasonably represents interested famikairging also enables CHA to update
the information regarding address, family compositincome category, and
preferences.

H. Removal of Applicants from the Waiting List
CHA will not remove an applicant’s name from theitwg list unless:
1. The applicant requests that the name be removed;

2. The applicant fails to respond to a written esjudor information or a
request to declare their continued interest irptiogram or misses
scheduled appointments; or

3. The applicant does not meet either the eligybdr screening criteria for
the program.

l. Grounds for Denial

In accordance with 24 CFR.982.553 and FR-4495-Fs@&ening and Eviction for Drug Abuse
and Other Criminal Activity published May 24, 20@HA will conduct criminal background
checks on all new Applicants for a period of fi& years prior to the application date. CHA

may use the services of a contractor to conduaensy research outside the state of Tennessee.
CHA will use the following standards to deny adnuego the Section 8 Housing Choice

Voucher Program.

1. Drug-Related Eviction

CHA will review residential history to determinetife Family has lived in
federally assisted housing, and deny admissionyiffamily member was
evicted from a federally assisted housing unit inithree (3) years of the
application date. An exception may be made if tieenoer responsible for
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the eviction is no longer a member of the housebaklto imprisonment
or death.

lllegal Drug Use

CHA will deny admission to any Family if there sason to believe that a
Family member uses or sells any illegal drugshat & member’s use of
drugs will threaten other residents, cause danageoperty, or generate
police activity on or near the premises.

Drug-Related Criminal Activity

Regardless of whether a Family member was arrestednvicted, if the
preponderance of evidence indicates that the meeniggrged in the
manufacture, sale or distribution of illegal drdgsa period of ten (10)
years prior to the application date, admission kélldenied.

Regardless of whether a Family member was arrestednvicted, if the
preponderance of evidence indicates that the meerigaged in the use
and possession of illegal drugs for a period of {i%) years prior to the
application date, admission will be denied. Ifd@nce can be provided
that the Family member has successfully completagparvised drug or
alcohol rehabilitation program, or has otherwiserbeehabilitated
successfully, the CHA may consider the Family fdmésion to the
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. [24 @BR5521(2)(iii)]

Conviction for Methamphetamine Production

CHA will permanently deny admission if any Familgmber has been
convicted for the manufacture of Methamphetaminéherpremises of a
federally assisted unit.

Sex Offenders
CHA will use the services of state and private agento check state

registers for each state that the Family residexhture that no registered
sex offenders are admitted to the program.

Alcohol Abuse

CHA will deny admission if there is reason to bediehat any Family
member has a pattern of abusing alcohol to thenegtat it is a threat to
other residents, will cause property damage, oegga police activity on
or near the premises.
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10.

Violent Criminal Activity

Regardless of whether a Family member was arrestednvicted, if the
preponderance of evidence indicates that the meenrtgarged in any of
the listed criminal acts, admission will be denied:

a. Crime involving extreme physical force, sucticsible rape,
murder, armed robbery, assault and battery throsghof a
weapon; or

b. An activity involving the use of weapons agaipstsons or

property, such as armed robbery.
Other Crimes that Threaten the Health and $afe®thers

The following crimes are considered crimes of vigke and commitment
of such by a Family member is grounds for deniadrhission:

a. Voluntary manslaughter

b. Kidnapping

c. Mayhem

d. Burglary

e. Arson

f. Terrorist threats

g. Assault

Pattern of Negative Rental History

CHA may elect to conduct rental history checksrfew Applicants. A
negative rental history may prevent eligibility fiwe Section 8 Voucher
Program if the Family has a history of violating tlease or disturbing the
peaceful enjoyment of the premises. Informatiotaimied from the rental
history check may be shared with the potential iz

Public Housing Residents and Former Program dhaatits

Applicants transferring from CHA'’s public housingwklopments will be
screened the same as new Applicants to the Se&&Nucher Program.
The record of former Section 8 Voucher participamtsbe researched for

possible program violations. The following violat®are grounds for
denial of admission:
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11.

12.

a. While participating in the Section 8 Voucheodtam the
Family must not have violated any Family Obligatiaa set forth
in 24 CFR 982.551 as amended. An exception maydrged by
CHA if the Family member who violated the Familyl@ation is
not a current member of the household on the agupiic.

b. No Family member may have committed fraudydmy, or
any other corrupt or criminal act in connectionhnainy federal
housing program in the last five (5) years.

C. The Family must have paid any outstanding delatdo
CHA or another housing authority as a result obpparticipation
in any federal housing program or entered intopayment
agreement.

d. Families entering the Section 8 Voucher Progdiram

CHA conventional housing programs must be in gdadding
under the terms of the CHA lease. The rent andrgihyments
due under the lease must be current, and therebreust evidence
of lease violations that would constitute grourmstérmination.

e. No Family member may have been evicted fromipub
housing for non-payment of rent during the pasitydour (24)
months.

f. No Family member may have engaged in or threste
abusive or violent behavior toward CHA personnelriuthe past
sixty (60) months.

Notification of Ineligibility

CHA will notify all Applicants determined to be iligible for assistance.
Applicants will be notified in writing of the reas(s) for the
determination. The letter will notify the Applidanof the right to request
an Informal Review of the determination. All regtgefor Informal
Reviews must be requested within fifteen (15) cddes days of the
notification letter.

Informal Review

Applicants who refute a denial for admission to Ch#using programs
will have the opportunity to present informatiordagvidence to the
Director of Assisted Housing in an Informal RevieWhe decision of the
Director or his designee will be final.

If the Director or his designee determines thatApplicant is eligible, the
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Family’s name will be placed on the Section 8 VardArogram Waiting
List without loss of position during the periodinéligibility, or issued a
Voucher, whichever is appropriate.

If after conducting a review CHA determines that Applicant is
ineligible, staff will notify the Applicant in wrihg. This procedure does
not prevent the Applicant from exercising his/h#veo rights if the
Applicant believes he/she is being discriminategigf on the basis of
race, color, national origin, religion, sex, hamrglicfamilial status or age.
A copy of the application, the notification lettetise Applicants’ response
(if any), the record of any Informal Reviews anstaement of the final
disposition will be maintained by CHA for a periofithree (3) years.
CHA shall notify the Applicant of his/her ineligitly and shall provide
the Applicant an opportunity to dispute the accyraed relevance of the
record. A copy of the criminal record will be prded upon request.

Section VII. Project-Based Waiting List Placement

The CHA places applicants on the project-basedmngglist based upon the date and time of
application and eligibility for a weighted selectipreference as set forth below:

A. Residents in Units at Time of Project-Based Advar

This selection preference is available to individwaho reside in the
targeted development at the time of award of ptdpased vouchers.

B. Applicants on Tenant-Based Waiting List at TimdPobject-Based Award
Applicants at the top of the Tenant-based waitisignhay be offered
The opportunity to reside in the project-based tgraent if they meet
the criteria for occupancy in the project.

C. Rent Burden Preference

This selection preference is available to individwaho meet criteria
noted above in tenant-based Rent Burden Preference.

D. Unit Offer for Project-Based Program

After a verified determination of eligibility andigability is made, and the
applicant’'s name is at the top of the waiting ltjs otherwise the next
candidate for unit offer, the CHA shall allow thgpéicant to choose from
available developments for which the applicanuisable or shall offer up
to three unit offers in available developments,aclibiver is greater. If the
applicant does not accept a unit subject to trasesy, the applicant will
forfeit his/her preference status and will be pthaethe bottom of the
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project-based waiting list.

Section VIIl. Selection from the Waiting List

Applicants will be selected to receive Section i@aeassistance either as a special
admission or as a waiting list admission.

A. Special Admission

Special admission is a non-waiting list admissielative to HUD awards of program
funding targeted to families living in specifieditgn  Examples of program funding that
may be targeted for special admission include abainot limited to:

1. A family displaced because of demolition, dispos or rehabilitation of
a public housing development, for example by a HOPRroject;

2. A family residing in a multifamily rental hougjrproject when HUD sells,
forecloses, or demolishes the project;

3. A non-purchasing family residing in a projecb@et to a home ownership
program;

4, A family residing in a project covered by a pajbased Section 8
Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) contract at or tieaend of the
HAP contract term;

5. An applicant in need of victim witness protentiand
A special admission permits selecting a familydssistance that is not on the Section 8

waiting list or without considering the family’s #iag list position. Records are
maintained that show that the family was selectediUD-targeted assistance.

B. Waiting List Admission

Except for special admissions, participants musdbected from the Section 8 waiting
list. CHA will select families from the waitingst based on one or more of the
following preferences:

1. FIRST PREFERENCE: (Displaced by Government Action) — date and time
within the preference

An applicant family who is displaced by governmaction or an
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applicant whose dwelling has been extensively datag destroyed as a
result of disaster, declared or otherwise formadlyognized pursuant to
federal relief laws.

2. SECOND PREFERENCE: (Involuntary Displacement) — date and time
within the preference

a. Individuals/families involuntarily displacedfhneless and referred by a
recognized social services or private agency/omgdion that has
performed an intake and assessment of the indilgdamilies
circumstance and have developed a case managelaerioipfollow up;
1. In general: For purposes of this chapter, the ténomeless” or
“homeless individual or homeless pers&hincludes—
1.1.an individual who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequ
nighttime residence; and
1.2.an individual who has a primary nighttime residetieg is—
1.2.1. a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter
designed to provide temporary living accommodations
(including welfare hotels, congregate shelters, and
transitional housing for the mentally ill);
1.2.2. an institution that provides a temporary resideioce
individuals intended to be institutionalized; or
1.2.3. a public or private place not designed for, or wadily
used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human
beings
1.3. An individual who has temporary shelter in a préevegsidence
where the household is over housed due to theidwhl/
family’s presence or the host is unwilling or ureatw provide
permanent residence.

2. Income eligibility

2.1.In general: A homeless individual shall be eligifue
assistance under any program provided by this ehapaly if
the individual complies with the income eligibility
requirements otherwise applicable to such program.

2.2. Exception: Notwithstanding paragraph (1), a honweles
individual shall be eligible for assistance undee 1 of the
Workforce Investment Act of 19989 U.S.C.2801et seq.].

2.3. Exclusion: For purposes of this chapter, the telornieless”
or “homeless individual” does not include any indual
imprisoned or otherwise detained pursuant to anoAthe
Congress or a State law.

a.

An applicant family who is in need of immediate Is&reby reason of
extreme hardship or disaster. For example: dorably a housing owner
that is beyond the applicant’s control and thaucsdespite the applicant
having met all previous conditions of occupancy] enother than a rent
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increase; a disaster or catastrophe, such adlfiogl, or storm that has
caused the unit to be uninhabitable.

The hardship will be governed by the position firatference will not be
given to a family who is, or expected to be, withbausing for failure to
pay rent or carry out other normal obligationsexfidency.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to docurhto the satisfaction of
CHA that the housing condition is caused by circamses beyond the
family’s control. Written verification from the gpopriate unit or agency
of government, the property owner, or social s&wviagency is required.

3. THIRD PREFERENCE: (Substandard Housing) — date and time within the
preference

An applicant family who currently resides in sulpstard housing or who
is homeless without a fixed nighttime residencetaying in a supervised
shelter. For purposes of this preference, subatdrtbusing is defined as
any dwelling that is unsafe, unsanitary, or ovencted due to its location,
structural condition or lack of utilities. For erple:

e A unit that an agency or unit of government has
declared unfit for habitation;

e A unit that is dilapidated and endangers health and
safety;

e A unit that is overcrowded (to be determined by
CHA subsidy standards) or without one or more of
the following for the exclusive use of the applican
family: operable indoor plumbing; useable flushing
toilet; useable bathtub or shower; adequate safe
electricity; safe or adequate heat; kitchen if
designed for one.

Third preference also includes applicants who atieout a fixed
nighttime residence or are staying in a supervesedter, including
homeless persons; individuals who are victims ohestic violence; and
victims of reprisals or hate crimes.

4. FOURTH PREFERENCE (Rent Burden) — date and time within the
preference

An applicant family paying more than 50 percengafss family income
for rent and utilities. The rent burden must bexiess of ninety (90)
days. Rent is the actual monthly amount due uadease or occupancy
agreement between a family and the family’s curlemdllord and for the
utilities purchased directly by the family fromlusi providers.
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Documentation of Rent Burden

Families must submit a copy of the current leaseagent that
includes the monthly rent and utility responsipilitopies of three
months utility bills at the lease address; and duoentation of all
household income from each family member. The legseement
and utilities must be documented as the respoitgibii the Head
of Household.

Verification of Preference

CHA will require written verification of all docunméed
information provided by the family to determinegdility for the
preference. Verifications that conflict with infoathon provided
on the application may disqualify the preference.

5. FIFTH PREFERENCE (Working Family) — date and time within the
preference

An applicant household where the Head of Houselspldyse or sole
member of the household is considered workingfurlaime capacity (32
hours or more per week), long term part-time cagd20 hours weekly for
six continuous months), or an approved job traigragram in accordance
with the following provisions:

a.

Employment

The Head of Household or spouse must work for wages
commissions, or other consideration of value andaitestrate full-
time or part-time (20 hours minimum per week) ergplent for at
least six (6) months immediately prior to the datelacement on
the waiting list. It must be apparent that thé-finhe or part-time
employment is of a continuous, as opposed to adeany nature,
and the Head of Household must anticipate suchraomis
employment after the date of placement. Self-egguo
individuals may qualify for this selection prefecenif the Head of
Household or spouse is able to demonstrate sim@@hs of full-
time or part-time self-employment (20 hours or moee week)
immediately prior to the date of placement; or

1. Documentation of Employment
Families must document on the pre-application thewe
and amount of income received for all household bens)

and submit copies of documents to support the ircom

2. Verification of Employment
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CHA will use third-party written (and online) vedétion
sources of all information provided by the famity t
determine eligibility for the preference. Verifiaats that
conflict with information provided on the applicati may
disqualify the preference.

b. Approved Job Training Program

Head of Household or spouse who is participatingrianrolled to
participate in a training, education or employmamigram funded
by HUD, Workforce Investment Board, or any othedé&ml, State,
or local organization, provided that the prograprisnary purpose
is to prepare low and very low-income individuals €conomic
independence. Such participation must be for amum of
twenty (20) hours per week and must be verifiedyriing, by the
training, education, or employment provider.

C. Elderly and Disabled

The Working Family Preference is also extended ggta@all
elderly families and all families whose head orusggomeets
HUD'’s definition of persons with disabilities. [ZZFR 5.403

1. Documentation of Disability

Families eligible to receive the working preferebesed
on a disability must meet the HUD definition ofiaability
as defined in 24 CFR 5.403. To qualify as a desabl
family the disabled member must be the Head of
Household, spouse or Co-Head. Families must peovid
documentation to support the disability claim.

6. SIXTH PREFERENCE (Disability) — date and time within the preference

a. An elderly family as defined herein that haseamber(s) with
disabilities;
b. A non-elderly disabled family as defined herein

7. ALL OTHER ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS — date and time within the
preference

A final determination of eligibility is made whehe Applicant’'s name is selected from the
waiting list, and the income and family compositisiverified using online and third-party
methods. At that time, the Family’s total househaltbme may not exceed the current HUD
Income Limits for the family size.

In accordance with Income Targeting requiremer@gesty-five percent (75%) of the new
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admissions to the Section 8 Voucher Program musd lmcomes at or below 30% of the area
median income (extremely low-income). CHA verifte income of Families when they reach
the top of the Waiting List to ensure that the Agimiincome is in the Extremely Low category.

Applicants are selected from the waiting list igqential order and sent an appointment letter to
the address given at time of application, unlessajpplicant has updated their address with the
Program. This letter will provide a date and timeppear for final eligibility in accordance with
the application date and time.

Section IX. Selection of Families for Special Seict8 Housing Choice Voucher Programs

CHA operates special Section 8 Voucher Programsnspkecial allocations and regulations
provided specifically for each program. Applicantay be admitted for participation in special
programs without being on the Section 8 VouchegRum Waiting List; or if the Applicant is on
the Section 8 Voucher Program Waiting List, andible for selection for a special program,
he/she may be selected before other Applicantglidgents are admitted as a special admission
when HUD awards funding that is targeted for spetyipes of Families.

The programs are outlined below.
A. Mainstream Vouchers for Persons with Disalati
Participants in the Mainstream Housing for Perseitis Disabilities Program are
Persons with Disabilities who have moved out of oh€EHA'’s elderly high rises, or
Applicants on the Section 8 Voucher Program Waitirsg who have a disability.
Following admittance into the Housing Choice VoudReogram (Section 8), participants
follow all Section 8 Voucher Program rules and tatjans.
B. Project-Based Vouchers for the Elderly and Ressweith Disabilities
Participants in the Project-Based Voucher for Resseith Disabilities Program agree to
move into units designated for this program. Theding assistance is tied to the unit
and participants who move out of their units Idsgrthousing assistance. This program

is covered in full in the Administrative Plan fdret Section 8 Voucher Program
Assistance Attached to Units (Project-Based Voudtssistance) (CHA Policy 500-3).

Section X. Required Eligibility Documents

CHA will provide housing assistance to United Satiizens and eligible immigrants
only. A household with only one eligible membecansidered a Mixed Family, and
assistance will be provided for the eligible membely, although the non-citizens may
reside in the household.

A. Eligibility Documentation

The Family must provide the following documentsdach member as evidence of
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citizenship:
1. United States Citizens

A written and signed Declaration by each family nbem and
A birth certificate; or

A United States passport; or

A Naturalization Certificate or proof of naturaliia; or

2. Eligible Immigrants
e A written and signed Declaration by each family rbem and
e One of the documents described in the form “AcdaptéiNS
Documents, including a Resident Alien Card; and
e A signed Verification Consent Form
B. Other Required Information for Admission

All Applicants must sign HUD’s Authorization to Relse Information and disclose the
social security number for each Family member4 CER 5.216]

If at the end of a 60-day period, a Family memlaamot provide the original Social
Security card issued by the Social Security Adniiatgon, CHA will accept photo

identification and one or more of the following dotents:

1. A driver’s license with the social security number
2. Identification card issued by a federal, stateocal agency
3. Identification card issued by an employer
4. Internal Revenue Form 1099
5. Benefit award letter from a government agency.
C. Family Relations Documentation

CHA considers a Family to be made up of a grouipdi¥iduals who intend to share
common resources. [24 CFR 982.551] A Declaratiodousehold statement must be
provided or signed. Any discrepancies or changesported household composition
shall be verified by providing one or more of tieddwing:

1. Birth Certificate

2. Certificate of birth issued by a physician, miidyvor hospital
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5.

6.

Guardianship papers issued by a judiciary
Benefit Award Letter on behalf of a minor oratited adult
Divorce decree

School records for minors

D. Other Eligibility Criteria and Execution of Caergt Forms

Applicants must meet or exceed the following addil eligibility requirements. Each
member of the family who is at least 18 years & sigall sign one or more consent
forms, 16 years of age for the criminal backgroaheck.. The consent form(s) must
contain, at a minimum, the following:

1.

SWICA Authorization

A provision authorizing HUD or CHA to obtain frontede Wage
Information Collection Agencies (SWICASs) any infaation or
material necessary to complete or verify the apgibn for
participation or for eligibility for continued ocpancy;

Employer Authorization

A provision authorizing HUD or CHA to verify withrpvious or
current employers income and job related infornmagertinent to
the family’s eligibility for or level of assistance

IRS and SSA Authorization

A provision authorizing HUD to request income inf@tion from
the Internal Revenue Service and the Social Sgcurit
Administration for the sole purpose of verifyingame
information pertinent to the family’s eligibilityrdevel of benefits;

Criminal History Authorization

A provision authorizing the CHA to conduct a crimlin
background investigation of the applicant and eaember of the
applicant’s family who is at least Sixteen (16)ngeald; and

Expiration Statement

A statement that the authorization(s) to releasartformation
requested by the consent form expires fifteen (@&hths after the
date the consent form is signed. This provisiolhat apply to
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the Criminal History Authorization.
E. Removal from the Waiting List

Applicants who do not meet the basic eligibilitguerements below at the time of
selection from the waiting list will be removed iinche list.

1. Income

The gross annual household income must not exteedWD-
determined Income Limits for the Family size.

2. Eligible Family Member

At least one Family member must be a U.S. Citizeligible
Immigrant

3. Criminal Background Screening

All family members age Sixteen (16) and over welteive
criminal history reviews.

4, The Head of Household is responsible for proxgdiequired
documents within the sixty-day (60-day) allowediqer

Section XI. _Subsidy

The CHA thoroughly screens each individual appli¢garaccordance with HUD regulations and
sound management practices to determine whethap@licant is both eligible and suitable for
the Program. To demonstrate eligibility, an apgolicmust satisfy five separate eligibility
requirements and show that he/she: (i) qualifeea gamily, (ii) has income within the
appropriate income limits, (iii) meets citizenskeigjible immigration criteria, (iv) provides
documentation of Social Security numbers, and (@@t® or exceeds the eligibility and
suitability selection criteria as described in 28RC982.201.

CHA will determine the Family bedroom size and fignesbntribution to rent in accordance with
24 CFR Subpart E and Subpart G, using third pardgpendent verification. Only the Housing
Choice Voucher Program staff may change the sulssatyat annual recertification

A. Subsidy Standards

An eligible Family is determined based upon the ters included on the original
application and personally identified at the elilifpinterview. All members must
appear in person with photo identification. Mengbirat are not identified will not be
considered as a member of the assisted household.

Once the Family composition has been determingd¢change in household composition
must be reported to and approved by CHA prior tmiadion. [24 CFR 982.551(h)]
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Additions due to birth, adoption or court-awardedtody must be reported to CHA upon
entering the household.

CHA will issue a voucher for a particular bedroozes- the bedroom size is a factor in
determining the family’s level of assistance. Tolowing guidelines will determine
each family’s unit size without overcrowding or ov®using:

Number | Number Number
of of Persons| of
Bedrooms| Persons
Minimum | Maximum
0 1 1
1 1 2
2 2 4
3 3 6
4 4 8

These standards are based on the assumption thabedroom will accommodate no
more than two (2) persons.

In determining bedroom size, CHA will include theegence of children to be born to a
pregnant woman, children who are in the proces®nfg adopted, children whose
custody is being obtained, and children who areptemarily away at school or
temporarily in foster care.

Bedroom size will also be determined using theofeihg guidelines:
1. No more than two (2) persons will occupy a bedroom.
2. Beginning with annual re-certifications effectivd/D7 forward, a
bedroom will be allowed for members of the opposéer two (2) years

and older with the exception of husband and wife.

3. Beginning with annual re-certifications effectivl/D7 forward, a single
Head of Household will share a room with a childl@emnage two (2).

4, Other than the Head of Household, two (2) sameysesons will share a
bedroom, up to the age of eighteen (18).

5. A bedroom will be allocated for an approved liveaide to provide
continuous medical assistance to an elderly obtesaFamily member.
The additional bedroom is only allocated for thvedin-aide — this does
not include any dependants of that live-in-aide.

6. A foster child will be considered in determininit size only if he/she
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will be in the unit for more than twelve (12) mosth

7. Children removed from the household and planddster care must
anticipate returning within six (6) months.

8. Exception to the above standards may be graitedsonable
accommodation is deemed necessary.

9. A child who resides in the unit at least 50%h&f time, due to a change in
custody, will be considered when determining vouciee.

10. Exceptions to voucher size if a change willuwagithin 2 months of the
annual re-certification date:
a. if a child will turn 2 within 2 months of the mmal re-
certification date;

b. if a child will turn 18 within 2 months of the amal re-
certification date;

c. ifthe due date for a new baby is within 2 morahthe annual
re-certification date
CHA will grant exceptions to normal occupancy s&ad when a family requests
a larger bedroom-size voucher than the guidelilew @nd documents a medical
reason why the larger size is necessary.

The family unit size will be determined by CHA acoding to the above
guidelines and will determine the maximum subsmlythe family; however the
family may select a unit that may be larger or $endahan the family unit size
allocated. If the family selects a smaller urhie payment standard for the
smaller size will be used to calculate the subsifiyhe family selects a larger
size, the payment standard for the family’s voudize will determine the
maximum subsidy.

For families residing in units which are assistath\project-based vouchers, if
CHA determines that the family is occupying a:
a. wrong-sized unit, or
b. unit with accessibility features that the fandlyes not require, and the
unit is needed by a family that requires the adbéig features, then

CHA will notify the family and the owner of this tEmination, and CHA will
make an offer of continued assistance for the fgmmlthe form of:
a. project-based voucher assistance in an apptesiee unit (in the same
or a different development); or
b. other project-based housing assistance (e.gctypancy of a public
housing unit); or
c. tenant-based rental assistance under the vopobgram; or
d. other comparable public or private tenant-bassistance (e.g., under
the HOME program).
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If CHA offers the family the opportunity to receitenant-based rental assistance
under the voucher program, CHA will terminate tloei$ing assistance payments
for a wrong-sized or accessible unit at expiratbthe term of the family's
voucher (including any extension granted by CHER)CHA offers the family the
opportunity for another form of continued housisgiatance (not in the tenant-
based voucher program), and the family does n@mdbe offer, does not move
out of the project-based voucher unit within a oeable time as determined by
CHA, or both, CHA will terminate the housing asarste payments for the
wrong-sized or accessible unit, at the expiratiba reasonable period as
determined by CHA.

B. Family Breakup and Remaining Family Member

Under certain circumstances the original Family position may alter due to the Head
of Household leaving the household; or a breakug lmisband and wife with minor
children.

If the Head of Household dies, and there is analdeait Family member, the voucher
assistance will pass to the Remaining Member, gingithey meet eligibility

requirements, who may then become the Head of HoldeAnother client number will
be issued to the new Head for tracking purposes.

If there is not a remaining Family member who ieatly a member of that household
and who has the legal capacity to enter into aleasler state and local law, the voucher
assistance will terminate the month of the deathb@andonment.

C. Split Family
In cases of divorce or separation under a settleorgndicial decree, CHA will follow a
court’s ruling in determining which Family membemntinue to receive Section 8

Voucher Program assistance. Also of consideratitirbe:

1. The interest of any minor children, or ill, eliyeor disabled Family
members; and

2. whether Family members are forced to leave tasa result of actual or
threatened physical violence against Family membgis spouse or other
Family members of the household; and

3. who retains custody of the minor children, anavmes housing for 51%
or more of the time.

Section XIl. Family Briefing and Voucher Issuance

All Families who are entering the Section 8 VoudRewgram for the first time; and Porting
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Families entering CHA's jurisdiction will be briefeon the program regulations and CHA'’s
policies. For Porting Family program participants briefing requirement shall not in any way
impede the leasing process or placement.

A. Conducting a Briefing Session and Issuing Malsrto Voucher Holders

Applicants and Porting Families are allowed twod@jpointments to attend a briefing
session. Any Applicant who does not attend onth@ftwo sessions will be denied
assistance. Briefings are normally conducted easmsessions. When necessary, staff
members will conduct individual briefings to accoouhate the needs of the homebound
or Persons with Disabilities. All new Section 8u¢ber Program Families are briefed in
accordance with 24 CFR 982.301, as amended.

Fair Housing and social service organizations nrayigde presentations at the briefings
with prior approval of the Director.

B. Briefing Topics:

1. A description of how the program works;

2. Family and owner responsibilities;

3. Where the family may rent a unit, including @esiand outside the CHA'’s
jurisdiction;

4, Types of eligible housing;

5. For families qualified to lease a unit outsid€blA’s jurisdiction under
portability, an explanation of how portability wak

6. An explanation of the advantages of living inaaea that does not have a
high concentration of poor families;

7. An explanation of the family’s affordability et

8. Specifications of any local obligations for Wak-to-Work Voucher
recipients

C. Briefing Packet

During the briefing, the CHA will provide the famiWwith a packet of information on the
following topics:

1.

The term of the voucher and the CHA'’s policyestensions and
suspensions of the term. The packet will includermation on how to
request an extension and forms for requesting siies;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

How the CHA determines the housing assistangmeat and total tenant
payment for the family;

Information on the payment standard, exceptaynent standard rent
areas (if applicable), and the utility allowancaedule;

How the CHA determines the maximum rent for ssisied unit;

Where the family may lease a unit. For famitjeslified to lease outside
the CHA's jurisdiction, the packet must includeexplanation of how
portability works;

The HUD-required tenancy addendum that providedanguage that
must be included in any assisted lease;

The Request for Tenancy Approval Form and amaegbion of how to
request CHA'’s approval of a unit;

A statement of the CHA'’s policy on providinganfnation to prospective
owners. This policy requires applicants to sigstliisure statements
allowing the CHA to provide prospective owners wiltle family’s current
and prior addresses and the names and addregbeslafidlords for those
addresses. Upon request, the CHA will also sugplyfactual informa-
tion or third party verification relating to theg@jeant’s history as a tenant
or their ability to comply with material standashke terms or any history
of drug-trafficking by a family member;

The CHA'’s subsidy standards, including whenGh&A will consider
granting exceptions to the standards;

The HUD brochure on how to select a unit (“Ac@dlace to Live”);
The HUD-required lead-based paint brochure;

Information on federal, state, and local eqyugortunity laws; the
brochure “Fair Housing: It's Your Right;” and a gopf the housing

discrimination complaint form;

A list of landlords, or other parties know to CHAho may be willing to
lease a unit to the family or help the family fiadinit;

The family’s obligations under the program;

The grounds upon which CHA may terminate assistaecause of the
family’s action or inaction;

Issuance of Voucher/Extending Voucher
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Once all family information has been verified, theligibility determined, their subsidy
calculated, and they have attended the family ingefCHA will issue the voucher. At
this point, the family begins their search for d&.un

The initial term of the voucher will be 60 days amidl be stated on the Housing Choice
Voucher.

CHA may grant one or more extensions of the tefiro.obtain an extension, the family
must make a request in writing prior to the expiratdate. If the family requests an
extension and additional time can reasonably bearg to result in success, CHA will
grant the length of request (sought by the famolya new expiration date as determined
by CHA.

If the family includes a person with disabilities)d the family requires an extension due
to the disability, CHA will grant an extension allmg the family the full 120 days
search time. If CHA determines that additionalrekeaime would be a reasonable
accommodation, it may be granted with the propeudeentation.

The voucher will be withdrawn if the Family faile tease suitable housing during the
term of the voucher. Expiration or withdrawal of@icher does not preclude the Family
from filing a new application for another vouchprovided CHA has not suspended the
taking of applications.

E. Request for Tenancy Approval

When the family finds a unit that the owner is widj to lease under the program, the
family and the owner will submit to CHA a completeeqjuest for Tenancy Approval and

a copy of the owner’s proposed lease. CHA willngietthe family to submit only one
Request for Tenancy Approval (RFTA) unless the unit was not in compliance with
Housing Quality Standards or the rent amount woexdeed 40% of the family’s
adjusted income, or other circumstances beyonththdy’'s control.

The terms of the HUD tenancy addendum shall premsel any other provisions of the
lease. CHA will review the request, the lease, tnedHUD-required tenancy addendum
and make an initial determination of approval ofatecy. CHA may assist the family in
negotiating changes that may be required for timartey to be approvable. Once it
appears the tenancy may be approvable, CHA wikdale an appointment to inspect the
unit within 15 days after the receipt of inspecti@guest from the family and owner.
The 15-day period is suspended during any periedutht is unavailable for inspection.
A unit must be available for inspection within tigi(30) days from the date of submitted
Request for Tenancy Approval. Once inspected, the unit must pass inspectidhirwi
thirty (30) days.

CHA will promptly notify the owner and the familyhether the unit and tenancy are
approved.
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Additional screening is the responsibility of thevreer. Upon request by an
owner/perspective owner, CHA will provide any fadtunformation or third-party
written information they have relevant to a vouchetder’s history of, or ability to,
comply with standard material lease terms.

F. Approval to Lease a Unit

CHA will approve a lease if all of the following ditions are met:

1.

2.

7.

The unit is eligible;

The unit is inspected by CHA and passes Hhgu§)uality Standards
(HQS);

The lease is approvable and includes the fatigwlanguage of the
tenancy addendum:

a. The names of the owner and the tenant;
b. The address of the unit rented;
C. The term of the lease (initial term must be foyear and any

provisions for renewal);

d. The amount of the monthly rent to owner;

e. A specification of what utilities and appliaacare to be supplied
by the owner, and what utilities and appliancestarbe supplied
by the family; and

f. The required HUD tenancy addendum,;

The rent to owner is reasonable;

The family’s share of rent does not excee¥ 40 their monthly adjusted
income if the gross rent exceeds the applicablengay standard;

The owner has not been found to be debarrehesled, or subject to a
limited denial of participation by HUD or CHA; and

The family continues to meet all eligibiléyd screening criteria.

The lease term may begin only after all of thedwihg conditions are met:

1.

2.

The unit passes the CHA HQS inspection;

The family’s share of rent does not exceed 49%eir monthly adjusted
income if the gross rent exceeds the applicablengay standard;
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G.

3. The landlord and tenant sign the lease to fextafe no earlier than the
date after the unit passed HQS inspection;

4. CHA approves the leasing of the unit; and
5. Utilities are turned on in the tenant’s nanfeténant is responsible for
utilities).

CHA will prepare the contract when the unit is ayyad for tenancy. The contract will
be executed and become effective simultaneously thi¢ signing of the lease and the
HUD required tenancy addendum. CHA will not pay dmousing assistance to the
owner until the contract is executed. New ownerstnuiovide a warranty deed or tax
notice, and Tax Identification Number or Social &&§ Number. Additionally, owners
must provide a warranty deed or tax statement ifids uhat have not previously been on
the program.

If a voucher family moves with continued assistartbe term of the new assisted unit
may begin during the month the family moves outha& old assisted unit. Overlap of
housing assistance payment for old unit for monitkerwvfamily moves and first housing
assistance payment for new unit is not considerapéicative subsidy.

CHA Disapproval of Owner

CHA requires participating landlords to abide by the Housing Assistance Payment (HAP)
contract and enforce the lease agreement with the Family. Failure to abide by the HAP
contract could result in penalties from abatement of HAP to permanent banning from
participation.

CHA may disapprove, bar or suspend a single unigpartment complex or landlord from
participation in the Section 8 Housing Choice VaercRrogram. The length of the penalty is left
to the discretion of the Director in conjunctiorthvihe severity of the problem that causes the
suspension.

CHA will deny participation by an owner at the ditien of HUD for any of the following
reasons:

1. The owner has violated any obligations undeectiGn 8 Housing
Assistance Payments Contract;

2. The owner has committed fraud, bribery, or atimgocorrupt or
criminal act in connection with any federal housprggram,;

3. The owner has engaged in drug-related crimictatisy or any
violent criminal activity;

4, The owner has a history or practice of noncoamaie with HQS
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for units leased under Section 8 or with applicdidasing
standards for units leased with project-based Ge&iassistance
or leased under any other federal housing program;

5. The owner has a history or practice of rentingsuthat fail to
meet state or local codes;

6. The owner has not paid state or local real estetes, fines or
assessments;
7. The owner refuses (or has a history of refusiaggvict families

for drug-related criminal activity or for activithhat threatens the
health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoymenthef t

a. Premises by tenant, CHA employees, or owner
employees; or
b. Residences of neighbors
8. If the owner is the parent, child, grandpargrandchild, sister or

brother, or any member of the family of an applicsgeking the
initial use of a voucher (currently shopping) usl€&HA
determines that approving the unit would providesmnable
accommodation for a family member who is a persih w
disabilities;

9. The owner refuses Direct Deposit;
10. Other conflicts of interest under federtdies, or local law.

CHA will take the following actions for owners wiatready participate in the Housing Choice
Voucher Program:

1. CHA will suspend a unit, an apartment complebandlord for
three (3) to twelve (12) months if:

a. complex/unit consistently fails HQS inspecsidor failure of
the Landlord to properly maintain the unit/compiexa decent,
safe and sanitary manner; or

b. Landlord charges Families a security deposit ¢éxceeds
what is charged to unsubsidized renters.

2. CHA will ban a Landlord for a minimum of six mihs to
permanently if:

a. the complex/Landlord charges assisted fanebids rent or
executes a “side agreement” for rent or other st approved prior to
the execution of the HAP contract; or
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b. the Landlord commits fraud, bribery or anyestborrupt or
criminal act in connection with the Section 8 VoecRrogram; or

c. the Landlord violates Section 8 Voucher Progra
regulations, the HAP contract or CHA policy; or

d. the Landlord engages in violent or drug relateehinal
activity; or

e. the Landlord has a history or practice ofeayhplying with
the HQS for units leased on the program; or

f.  the Landlord has a history or practice of eotorcing the
Lease; or

g. the Landlord has a history or practicenof terminating a
family when the head-of-household, household menpthesst or a person
under the control of the household engages inigactivat:

(). threatens the right to peaceful enjoymentef t
premises by other residents; or

(2). threatens the health or safety of other redgjer
Landlord’s employees or managers of Landlord’s
property; or

(3). threatens the health or safety of or the right
peaceful enjoyment of their residences, by persons
living in the immediate vicinity of the premises.

3. CHA will suspend a unit, an apartment complebandlord
permanently or until verification of remediation &yicensed and
accredited company certifies that the unit is iethe residual
effects of:

a. The manufacturing of methamphetamine which has
occurred in the unit at any time.

Section XIII. Security Deposit

The owner may collect a security deposit from #ant in an amount not in excess of
amounts charged in private market practice andmekcess of amounts charged by the
owner to unassisted tenants.

When the tenant moves from the dwelling unit, thener, subject to state or local law,
may use the security deposit (including any inteoesthe deposit) according to the lease,
as reimbursement for any unpaid rent payable byehant, damages to the unit, or for
other amounts the tenant owes under the lease.
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The owner must give the tenant a written list dfiteims charged against the security
deposit and the amount of each item. After dedgcthe amount (if any) used to

reimburse the owner, the owner must refund promibtey full amount of the unused
balance to the tenant.

If the security deposit is not sufficient to comounts the tenant owes under the lease,
the owner may seek to collect the balance frontehant.

Section XIV. Ineligible/Eligible Housing

The following types of housing cannot be assisteden the Section 8 Tenant Based
Housing Choice Voucher Program:

A. A public housing or Indian housing unit;
B. A unit receiving project-based assistancesu@dSection 8 program,;

C. Nursing homes, board and care homes, oritfasilproviding continual
psychiatric, medical, or nursing services;

D. College or other school dormitories;

E. Units on the grounds of penal, reformatangdical, mental, and similar
public or private institutions; and

F. A unit receiving any duplicate federal, statelocal housing subsidy. This
does not prohibit renting a unit that has a redussd because of a tax
credit.

CHA will approve leases for the following housirypeés:
A. Single family dwellings

B. Apartments

C. Duplexes

D. Townhouses

E. Manufactured housing

F. Modular homes

G. Home ownership option (if applicable)

Section XV. Moves with Continued Assistance
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Participating families are allowed to move to amotanit after the initial 12 months has
expired or if CHA has terminated the HAP contraCtiHA will issue the family another
voucher if the family does not owe CHA money, has violated a Family Obligation,
has not committed serious or repeated violationtheflease (see Section 2.3.D.), and if
CHA has sufficient funding for continued assistanceFamilies participating in the
Housing Choice Voucher Program will not be allowednove more than once in any
12-month period and under no circumstances will Gildw a participant to improperly
break a lease except under extraordinary circuroetan

A. When a Family May Move

Families on the Section 8 Voucher Program may naowevhere within the United
States and U.S. territory. Families who wish toreout of CHA jurisdiction may do so
utilizing the portability feature of their Vouchemhe Family must provide a written

notice of intent to vacate to the Landlord accogdimthe Landlord’s lease and provide a
copy of such notice to the CHA.

After the Move Tenant notice is given, the Familysnmove from the unit or execute a
Continued Occupancy document with the Landlordaredent it to the Housing Choice
Voucher Program (Section 8) staff. The Landlord hwasrect all deficiencies and pass
the inspection before the HAP terminates. CHA va#istablish the HAP payments when
the unit passes inspection, but will not make atgoactive payments for any period the
unit did not meet HQS.

1. Families Eligible for Relocation

Families who are currently receiving subsidy mdgaate under any of the following
conditions:

a. The Family has resided in their present umitfdeast twelve (12)
months; or

b. The Family has resided in their present unittie time required under
the most recent lease provided to CHA, and hasgiveper written
notice of their intent to vacate to their Landlamtd CHA; or

c. The unit has failed a Housing Quality StanddrI3S) inspection and
the Landlord failed to meet CHA deadline for cotiag identified
problems and/or failed to request a re-inspectich@unit; or

d. The unit has been damaged or destroyed bgffilatural disaster; or

e. The Landlord does not wish to continue paréitign in the Section 8
Voucher Program (Federal regulations prohibit adlard from leaving
the Section 8 Voucher Program during the first yddfamily occupancy
by a Section 8 Voucher recipient); or

f. CHA determines the Landlord has breached timéraot; or
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g. The Family has been evicted by the Landlorddasons that do not
violate the terms of their family obligations as$ &eth in 24 CFR
982.552, as amended.

Restriction on Moves
a. A Family may not relocate during the initishée term.

b. CHA will limit the number of times a Family magarch for housing
to once every twelve (12) months, except:

(). in circumstances where the unit is in violatad the
Landlord’s responsibilities under Housing Quality
Standards; or

(2). the Family can no longer reside in the uni tlumedical
conditions verified by a physician.

c. Families in noncompliance with a promissory rentd/or an
agreement to repay a bad debt with CHA will nopbemitted to move
until the debt is brought current under the termthe agreement.

d. CHA will not relocate Families evicted by a L&ord for serious or
repeated violations of their lease agreement dkedpaut in CHA
Procedure 501-2.2.

e. Families must honor the notice of intent to ¥v@caven to the
Landlord as stipulated in the lease agreement.vAauntract will not be
executed prior to the month stipulated in the motiEamilies who move
early will be responsible for the rent to the Ladluntil the new contract
is executed.

f. CHA will pay the current Landlord the HAP thrduthe end of the
month the contract will terminate, unless the HAR heen abated.

g. The Family has not resided in their present fanithe required
amount of time under their current lease, but Hdained the Landlord’s
written approval to terminate the lease due torexéing circumstances
that require the Family to move. Such moves asedan conditions that
threaten the safety and welfare of the Family (elgmestic violence), or
changes in the family composition or for econonei@sons (job change)
and require the review and approval of the Direofokssisted Housing or
his designee.

Family Absence from Unit
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The Family is obligated to use the assisted dwgllinit for residence by members of the
Family as listed on the HAP Contract and Leasee Uit must be the Family’s only
place of residence.

The Family may be absent from the unit for briefigas, not to exceed three (3) weeks
in duration. Absence is defined to mean no memmb#re family is residing in the unit.
If absence shall exceed three (3) weeks, approuat be obtained from the Director or
his designee and may only be approved for othed gaase.

B. Portability

A family, whose head or spouse has a legal resed¢oic works) in the jurisdiction of
CHA at the time the family first submits its applion for participation in the CHA
program, may lease a unit anywhere in the jurigzhctof CHA or outside CHA
jurisdiction as long as there is another entityrapeg a tenant-based Section 8 program
covering the location of the proposed unit.

If the head or spouse of the assisted family do¢have a legal residence or work in the
jurisdiction of CHA at the time of its applicatiothe family will not have any right to
lease a unit outside of CHA jurisdiction for a 12mth period beginning when the family
is first admitted to the program. During this peki the family may only lease a unit
located in the jurisdiction of CHA.

Families may only move to a jurisdiction where act®®m 8 Program is being
administered. For income targeting purposes, #meily will count toward the initial

housing agency's goals unless the receiving housgency absorbs the family. If
absorbed, the admission will count toward the rgngihousing agency's goals.

If a family has moved from their assisted unit iolation of the lease, CHA will not
issue a voucher and will terminate.

1. Income Eligibility

a. A family must be income-eligible in the arelaene the family first
leases a unit with assistance in the Voucher Pnogra

b. If a porting family is already a participamt the Initial Housing
Agency's Voucher Program, income eligibility is naoe-
determined.

2. Portability: Administration by Receiving Hong Agency
a. When a family utilizes portability to move an area outside the

Initial Housing Agency jurisdiction, another HougiAgency (the
Receiving Housing Agency) must administer assigafwe the
family if that Housing Agency has a tenant-basedgpm
covering the area where the unit is located.
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b. A Housing Agency with jurisdiction in the aredoere the family
wants to lease a unit must issue the family a veuchf there is
more than one such Housing Agency, the Initial Hogyigency
may choose which Housing Agency shall become theeRimg
Housing Agency.

Portability Procedures
a. When CHA is the Initial Housing Agency:

(1). CHA will brief the family on the processathmust take
place to exercise portability. The family will bequired to
attend an applicant or movers briefing.

(2). CHA will determine whether the family is mme-eligible
in the area where the family wants to lease a (ihit
applicable).

(3). CHA will advise the family how to contact camequest
assistance from the Receiving Housing Agency.

(4). CHA will, within ten (10) calendar days, fiigt the
Receiving Housing Agency to expect the family.

(5). CHA will immediately mail to the Receiving odsing
Agency the most recent HUD Form 50058 (Family Rgpor
for the family, and related verification informatio

(6). CHA may deny a portability request to a mlighat is
requesting portability to a PHA whose payment stadd
exceeds CHA payment standard if the Receiving PHA w
not absorb the client.

CHA may in certain circumstances deny a family tighit to exercise a
portability move keeping the following caveats imch

o Insufficient funding,

0 Receiving PHA will not absorb the family, and

o The cost of the HAP is higher in the new
jurisdiction.

b. When CHA is the Receiving Housing Agency:

(). If funding is available under the consolethtACC for
CHA Voucher Program when the porting family is
received, CHA will absorb the family into its Voweh
Program. After absorption, the family is assisteith
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).

(3).

funds available under the consolidated ACC for CHA
Tenant-Based Program.

CHA will issue a voucher to the family. Them of CHA
voucher will not expire before the expiration dafeany
Initial Housing Agency's voucher. CHA will detemei
whether to extend the voucher term. The family tmus
submit a Request for Tenancy Approval (RFTA) to CHA
during the term of CHA voucher.

CHA will determine the family unit size fdhe porting

family. The family unit size is determined accoglito
CHA subsidy standards.
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(4). CHA will (within ten (10) calendar days) ifgtthe Initial
Housing Agency if the family has leased an eligibtat
under the program or if the family fails to submRequest
for Tenancy Approval for an eligible unit within the term of
the voucher.

(5). If CHA opts to conduct a new reexaminatiGhA will not
delay issuing the family a voucher or otherwiseagel
approval of a unit unless the recertification isessary to
determine income eligibility.

(6). To provide tenant-based assistance for mpgprtamilies,
CHA will perform all Housing Agency program funatis,
such as reexaminations of family income and contioosi
At any time, either the Initial Housing Agency oH&
may make a determination to deny or terminate t@ssie
to the family according to 24 CFR 982.552.

(7). CHA may deny or terminate assistance donify action or
inaction according to 24 CFR 982552 and 24 CFR
982.553.

4. Portability Billing

To cover assistance for a porting family, the Raogi Housing Agency may bill
the Initial Housing Agency for housing assistanegments and administrative
fees. The billing procedure will be as follows:

a. The receiving PHA must submit an initial billing treee (1) no later
than 10 working days following the date the HAP tcact was
executed and (2) in time that it will be receiveallater than 60 days
following the expiration date of the family’s vowahissued by the
initial PHA.

b. As the Initial Housing Agency, CHA will makeyaent within 30
days of receipt of Part Il of the Form 52665 indirmg billing
amount. The amount of the housing assistance payfoena
porting family in the Receiving Housing Agency'sogram is
determined in the same manner as for other famileghe
Receiving Housing Agency's program. The Receivi@ising
Agency's Payment Standard is used except when Céthes a
portability request to a PHA whose payment standatdeeds
CHA payment standard.

C. The Initial Housing Agency will promptly reimtse the Receiving
Housing Agency for 80% of the Initial Housing Aggiscongoing
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administrative fee for each unit month that the ifpmeceives
assistance under the tenant-based programs arsdistea by the
Receiving Housing Agency.

d. The receiving PHA must notify CHA of any olga in the billing
amount as soon as possible (preferably beforedffective date to
avoid retroactive adjustments) but in no circlanses any later
than 10 working days following the effective dafdhe change.

e. CHA will ensure that subsequent billing aimis are received
no later than the fifth working day of Banonth for which the
monthly billing amount is due.

Section XVI. Verification

CHA will verify information related to waiting ligtreferences, eligibility, admission, and
level of benefits prior to admission. Before CH¥sues a voucher, information must be
updated (if more than sixty (60) days old) to werithat eligibility is current.
Periodically, during occupancy, items related tigikility and rent determination shall
also be reviewed and verified. Household Incorseets, and expenses will be verified,
as well as disability status, need for a live-ideaand other reasonable accommodations,
full-time student status of family members 18 yeafsage and older, Social Security
numbers, citizenship/eligible non-citizen statud any claimed medical expenses. Ages
and relationship of household members will onlyveeified in those instances where
needed to make a determination of level of assstan

CHA will use HUD’s Upfront Income Verification (UIV tools, to the extent that

tools/systems are available to CHA, to verify inemformation before or during a

family’s reexamination of household income. UI\oI®to be used include, but are not
limited to, the following:

A. Verification Tools

Due to the sensitive nature of UIV data, CHA wéktrict access to and safeguard the
information in accordance with HUD guidance on sigurocedures, as issued and
made available by HUD. Verification documents Wi kept in the applicant/tenant file,
when needed, and shredded/destroyed when no loegeled. Files will be kept in a
secure area that requires electronic key entry i 6taff.

1. Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System — A HUD-provided
Internet-based wage and benefit tool that allowsACi validate the
accuracy of tenant-reported income through an iedéent source. EIV
systematically and uniformly maintains income imf@tion in
computerized form for subsidized household members.

2. Tenant Assessment Subsystem (TASS) A HUD-provided Internet-
based benefit tool that matches Social Security) @# Supplemental
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Security Income (SSI) to comparable tenant daten fRIC and TRACS
databases.

Types of Income

1.

Gross wages and salaries (including overtime paynaission, fees, tips,
bonuses, and other compensation for personal ssjvic

Unemployment compensation
Welfare benefits
Social Security benefits

a. Social Security (SS)
b. Supplemental Security Income (SSI)

Other income types (i.e., child support, pensiats,) may be verified using
upfront income verification techniques if the resms are available.

Using Verification Tools

1.

Using Up-Front Income Verification (UIV)to Project Income — CHA

will follow “HUD Guidelines for Projecting Annualncome When Up-
Front Income Verification (UIV) Data Is Available’in handling

differences between UIV and family-provided andfther verified
income information. The guidelines establish ciiteon whether a
difference is substantial or not. HUD definedstantial difference as a
difference of $200 or more per month.

a. No Substantial Difference—- If UIV information for a particular
income source differs from the information provideyl a family
by less than $200 per month, CHA will follow thegedelines:

(2) If the UIV figure is less than current familygvided
information, CHA will use the family’s informationo
calculate anticipated annual income.

(2) If the UIV figure is more than the family’s fige, CHA
will use the UIV data to calculate anticipated aainu
income unless the family provides documentationaof
change in circumstances (i.e., change in employment
reduction in hours, etc.) to explain the discregant/pon
receipt of acceptable family-provided documentatodra
change in circumstances CHA will use the familyyided
information.
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b. Substantial Difference — If UIV information for a particular
income source differs from the information provideyl a family
by $200 or more per month, CHA will follow theseidglines:

(1) CHA will request written third-party verificatn from the
discrepant income source in accordance with 24 CFR
5.236(b)(3)(i).

(2) When CHA cannot readily anticipate income (iie.cases
of seasonal employment, unstable working hours, or
suspected fraud), CHA will review historical incordata
for patterns of employment, paid benefits, andémerpt of
other income.

3) CHA will analyze all UlV, third-party, and famgiprovided
data and attempt to resolve the income discrepancy.

4) CHA will use the most current verified incomata (and
historical income data, if appropriate) to calcelat
anticipated annual income.

Verification of SS/SSI Benefits of Participants ad Household
Member — CHA will obtain verification of SS/SSI benefits pérticipants
and household members through SWICA and Enterpiisgome
Verification (EIV) System.

If benefit information is not available in HUD Sgsts or if the tenant
disputes EIV benefit data, CHA will request a catr@riginal SSA notice
or benefit verification letter from each househaolémber who receives
Social Security benefits within 10 business day<HIA interview date.
If the participant and/or household member(s) arable to provide the
requested document, CHA will ask the participanifehold member(s)
to call SSA at 1-800-772-1213 or visit the localAS&fice to request a
benefit verification letter. The request for a binverification letter can
also be made at the SSA Internet Website at wwwgsga The
participant/household member(s) should provide Chith the original
benefit verification letter. CHA will make a photmquy of the original
benefit verification letter, return the originalrsdit verification letter to
the participant/household member, and maintain ghetocopy of the
benefit verification letter in the tenant file. Hif same process can be
used when third-party verification of SS/SSI betsefs not available for
applicants and/or their household members.)

Documentation of Unavailability of Third-Party Verification of
SS/SSI Benefits tn the event that third-party verification is noadable,
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CHA will document the tenant file as to why thirdrpy verification was
not available. Below are some examples of accepfidbldocumentation:

a New admission, information not available thiottjJD systems

b. New tenant, information not available througdsystems

C. Current tenant, information not available tlglouHUD systems
due to change in re-examination date

d. Current tenant, information not available thdougUD systems

due to discrepancy with name, date of birth, oriadosecurity
number in SSA file

e. Current tenant, information not available thiougUD systems,
reason unknown

D. Methods of Verification and Timelines

CHA will verify family information through the fivemethods of verification
authorized by HUD.

1. HUD requires CHA to use the most reliablenfaof verification
that is available and to document in the file the@sons when CHA
uses a lesser form of verification. In order oiopty, forms of
verification that may be used are:

a. Enterprise Income Verification (EIV), when availabl
b. Third-party written
C. Third-party oral
d. Review of documents
e. Self-certification/declaration
2. CHA will allow seven (7) days for return of irdhparty

verifications and ten (10) business days to obtdiver types of
verifications before stepping down to the next fugaition method.

3. Verifications may not be more than 90 days aidhe time of
voucher issuance. For participants, verificatiomgst be dated
within 90 days of reexamination.

4. There may be legétendifferences between the information
provided by the family and EIV-generated informatidlo adverse action will be taken
against a family until CHA has independently vexfithe EIV information and the
family has been granted an opportunity to contest adverse findings through the
informal review/hearing process of CHA.

Levels of Verification
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Age, relationship, U.S. citizenship, and Social 8¢ numbers will generally be
verified with documentation provided by the famibl adult (18+) household members
are required to sign appropriate forms authorizeigase of information to the CHA.

1.

Third-party written verification will be used to confirm
information directly with the source. Third-partwritten

verification forms will be sent directly to, andceived directly
from (via first-class mail), the source and notgessthrough the
hands of the household. However, CHA may requedtraceive
directly from the source verifications that are ddx emailed, or
hand delivered. If third-party verification is eeed after lower
level documents have been accepted as provisi@nidication and
there is a discrepancy, CHA will utilize the thpdsty verification.

Third-party oral verification will be used when written third-
party verification is delayed or not possible. Whieind-party oral

verification is used (either by contacting sourgaddephone or in-
person visit), staff will be required to note thenme of the person
contacted and telephone number, the date of theecsation, and
the facts provided. If provided by telephone, CHWst originate
the call.

Review of Documents When third-party written or oral
verification cannot be obtained, or the informatio@s not been
verified by the third party within the allotted anCHA will note

in the file why third-party verification is not ala@ble and utilize
hand-carried documents provided by the applicaritgyeant

family as the primary source if the documents pevcomplete
information. Original documents must be providegdtie family

and should be dated within 60 days of the intervid¥otocopies
of the documents will be made and maintained infilee The

chart in the Appendix gives common examples off\cations.

Below is a list of some acceptable family-providedocuments

3 Consecutive and original pay stubs
Social Security Administration award letter
Bank statements (2 Checking; 1 Savings)
Pension benefit statements

TANF award letter

Other official and authentic documents from
a Federal, State, or local agency.

B CIE S SN B e o)

Self-Certification/Self-Declaration: When verification cannot be
made by third-party verification or review of docents,
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household members will be required to submit a-caffification.
Self certifications must be signed in the presentea CHA
representative, or a notary public. CHA will doemhin the file
why third-party verification was not available.

5. Exceptions to Third-Party Verification Requirements. When
third-party verification of income, assets, andfxpenses is
unavailable, an exception may be made to the ({iarty
verification requirement if:

1. CHA made at least two unsuccessful documented ptseta obtain third-
party verification

2. The source does not have the capability to prowd#en or oral third-
party verification

3. The asset or expense to be verified is an insgamtiamount, thus it is not

cost effective or reasonable to obtain third-padsification
Verification of Medical Expenses

To verify medical expenses, CHA will attempt thpdrty verification of medical
expenses from appropriate sources. If third-peetyfication is not available, CHA will
request the tenant to provide original documentdh |as receipts, cancelled checks, or
paycheck stubs for verifying medical insurance puens. Also the tenant will be asked
to provide receipts for payments for medical céstshysicians, pharmacies, and durable
medical equipment providers. Previous medicakhifiat have been paid in fullill not

be considered.

Verification of U.S Citizenship or Eligible NaDiizen Status

The U.S. citizenship/eligible non-citizen statuseatch family member regardless of age
must be determined. U.S. Citizenship status vellbrified only once. This verification
will be obtained prior to admission and prior tonew member joining the resident
family. Eligible non-citizen status will be vegfil at admission and annually thereatfter.

1. Prior to being admitted, all citizens and natisnwill be required to sign a
declaration under penalty of perjury. (They wid kequired to show proof of their
status by such means as Social Security card, ¢ertificate, military 1D or military
DD 214 Form.)

2. Prior to being admitted, all eligible noncitizewho are 62 years of age or older will
be required to sign a declaration under penaltyeofury. They will also be required
to show proof of age.

3. Prior to being admitted, all eligible noncitizemust sign a declaration of their status
and a verification consent form and provide theigioal INS documentation. CHA
will make a copy of the individual's INS documerdatand place the copy in the file.
CHA also will verify their status through the INR®GE system. If the INS SAVE
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system cannot confirm eligibility, CHA will mail farmation to the INS so a manual
check can be conducted on INS records.

4. Family members who do not claim to be citgemationals, or eligible non-citizens,
must be listed on a Statement of Non-eligible Mersband the list must be signed by the head
of the household. Any family member who does fmtase to declare their status must be listed
on the statement of non-eligible members.

5. Non-citizen students on U.S. student visas, ghom the country legally, are not
eligible to be admitted to the Housing Choice VardArogram.

If no family member is determined to be eligibleden this Section, the family's
admission will be denied.

The family's assistance will not be denied, delayeduced, or terminated because of a
delay in the process of determining eligible statnder this Section, except to the extent
that the delay is caused by the family.

If CHA determines that a family member has knowyngermitted an ineligible non-
citizen (other than any ineligible non-citizens the list) to permanently reside in their
Section 8 unit, the family’s assistance will bentarated. Such household members will
not be eligible to be readmitted to Section 8 fqreaiod of 24 months from the date of
termination.

H. Verification of Social Security Numbers

1. Prior to admission, each family member must pi®werification of their Social
Security number. If a member of an applicant fgnmidicates they have a Social
Security number, but cannot readily verify it, theember may submit a written
certification of the number. CHA will allow sixi{0) calendar days from the date of
application for the applicant member to provide tequired documentation. The
application will retain its position on the waitingist while the required
documentation is being obtained. If the documeéntais not provided within the
allotted time, the application will be denied. Ndéamily members must provide
verification prior to being added to the vouchéferification of the Social Security
number will be obtained only once.

2. The preferred method to verify the Social Seégunumber is the original Social
Security card. If the card is not available, CHAlaccept letters from the Social
Security Administration that establish and state tumber. Documentation from
other governmental agencies will also be acceptatestablish and state the number.
Drivers license, military ID, passports, or othéfiatal documents that establish and
state the number are also acceptable.

Timing of Verification

1. Eligibility information must be updated (if motiean ninety (90) days old) to verify
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that an applicant is eligible.  Verification infoation for tenants must be dated
within ninety (90) days of their reexamination.the verification is older than ninety
(90) days, the source will be contacted and as&egrdvide information regarding

any changes.

2. When an interim reexamination is conducted, CWA verify and update all
information related to family circumstances ancklesf assistance.

Section XVII. Compliance Investigations

A. The discrepancy results in an overpayment of rgrnhé participant

1.

2.

3.

CHA shall process an interim re-certification ifcegsary to correct
any underpayment of subsidy or UAP due to miscatau of income
following the procedure found in the HCVP Stand@gkrating
Procedures Manual, Processing Interim Rent Changes.

An adjustment of Subsidy and/or UAP shall be issamsd processed to
the effective date of the re-certification where thscrepancy of
income and overpayment of subsidy and/or UAP ar@isidy is

first charged.

Accounting shall issue a check to the participarthe amount of the
overpayment no later than 30 days following proecessf the
adjustment for the period of overpayment.

B. The discrepancy results in Overpayment of subsyd€HA of $499.00 or

less.

1.

The Program Compliance Auditor will issue a 30 D@ymination of
Subsidy Noticdetter via certified and standard mail to the apant
with e-mail copy to the HCVP Program Manager. Thgipipant will
have the right to request a formal hearing. Thigiest must be made
in writing to the Program Compliance Auditor at #iddress specified
in the 30 Day Termination of Subsidy Noti@d must be received no
later than 14 days before the date of the 30 Dasnifation of
Subsidy Notice Hearings will be conducted throughout the manth
a scheduled basis. Present at the formal hearithavihe Program
Compliance Auditor (Hearing Officer), HCVP Progradanager or
Representative and participant.

If the Hearing Officer finds in favor of the paipant, he/she will
determine if the effective re-certification is aaet or if an interim re-
certification is necessary to correct any underpaynof subsidy
and/or UAP. If there has been an underpaymentlufidy and/or
UAP, Step 1.a-c of this procedure shall be followed
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3. If the Hearing Officer determines the discreparccheé valid, resulting
in an overpayment of subsidy and/or UAP, the Prnogkéanager or
his/her representative may offer a repayment ageaenequiring a
down payment of 25 percent of the total amount tlubge paid within
30 days of the hearing date with the balance paigito twelve equal
monthly payments. The payments will be due on the Bth or 25th
of the month as agreed by both parties. The ppattireserves the
right to repay the full amount due at any time dgrihe agreed upon
repayment period.

4. The 25% down payment and all subsequent paymerdgsbeumade at
the Central Office of CHA at 801 N Holtzclaw Ave.

5. If the participant fails to request a fraud hearitggmination of
subsidy and/or UAP will be enforced as noted in3@day
Termination of Subsidy Noticetter and the total amount due with
reasonable collection and legal fees added witeferred for
collection and/or the case shall be referred tadH& Public Safety
Department who will initiate a criminal investigai and if warranted
refer the case to the Hamilton County Grand Jungpéctor General’s
office or other law enforcement agency for prosiecut

6. If the participant fails to make the full down pagmt in the required
time, termination of subsidy and/or UAP will be erded as noted in
the 30 Day Termination of Subsidy Notiletter and the total amount
due with reasonable collection and legal fees addidbe referred for
collection and/or the case shall be referred tdXH& Public Safety
Department who will initiate a criminal investigai and if warranted
refer the case to the Hamilton County Grand Jungpéctor General’s
office or other law enforcement agency for prosecut

7. If at anytime the participant fails to make hestuled payment within
30 days of the payment due date the entire balsimébecome due
and the participant will be notified of terminatiohsubsidy and/or
UAP. If any amount is unpaid as of the date of teation of subsidy
and/or UAP, the total amount due with reasonabliecoon and legal
fees added will be referred for collection.

C. The discrepancy results in overpayment of subsidlyax UAP by the Tenant
$500.00 to $1999.00.

1. The Program Compliance Auditor will issue a8y Termination of
Subsidy Noticdetter via certified and standard mail to the gapant with
e-mail copy to the HCVP Program Manager. The Hpeit will have the
right to request a formal hearing. This requesttrbasmade in writing to
the Program Compliance Auditor at the address fipdcn the 30 Day
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Termination of Subsidy Noticend must be received no later than 14 days
before the date of the 30 Day Termination of Supsldtice Hearings

will be conducted throughout the month on a schestibasis. Present at

the formal hearing will be the Program Complianaeli#or (Hearing

Officer), HCVP Program Manager or Representatiwe @articipant.

If the Hearing Officer finds in favor of the piaipant, he/she will
determine if the effective re-certification is aaet or if an interim re-
certification is necessary to correct any overpaynoérent. If there has
been an overpayment of rent, Step 1.a-c of thisquiore shall be
followed.

If the Hearing Officer determines the discrepatacbe valid, resulting in
an overpayment of subsidy and/or UAP, the Prograamader or his/her
representative may offer a repayment agreementriiega down
payment of 25 percent of the total amount duegtpdid within 30 days
of the hearing date with the balance paid in upvielve equal monthly
payments. The payments will be due on the 5th, @6&2bth of the month
as agreed by both parties. The participant res¢heesght to repay the
full amount due at any time during the agreed ugpayment period.

. The 25% down payment and all subseqo@yrnent must be made at the
Central Office of CHA at 801 Holtzclaw Boulevard

If the participant fails to requedtaud hearing, termination of subsidy
and/or UAP will be enfectas noted in the 30 Day Termination of
Subsidy Notice letter and the tat@ount due with reasonable collection
and legal fees added hallreferred for collection and/or the case shall b
referred to the CHA Public Safetyp@ement who will initiate a criminal
investigation and if warranted refes case to the Hamilton County
Grand Jury, Inspector &atis office or other law enforcement agency
for prosecution..

If the participant fails to make the full dowayment in the required time,
termination of subsidy and/or UAP will be enfora@sinoted in the 30

Day Termination of Subsidy Notidetter and the case shall be referred to
the CHA Public Safety Department who will initisecriminal

investigation and if warranted refer the case &Hlamilton County

Grand Jury, Inspector General's Office or other é&aiorcement agency
for prosecution.

. If at anytime the participant fails to make hestuled payment within 30
days of the payment due date the entire balandeb&t@mme due and
participant will be notified of termination of sutlg and/or UAP. If any
amount is unpaid as of the date of terminationubkgly and/or UAP, the
total amount due with reasonable collection andlléges added will be
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referred for collection and/or the case shall ferred to the CHA Public
Safety Department who will initiate a criminal irstgation and if
warranted refer the case to the Hamilton Countyn@thury, Inspector
General’s Office or other law enforcement agency

D. The discrepancy results in overpayment of subsidlya UAP by the
participant of $2000.00 or greater.

The Program Compliance Auditor will issue a 30 Daymination of Subsidy
Noticeletter via certified and standard mail to the mapant with e-mail copy
to the HCVP Program Manager. The participant waNé the right to request
a formal hearing. This request must be made iringrio the Program
Compliance Auditor at the address specified in3d®ay Termination of
Subsidy Noticeand must be received no later than 14 days béferdate of
the 30 Day Termination of Subsidy Noticklearings will be conducted
throughout the month on a scheduled basis. Praséme formal hearing will
be the Program Compliance Auditor (Hearing OfficetCVP Program
Manager or Representative, Public Safety and paatit.

1. If the Hearing Officer finds in favor of the paipant, he/she will
determine if the effective re-certification is aaet or if an interim re-
certification is necessary to correct any underpaynof subsidy
and/or UAP. If there has been an underpaymentlufidy and/or
UAP, Step 1.a-c of this procedure shall be followed

2. If the Hearing Officer determines the discreparccheé valid, resulting
in an overpayment of subsidy and/or UAP, participeili be offered
the opportunity of repayment. The repayment agreemél require
that the overpayment be repaid in full in a lummguayment within
30 days of the hearing date. Absolutely no pap#aiment will be
accepted. If participant refuses repayment agraeordail to comply
with the specific terms of the repayment agreerntemmination of
subsidy and/or UAP will be enforced as noted in38day
Termination of Subsidy Noticketter and the total amount due with
reasonable collection and legal fees added witelerred for
collection and/or the case shall be referred tdXH& Public Safety
Department who will initiate a criminal investigai and if warranted
refer the case to the Hamilton County Grand Jungpéctor General’s
Office or other law enforcement agency for prosecut

E. File Documentation

CHA will document in the file how the figures used mcome and rent
calculations were determined. All verification atigs, information obtained,
and decisions reached during the verification psceill be recorded in the
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family’s file in sufficient detail to demonstrathat CHA has followed all of

the verification policies set forth in this planhd& record should be sufficient
to enable a staff member or HUD reviewer to undegthe process followed
and conclusions reached. Applicant/participantres/files will be retained

by CHA for a period of not less than three (3) gear

Section XVIII. Rent and Housing Assistance Payment

A. Rent Reasonableness

Program regulation requires CHA to certify that tkat charged to the housing choice
tenant is not more than the rent charged for athassisted comparable units. CHA will
not approve an initial rent (or a rent increasepny of the tenant- or voucher-based
programs without determining that the rent amowgnteasonable. Reasonableness is
determined prior to the initial lease (or at theiah HAP contract in the case of project-
based voucher units) and at the following times:

1. Before any increase in rent to owner is ap@d, owner must give a sixty
(60) day notice of increase in rent to CHA and tgndf the rent increase
is requested sixty (60) days after recertificatfonthe anniversary of the
HAP contract, in the case of project-based voucdmds), the owner may
be required to wait until the next recertificatidate to increase the rent.
CHA reserves the right to deny an increase in t@aged on funding
availability;

2. If sixty (60) days before the contract amnsary date there is a 5 percent
decrease in the published Fair Market Rent (FMRr@spared to the
previous FMR; and

3. If CHA or HUD directs that reasonablenessdsdetermined.
B. Comparability

In making a rent reasonableness determination, GilAcompare the rent for the unit to
the rent of comparable units in the same or cong@raeighborhoods. CHA will
consider the location, quality, size, number of rbecths, age, amenities, housing
services, maintenance, and utilities of the undt e comparable units.

The rent reasonableness procedures are as follows:

Addresses of unassisted units throughout CHA jiotgoh are added to a databank. The
reasonable rent for subject units is determinecelyesting three units from the
databank that match the subject unit’s zip coddrdmm and bath size and square
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footage. The program will select the units thashabosely match the subject unit. If
comparables can not be obtained from the datab#ser, sources will be utilized such as
the newspaper, internet other unassisted units fhatproperty owner. The comparable
data includes the value of utilities included ie tient, the value of amenities, and the
monthly rent. If the requested rent for the subyatt is within the range of the rent of
the comparables, the rent is reasonable.

Owners of projects with more than 4 units must cetepthe section on the back of the
Request for Tenancy Approval (RFTA), and list thmeeently leased comparable
unassisted units within the premises.

The owner must certify the rents charged for otineits. By accepting the housing
assistance payment each month, the owner is gegitfzat the rent to owner is not more
than the rent charged by the owner for comparabéssisted units in the premises. For
units assisted under the Low Income Housing Taxdi€pmrogram, rents will not exceed
the maximum permitted under applicable IRS and H&lizs and regulations.

C. Maximum Subsidy

The Fair Market Rent (FMR) published by HUD oragplicable, the exception payment
standard rent (requested by CHA and approved by Ht&ermines the maximum
subsidy for a family.

For the Housing Choice Voucher Program, the mininpayment standard will be 90
percent of the FMR and the maximum payment standdtde up to 110 percent of the
FMR without prior approval from HUD, or the exceptipayment standard approved by
HUD.

D. Setting the Payment Standard

The Statute requires that the payment standarcebbysCHA at between 90 and 110
percent of the FMR without HUD approval. CHA wiview its determination of the
payment standard annually after publication of FMRs. CHA will consider vacancy
rates and rents in the market area, rents for leatsed under the program, success rates
of voucher holders in finding units, and the petage of annual income families are
paying for rent under the Housing Choice VouchesgPam. If it is determined that
success rates will suffer or that families are hguwo pay over 40 percent of income for
rent, the payment standard may be raised to thed jesiged necessary to alleviate these
hardships.

Payment standards will not be raised solely tosatlze renting of luxury quality units.

Before increasing any payment standard, CHA wilidiect a financial feasibility test to
ensure that in using the higher standard, adeduatis will continue to be available to
assist families in the program.
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If success levels are projected to be extremeli kigd rents are projected to be at or
below 30 percent of income, CHA will reduce the paynt standard. Payment standards
for each bedroom size are evaluated separatelyatotlie payment standard for one-
bedroom size may increase or decrease while anothesins unchanged. CHA may
consider adjusting payment standards at times dth@n the annual review when
circumstances warrant.

CHA may opt to lower payment standards. A loweryrpent standard applies
immediately to all new admissions, all movers, atayers with a new HAP contract
(e.g., when the owner offers or requires a newelea&or all other voucher participants,
decreased payment standard amounts are not appliti the second regular
reexamination after the payment standard is lowei@HA may request HUD to waive
this requirement, for good cause.

If Payment Standards are lowered because of iwgeriti funding, the following will be
excluded: elderly families, disabled families, HgnSelf-Sufficiency families, and
Section 8 homeowner families.

E. Area Exception Rents (If Applicable)

To help families find housing outside areas of higlverty or when voucher holders are
having trouble finding housing for lease under phegram, CHA may request that HUD

approve an exception payment standard rent foaicesireas within its jurisdiction. The

areas may be of any size, though generally notlemidan a census tract. CHA may
request one such exception payment standard armeargy. Exception payment standard
rent authority may be requested for all or some simes or for all or some unit types.

When an exception payment standard rent has bewowga and the FMR increases, the
exception rent remains unchanged until such tim€ta requests (and HUD approves)

a higher exception payment standard rent. If thiiRFlecreases, the exception payment
standard rent authority automatically expires.

F. Assistance and Rent Formulas

1. Total Tenant Payment

The total tenant payment is equal to the highest of

a. 10 percent of monthly income
b. 30 percent of adjusted monthly income
C. Minimum rent

Plus any rent above the payment standard.
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2. Minimum Rent.

CHA has set the minimum rent &50 for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program. If the family requests a hardship exempCHA will suspend the minimum
rent for the family beginning the month followinget family’s hardship request. The
suspension will continue until CHA can determineetfter hardship exists and whether
the hardship is of a temporary or long-term natutiring suspension, the family will
not be required to pay a minimum rent and the Haug\ssistance Payment will be
increased accordingly.

a. A hardship exists in the following circumstances:

(1). When the family has lost eligibility for (&g awaiting an eligibility
determination for) a federal, state, or local dasise program;

(2). When the family would be evicted as a resiilthe imposition of
the minimum rent requirement;

(3). When the income of the family has decreasszhibse of changed
circumstances, including loss of employment;

(4). When the family has an increase in expensesause of changed
circumstances, for medical costs, child care, partation,
education, or similar items;

(5). When a death has occurred in the family.

b. No hardship. If CHA determines there is no qualifying hargshi
the minimum rent will be reinstated, including remg back
payment of minimum rent to CHA for the time of sespion.

C. Temporary hardship. If CHA determines there is a qualifying
hardship, but that it is of a temporary nature, tma@imum rent
will not be imposed for a period of 90 days frone tthate of the
family’s request. At the end of the 90-day peritte minimum
rent will be imposed retroactively to the time aspension. CHA
will offer a reasonable repayment agreement forrmmymum rent
back payment paid by CHA on the family’s behalf idgrthe
period of suspension.

d. Long-term hardship. If CHA determines there is a long-term
hardship, the family will be exempt from the minimurent
requirement until the hardship no longer exists.

e. Appeals. The family may use the informal hearing procedtor
appeal CHA determination regarding the hardshipo ddcrow
deposit will be required in order to access thenmial hearing
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procedures.

3. Rent for Families under the Non-citizen Rule

A mixed family will receive full continuation of astance if all of the following
conditions are met:

a. The family was receiving assistance on Junda495;

b. The family was granted continuation of assistabefore November
29, 1996;

d. The family's head or spouse has eligible immigrasitatus; and

e. The family does not include any person who doeshawe eligible

status other than the head of household, the spmfude head of
household, any parent of the head or spouse, orchiy (under
the age of 18) of the head or spouse.

If a mixed family qualifies for prorated assistaring decides not to accept it, or if the
family has no eligible members, the family may hbigilele for temporary deferral of
termination of assistance to permit the family &#ddal time for the orderly transition of
some or all of its members to locate other affokeldtwusing. Under this provision the
family receives full assistance. If assistancegranted under this provision prior to
November 29, 1996, it may last no longer than tlyesa's. If granted after that date, the
maximum period of time for assistance under theipron is 18 months. CHA will grant
each family a period of 6 months to find suitalfferalable housing. If the family cannot
find suitable affordable housing, CHA will provigelditional search periods up to the
maximum time allowable.

Suitable housing means housing that is not subatdrahd is of appropriate size for the

family. Affordable housing means that it can betee for an amount not exceeding the

amount the family pays for rent, plus utilities 5 percent.

The family's assistance is prorated in the follayumanner:

1. Find the prorated housing assistance paymenPJH¥ dividing the HAP by the
total number of family members, and then multiptythe result by the number of
eligible family members.

2. Obtain the prorated family share by subtractimgprorated HAP from the gross
rent (contract rent plus utility allowance).

3. The prorated tenant rent equals the proratedlyfashare minus the full utility
allowance.
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G. Utility Allowance

CHA maintains a utility allowance schedule fol tainant-paid utilities (except
telephone and cable), for cost of tenant-suppléefdgerators and ranges, and for
other tenant-paid housing services.

The utility allowance schedule is determined Hase the typical cost of utilities
and services paid by energy-conservative househtblais occupy housing of
similar size and type in the same locality. Ine&leping the schedule, CHA uses
normal patterns of consumption for the whole comityuend current utility rates.

CHA reviews the utility allowance schedule annualyd revises any allowance for a
utility category if there has been a change of é@nt or more in the utility rate since
the last time the utility allowance schedule wagised. CHA maintains information

supporting the annual review of utility allowancasd any revisions made in its utility
allowance schedule. Participants may review thiigrmation at any time by making an
appointment with the Section 8 Department.

CHA uses the appropriate utility allowance for giee dwelling unit actually leased by
the family (rather than the family unit size asasietined under CHA subsidy standards).

At each reexamination, CHA applies the utility alemce from the most current utility
allowance schedule.

CHA will approve a request for a utility allowandeat is higher than the applicable
amount on the utility allowance schedule if a highélity allowance is needed as a
reasonable accommodation to make the program aloleess and usable by the family
member with a disability.

The utility allowance will be subtracted from thanfily’s share to determine the amount
of the tenant rent. The tenant rent is the amaolmtfamily owes to the owner each
month. The amount of the utility allowance islsdifailable to the family to pay the cost
of their utilities. Any utility cost above the alance is the responsibility of the tenant.
Any savings resulting from utility costs below thmount of the allowance belong to the
tenant.

H. Distribution of Housing Assistance Payment

New HAP contracts may begin when all program rezmaents have been met. CHA
monitors its housing assistance payments to ersystem accuracy, timeliness and integrity.
All payments to Landlords and Families are madehm®ck or direct deposit, processed and
prepared through CHA Finance Department, indepdarafehe Leased Housing Department.
Payments are computed according to HUD approveduias and schedules. A copy is kept
on file of each Landlord’s Tax Identification Nunthe Social Security number.
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1. Monthly HAP

HAP disbursements are mailed on the first of eweoynth. Utility
payments to Families are mailed directly to the faat the assisted
address.

2. Late Payments

The first HAP for a new contract will be receiveal later than two
calendar months following the execution of the H&datract. All other
payments will be received by the fifth day of eaaelendar month. CHA
shall pay a late fee for HAPs not received (asngefiabove) due to factors
within CHA'’s control, in accordance with what isarged to unassisted
families which pay a late fee and not to exceedtwheharged to the
Landlord’s assisted and unassisted tenants. Ny tate fees will be paid.
This payment is made upon request from the Landjmalided the
Landlord has a policy and practice of collectinig liees from private
market tenants residing in his/her units.

No late fee will be assessed or paid by CHA ifpgagment is received late
due to factors beyond CHA'’s control or receiptlod tate payment is due
to an adjustment in either the amount of contrewt to the owner or the
HAP to be made by CHA

I.  Change of Ownership or New Ownership

CHA requires a written request by the owner whocated the HAP contract to make
changes regarding who is to receive CHA'’s rent maynor the address where the rent
payment should be sent.

In addition, CHA requires a written request frone thew owner to process a change of
ownership. The following documents must accomgaeywritten request:

1. Property Tax Notice, Settlement Statement, @edof Trust showing the
transfer of title and address,

2. Tax Identification Number or Social SecurityriNloer, and
New owners will be required to execute IRS form W-@HA may withhold the rent
payment until the Taxpayer Identification Numberédseived. The following documents

are required from the owner:

1. Property Tax Notice, Settlement Statement, @edof Trust showing the
transfer of title and address,
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2. Tax Identification Number or Social SecurityriNloer, and
3. A statement that they will accept the existimgFHcontract as is.

Section XIX. Determination of Family Income

A. Income, Exclusions from Income, Deductions frimoome

To determine annual income, CHA counts the incofmaldamily members, excluding
the types and sources of income that are spedyfieatluded. Once the annual income
is determined, CHA subtracts all allowable dedudtidallowances) as the next step in
determining the Total Tenant Payment.

1. Income
a. Annual income means all amounts, moneianot, that:

Q). Go to (or on behalf of) the family headspouse (even if
temporarily absent) or to any other family memioer,

(2). Are anticipated to be received from a sowutside the
family during the 12-month period following admissi
or annual reexamination effective date; and

(3). Are not specifically excluded from annuatome.
b. Annual income includes, but is not limited to:

(2). The full amount, before any payroll deductipof wages
and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, aipb
bonuses, and other compensation for personal gstvic

(2). The net income from the operation of a bess or
profession. Expenditures for business expansion or
amortization of capital indebtedness are not used a
deductions in determining net income. An allowafare
depreciation of assets used in a business or giofes
may be deducted, based on straight-line deprenia#is
provided in Internal Revenue Service regulatiorsy
withdrawal of cash or assets from the operationaof
business or profession is included in income, extep
the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of cash
assets invested in the operation by the family.
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A).

(4).

(5).

(6).

Interest, dividends, and other net incomean§ kind
from real or personal property. Expenditures for
amortization of capital indebtedness are not used a
deductions in determining net income. An allowafare
depreciation of assets used in a business or giofes
may be deducted, based on straight-line depreniaéis
provided in Internal Revenue Service regulatiorsny
withdrawal of cash or assets from an investment is
included in income, except to the extent the wilndil is
reimbursement of cash or assets invested by thdyfam
Where the family has net family assets in excess of
$5,000, annual income includes the greater of theah
income derived from all net family assets or a petage

of the value of such assets based on the curresbpak
savings rate, as determined by HUD. During
reexaminations, CHA will obtain each family's
certification that it has or has not disposed dess for
less than fair market value during the two yeaesgding
the effective date of the recertification. If th@mily
certifies that it has disposed of assets for lbss tfair
market value, the certification must show: (a)asdbets
disposed of for less than fair market value, (I8 tate
they were disposed of, (c) the amount the famitenesd

for each asset, and (d) the market value of easét a4
the time of disposition. Third-party verificatiomill be
obtained whenever possible.

The full amount of periodic amounts receifen

Social Security, annuities, insurance policieirement
funds, pensions, disability or death benefasd other
similar types of periodic receipts, including anjorsum
amount or prospective monthly amounts for takeykd
start of a periodic amount. (However, deferred qukd
amounts from supplemental security income and $ocia
Security benefits that are received in a lumm sumount
or in prospective monthly amounts are excluded.)

Payments in lieu of earnings, such as uneympént and
disability compensation, worker's compensation, and
severance pay. (However, lump sum additions sgch a
insurance payments from workers’ compensation are
excluded.)

Periodic and determinable allowances, sulalanony
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and child support payments, and regular contrilmstior
gifts received from organizations or from persorm n
residing in the dwelling.

(7). All regular pay, special pay, and allowes of a member
of the Armed Forces. (Special pay to a member segbo
to hostile fire is excluded.);

(8). Imputed welfare income resulting from samsio
imposed by welfare agency;

CHA will annualize seasonal income over a twatvonth period
based upon the past income; and spread cyclicalhiacover a
twelve-month period rather than redetermining inedimroughout
the year (ex. For 9-month school employees, incamie be

divided over 12 months. No interim rent adjustmenli be

required).

Families whose welfare assistance (Families Fiistyeduced
specifically because of fraud or failure to pagate in an
economic self-sufficiency program or comply with \&ork
activities requirement must not have their Sec8arontribution to
rent reduced based on the Families First benediaation. The
exclusion on reduction of Section 8 rent contribatidoes not
apply when the family has complied with their Faesl First
Program requirements but cannot obtain employmerg. ( the
family has complied but loses welfare benefits beeaof a
durational time limit, such as the five-year tinmit for receipt of
Families First benefits).

At all times when a request for an income reexationaand rent
reduction due to a reduction in Families First meois received,
CHA will verify with the local division of the Deptment of
Human Services (DHS) that the family’s benefits éndveen
reduced because of noncompliance with economiesséfitiency
requirements, work activities requirements, or heeaof fraud.
Verification may be obtained, in written form, ditly from the
local DHS office, or through the ACCENT computestgyn. The
verification will be maintained in the tenant file.

If verification is obtained from DHS that the fagid benefits have
been reduced because of noncompliance with econaelic
sufficiency requirements, work activities requirertss or because
of fraud, the family’s income must not be reducedgurposes of
calculating the family’'s TTP. Instead, the fartslywelfare
income must be “imputed” during the term of the fad benefits
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2.

sanction. CHA will verify with DHS the term oféhsanction.

To impute welfare benefits reduction:

(1). Determine the amount of welfare income nez
prior to the sanction.

(2). Determine the term of the sanction.

(3). Offset the amount of additional income thmily
receives that starts after the welfare sanctioff.
additional income received after the welfare
sanction begins is equal to the amount of welfare
income received prior to the sanction, the imputed
welfare income is equal to $0.

CHA will not include imputed welfare income in arahuncome if the family was not an
assisted resident at the time of the sanction.a résident is not satisfied that CHA has
calculated the amount of imputed welfare incomeatiog to HUD requirements, and if
CHA denies the family's request to modify such ampihen CHA shall give the
resident written notice of such denial, with a begplanation of the basis for CHA's
determination of the amount of imputed welfare meo CHA's notice shall also state
that if the resident does not agree with the detetion, the resident may grieve the
decision according to our grievance policy. Thadent is not required to pay an escrow
deposit for the portion of the resident's rentiladtable to the imputed welfare income to

obtain a grievance hearing.

Such welfare agency determinations are the respiitysof the welfare agency, and the
family may seek appeal of such determinations thinaihe welfare agency’s normal due
process procedures. CHA shall rely on the weléayency notice to CHA of the welfare
agency’s determination of a specified welfare bismegduction.

Exclusions from Income

Annual income does not include the following:

a. Earned income of minors (children underage of 18, including foster children)
except head of household or spouse;

b. Payments received for the care of fostdddm or foster adults (usually persons
with disabilities, unrelated to the tenant famiyho are unable to live alone);

C. Lump-sum additions to family assets, such agritdnces, insurance payments
(including payments under health and accident arstg and workers’
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compensation), capital gains, and settlement fosgueal or property losses;

Amounts received by the family that are spealify for, or in reimbursement of,
the cost of medical expenses for any family member;

Income of a live-in aide. To qualify as asédln Aide, a tenant’s medical
professional must document that the tenant neeligean aide. CHA must
screen the aide and add their name to the terleass.

The full amount of student financial assistapeéd directly to the student or to
the educational institution;

The special pay to a family member serving g1 Anmed Forces who is exposed
to hostile fire;

The amounts received from the following programs
(1). Amounts received under training progrdumsled by HUD;

(2). Amounts received by a person with a digghtihat are disregarded for a
limited time for purposes of Supplemental Secuirtyome eligibility and
benefits because they are set aside for use undelam to Attain
Self-Sufficiency (PASS);

(3). Amounts received by a participant in otpeblicly assisted programs that
are specifically for, or in reimbursement of, otHpocket expenses
incurred (special equipment, clothing, transpootatichild care, etc.) and
that are made solely to allow participation in a@fic program;

(4). Amounts received under a resident sergiggend. A resident service
stipend is a modest amount (not to exceed $200npath) received by a
resident for performing a service for CHA or ownem, a part-time basis,
that enhances the quality of life in the developm&uch services may
include, but are not limited to, fire patrol, hathonitoring, lawn
maintenance, and resident initiative coordinatiolNo resident may
receive more than one such stipend during the gemed of time;

(5) Incremental earnings and benefits resultingrg family member from
participation in qualifying state or local employméraining programs
(including training programs not affiliated withlacal government) and
training of a family member as resident managenstatf. Amounts
excluded by this provision must be received undepleyment training
programs with clearly defined goals and objectiard are excluded only
for the period during which the family member pagates in the
employment training program;
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(6).
(7).

(8).

(9).

(10).

(11).

(12).

(13).

Temporary, nonrecurring, or sporadic inconmel(iding gifts);

Reparation payments paid by a foreign goveminpeirsuant to claims
filed under the laws of that government by persahs were persecuted
during the Nazi era;

Earnings in excess of $480 for each full-tishedent 18 years old or older
(excluding the head of household and spouse);

Adoption assistance payments in excess of $&8@dopted child;
Deferred periodic amounts from Supplemengalusity Income and Social
Security benefits that are received in a lump somunt or in prospective

monthly amounts;

Amounts received by the family in the formrefunds or rebates under
state or local law for property taxes paid on thelting unit;

Amounts paid by a state agency to a familthvei member who has a
developmental disability and is living at home ftset the cost of services
and equipment needed to keep the developmentafigbl#id family
member at home; or

Amounts specifically excluded by any otherddral statute from
consideration as income for purposes of determialiggbility or benefits.

These exclusions include:

(@). The value of the allotment of food stampd Wwé calculated and
excluded annually;

(b). Payments to volunteers under the DomesticiMeker Services Act
of 1973;

(©) Payments made under HHS's Low-Income Energgisfece
Program,;
(d). Payments received under the Job TraininghBeship Act;

(e). Amount of scholarships awarded under Titleingluding Work-
Study;

(. Payments received under the Older AmericacisoA 1965;
(g). Payments from Agent Orange Settlement;

(h).  The value of child care under the Child Caral Development
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).
OF

(K).

Block Grant Act of 1990;
Earned income tax credit refund payments;
Payments for living expenses under the AmergS Program;

Earned Income Disallowance Disallowance of income for
disabled persons who are working (effective 4/20/0) Initial
12-month exclusion:  During the cumulative 12-month period
beginning on the date a member who is a person digtbilities
of a qualified family is first employed or the fdgnifirst
experiences an increase in annual income attritutato
employment, CHA must exclude from annual income ef
gualified family any increase in income of the fhmmember who
is a person with disabilities as a result of emplent over prior
income of that family member. (2) Second 12-month exclusion
and phase-in:  During the second cumulative 12-month period
after the date a member who is a person with ditabiof a
qualified family is first employed or the familyrét experiences an
increase in annual income attributable to employmE&rA must
exclude from annual income of a qualified family%s0f any
increase in income of such family member as a tesil
employment over income of that family member prior the
beginning of such employmer{8) Maximum 4-year disallowance:
The disallowance of income of an individual fammember who
is a person with disabilities is limited to a lifee 48-month
period. The disallowance of increases in incomeaa®sult of
employment of persons with disabilities does noplapfor
purposes of admission to the program.

3. Deductions from Annual Income

The following deductions will be made from anninglome:

a.

b.

$480 for each dependent
$400 for any elderly family or disabled family

Allowance for disability assistance expenses #ne anticipated for attendant care
and auxiliary apparatus for a disabled family memdned that is necessary to
enable a family member (including the disabled memlkdo be employed,

provided that the expenses are not paid to a faméynber or reimbursed by an
outside source. The amount to be deducted canoetd the amount earned by a
family member 18 years old or older who is enaldedvork because of the

disability assistance. For non-elderly familidgg disability assistance allowance
is the lessor of: (1) the amount by which totgbenxses for disability assistance
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exceeds 3 percent of annual income or (2) whatralyfas able to earn because
the disability assistance allowance is available.

For elderly families, the 3 percent of annual ineomust first be deducted from
disability assistance expenses and then any reeraielducted from medical
expenses.

If a family has both medical and disability asgis& expenses, first deduct 3
percent of annual income from the disability assiseé expenses; any remainder
is then deducted from total medical expenses.

d. Medical expenses, for households whosé loe spouse is at least 62 yearsof age or
disabled, that are not covered by insurance andnaexcess of 3 percent of
annual income:

(1). That has no disability assistance expenaasallowance for medical
expenses equal to the amount by which the mediqa¢rses exceed 3
percent of annual income;

(2). That has disability expenses greater thaaqgoial to 3 percent of annual
income, an allowance for disability assistance agps computed in
accordance with paragraph C, plus an allowancentatical expenses that
equal the family's medical expenses;

(3). That has disability assistance expersasare less than 3 percent
of annual income, an allowance for combined diggbihssistance
expenses and medical expenses that is equal tototlaé of these
expenses less 3 percent of annual income.

Medical expenses include the costs of diagnosis, auitigation, treatment, or
the prevention of disease, and the costs for treatisnaffecting any part or
function of the body. They include the costs olipments, supplies and
diagnostic devices needed for these purposes. Tiey include dental
expenses. Medical expenses include the premiurddqrainsurance that covers
the expenses of medical care and the amounts paidrdnsportation to get
medical care. Medical expenses also include amsopaitd for qualified long-
term care services and limited amounts paid for qualified long-term care
insurance contract.

e. Child care expenses (for which the family is reimbursed) for the care of
children less than 13 years of age to the extenessary to enable a family
member to be gainfully employed or to further thedtucation. The amount
deducted shall reflect reasonable charges for aal@, and when child care is
necessary to permit employment, the child care clestu shall not exceed the
amount derived from that employment income.
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4. Cooperating with Welfare Agencies

CHA and the local welfare agency agree:
To target public assistance, benefits, and seswicdamilies receiving assistance
in the public housing program and the Section &néthased assistance program

to achieve self-sufficiency;

XX. Inspection Policies and Housing Quality Stamida

Housing leased in the HCVP (Section 8) for the Ciiih meet the standards and acceptability
criteria set forth in 24 CFR 982.401, as amendHae Landlord will at a minimum, maintain the
unit(s) in compliance with those requirements dyitime Housing Assistance Payments Contract.
Annual inspection will be made of all units on ge@gram to ensure compliance with HUD’s
requirements. The Landlord and Family will be fieti of the repairs necessary for compliance.

CHA will inspect all units to ensure that they méietusing Quality Standards (HQS). No unit
will be initially placed on the Section 8 Housinghdice Voucher Program unless the HQS is
met. Units will be inspected at least annuallyd ah other times as needed, to determine if the
units meet HQS.

CHA must be allowed to inspect the dwelling unitredsonable times with reasonable notice.
The family and owner will be notified of the inspiea appointment by first-class mail. If the
family is not at home for the scheduled inspectappointment and they do not contact the
housing authority for a reschedule before the dataspection, it is considered a Fail 98, a $25
missed appointment fee is accessed to the famdytl@assistance may be terminated.

If the family calls to dispute the termination, om@re chance will be given and the family will
be obligated to sign a statement of understandiing if they ever miss another appointment
for inspection, the $25 missed appointment fee Wwél accessed and they may lose their
assistance.

Owners and families are obligated to sign the “Disare of Information on Lead-Based Paint
and Lead-Based Paint Hazards” at each initial leageng.

A. Types of Inspections
CHA will perform six types of inspections:
1. Initial Inspection
Before approving a lease, CHA will ensure the dwegllnit is inspected for
compliance according to CHA procedure. All HQSpestions of units shall be

conducted within seven days of the date the um&asly using a HUD approved
inspection form. A copy of the inspection will bwiled to both the Landlord and
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Family. A report for every inspection will be pegpd and maintained in the
Family’s file in the Housing Choice Voucher Progré®ection 8) Office. Each
report will specify the defects or deficienciesaify, which must be corrected by
the Landlord before the contract can be executed.

a. Unit Failure

If, as a result of the initial inspection, CHA deténes violations exist, CHA will
notify the Landlord and the Family in writing, arejuire the defects be corrected
within fifteen days (15) of the failure. A copy thiis notification will be retained

in the Family’s file in the Housing Choice Vouch#nogram (Section 8) office. If
CHA determines, as a result of the re-inspectioat, the Landlord has
satisfactorily corrected all defects or deficiesci€HA will execute the HAP
Contract.

b. Correcting Deficiencies and Approval

If the Landlord fails to make the required repaitthin fifteen (15) days, the
Landlord and Family will be notified that the RFhas been denied. The Family
may then be issued new paperwork to search famalie housing provided there
is time left on the Voucher to search for housing.

Annual Inspection

Regular annual inspections will be made of eachpnior to the anniversary date
of the last passed initial or annual inspectidithe unit passes the inspection,
CHA will continue payments. If the unit fails insgi®n, corrective action will be
taken.

Complaint Inspection

The CHA will respond to all Families reporting \atibns of Housing Quality
Standards in their units. Requests for complaispp&ctions are made to Landlord
Services. Families may call the HQS Hotline ormsitla written request.

Once the complaint is received, CHA will notify thandlord of the complaint
and give the Landlord a reasonable amount of toretiress the complaint and
make necessary repairs. If the compliant is ndtessed appropriately within the
time frame specified, CHA will perform an inspectiof the unit and staff will
take the steps outlined for such situations acogrtb the terms of the HAP
contract.

A “reasonable time” will be determined by the s#yeof the condition.

a. Any hazard that represents an immediate thogaethealth and safety of
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the Family must be corrected within 24 hours.

b. Any hazards that represent a potential thretitddealth and safety of the
Family must be corrected with three days.

C. Any violations that pose no threat te tiealth and safety of the Family
must be corrected within 21 days unless the Diragftéssisted Housing
grants an extension.

4, Special Inspection

An inspection caused by a third party, i.e., HUBeding to view the unit.

5. Emergency

Emergency Inspections will be conducted when theeadeficiencies in a unit
that are considered to be life-threatening. THe@acies must be corrected
within 24 to 72 hours of the inspection date.

6. Quality Control Inspection

Quality Control inspections will be conducted ionwpliance with SEMAP

regulation 985.2, public housing agency qualitytoarsample. The records will
be drawn in an unbiased manner and reviewed by A Gtpervisor. The

supervisor’'s re-inspected sample will be drawn froenently completed HQS
inspections (performed during the last three moptieseding re-inspection) and
will be drawn to represent a cross section of n@ghoods and the work of a
cross section of inspectors.

B. Owner and Family Responsibility

1. Owner Responsibility for HQS

a.

b.

The owner must maintain the unit according ta&SHQ

If the owner fails to maintain the dwelling tiaccording to HQS, CHA
will take prompt and vigorous action to enforce tvener’s obligations.
CHA's remedies for such breach of the HQS includamination,

suspension, or reduction of housing assistance gatgrand termination
of the HAP contract.

CHA will not make any housing assistance paysémt a dwelling unit
that fails to meet the HQS, unless the owner ctsrée defect within the
period specified by CHA and CHA verifies the cotiec. If a defect is
life threatening, the owner must correct the deféttin no more than 24
hours. For other defects, the owner must corhectiefect within no more
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than 30 calendar days (or any CHA-approved extepsioOwners and
tenants must request extensions in writing or estems will not be
granted. CHA will accept written verification of opliance in lieu of re-
inspection in cases of minor, non-life threatert@S violations. Written
verification must be attested to by both the Lardlland the Family and
must be submitted to CHA prior to the expiration thie allowed
compliance period for failed items.

d. The owner is not responsible for a breach oHRS that is not caused by
the owner and for which the family is responsiblEurthermore, CHA
may terminate assistance to a family because dfi@®® breach caused by
the family.

e. Move Tenant

Once abatement has occurred, a letter will be géeeinforming the
Landlord of the abatement and the fifteen (15) c@mypliance time. If the
Landlord does not bring the unit into complianceafifteen (15) days of
abatement, CHA will begin the process of relocathgFamily. CHA
will cancel the HAP Contract when the family mowesn the unit or
sixty (60) days after CHA after the abatement datechever comes first.

f. Continued Occupancy

After the Move Tenant notice is given, the Familysnmove from the
unit or execute a Continued Occupancy document twéH_andlord and
present it to the Housing Choice Voucher PrograetiiSn 8) staff. The
Landlord must correct all deficiencies and pasdripection before the
HAP terminates. CHA will reestablish the HAP paynsernhen the unit
passes inspection, but will not make any retroagii@yments for any
period the unit did not meet HQS.

g. HAP Cancellation
If the unit does not pass inspection prior to tPHermination date, and
the Family decides not to move, but to insteadrante a separate lease

with the Landlord, CHA will terminate the assistario the Family in
accordance with the HAP Contract.

Any overpayment of the HAP will be deducted frore ttandlord’s other
assisted properties, or from the first HAP for angperty leased under the
program.

2. Family Responsibility for HQS
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a.

The family is responsible for a breach of theSH®at is caused by any of
the following:

(1). The family fails to pay for any utilities thahe owner is not
required to pay, but which are to be paid by timee;

(2). The family fails to provide and maintain anyplances that the
owner is not required to provide, but which aréo&provided by
the tenant; or

(3). Any member of the household, or a guest, dasndhge dwelling
unit or premises (damage beyond ordinary wear aaud.t

If an HQS breach caused by the family is lifieeéitening, the family must
correct the defect within no more than 24 hourer dther family-caused
defects, the family must correct the defect witlma more than 30
calendar days (or any CHA-approved extension).

If the family has caused a breach of the HQSA®@HlI take prompt and
vigorous action to enforce the family obligation€HA may terminate
assistance for the family according to 24 CFR 982.5

Family Termination

The Section 8 Voucher Program Representative etldghe Family a
thirty (30) day notice of termination, and a copyttie Landlord. The
Family will be allowed fifteen (15) days from thettier date to request an
informal hearing to dispute the termination; or Eamily may correct the
deficiencies and request a reinspection.

If the Landlord has no pending deficiencies, theFH#ayment will
continue through the termination date if the temantains in the unit.

Continued Occupancy

During the waiting period, the Landlord has the@pto assist the family
to correct the deficiencies if they agree to camithe tenancy. If agreed
upon, the Landlord and family must complete and $ig Notice of
Continued Occupancy and return it to Housing Ch¥fgecher Program
(Section 8) office so that a reinspection may beenarhe termination
will be suspended if the unit passes inspectionreghe pending
termination date.

Informal Hearing
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If the Family is terminated for HQS violations, amdjuests a hearing, an
informal hearing will be held prior to the pendiggmination date.

C. Exceptions to the HQS Acceptability Criteria

CHA has the following HQS requirements in additiorthe minimum standards set by
HUD:

1. In units that do not have central air conditign the required openable
windows must contain screens. This applies to #tkrbom, if no mechanical
exhaust is present; and one window in each sleeping;

2. Bathrooms must have a door with properly opegathnob and locks.
Bedrooms must have a door with properly operatenglvare, including door
knob;

3. Thumb latch dead bolt locks are required onyemhdiors. Keyed locks are
prohibited;

4. The heating system must be capable of maing@iminimum of 68° F at a
distance 3 feet above floor level, under minimumtes conditions;

5. Storm door, if present, must be in good condifdoser, handles, glass,
screen);

6. Security bars on the openable window must lbetype that opens or is
removed without the use of a key;

7. Bedroom shall contain a minimum of 70 square férlQ) of floor space;

8. Required handrails shall be not less than 30 inobesnore than 40 inches
high measured vertically above the nosing of tkads. Guardrails shall be
not less than 30 inches high above the floor ofitreh, landing or balcony.
Every handrail and guardrail shall be firmly fasdrand capable of bearing
normally imposed loads and shall be maintainediwdgcondition;

9. The dwelling unit must not contain un-vented roogatlers that burn gas, oil,
or kerosene. Electric area heaters are acce@aldesecondary source of heat
only;

10. Gutters, if present must be maintained free ofraloibns and in proper
working condition;

11.Unpainted interior and/or exterior wood surfacestie protected by an
appropriate surface coating or treatment unlessifegaly designed for use
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without protection;

12. All doors and windows must be appropriately weatttgpped to prevent the
entrance of wind, rain and/or vermin infestation;

13.Fences, when present, shall be in good conditia@pepty installed and
maintained and should not pose a hazard. Barbe] raizor wire, electric
wire and other hazardous fence material are nohipted;

D. Time Frames and Corrections of HQS Fail Iltems
1. Correcting Initial HQS Fail Items

CHA will conduct an initial inspection of the umiiithin a reasonable period after
the family submits @&Request for Tenancy Approval and the owner and family
indicate the unit is ready for inspection. The ewmnd participant will be

notified of the results of the inspection. If theit fails HQS, the owner and the
participant will be advised to notify CHA (or thendependent agency if
applicable) to reschedule a re-inspection whenrépairs have been properly
completed. Once the unit passes the inspectiod, (©Hthe independent agency)
will notify the owner and participant of the result

If the Landlord fails to make the required repawthin 15 days, the landlord and
Family will be notified that the RFTA has been dmhiand the Family will be
issued new paperwork.

2. HQS Fail Items for Units under Contract

The owner or participant will be given time to et the failed items cited on the
inspection report for a unit already under contralftthe failed items endanger
the family’s health or safety (using the emergeitemn list below), the owner or
participant will be given 24 hours to correct thelations. For less serious
failures, the owner or participant will be given tgp30 days to correct the failed
item(s). If the unit fails HQS, the owner and theticipant will be advised to
notify CHA (or independent agency) to rescheduleeanspection when the
repairs have been properly completed.

If the owner fails to correct the items that faild@S after proper notification has
been given, CHA will abate payment and terminat ¢bntract according to

Sections 12.7 and 17.0(B)(3).

If the participant fails to correct the HQS failéems that are family caused after
proper notification has been given, CHA will termie assistance for the family
according to Sections 12.2(B) and 17.0(B)(3).

If the unit does not pass inspection prior to tdPHermination date, and the
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Family decides not to move, but to instead entier anseparate lease with the
Landlord, CHA will terminate the assistance to Haenily in accordance with the
HAP Contract.

Any overpayment of the HAP will be deducted frore ttandlord’s other assisted
properties, or from the first HAP for any propelegsed under the program.

3. Timeframes for Corrections
a. Emergency repair items must be abated withind24s.
b. Non-emergency items must be completed withintyt30) days of

the initial inspection.
4. Extensions

At the sole discretion of CHA, extensions of uBtbdays may be granted
to permit an owner to complete repairs if the owmes made a good faith
effort to initiate repairs. If repairs are not qaieted within 60 days after
the initial inspection date, CHA will abate the remd cancel the HAP
contract for owner noncompliance. Appropriate egiens will be
granted if a severe weather condition exists farhsilems as exterior
painting and outside concrete work for porchespsstand sidewalks.
Owners and tenants must request extensions imgrdr extensions will
not be granted.

Emergency Fail Items

The following items are to be considered examplesnoergency items that need to be
abated within 24 hours:

1. No hot or cold water
2. Owner-provided utilities
3. Inability to maintain adequate heat

4, Major plumbing leak

5. Natural gas leak
6. Broken lock(s) on first floor doors or windows
7. Broken windows that unduly allow weather elersento the unit
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8. Electrical outlet smoking or sparking
9. Exposed electrical wires that could result inckhor fire
10. Unusable toilet when only one toilet is preserihe unit
11. Security risks such as broken doors or winditnaswould allow intrusion
12. Other conditions that pose an immediate thoehealth or safety
13.  When there is not at least one working smo&arabn each floor.
F. Abatements

When a unit fails to meet HQS and the owner has lggeen an opportunity to correct
the deficiencies, but has failed to do so withia tequired timeframe, the rent for the
dwelling unit will be abated.

For tenant-caused HQS deficiencies, the ownernaillbe held accountable, and the rent
will not be abated. The tenant is held to the satardard and timeframes for correction
of deficiencies as owners. If repairs are not deted by the deadline, CHA will send a
notice of termination to both the tenant and thenenw The tenant will be given the
opportunity to request an informal hearing.

Section XXI. Rent Increase Requests

The Voucher Contract requires the Landlord to gahe CHA in writing, at least sixty (60) days
prior to renewal, of a proposed rent increase hadlate the increase will go into effect. All
proposed rent increases must be approved by CHéaasnable and cannot exceed rents
charged for comparable unassisted units in the sam@lex.

CHA will conduct a rent reasonable survey usingdatsputer databank of unassisted units to
select comparable units. If the requested incrsadetermined reasonable, the approved
increase will become effective the first day of thenth following the 60 day notice.

Section XXIl. Term of Lease

The initial lease term must be for at least oney€gr. However, CHA may at any time approve
a shorter period if both of the following apply:

A. It is the prevailing market practice; and
B. It will improve housing opportunities.

The Landlord’s lease must provide renewal terms.
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Section XXIIl. Term of the HAP Contract

The initial term of the HAP contract shall coincidéh the lease. After such time, the HAP
contract shall extend automatically to coincidehwvitie term of the lease. Any changes to the
lease must be approved by CHA, and the Landlord praside CHA with a copy of such
changes in writing.

For HAP contracts on Project-Based Voucher urties HAP contract will be from 1 to 10 years,
with the possibility of one or more five-year exd@ns if CHA determines that such extension is
appropriate to promote decent affordable housintsiservice area.

Section XXIV. Owner Claims for damages and unpagst and participant’s ensuing
responsibilities

This Section applies only to voucher HAP contranteffect before October 2, 1995.

Vouchers have a provision for damages and unpaid réNo vacancy loss will be paid

on vouchers. No damage claims will be processgéelss CHA has performed a move-
out inspection. Either the tenant or the owner paguest the move-out inspection.
Ultimately, it is the owner’s responsibility to neest the move-out inspection if he/she
believes there may be a claim.

Damage claims are limited in the following manner:

. In the voucher program, owners are allowed to clapro one (1)
month contract rent minus the greater of the sgculieposit
collected or the security deposit that should hbeen collected
under the lease. There will be no payment for negdosses under
the voucher program.

. No damage claims will be paid under the voucherggmm for
contracts effective on or after October 2, 1995.

A. Owner Claims for Pre-October2, 1995 Units

According to the Voucher HAP contract, owners caskenspecial claims for damages
and unpaid rent, (vacancy loss cannot be claimedvéoichers) after the tenant has
vacated or proper eviction proceedings have berdumied.

Owner claims for damages and unpaid rent are redelor accuracy and completeness.
Claims are then compared to the move-in and movenspections to determine if an

actual claim is warranted. No claim will be p&t normal wear and tear. Unpaid

utility bills are not an eligible claim item.

CHA will make payments to owners for approved ck&im It should be noted that the

tenant is ultimately responsible for any damagesngaid rent paid to the owner and will
be held responsible for repaying CHA to remain ibleg for the Section 8 Housing
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Choice Voucher Program.

Actual bills and receipts for repairs, materialsg &abor must support claims for damages
if they exceed a cost estimate of damage claimnspdctor. CHA has a list or
reasonable costs and charges for items routinelyded on damage claims. This list is
used as a guide.

Owners can claim unpaid rent owed by the tenanibupe date of HAP termination if
they evict for nonpayment of rent.

All claims and supporting documentation under éstion must be submitted to CHA
within forty-five (45) days of the move-out inspect. Any reimbursement shall be
applied first toward any unpaid rent. No reimleumngnt may be claimed for unpaid rent
for the period after the family vacates.

B. Participant Responsibilities

If a damage claim or unpaid rent claim has beed paian owner, the participant is
responsible for repaying the amount to CHA. T®hiall be done either by paying the full
amount due immediately upon CHA requesting it oodigh a Repayment Agreement
that is approved by CHA.

If the participant is not current on any Repaym&gteements or has unpaid claims on
more than one unit, the participant shall be teated from the program. The
participant retains the right to request an infdrhearing.

Within twelve (12) months of the Family’s last exaation, the Housing Choice Voucher
Program (Section 8) division will schedule an appoient to conduct a reexamination of Family
income, assets, composition, and the extent of cakdkpenses for Elderly and Disabled
Families, or other unusual expenses incurred by#ameily. Participants will be offered up to 2
annual reexamination appointments and/or timegidqzant failure to keep their annual
reexamination appointment may be subject to terimndrom the program. CHA will conduct a
criminal background check on any Family member thate is reason to believe may have a
criminal history, in addition to conducting crimir@ackground checks on all new Family
members sixteen (16) years or older. Any mattendothat is a ground for termination of
assistance will be reviewed and appropriate actkan to terminate assistance.

CHA will also review and collect all delinquent bates owed to CHA by the Family. Such
balances include but are not limited to:

1. Payments made under a special claim to a Segtitmucher Program Landlord
on behalf of the Family.

2. Back-rent agreements made by the Family durarggpation in any of CHA'’s
programs.
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3. Charges incurred by the Family when they movenhfa unit owned or operated

by CHA.
Section XXV. Re-certification
A. Changes in Lease or Rent

If the participant and owner agree to any changebe lease after the initial lease term
(1 year), the owner must notify CHA and the tenaithin sixty (60) days of the effective
date of the proposed lease. The lease, includiggchanges, must be according to this
Administrative Plan. Owners must notify CHA anc ttenant of any changes in the
amount of the rent at least sixty (60) days betbeechanges go into effect. If the rent
increase is requested sixty (60) days after rdwation, the owner may be required to
wait until the next recertification date to incredbe rent. Any such changes are subject
to CHA determining them to be reasonable. CHA me=e the right to deny rent
increases to landlords based on funding availgbilihssistance shall not be continued
unless CHA has approved a new tenancy in accordaitbegprogram requirements and
has executed a new HAP contract with the owneny af the following changes are

made:
1. Requirements governing participant or ownepaoesibilities for utilities
or appliances;
2. In the lease terms governing the term of thede
3. If the participant moves to a new unit, everthié unit is in the same
building or complex.
B. Annual Re-examination

At least annually, CHA will conduct a reexaminatiosf family income and
circumstances. The results of the reexaminatidaraene (1) the rent the family will
pay, and (2) whether the family subsidy is cortexted on the family unit size.

CHA will send a notification letter to the familgtting them know that it is time for their
annual reexamination and scheduling an appointnatticipants will be offered up to 2
annual reexamination appointments and/or times. iluféato keep their annual
reexamination appointment may be subject to tertiwindrom the program.

CHA will conduct a criminal background check on aRgmily member that there is
reason to believe may have a criminal history, ddion to conducting criminal
background checks on all new Family members six(@ényears or older.

During the interview, the family will provide alhformation regarding income, assets,
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expenses, and other information necessary to deterthe family's share of rent. The
family will sign the HUD consent form and other sent forms that later will be mailed
to the sources that will verify the family circurastes.

Upon receipt of verification, CHA will determineahamily's annual income and will
calculate their family share.

CHA will also review and collect all delinquent bates owed to CHA by the Family.
Such balances include but are not limited to:

1. Payments made under a special claim to a Se@titmucher
Program Landlord on behalf of the Family.
2. Back-rent agreements made by the Family dyrargcipation in

any of CHA'’s programs.
3. Charges incurred by the Family when they mdveah a unit
owned or operated by CHA.

C. Effective Date of Rent Changes for Annual Regxations

The revised family share will generally be effeetivpon the anniversary date with 30
days notice of any rent increase to the family.

If the rent determination is delayed due to a reds®yond the control of the family, any
rent increase will be effective the first of the mtto after the month in which the family
receives a 30-day notice of the amount. If thesexVrent is a reduction and the delay is
beyond the control of the family, the reductionIvde effective as scheduled on the
anniversary date.

If the family caused the delay, then any increadlebe effective on the anniversary date.
Any reduction will be effective the first of the mibn after the rent amount is determined.

D. Missed Appointments

If the family misses the scheduled recertificatagpointment and fails to reschedule the
appointment, CHA will consider the family to havlated a Family Obligation and
their assistance may be terminated. If the fanubntacts CHA to dispute the
termination, one more chance will be given and fiamaily will be obligated to sign a
statement of understanding stating if they misstteroappointment for recertification,
they may lose their assistance.

E. Interim Re-Examinations
Interim reexamination of the tenant’s portion oftrgvill be made at the request of the

tenant due to changes in family income or otheatingd circumstances. Families may
request an interim based on a decrease in incomanfpreason, except for a decrease
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that lasts less than 30 days. All changes ocaupiior to the next annual recertification
must be reported to CHA within ten (10) days of woence. CHA will adjust the
Housing Assistance Payments according to thesBedeahanges.

Tenants are required to report all changes in famsbmposition at the time of
occurrence, even if the tenant portion of rent ® affected. When warranted,
adjustments will be according to regulations. hE unit size is affected by the change in
family composition, a voucher for the appropriateeaunit will be issued at the time of
the annual recertification.

During an interim reexamination, only the infornoatiaffected by the changes being
reported will be reviewed and verified. CHA wilbinre-verify the income of other
family members.

Families are required to report the following chesigto CHA between regular
reexaminations. These changes will trigger arrimteeexamination.

1. A member has been added to the family throuigih lor adoption or
court-awarded custody.

2. A household member is leaving or has hedtfamily unit.
3. Family breakup

In circumstances of a family break-up, CHA will nea& determination of which
family member will retain the voucher, taking intonsideration the following
factors:

a. To whom the voucher was issued.

b. The interest of minor children or of ill, eltgror disabled
family members.

C. In regards to custody of the child whieere is a family split, CHA
can use a notarized statement if court documentai$o not
attainable to determine the household size of thecher holder.
The tenant must try every means possible to obtiaén court
documentation. A child residing in the unit atse&0% of the
time will be considered when determining voucheesi

d. Whether the assistance should remain with #meily members
remaining in the unit.

e. Whether family members were forced to leaveuthieé as a result

of actual or threatened physical violence by a spoar other
member(s) of the household.

97



If a court determines the disposition of propervieen members of the assisted family
in a divorce or separation under a settlement dicjal decree, CHA will be bound by
the court’s determination of which family membeostinue to receive assistance in the
program.

Because of the number of possible different cirdamses in which a determination will
have to be made, CHA will make determinations case-by-case basis.

CHA will issue a determination within ten (10) busss days of the request for a
determination. The family member requesting therieination may request an informal
hearing in compliance with the informal hearing$Section 16.3.

To add a household member other than through birtadoption (including a live-in
aide), the family must request that the new merbbesidded to the lease. Before adding
the new member to the lease, the individual mustptete an application form stating
their income, assets, and all other informatiorumegl of an applicant. The individual
must provide their Social Security number if thegvéd one and must verify their
citizenship/eligible immigrant status (Their hougwill not be delayed due to delays in
verifying eligible immigrant status other than delacaused by the family). The new
family member will go through the screening processiilar to the process for
applicants. CHA will determine the eligibility die new member before allowing the
person(s) to be added to the lease. If the indalids found to be ineligible or does not
pass the screening criteria, they will be advisedviiting and given the opportunity for
an informal review. If they are found to be eligiland do pass the screening criteria,
CHA will grant approval to add their name to thade. At the same time, the family's
annual income will be recalculated taking into asdothe income and circumstances of
the new family member. The effective date of thewnrent will be according to
paragraph below 14.2.2.

4. Earned Income Disallowance families: Tenantosehdisabled family member’s
income is being disallowed under the Earned IncBisallowance provision must attend
an interim recertification at the end of the 12 alative month’s 100% disallowance and
again at the end of the next 12 cumulative morid% disallowance.

F. Special Reexaminations

If a family's income is too unstable to project fi months, including families that
temporarily have no income or have a temporaryadss in income, CHA may schedule
special reexaminations every 60 days until the nmestabilizes and an annual income
can be determined.

G. Effective Date of Rent Changes Due to Interin$pecial Reexaminations

Families are not required to, but may at any tirequest an interim reexamination based
on a decrease in income, an increase in allowatgernses, or other changes in family
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circumstances. Families may request an interinedas a decrease in income for any
reason, except for a decrease that lasts less3thalays. Upon such request, CHA will
take timely action to process the interim reexatnmsand recalculate the family share.

The CHA requires a reasonable amount of time toge® interim reexaminations.
Changes in family composition or income that resuli decrease in the Family’s share
of the rent will require fifteen (15) days to rewieverify and initiate the new payments to
the Landlord. The new HAP payment will take efféx first of the month following

this 15-day time frame. The Family is responsibleall rent payment to the Landlord
until such time as the new rent takes effect. Ne@me that increases the Family’s
share of the rent will become effective the firsthee month following a 30-day notice to
the Family and the Landlord.

If the family causes a delay, the rent increasé baleffective on the date it would have
been effective had the process not been delayeen (évthis means a retroactive
increase).

If the new rent is a reduction and any delay isobelythe control of the family, the
reduction will be effective the first of the morafier the interim reexamination should
have been completed.

If the new rent is a reduction and the family calutee delay or did not report the change
timely, the change will be effective the first dfet month after the rent amount is
determined.

H. Retroactive Charges

l.

Retroactive charges will be assessed in all cadesrenthe proper rent or monthly
payment has not been charged for whatever reasmepe CHA error. Retroactive
charges shall be assessed for the total amounshioatd have been paid had the proper
information been received by CHA and/or the promt or monthly payment charges
made. The tenant may be terminated from the pnogmnacases of misrepresentation. If
the amount of the retroactive charge is more tHg@®, a repayment agreement will not
be executed and the tenant may be terminated. sksaat termination, a tenant will have
a right to an informal hearing. At this time, theese will be forwarded to the Grand Jury.
Anyone with charges of $1,999 or less may be altbteeenter into an agreement to pay
and, depending upon the amount owed, may have Lp toonths to pay. Failure to enter
into the agreement will result in termination o$iatance.

Section XXVI. Termination of Assistance to Family GHA

CHA may at any time terminate program assistancefparticipant because of any of
the following actions or inactions by the household
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If the family violates any family obligations der the program;
If a family member fails to sign and submit censforms;

If a family fails to establish citizenship origéhle immigrant status and is not
eligible for or does not elect continuation of atmnce, pro-ration of assistance, or
temporary deferral of assistance. If CHA determitieat a family member has
knowingly permitted an ineligible non-citizen (oththan any ineligible non-
citizens listed on the lease) to permanently resmdéheir Section 8 unit, the
family’s assistance will be terminated. Such familill not be eligible to be
readmitted to Section 8 for a period of 24 montbaefthe date of termination;

If any family member has ever been evicted frublic housing;

If CHA has ever terminated assistance undeCificate or Voucher Program
for any family member;

If any family member or guest of the residentwadl as any person under the
resident’s control commits drug-related or violentninal activity on or near the
premises; has weapons or illegal drugs seized laywaenforcement officer; or
manufactures methamphetamine on the premises;

If any family member commits fraud, bribery,asry other corrupt or criminal act
in connection with any federal housing program;

If the family currently owes rent or other amtaito CHA or to another housing
agency in connection with Section 8 or public hogsassistance under the 1937
Act;

If the family has not reimbursed any housing reyefor amounts paid to an
owner under a HAP contract for rent, damages tauttig or other amounts owed
by the family under the lease;

If the family breaches an agreement with CHAdy amounts owed to a housing
agency or amounts paid to an owner by a housingcygg CHA, at its discretion,
may offer a family the opportunity to enter an agnent to pay amounts owed to
a housing agency or amounts paid to an owner byusihg agency. CHA may
impose the terms of the agreement as defined bh3.4%.

If a family participating in the Family Self-Sidiency (FSS) program fails to
comply, without good cause, with the family's F®8tcact of participation;

If the family has engaged in or threatened almusir violent behavior toward
housing agency personnel;
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If any household member is subject to a lifetiragistration requirement under a
state sex offender registration program;

If a household member’s illegal use (or pattefnillegal use) of a controlled
substance, or whose abuse (or pattern of abusdgatiol, is determined by CHA
to interfere with the health, safety, or right teapeful enjoyment of the premises
by other residents;

A family will be terminated if the family commsitany serious or repeated
violation of the lease. A family who causes $50@amages to a unit or commits
any serious or repeated violations of the leaskbsiterminated from the Section
8 Housing Choice Voucher Program and will be inblg for CHA assisted
housing for three years from the date of termimatidfter three years, the family
must demonstrate they have lived in the communitigout damaging property or
without eviction for any serious or repeated violas of a lease to establish
eligibility for CHA assisted housing. The proof thfe $500 in damages will be
derived from an itemized list of damages that ddi@avith paid receipts, pictures
and/or court documentation provided by the properyner. The damage
documentation must be provided to CHA within 60 slay move-out. During
court negotiations, the family’s assistance wilk @ terminated. If the final
outcome determines the family owes more than $500@0amages, the family
assistance will be terminated.

If the family receives an agreement through cowrteedings to repay the owner
for damages, the family assistance will not be teated. If the family defaults
on the repay agreement through the courts andwineroprovides documentation
of the default, the assistance will be terminatieithat time.

If no court negotiations are necessary to deterrdam@ages and the family and
owner negotiate a repay agreement, the family assis will not be terminated;
however, if the family defaults on the repay agreetrand the owner can provide
documentation of the default, the family assistamiteterminate at that time.

A family who is evicted for nonpayment of rent aryaother serious or repeated
violations more than once may be terminated froengtogram. However, if the
family pays the owner for the back rent within thi(30) days of the eviction
notice, the assistance will not be terminated. Tmeily will be ineligible for
CHA assisted housing for three years from the dateermination. After three
years, to establish eligibility for CHA assisted usimg, the family must
demonstrate they have lived in the community withetiction for non-payment
of rent or other serious or repeated violationtheflease.

If the family misses the scheduled inspection dails to reschedule the
inspection, CHA will consider the family to haveoldated a Family Obligation
and their assistance may be terminated. If tmeilyacalls to dispute the
termination, one more chance will be given andftraily will be obligated to
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sign a statement of understanding stating if thesr eniss another appointment
for inspection, they may lose their assistance.

Q. Misrepresentation: If, at any time, CHA learns that a tenant made any
misrepresentation to be eligible for assistance, tdnant’'s assistance may be
terminated even though the tenant’s current statag be eligible. A tenant’s
misrepresentation that results in a lower portibteaant rent than should have
been paid, will result in the tenant being requitegay the difference between
that amount and the amount that should have badnlpgustifiable cases, CHA
may take such action as it deems reasonable.

Section XXVII. Complaints, Informal Review for Appants, Informal Hearings for
Participants

A. Complaints

CHA will investigate and respond to complaints laytgipant families, owners, and the
public. CHA may require that complaints other tH#@S violations be put in writing.
Anonymous complaints are investigated wheneveripless

If a family has an HQS complaint, they must ca#t thwner. For non-emergencies, the
family should send the complaint in writing to tner and CHA.

B. Informal Review for Applicants
1. Informal Review for the Applicant
CHA will give an applicant for participation in thgection 8 Existing Program
prompt notice of a decision denying assistancééoapplicant. The notice will
contain a brief statement of the reasons for CHisision. The notice will state
that the applicant may request an informal reviathiw ten (10) business days of
the denial and will describe how to obtain the infal review.
2. When an Informal Review is Not Required

CHA will not provide the applicant an opportunityr fan informal review for any
of the following reasons:

a. A determination of the family unit size undeHA subsidy
standards.
b. A CHA determination not to approve an extengiosuspension of

a voucher term.

C. A CHA determination not to grant approval éade a unit under
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the program or to approve a proposed lease.

d. A CHA determination that a unit selected by #pplicant is not in
compliance with HQS.
e. A CHA determination that the unit is not acling to HQS
because of family size or composition.
f. General policy issues or class grievances.
g. Discretionary administrative determinationsGHA.
3. Informal Review Process

CHA will give an applicant an opportunity for anformal review of CHA
decision denying assistance to the applicant. prbeedure is as follows:

a.

The review will be conducted by any personemspns designated
by CHA other than the person who made or approkediéecision
under review or a subordinate of this person.

The applicant will be given an opportunity teegent written or
oral objections to CHA'’s decision.

CHA will notify the applicant of CHA'’s decisicater the informal
review within 14 calendar days. The notificatioill wnclude a
brief statement of the reasons for the final deaisi

4, Informal Review Procedures for Denial of Assigte on the Basis of
Ineligible Immigration Status

The applicant family may request that CHA provide dén informal review after
the family has notification of the INS decision appeal, or in lieu of request of
appeal to the INS. This request must be made @wgiplicant family within 30
days of receipt of thlotice of Denial or Termination of Assistance or within 30
days of receipt of the INS appeal decision.

For applicant families, the Informal Review Procas®ve will be utilized with
the exception that the applicant family will have @ 30 days of receipt of the
Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance or of the INS appeal decision to
request the review.

5. Informal Review Procedures for Denial of Assite on the Basis of Drug
Activity.  In determining whether to provide assaiste, CHA will
consider verifiable evidence of whether the houkbEhwember(s):
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a.

Has successfully completed a supervised doug alcohol
rehabilitation program (as applicable) and is nogkr engaging in
the illegal use of a controlled substance or alefisdcohol,

Has otherwise been rehabilitated succegsfatid is no longer
engaging in the illegal use of a controlled substaar abuse of
alcohol; or

Is participating in a supervised drug orobht rehabilitation
program and is no longer engaging in the illegal efsa controlled
substance or abuse of alcohol.

C. Informal Hearing for Participants

1. When a Hearing is Required

a.

CHA will give a participant family an opportiymifor an informal
hearing to consider whether the following CHA damis relating
to the individual circumstances of a participanimily are
according to the law, HUD regulations, and CHA piels:

D-

(2).

A).

(4).

(5).

(6).

A determination of the family’s annual or aslied income
and the use of such income to compute the housing
assistance payment;

A determination of the appropriate utilityloavance (if
any) for tenant-paid utilities from CHA'’s utilityllawance
schedule;

A determination of the family unit size und&HA subsidy
standards;

A determination that a Housing Choice VoucReogram
family is residing in a unit with a larger numbef o
bedrooms than appropriate for the family unit sireler
CHA subsidy standards, or CHA determination to déey
family’s request for an exception from the standard

A determination to terminate assistance fgpaaticipant
family because of the family’s action or failuredat;

A determination to terminate assistance bseathe
participant family has been absent from the asbistet for
longer than the maximum period permitted under CHA
policy and HUD rules.
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b.

In cases described in paragraphs 16.3(A)(1§é&)),and (f), of this
Section, CHA will give the opportunity for an infoal hearing
before CHA terminates HAPs for the family underaartstanding
HAP contract.

2. When a Hearing is Not Required

CHA will not provide a participant family an oppuonity for an informal hearing
for any of the following reasons:

a. Discretionary administrative determinationsdyA;

b. General policy issues or class grievances;

C. Establishment of CHA’s schedule of utility allances for families
in the program;

d. A CHA determination not to approve an extensiosuspension of
a voucher term;

e. A CHA determination not to approve a unit @ske;

f. A CHA determination that an assisted unit i o compliance
with HQS. (However, CHA will provide the opporttyifor an
informal hearing for a decision to terminate assisé for a breach
of the HQS caused by the family.);

g. A CHA determination that the unit is not aceéogdto HQS
because of the family size;

h. A determination by CHA to exercise or not ei@cany right or
remedy against the owner under a HAP contract.

3. Notice to the Family

a. In the cases described in paragraphs 16.3(@&)(1(b), and (c) of
this Section, CHA will notify the family that theily may ask
for an explanation of the basis of CHA'’s determirat and that if
the family does not agree with the determinatitve, family may
request an informal hearing on the decision.

b. In the cases described in paragraphs 16.3(@)(10e), and (f) of

this Section, CHA will give the family prompt wigt notice that
the family may request a hearing within ten (103ibass days of
the notification. The notice will:
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(1). Contain a brief statement of the reasonstlier decision;
and

(2). State if the family does not agree with trexidion, the
family may request an informal hearing on the denis
within ten (10) business days of the notification.

4, Hearing Procedures
CHA and participants will adhere to the followingppedures:
a. Discovery

(1). The family will be given the opportunity taamine before
the hearing any CHA documents that are directlguaht
to the hearing. The family will be allowed to coppy
such document at the family’s expense. If CHA does
make the document(s) available for examinationemuest
of the family, CHA may not rely on the documenttla¢
hearing.

(2). CHA will be given the opportunity to examiret, CHA's
offices before the hearing, any family documentst thre
directly relevant to the hearing. CHA will be alled to
copy any such document at CHA'’s expense. If tinal{a
does not make the document(s) available for examma
on request of CHA, the family may not rely on the
document(s) at the hearing.

Note: The terndocumentincludes records and regulations.
b. Representation of the Family
At its own expense, a lawyer or other represerdgathay represent the
family.
C. Hearing Officer
(1). The hearing will be conducted by any persomersons
designated by CHA, other than a person who made or

approved the decision under review or a subordiogthkis
person.
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(2). The person who conducts the hearing will latguthe
conduct of the hearing according to CHA hearing
procedures.

d. Evidence

CHA and the family must have the opportunity tosere evidence and
may question any witnesses. Evidence may be cemresldvithout regard
to admissibility under the rules of evidence amitie to judicial

proceedings.

e. Issuance of Decision

The person who conducts the hearing must issueti@mvdecision within

14 calendar days from the date of the hearingingtdiriefly the reasons
for the decision. Factual determinations relatiteg the individual

circumstances of the family shall be based on @qméerance of the
evidence presented at the hearing.

f. Effect of the Decision
CHA is not bound by a hearing decision:

(1). Concerning a matter for which CHA is not uggqd to
provide an opportunity for an informal hearing untlas
Section or that otherwise exceeds the authoritythef
person conducting the hearing under CHA hearing
procedures.

(2). Contrary to HUD regulations or requiremeotsotherwise
contrary to federal, state, or local law.

(3). If CHA determines that it is not bound byhaaring
decision, CHA will notify the family within 14 cahelar
days of the determination and of the reasons far th
determination.

Considering Circumstances

In deciding whether to terminate assistance becafisgction or inaction by
members of the family, CHA may consider all circtamges in each case,
including the seriousness of the case, the extiepamicipation or culpability of
individual family members, and the effects of déwiatermination of assistance
on other family members who were not involved ia #ttion or failure.
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CHA may impose, as a condition of continued asscsafor other family
members, a requirement that family members whoigyaated in or were
culpable for the action or failure will not resigtethe unit. CHA may permit the
other members of a participant family to contineeeiving assistance.

If CHA seeks to terminate assistance because edall use, or possession for
personal use, of a controlled substance, or pattieabuse of alcohol, such use or
possession or pattern of abuse must have occuitkohwne year before the date
that CHA provides notice to the family of CHA’s d@&on to deny or terminate
assistance. In determining whether to terminasestece for these reasons CHA
will consider evidence of whether the household inem

a. Has successfully completed a supervised doug alcohol
rehabilitation program (as applicable) and is nogkr engaging in
the illegal use of a controlled substance or alofisécohol;

b. Has otherwise been rehabilitated succegsfutid is no longer
engaging in the illegal use of a controlled substaar abuse of
alcohol; or

C. Is participating in a supervised drug orobld rehabilitation

program and is no longer engaging in the illegal afsa controlled
substance or abuse of alcohol.

6. Informal Hearing Procedures for Denial of Asmige on the Basis of
Ineligible Immigration Status

The participant family may request that CHA provide an informal hearing
after the family has notification of the INS deoision appeal or in lieu of request
of appeal to the INS. This request must be madindyarticipant family within
30 days of receipt of thiotice of Denial or Termination of Assistance or within
30 days of receipt of the INS appeal decision.

For the participant families, the Informal HeariRgpcess above will be utilized
with the exception that the participant family wikve up to 30 days of receipt of
the Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance or of the INS appeal decision.

Section XXVIII. Termination of Lease and Contract

The term of the lease and the term of the HAP ech@re the same. They begin on the
same date, and they end on the same date. Thenegsbe terminated by the owner, by
the tenant, or by the mutual agreement of both.e ®vner may only terminate the
contract by terminating the lease. The HAP comtnaey be terminated by CHA. Under
some circumstances the contract automatically teates.
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CHA may terminate the HAP contract if it is detemetl there is insufficient funding.
CHA may terminate a HAP contract with a 30-day eetio the landlord and the tenant
prior to recertification date that it is determintpere is insufficient funding to continue
the HAP contract. The following will be excludedilderly families, disabled families,
Family Self-Sufficiency families, and Section 8 hemwner families. CHA will add the
families being terminated to the top of the waitlis and when funding is resumed, the
family will receive a voucher for their rental astsince.

A. Termination of the Lease

1.

2.

By the family

The family may terminate the lease without causenuproper notice to
the owner and to CHA after the initial lease terfine length of the notice
that is required is stated in the lease (genegdllgays).

For families residing in units which are assistedhwproject-based
vouchers, if the family has elected to terminate lgmase in this manner,
CHA will offer the family the opportunity for comued tenant-based
rental assistance, in the form of either assistameder the voucher
program or other comparable tenant-based rentastasse. Before
providing notice to terminate the lease, a familysincontact CHA to
request comparable tenant-based rental assisthtioe family wishes to
move with continued assistance. If voucher or ottenparable tenant-
based rental assistance is not immediately availapbn termination of
the family's lease of a project-based voucher UBHA will give the
family priority to receive the next available opporty for continued
tenant-based rental assistance. If the family iteatas the assisted lease
before the end of one year, the family relinquisties opportunity for
continued tenant-based assistance.

By the owner

a. The owner may terminate the lease during itsn ten the
following grounds:

(1). Serious or repeated violations of the termsamditions of
the lease;

(2). Violation of federal, state, or local law thanposes
obligations on the tenant in connection with theupancy
or use of the unit and its premises;

(3). Criminal activity by the household, a guest, another
person under the control of the household thaatere the
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3.

health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment bkt
premises by other persons residing in the immediate
vicinity of the premises;

(4).  Any drug-related or violent criminal activipn or near the
premises;

(5). Other good cause. Other good cause maydaclout is
not limited to:

(a) Failure by the family to accept the offer ohew
lease;

(b) Family history of disturbances of neighbors o
destruction of property or living or housekeeping
habits resulting in damage to the property or unit;

(c) The owner’s desire to utilize the unit forganal or
family use or for a purpose other than use as a
residential rental unit (not applicable for project
based Voucher units);

(d) A business or economic reason, such as $dleo
property, renovation of the unit, desire to rentat
higher rental amount (not applicable for project-
based voucher units).

b. During the first year the owner may not ternén@nancy for other

good cause unless the reason is because of somethen
household did or failed to do.

C. The owner may only evict the tenant by instiiy court action

after or simultaneously providing written noticettee participant
specifying the grounds for termination. The owmarst give CHA
a copy of any owner eviction notice to the tendrtha same time
the owner gives the notice to the tenant.

d. The owner may terminate the contract at tlieadrihe initial lease

term or any extension of the lease term withouseday providing
notice to the family that the lease term will na¢ benewed.
Families in units assisted by a project-based veuchill be
provided with a tenant-based voucher upon the tetiun of the
assistance to the unit which they occupy.

By mutual agreement
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The family and the owner may at any time mutuatjyea to terminate for
extraordinary circumstances. The extraordinargucirstances must be
approved by a supervisor.

B. Termination of the Contract

1.

Automatic termination of the contract

a. If CHA terminates assistance to the family, ¢batract terminates
automatically.

b. If the family moves out of the unit, the c@at terminates
automatically.

C. 180 calendar days after the last housing assistpayment to the
owner.

Termination of the contract by the owner

The owner may only terminate tenancy accordinghto lease and state
and local law. For Project-Based Voucher HAP @iy, the owner may
terminate the HAP contract, upon notice to CHAhg amount of rent to
owner for any contract unit, as adjusted in acawecdawith applicable
regulations, is below the amount of the initialtremowner. In this case,
CHA will provide Tenant-Based Vouchers to the assigamily.
Termination of the HAP contract by CHA

CHA may terminate the HAP contract because:

a. CHA has terminated assistance to the family.

b. The unit does not meet HQS space standards seecaiu an
increase in family size or change in family composi

C. The unit is larger than appropriate for the fsmsize or
composition under the regular Housing Choice Voué&tregram.

d. When the family breaks up and CHA determinesg the family
members who move from the unit will continue toeige the
assistance.

e. The owner has breached the contract in anyeofiallowing ways:

(). If the owner has violated any obligation undee HAP
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contract for the dwelling unit, including the owiser
obligation to maintain the unit according to HQS;

(2). If the owner has violated any obligation und@y other
housing assistance payments contract under Se8tioh
the 1937 Act;

(3). If the owner has committed fraud, bribery, any other
corrupt or criminal act in connection with any feale
housing program;

(4).  For projects with mortgages insured by HUDoamns made
by HUD, if the owner has failed to comply with the
regulations for the applicable mortgage insurancéan
program, with the mortgage or mortgage note, oh \the
regulatory agreement;

(5). If the owner has engaged in drug-related icr@nactivity
trafficking or any violent criminal activity.

f. If a welfare-to-work family fails to fulfilits obligations under the
welfare-to-work voucher program.

g. CHA may terminate the HAP contract if it istelenined there is
insufficient funding. CHA may terminate a HAP caut with a
30-day notice to the landlord and the tenant atréwoertification
date that it is determined there is insufficiemding to continue
the HAP contract. If Payment Standards are lowdmechuse of
insufficient funding, the following will be exclude elderly
families, disabled families, Family Self-Sufficignéamilies, and
Section 8 homeowner families. CHA will add the fkes being
terminated to the top of the waiting list and whieimding is
resumed, the family will receive a voucher for theental
assistance.

4, Final HAP payment to owner

The HAP payment stops when the lease terminatbs. oWwner may keep
the payment for the month in which the family mowes. If the owner
has begun eviction proceedings and the family ooes to occupy the
unit, CHA will continue to make payments until tleener obtains a
judgment or the family moves out. The owner miiist a detainer
warrant within five (5) days of the move-out datated in the eviction
notice.

112



5. Abandonment:

If the tenant abandons the unit, the owner willgkdee housing assistance
payment for the month the tenant abandons. Thelyfamill not be
responsible to repay the housing assistance payferthe month of
abandonment. The tenant will receive a termimatibassistance letter.
If the tenant wants to reapply for housing, theystmrove they have lived
in a unit for two years without abandoning.

If the owner must post the unit abandoned due milyaunexplained

absence from the unit, CHA will pay through a w$h{80) day
abandonment.

Section XXIX. Payment of Monies Owed by the FamidyCHA

A. Section 8 Voucher Applicants Living in CHA’s Caentional Public Housing

Families transferring from Public Housing to thet8® 8 Voucher Program must satisfy
all outstanding debts under the Public Housingdga®or to transferring to the Section 8
Voucher Program. Families accessed a debt to CH$5@0.00 or less, after being
issued a Voucher and prior to a Section 8 HAP eahtveing executed on their behalf,
may be offered the opportunity to enter into areagrent to pay the amount owed.
Under such an agreement, CHA may accept 25% afe¢beand negotiate a promissory
note to repay the remaining balance within twel®) (nonths. Any amounts greater
than $500.00 must be paid prior to execution oéetiSn 8 HAP contract.

B. Section 8 Voucher Applicants Living Outside dfi&€s Conventional Public
Housing

CHA will deny participation to any Applicant (inading Family members) owing CHA
money or to any Applicant (including Family Membenghose previous performance in
any CHA program would disqualify them from furthgarticipation.

C. Additions to Families

CHA will allow the Family to enter into a repaymegreement in the event a spouse of
the Head of Household is added to a Family andatialt has an outstanding debt to
CHA. The total amount owed by the adult requestiinge added to the lease will be
transferred to the Head of Household's accounpaydhents will become the
responsibility of the Head of Household and, if laggble, the Co-head. Failure to pay
the repayment agreement may result in the Fanméysination from the program.

D. Participants in the Housing Choice Voucher Paag(Section 8)
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Families must satisfy, in full, all outstanding &ates to CHA resulting from previous
tenancy in any housing program administered or gethdy CHA. This includes debts
for damages, fraud and move-out expenses from@hbblising or special claims paid to
a Housing Choice Voucher Program (Section 8) Lamidldf the amount owed is
$500.00 or less, CHA may accept 25% of the debtnagatiate a promissory note to
repay the remaining balance within twelve (12) rhentFailure to pay monies owed
CHA may result in termination of assistance.

Section XXX. Charges Against the Administrativee Feeserve

Occasionally, it is necessary for the CHA to sperahey from its Housing Choice Voucher
Program (Section 8) Administrative Fee Reserve éetmnseen or extraordinary expenditures or
for its other housing related purposes consistdtfit State law.

The CHA Board of Commissioners authorizes the EtreelDirector to expend without prior
Board approval up to and including Ten Thousandd»®($10,000) for authorized
expenditures.

Any item(s) exceeding Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,®d0 require prior Board of

Commissioner approval before any charge is madestghe Housing Choice Voucher Program
(Section 8) Administrative Fee Reserve

Section XXXI. Verification and Privacy of Familgformation

CHA will utilize all means, including electroni@ tollect and verify information about
participants and all household members. Certathisfdata may be shared, on request, only with
the individual to whom the information pertains.dde of Household only may receive
information on minors residing in the householdotmation for other adults in the household
may be provided, only to them, at their requesy.ohhere is no fee to provide this information
during the annual reexamination interview, and/bewincome information is disputed by any
member of the household. Each adult member of tieéhold shall sign the PDQ
acknowledging these methods of data collectionthenl rights to access the information.

Section XXXII — Additional Requirements for Projdgased Vouchers

A. Owner Proposal Submission Procedures

1. General Requirements — Subject to HUD limitation the number of
Project-Based Vouchers (PBVs) that can be issustat other HUD
requirements for the PBV program at 24 CFR Part @38A may from
time to time issue a Request for Proposals (RFEHEittng Owners of
rental property in the CHA service area to submoppsals to make use of
PBVs. RFPs may solicit proposals from any Ownérgwtal property, or
may specifically target one or more client demograpypes (such as
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chronically homeless individuals) or developmeipiety (such as core
urban, suburban, rural, etc.) for that RFP.

Public Notice of RFP — The RFP will be publidza the legal classified
section of the newspaper of general circulatiorwelsas on CHA’s web
site. A due date for proposals will be indicatedhe publication, as well
as directions for obtaining an application packet] CHA contact person
for the RFP process.

B. Site Selection Standards

Generally — CHA may not select a proposal fasteng, newly
constructed, or rehabilitated PBV housing on a sitéess CHA
determines that:

1.

a. PBYV assistance at the site is consistent wélgtal of
deconcentrating poverty and expanding housing aadamic
opportunities, as set out in CHA’s Agency Plan.détermining
the standards to apply in determining whether agsed PBV
development will be selected, the following mustbasidered:

whether the census tract in which the proposed PB
development will be located is in a HUD-designated
Enterprise Zone, Economic Community, or Renewal
Community;

whether a PBV development will be located in astes
tract where the concentration of assisted unitsheilor has
decreased as a result of public housing demolition;
whether the census tract in which the proposed PB
development will be located is undergoing significa
revitalization;

whether state, local, or federal dollars havenbieeested in
the area that has assisted in the achievemené stétutory
requirement;

whether new market rate units are being develapdue
same census tract where the proposed PBV develdpmen
will be located and the likelihood that such manegé
units will positively impact the poverty rate inetlarea;

If the poverty rate in the area where the progd2BvV
development will be located is greater than 20 grer,dhe
PHA should consider whether in the past five yélagse
has been an overall decline in the poverty rate;

whether there are meaningful opportunities farcadional
and economic advancement in the census tract wihere
proposed PBV development will be located.

b. The site is suitable from the standpoint oflfeting and
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2.

C.

furthering full compliance with the applicable praens of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 200€2D00d(4))
and HUD's implementing regulations at 24 CFR patifitle VIII

of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 3601-3%2and
HUD's implementing regulations at 24 CFR parts tt®6ugh 199;
Executive Order 11063 (27 FR 11527; 3 CFR, 19593 126mp.,
p. 652) and HUD's implementing regulations at 2R@fart 107.
The site must meet the section 504 site selectiquirements
described in 24 CFR 8.4(b)(5).

The site meets the HQS site standards at 24982RI01(l).

CHA Goals for Site Selection — To enhance thedityuof life for
participants in the voucher program, in additiocdasidering the factors
listed above, CHA will also prioritize the followgrsite- and location-
related factors in selecting sites for Project Bageuchers in its service

area:

a.

To promote the continuing viability and redeypshent of
properties in inner-city and older developed arpasposed sites
in core City locations will be favored over outeibsirban or
exurban sites; however, some RFPs may focus spabtjfon
suburban or rural sites;

To promote lower transportation costs for rasiseCHA will
favor sites with easy access to public transpantadr bicycle
routes, and will favor locations near areas with j@tail, school,
healthcare, government and other commercial andragnty
resources;

To promote equitable distribution of PBV throaghCHA'’s
service area, CHA may limit the number of PBV umitsiny one
development, and/or give additional weighting tojects located
in areas where no PBVs are currently being utilized

To promote maximum participation by Owners ie BV
program, CHA may limit the number of PBV units imyaone
development, and/or give additional weighting togwsals from
Owners who have not participated in the progranofeef

Site Selection Standards for Existing and Reitateid Housing — To be
selected for use of PBVs, sites must:

a.

Be adequate in size, exposure, and contourctimanodate the
number and type of units proposed, and adequditgestand
streets must be available to service the site. EXistence of a
private disposal system and private sanitary waipply for the
site, approved in accordance with law, may be cdmmed adequate
utilities.)

Promote greater choice of housing opportunéies avoid undue
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4.

concentration of assisted persons in areas congaahigh
proportion of low-income persons.

Be accessible to social, recreational, educati@@mmercial, and
health facilities and services and other municigeilities and
services that are at least equivalent to thoseajlgifound in
neighborhoods consisting largely of unassisteadsted housing
of similar market rents.

Be so located that travel time and cost viaipubdnsportation or
private automobile from the neighborhood to plaafes
employment providing a range of jobs for lower-immworkers is
not excessive. While it is important that housiagthe elderly not
be totally isolated from employment opportunitidgs
requirement need not be adhered to rigidly for quchects.

Site Selection Standards for Newly Constructeddihg — To be selected
for use of PBVs, sites must:

a.

Be adequate in size, exposure, and contourctimanodate the
number and type of units proposed, and adequditgest(water,
sewer, gas, and electricity) and streets must headole to service
the site.

Not be located in an area of minority concerargtexcept as

permitted under below, and must not be locatedraceally mixed

area if the project will cause a significant in@ean the proportion
of minority to non-minority residents in the area.

A project may be located in an area of minczayncentration only

if:

. Sufficient, comparable opportunities exist foubimg for
minority families in the income range to be serbgdhe
proposed project outside areas of minority conegiotn; or

. The project is necessary to meet overriding hauseeds
that cannot be met in that housing market area.

The site must promote greater choice of houspmprtunities and

avoid undue concentration of assisted personsegsazontaining a

high proportion of low-income persons.

The neighborhood must not be one that is sdyiaesrimental to

family life or in which substandard dwellings ohet undesirable

conditions predominate, unless there is activelyrogress a

concerted program to remedy the undesirable camgiti

The housing must be accessible to social, réores, educational,
commercial, and health facilities and services @heér municipal
facilities and services that are at least equivdtethose typically
found in neighborhoods consisting largely of unstssi, standard
housing of similar market rents.

Except for new construction, housing designecfderly persons,
travel time, and cost via public transportatiorpovate automobile
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from the neighborhood to places of employment hong a range
of jobs for lower-income workers, must not be esoes

Eligible Projects and Units

1.

Housing Quality Standards (HQS)- PBV-assistats unust adhere to the
same quality standards as other housing unitseitdtV Program. All
units must be inspected and pass HQS before eraauitihe Housing
Assistance Payment contract. Once the unit istskiinspections must
also be conducted on each unit turnover, and alynnatompliance with
24 CFR 983.103.

Accessibility — PBV-assisted projects must compth the program
accessibility requirements in section 504 of thadditation Act of 1973
and the implementing HUD regulations at 24 CFR parProject sites
must provide 5% or more of assisted units meetifigriobility
accessibility as defined by 24 CFR 8.32 and thédiegdge sections of the
Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards. Additibpafor newly-
constructed projects or projects with rehabilitatomsts in excess of 75%
of replacement costs, 2% of the assisted units beistcessible for
persons with hearing or vision impairments.

Unit Caps — The percentage of PBV units in amiding must not exceed
25%, except for buildings with four or fewer unigsmd except (upon
special request to CHA) for units serving eldemydsabled families, or
families receiving supportive services, where supyp® services are those
services necessary for the families to achieveihgustability. The
supportive services must be provided by a qualidigeincy or nonprofit,
and the services must be specifically tailoredeech Services may
include mental health care, substance abuse tragtjok training,
education assistance, recreational therapy, lifisssknoney management,
case management, and other mainstream resources.

Ineligible Units — The following types of units projects are not eligible for the
PBV program:

1.

2.

Units on the grounds of a penal, reformatorydliced, mental, or similar
public or private institution;

Nursing homes or facilities providing continugasychiatric, medical,
nursing services, board and care, or intermedete ¢lowever, CHA
may attach PBV assistance for a dwelling unit irassisted living facility
that provides home health care services such asguaind therapy for
residents of the housing;

Units that are owned or controlled by an edocali institution or its
affiliate and are designated for occupancy by sitglef the institution;
Shared housing;

Manufactured homes;
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6. Cooperative housing;

7. Transitional Housing;

8. High-rise elevator project for families with khien;

9. Owner-occupied units;

10. Units receiving certain other types of fedestdie or local subsidies

(proposed projects will be subject to subsidy-layganalysis).

E. Requirements for New or Rehabilitated Housing
1. For projects selected under the RFP proced2Bbdf, that will be
constructed or renovated in anticipation of recegWwBVs, CHA will
enter into an Agreement to enter into a HAP comtraberein the Owner
agrees to construct or renovate units that willtrapglicable laws,
standards (including HQS) and regulations, and Glgrees to execute a
binding HAP contract for the units when complete.
2. The Agreement will specify:

a. Site;

b. Location of contract units on site;

C. Number of contract units by area (size) and remolb bedrooms
and bathrooms;

d. Services, maintenance, or equipment to be spply the owner
without charges in addition to the rent to owner;

e. Utilities available to the contract units, irgilog a specification of
utility services to be paid by owner (without chesgn addition to
rent) and utility services to be paid by the tepant

f. Indication of whether or not the design and ¢argtion
requirements of the Fair Housing Act and implenrenti
regulations at 24 CFR 100.205 and the accessibdgyirements
of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (2.S.C. 794)
and implementing regulations at 24 CFR 8.22 an@ 8gply to
units under the Agreement. If these requiremermspplicable,
any required work item resulting from these requieats must be
included in the description of work to be performeuier the
Agreement, as specified in paragraph (c)(i)(vifi}fos section.

g. Estimated initial rents to owner for the contnaaits;

h. Description of the work to be performed under Agreement. If
the Agreement is for rehabilitation of units, therlwdescription
must include the rehabilitation work write up andhere
determined necessary by CHA, specifications, aad9lIf the
Agreement is for new construction, the work desmipmust
include the working drawings and specifications;

I. Completion Deadline for Construction or Rehdétion;

J- The term length (1-10 years) and initial renbtener under the
HAP contract to be executed.

3. Conduct of Development Work
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Labor standards - In the case of an Agreemermteieelopment of
nine or more contract units, the owner and the o\wmentractors
and subcontractors must pay Davis-Bacon wagedtodes and
mechanics employed in development of the housirige owner
and the owner's contractors and subcontractors asstomply
with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards the
Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR partriel ather
applicable federal labor relations laws and regumat CHA will
monitor compliance with labor standards.

Section 3 — Training, employment, and contractpportunities.
The owner must comply with Section 3 of the Housand Urban
Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) and thplémenting
regulations at 24 CFR part 135.

Equal employment opportunity. The owner must glynwith
federal equal employment opportunity requiremehxecutive
Orders 11246 as amended (3 CFR, 1964-1965 Con§89p.
11625 (3 CFR, 1971-1975 Comp., p. 616), 12432 R,AP83
Comp., p. 198) and 12138 (3 CFR, 1977 Comp., p).393
Eligibility to participate in federal programsdaactivities. The
Agreement and HAP contract shall include a cedtfan by the
owner that the owner and other project principaslgding the
officers and principal members, shareholders, itoresand other
parties having a substantial interest in the pitpje not on the
U.S. General Services Administration list of patexcluded from
federal procurement and non-procurement programs.
Disclosure of conflict of interest. The ownerghdisclose any
possible conflict of interest that would be a vima of the
Agreement, the HAP contract, or HUD regulations.

Completion of Housing

Owner must complete the work before the deadlatén the
Agreement, as set out above.

Once the housing is complete, the Owner willhsibhe following
evidence to CHA, in the manner prescribed by CHA:

. Owner certification that the work has been congalen
accordance with the HQS and all requirements of the
Agreement;

. Owner certification that the owner has compliathwabor

standards and equal opportunity requirements in
development of the housing;

. A certificate of occupancy from the local buildinode
authority.

Once CHA determines that the housing has beempleted in
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accordance with the Agreement and all required @Qwne
submissions have been received and approved, CH&xeicute
the HAP contract.

F. Environmental Review

All projects are subject to environmental reviewl approval by HUD prior to
execution of contract, pursuant to 24 CFR PartarzB983.58.

G. Project Selection

1. In addition to preference criteria for projeité @nd location, set out
above, CHA will also prioritize proposals furthegiseveral non-site-
related criteria:

a. To promote the continuing economic viability,im@nance and
redevelopment of existing housing stock, sites @kisting
housing will be favored over project proposing reusing;

b. to promote the availability of larger, familyzed units, sites with
those unit types will be favored over sites without
C. to promote the availability of permanent houdmghouseholds

who have been homeless in Chattanooga, projecthvginopose
serving those households with an integrated progriaservices
and permanent housing may be targeted with RFRsfispdy for
those projects.

2. Each proposal received under the RFP procesbevitviewed by CHA
staff and evaluated to determine if it meets theimum threshold criteria
for site selection and location, unit type, anduregments for newly
developed or existing housing, as set out abovepd3als meeting the
threshold criteria will be prioritized accordingttee site- and non-site
related criteria. CHA may make one or more awafdgwoject-based
vouchers for the highest-ranking proposals.

CHA-Owned Units

1. CHA and its affiliated entities may compete RBVs on projects owned
or operated by CHA and its affiliates; however, Chst follow the
same proposal procedures and selection criteiadha&s property owners,
and such procedures and selection must be revianegdpproved by
HUD before award.

2. Determination of the rent level for each unitsinioe performed by an
independent party approved by HUD
3. Housing Quality Inspection for each unit muspkeeormed by an

independent party approved by HUD
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Section XXXIII — Special Housing Type — Group Home

A. The following individuals residing in a group herare eligible for housing assistance
under the Housing Choice Voucher Program:

1.

2.

An elderly person or a person with disaés residing reside in a

State-approved group home.

If approved by the PHA, a live-in aideymaside with a

person with disabilities.

a. The PHA must approve a live-in afdeeeded as a reasonable
accommodation

Except for a live-in aide, all resideatsa group home, whether assisted or

unassisted, must be elderlgqes or persons with disabilities.

Persons residing in a group home mustawptire continual

medical or nursing care.

Persons who are not assisted under tlaatdased program may

reside in a group home.

No more than 12 persons may residegroap home. This limit

covers all persons who reside in the, imtluding assisted and

unassisted residents and any livede.ai

B. Rent and voucher housing assistance payment:

1.

Meaning of pro-rata portion. For a grénvgmne, the term "“pro-rata portion™
means the ratio derived by dividing tlendber of persons in the assisted household
by the total number of residefassisted and unassisted) residing in the group
home. The number of personthénassisted household equals one assisted person,
plus any PHA-approved liveaide.
Rent to owner: Reasonable rent limit. &g rent to owner for
an assisted person may not exceed thegpaiortion of the reasonable rent for the
group home.
The reasonable rent for a group honaeiermined in accordance with Sec.
982.507. In determining readua rent for the group home, the PHA must consider
whether sanitary facilitieadafacilities for food preparation and service, are
common facilities or privateiities.
Payment standard--(1) Family unit size

a. Unless there is a live-in aide, the familyt size is zero or one bedroom.

b. If there is a live-in aide, the live-ila must be counted in determining

the family units.

c. The payment standard for a person whdessn a group home is the
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lower of:
() The payment standard amount on the PHA payment
standard schedule for the family unit size; or
(i) The pro-rata portion of the paymstandard amount on the
PHA paymstandard schedule for the group home size.
(i) If there is a live-in aide, the live-in aide must ¢tounted
in determining the family unit size.

C. Utility Allowance

The utility allowance for each assisted persordineg in a group home is the pro-rata portion
of the utility allowance for the group home uniesi

D. Housing quality standards:

1. Compliance with HQS. The PHA may not give appfdo reside in a group home unless
the unit, including the portion of the unit availalfor use by the assisted person under
the lease, meets the housing quality standards.

2. The entire unit must comply with the HQS.

3. Additional performance requirements. The follogvadditional performance requirements
apply to a group home:

a. Sanitary facilities.
(i) There must be a bathroom in the unit.
(i) The unit must contain, and an assisteddersi must have ready access to:
(A) A flush toilet that can be used in pgya
(B) A fixed basin with hot and cold runningtsr; and
(C) A shower or bathtub with hot and coldmung water.

(ii)) All of these facilities must be in propeperating condition, and must be
adequategersonal cleanliness and the disposal of humatewake
facilitiesust utilize an approvable public or private dispeyatem.

(iv) The unit may contain private or common saunyi facilities. However, the
facilities must be sufficient in number so thatytimeed not be shared by more than four
residents of the group home.

(v) Sanitary facilities inet group home must be readily accessible to and
usable by residents, includingspas with disabilities.

b. Food preparation and service

(i) The unit must contain a kitchen and @ity area. There must be adequate
space to store, prepare, and serve foods in aasanianner.

(i) Food preparation and service equipnmmenst be in proper operating
condition. The equipment must be adequate for timber of residents in the group home.
The unit must contain the following equipment:

(A) A stove or range, and oven;
(B) A refrigerator; and
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(C) A kitchen sink with hot and cold runningter. The sink must
drain into an approvable public or private dispasatem.

(iif) There must be adequate facilities ardvices for the sanitary disposal of
food waste and refuse, including facilities for ferary storage where necessary.
(iv) The unit may contain private or commauifities for food preparation
and service.

c. Space and security
(i) The unit must provide adequate space andrggdor the assisted person.
(i) The unit must contain a living roomfdtien, dining area, bathroom, and
other appropriate social, recreational or commusyisce.
(i The unit must contain at least one bedrodrappropriate size for each
two persons.
(iv) Doors and windows that are accessitaenfoutside the unit must be

lockable.

d. Structure and material.

(i) The unit must be structurally sound to @avany threat to the health and

safety of the residents, and to protect the ressdieom the environment.

(i) Ceilings, walls, and floors must not lesany serious defects such as
severe bulging or leaning, loose surface matersalgere buckling or noticeable
movement under walking stress, missing parts aralgnificant damage. The roof
structure must be firm, and the roof must be wedtgbt. The exterior or wall
structure and exterior wall surface may not hawesamious defects such as serious
leaning, buckling, sagging, cracks or large hdlmsse siding, or other serious damage.
The condition and equipment of interior and extestairways, halls, porches,
walkways, etc., must not present a danger of tnigir falling. Elevators must be
maintained in safe operating condition.

(iif) The group home must be accessiblenid @sable by a resident with

disabilities.

e. Site and neighborhood The site and neighborhood must be reasonablyfrive®
disturbing noises and reverberations and otherriaza the health, safety, and general
welfare of the residents. The site and neighborhnag not be subject to serious adverse
environmental conditions, natural or manmade, stsctiangerous walks or steps,
instability, flooding, poor drainage, septic tardck-ups, sewage hazards or mud slides,
abnormal air pollution, smoke or dust, excessiviee)ovibrations or vehicular traffic,
excessive accumulations of trash, vermin or roddastation, or fire hazards. The unit
must be located in a residential setting.
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Attachment |

Capital Fund Program
5-Year Action Plan




Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year ActiorPlan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urbabevelopment

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/20011

Part I: Summary

PHA Name/Number Chattanooga Housing
Authority, TN-4

Locality (Chattanooga, TN)

XlOriginal 5-Year Plan [_]JRevision No:

Development Number and

Work Statement

Work Statement for Year 2

Work Statement for Year 3

Work Statement for Year 4

Work Statement for Year 5

A. Name for Year 1 FFY 2011 FFY 2012 FFY 2013 FFY 2014
FFY _2010
B. Physical Improvements Somal Siatenie 2,150,000 2,000,000 2,100,000 02000
Subtotal 7 0
C. Management Improvements////////////////// 222,500 222,500 222,500 222,500
D. PHA-Wide Non-dwelling W 2 95,000 95,000 95,000 95,000
Structures and Equipment {7 7
E. Administration 422,535 422,535 422,535 422,535
F. Other 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000
G. Operations 845,070 845,070 845,070 845,070
H. Demolition
l. Development 380,247 530,247 430,247 430,247
J. Capital Fund Financing —
Debt Service
K. Total CFP Funds 4,225,352 4,225,352 4,225,352 4,225,352
L. Total Non-CFP Funds
M. Grand Total

Pdgef 6

formHUD-50075.2(4/2008)



Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year ActiorPlan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urbabevelopment

Office of

Public and Indian Housing
Expires 4/30/20011

Part I: Summary (Continuation)

PHA Name/Number Locality (City/county & State) [XlOriginal 5-Year Plan [ ]Revision No:
Development Number Work Work Statement for Year 4 Work Statement for Year 3| Work Statement for Year 4| Work Statement for Year %
A. and Name Statement for | FFY 2011 FFY 2012 FFY 2013 FFY 2014
Year 1
FFY 2010

Emma Wheeler Homes, [ 1,050,000 1,400,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

TN 4-8 .

Boynton Terrace, 1,000,000 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

TN 4-10

HA-Wide
A/E Services 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Audit 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Site Acquisition 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
HOPE VI pre-Dev 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Dwelling Equipment 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Computer equipment 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Non-dwelling structuresy, 7777 7 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Maintenance trucks 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Police car 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

Payef 6 formHUD-50075.2(4/2008)



Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year ActiorPlan U.S. Department of Housing and UrbaBevelopment
Office of Public and Indian Housing
Expires 4/30/20011

Part Il: Supporting Pages — Physical Needs Work Stament(s)
Work Work Statement for Year 2012 Work Statement for Year: 2013
Statement for FFY 2011 FFY 2012
Year 1 FFY Development Quantity Estimated Cost Development Quantity Estimated Cost
_ 2010 Number/Name Number/Name
General Description of General Description of
Major Work Categories Major Work Categories
///// >
7/ Emma Wheeler, TN 4-8 Emma Wheeler, TN 4-8
Sewer construction 650,000 Sewer construction
Elec. grid construction 400,000 Elec. grid construction 400,000
7 Unit renovations 1,000,000
Boynton Terrace, TN 44 Boynton Terrace, TN 4;
10 10
‘ Unit /bldg renovations 1,000,000 Unit /bldg renovations 500,000
77| HA-Wide HA-Wide
A/E Services 100,000 A/E Services 100,000
77/ Computer Equipment 10,000 Computer Equipme)nt 0am,
Maintenance trucks 3 60,000 Maintenance truckis 3 0,0a®
Police car 1 15,000 Police car 1 15,000
Dwelling Equipment 5,000 Dwelling Equipment] 500
Non-Dwelling 10,000 Non-Dwelling 10,000
Structures Structures
Subtotal of EstiediCost| $ 2,250,000 Subtotal of Estteh Cost| $ 2,100,000

P&yef 6 formHUD-50075.2(4/2008)



Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year ActiorPlan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urbabevelopment
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/20011
Part Il: Supporting Pages — Physical Needs Work Stament(s)
Work Work Statement for Year 2014 Work Statement for Year: 2015
Statement for FFY 2013 FFY 2014
Year 1 FFY Development Quantity Estimated Cost Development Quantity Estimated Cost
Number/Name Number/Name
General Description of General Description of
Major Work Categories Major Work Categories
Emma Wheeler, TN 4-8 Emma Wheeler, TN 4-8
Sewer construction Sewer construction
Elec. grid construction Elec. grid construction
Unit renovations 1,000,000 Unit Renovations 1,000,000
Boynton Terrace, TN 4t Boynton Terrace, TN 4;
10 10
/| Unit /bldg Unit /bldg
__/| renovations 1,000,000 renovations 1,000,000
W/ HA-Wide HA-Wide
7 AJE Services 100,000 AJE Services 100,000
1 Computer Equipment 10,000 Computer Equipment 0am,
Maintenance trucks 3 60,000 Maintenance truckis 3 0,00®
Police car 1 15,000 Police car 1 15,000
Dwelling Equipment 5,000 Dwelling Equipment] 5000
Non-Dwelling 10,000 Non-Dwelling 10,000
Structures Structures
Subtotal of EstiediCost | $ 2,200,000 Subtotal of Estieth Cost| $ 2,200,000
Pagef 6 formHUD-50075.2(4/2008)



Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year ActiorPlan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urbabevelopment

Office of Public and Indian Housing
Expires 4/30/20011
Part Ill: Supporting Pages — Management Needs WorlStatement(s)
Work Work Statement for Year _ 2011 Work Statement for Year: _ 2012
Statement for FFY FFY
Year 1 FFY Development Number/Name Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Estimated Cost
General Description of Major Work Categories General Description of Major Work Categories
W See HA-Wide HA-Wide
/ Computer software 7,500 Computer software 7,500
////,,f,’ff,’,f,// Marketing 5,000 Marketing 5,000
Aarereny | Management Development & Training 1®,00 Management Development & Training 10,000
] Security services 185,000 Security services 185,000
77/ Resident programs 15,000 Resident programs 15,000
Audit 5,000 Audit 5,000
HOPE-VI Pre-Development 50,000 HOPE-VI PeBlopment 50,000
Site Acquisition 50,000 Site Acquisition 50,000

Subtotal of EstiedhiCost| $ 327,500 Subtotal of EsttethCost| $ 327,500

Pdgef 6 formHUD-50075.2(4/2008)



Capital Fund Program—TFive-Year ActiorPlan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urbabevelopment

Office of Public and Indian Housing
Expires 4/30/20011
Part Ill: Supporting Pages — Management Needs WorlStatement(s)
Work Work Statement for Year 2013 Work Statement for Year: 2014
Statement for FFY FFY
Year 1 FFY Development Number/Name Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Estimated Cost
General Description of Major Work Categories General Description of Major Work Categories
W See HA-Wide HA-Wide
/ Computer software 7,500 Computer software 7,500
////,,f,’ff,’,f,// Marketing 5,000 Marketing 5,000
Aarerent | Management Development & Training 1®,00 Management Development & Training 10,000
] Security services 185,000 Security services 185,000
77/ Resident programs 15,000 Resident programs 15,000
Audit 5,000 Audit 5,000
HOPE-VI Pre-Development 50,000 HOPE-VI PeBlopment 50,000
Site Acquisition 50,000 Site Acquisition 50,000

Subtotal of EstiedhiCost| $ 327,500 Subtotal of EsttethCost| $ 327,500

Pdyef 6 formHUD-50075.2(4/2008)



